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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

Relating to restrictions on public officials and lobbyists, investigations of ethics violations, and
implementing requirements of article XIV of the Constitution of North Dakota; relating to
rulemaking procedures and requirements for the North Dakota ethics commission; to provide for
a legislative management study; to provide a penalty; and to provide an appropriation.

Minutes: Attachments: 1-11

Chairman Hogue: Opened the hearing on SB 2148.

Senator Mathern, District 11: See Attachment #1 for testimony as sponsor of the bill.
See Attachments #2 and #3 for additional information provided to the committee.

(5:15) Chairman Hogue: Claire Ness will walk through the bill.

(5:40) Claire Ness, Attorney, Legislative Council Legal Division: Testified in neutral
capacity on the bill to explain the bill.

Section 1 Definitions

Sections 2-20 Rules

Section 21 Creates new chapter 54-66 incorporate new provisions for ethics commission
Section 22 Study on provisions in Article XIV

Section 23 Provides appropriation for operation

(15:50) Senator Dever: Prior to the passage of Measure 1, North Dakota had the most open
and accessible government in the country. Necessary to that was the free and open flow of
idea and conversation. It is my desire that whatever results from this, we are able to be as
open, free, and accessible as we were able to. It seems to me that necessary to that, since
ethics is no longer a matter of our discretion, but defined by others, that those rules be black
and white and clear. Under the traditional scheme of things, the Constitution stands as a
standard, and statute is measured against the Constitution and administrative rules flow from
statute; now administrative rules will flow from the Constitution itself. Do they then supersede
statute and other administrative rules?

Claire Ness: We currently have very little experience with rule making authority delegated
directly from the Constitution. Most administrated agencies, the executive branch agencies



Senate Ethics Committee
SB 2148

01/30/2019

Page 2

get their rule making authority from statute. The closest analogy to what the Ethics
Commission has would be the Judiciary Branch. The Supreme Court is allowed to make its
own rules and that authority stems from the Constitution directly. That said, | am not aware
of any case that directly looks at the weight that would be given to a rule adopted by an
agency that is authorized directly from the Constitution to do so and a competing statute. You
all are authorized to enact laws under the Constitution as well. | think it would be up to the
courts to decide if there was a conflict and if there is, how it would be handled between those
two.

Senator Dever: If the rules under the Ethics Commission conflict with statue that would need
to be decided in court?

Claire Ness: | believe that is correct.

Vice Chair Unruh: Do we have the authority to require this new Ethics Commission to go
through the admin rules process?

Claire Ness: That is questionable. One could argue that the Legislative Assembly does not
have that authority since the rule making authority for the Ethics Commission does not stem
from statues that you enacted. Normally, you act as a body that would overview an
administrative rule because you have given those Executive Branch agencies the authority
to adopt them, and in this case the Ethics Commission doesn’t need that authority from you.
One could argue that the Legislative Assembly cannot put parameters around the process
that would be used for those rules. However, the one caveat to that is that you have
Subsection 1 of Section 4 that allows you to enact rules to facilitate Article XIV but not to
hamper or impair Article XIV. It is unclear how that would be interpreted.

Chairman Hogue: Article XIV contains the definition of a gift and then it specifies what is
not a gift. When | look at the draft of this bill and | see that the definition of gift was carried
forward into the bill but the exclusion was not. | wanted to make sure | understood why.

Claire Ness: That would be a question for the sponsor of the bill. | cannot speak to the policy
purposes behind the bill.

Vice Chair Unruh: On Section 54-66-13 that requires the Attorney General to provide legal
services to the Ethics Commission, again with questioning how the authority works here, can
the Attorney General provide legal services to the Ethics Commission since they are separate
or do they need their own access to legal counsel?

Claire Ness: That is another question where there could be a conflict of interest. There is
not any authority directly in Article XIV that would allow the Attorney General to provide that
service to what might be considered another branch of the government. Typically, the
Attorney General provides services to the Executive Branch. Nothing in Article XIV discusses
that particular issue.

Chairman Hogue: | have invited Kara Erickson to come and explain to us how it works in
the Judicial Branch.
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(22:39) Senator Mathern: | had Claire Ness prepare the amendments to the bill. We do
have someone with a chart on how the amendments incorporate into the bill.

Senator Dever: It seems to me that 54-66-02 says that commission members will begin
their term on July 15t and the bill takes effect Aug 1%%; should that also be included in the
emergency clause?

Claire Ness: The appointments need to be made by July 15t It does not mean that the bill
has to kick in by that date but you may want to add an emergency clause if you want them
to be in effect by the time that the commission members are appointed.

Senator Dever: | thought it sad that their terms begin on July 15t

Claire Ness: You are correct. They would be appointed and they would be in place on July
15t but the bill would start Aug 15t. You would not have to add and emergency clause, but if
you want the provisions in the bill to apply to the first month they are in office, then you would
want to change that.

Senator Dever: My second question has to do with what | think is unintended consequence.
| don’t believe that either the sponsoring committee or the legislature would expect that
private citizens would be required to report expenditures of over $200 to influence state
government action. | look at Section 1, Subsection 2, and that first full sentence is
approximately half of that paragraph and it does not indicate that it applies to lobbyists and it
does not provide any exclusions. Is that relieved by the amendment in the bill that says the
definition of a lobbyist does not include a private citizen?

Claire Ness: The definition of a lobbyist is to inform other provisions in the Article XIV. So
there are the prohibition gifts from lobbyists to public officials. There is the prohibition on
lobbyists serving to deliver campaign contributions. Where | think you are going to get more
information about Subsection 2 of Section 1, with the reporting requirements, would be in a
definition of what are the ultimate and true source of funds. That is not addressed in here.
That is part of the Legislative Management study.

Senator Dever: It says that the Ethics Commission can levy penalties as proposed. You
mentioned a $10,000 fine, and in the same paragraph it talks about a Class A misdemeanor.
Can the Ethics Commission also find guilty on that, and then it also talks about on the
preponderance of the evidence?

Claire Ness: The Ethics Commission would not be able to find someone guilty of a crime,
that penalty is in there just as it is worded in other provisions for law enforcement to carry out
and for the judicial process to play out. The Ethics Commission would be allowed to impose
fines.

Senator Dever: So then due process would apply if it went into criminal process?

Claire Ness: Correct.
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Senator Poolman: I just have a clarifying question. 56-66-10, on confidential information, it
mentions that the records are confidential until the Ethics Commission issues its findings, so
even if there is nothing found, does it all still become public record?

Claire Ness: That is correct.

Chairman Hogue: We will get into some of the distinctions between this bill and the house
bill. The house bill does draw a distinction between complaints that are not regarded by the
commission as being substantial and therefore are kept confidential; as opposed to this bill
which does not contain that provision. We will get into those distinctions at a later hearing,
so don’t feel you have to ask about the differences between the bills.

Vice Chair Unruh: On the legislative management study, you mentioned that the ultimate
and true source of funds definition is proposed to be studied here; do we have enough time
to study that and enact legislation before the end of the next legislative session?

Claire Ness: We do. The ultimate and true source of funds provision is Subsection 2, of
Section 1 of Article XIV and the deadline for implementation and enacting legislation is
January 5" of 2022 for that provision.

Vice Chair Unruh: Does the rest of the study have the same deadline?

Claire Ness: The study of Subsection 1 of Section 2 of Article XIV has a deadline for
implementation of January 5" of 2021. It is highly unlikely the Legislative Assembly would be
able to enact anything for that deadline for that subsection.

Chairman Hogue: | have asked Kara to come and give us some background on how the
judicial conduct commission office functions because that has oversight responsibility for
lawyers and judges. They have been doing it well and for a long time.

(30:05) Kara Erickson, Director, Office of Disciplinary Council: Testified in a neutral
capacity for informational purposes to the committee and at the Chairman’s request. | run the
Office of Disciplinary Council which handles the Judicial Conduct Commission and the
disciplinary board. Basically, | handle judicial ethics. In my office we do the investigations of
all complaints that come in and screen those complaints. We also prepare reports based on
those complaints and then we are the prosecutors in the event that something arises to a
matter where there needs to be a prosecution. At that time, when we do prosecute a case, it
becomes public record. All the filings and all the information within that prosecution is public.
My office is the closest thing to what you are trying to enact right now. So, | am here for
guestions you might have as to our processes and how our office runs.

(31:29) Senator Mathern: The question | have relates to the appropriation in this bill. The
appropriation talks about a director, an attorney, and an administrative assistant. With your
system, what staff do you have and what is your appropriation each biennium?

Kara Erickson: Each biennium we have a budget of approximately $1.2 million. We have 2
attorneys, 2 legal assistants, and 1 para legal that is part time. The vast majority of our
membership that we work with in the disciplinary system for both the attorneys and judges
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are volunteers. There is no appropriation that has been designated to them apart from travel
to hearings and things like that.

Chairman Hogue: Can you give us some background on the number of individual who are
subject to your oversight and the number of complaints that you typically get in a calendar
year?

Kara Erickson: We tend to see about 180 complaints a year on average for attorneys.
Nationally speaking that has gone down and our state has followed. This year we are at
about 150 complaints. We currently have 3033 attorneys in North Dakota. Those are all
subject to our provisions within the rules for lawyer discipline and the rules of professional
conduct for North Dakota. In addition, any attorneys that come into our state that practice
when they really shouldn’t be, they are also subject to our jurisdiction and can be disciplined.
With respect to judges, | have 140 judges that we handle. Additionally, we handle all judicial
candidates. So, anyone who puts their name in for an office as well as people to be seated
in the disciplinary system for lawyers they are also subject to the code of judicial conduct
when they seated in the panels who are issuing decision. This year we are down for judicial
conduct complaints. That is in part due to the large changeover we have had in the judiciary.

Chairman Hogue: It sounds like 3200 people you are providing oversight to, and you get
about 150 to 180 complaints. Can you describe how you separate what you regard as a
meritorious complaint verses repeat complainants?

Kara Erickson: We handle things differently on the judge side verses the attorney side. On
the attorney side, if there is a complaint that comes in and it triggers any of the rules of
professional conduct; if there is anything that is implicated that could remotely be seen as a
violation. Not something that is an appeal or something that is saying they want a new
attorney — those types of cases are investigated by us. In the investigations process, we will
receive a complaint from the individual involved, and we are required to have them in writing.
Then we will get the response from the attorney and we will do an investigation that will
usually consist of calling all those involved, looking at the case records, and putting together
an investigative report. That report goes to complainant and the respondent attorney, and
they have an opportunity to appear for the first time in front of an inquiry committee (which is
our probable cause panel that determines whether lesser discipline should be imposed or if
it is something that goes to those public formal hearings. On the judicial side, we screen and
we see if there is anything that is implicated for the code of judicial conduct. We have a little
bit more discretion on the judicial conduct side of things. We do have to run things past, both
the lawyer side and judicial side, to get those summary dismissals. We have no adjudicative
authority in our office at all. Any decisions that are being made are being made by one of
those two entities. On the judicial comment commission side of things, we will send a letter
to the judge asking them to respond to the allegations, and provide any information we may
need. Before we send that letter we will often times pull the docket information, transcripts of
hearings, and we will go ahead and get that information to minimize the contact and impact
on the judge so they can continue to perform their function. Once we get the letter in response
from the judge, we prepare a memo for the judicial comment commission to relay what the
investigative finding were. Once that happens they make an indetermination list as to how to
proceed with any informal discipline or formal discipline.
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Chairman Hogue: At what point does the complaint made by the complainant become
public?

Kara Erickson: Typically the complaint does not become public by the calling of it. On
occasion, if there is an appeal to the Supreme Court for lawyer discipline, we will stipulate
that it needs to become public so that the Supreme Court has adequate information and can
assess the underlying issue. Most frequently, if it goes to a public matter, | am the one serving
the summons and petition for discipline. My documents are what become public. Part of that
is sometimes there are things that individual complain of but it won'’t rise to the level of
discipline so it is a weeding out process.

(40:25) Gregory Stites, North Dakota Attorney representing North Dakotans for Public
Integrity: See Attachment #4 for testimony in support of SB 2148.

(48:20) Chairman Hogue: In your opinion, how do you feel about our disciplinary system
for lawyers?

Greg Stites: The legal process has been excellent. The system works well. It is fair and
appropriate. | believe there is not only safe guards to make sure that complaints that are not
meritorious don’t somehow get exposed. Then if someone has broken the rules and has
become unethical, then | believe the way that they have scheduled their penalties and
methodology seems to be fair.

Senator Anderson: These initiated measures that effect the Constitution should by in large
stand on their own and that we shouldn’t be making laws that reinterpret what they already
say. However, there are gray areas. Most of the people in the room are not here because
they oppose the process or disagree with it, but they are here to make sure that they don’t
run afoul with it in trying to do the job for their clients. The questions we need to answer are
when you talk about a gift? What is a gift? Additionally, the question comes around on
reporting. There we are trying to get the true source of the funds? What do | report? That is
what we need to answer. (Gave Examples).

Greg Stites: | can only say that the way Measure 1 was designed, and then implemented as
Article XIV, your concerns are very valid. The way that it is intended to happen; it is so
important to have the interim study because that is going to provide the opportunity to answer
all of the questions about Section 1, Subsection 2 which is the transparency section. It does
not go into effect for 3 years, and would give all interested parties to come and make sense
of that and determine what is appropriate under this Article XIV in a logical way. If there is
further legislation or new laws that need to define things, you could handle that responsibly
in 2 years. In terms of the gift issue, | can tell you that is the role or responsibility of the Ethics
Commission. They are to promulgate rules related to gifts and exceptions to gifts. If it says it
clearly as to what is appropriate and not appropriate gift, then it should all be taken care of.
Rulemaking will require them to have public hearings.

Senator Anderson: You just exempted them from the administrative agencies practice act
which requires public hearings. There is nothing that says that Ethics Commission as to have
public hearings. | did not see anything in the constitutional measure about that.
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Greg Stites: That is true because of the constitutional authority to do rules. | am saying that
| believe the Governor and the Senate will choose the members of the Ethics Commission
and they will be subject to public scrutiny and | believe they would only adopt a process that
is equal to the Administrative Practices Act or very akin to it. How would they dare not do
that?

Vice Chair Unruh: | agree with everything you have said. | am trying to understand the
legislature’s role in this is in bill and Article XIV as we try and enact laws to enable this to
move forward. This is a logistical question. Based on the outline of the amendments you
gave us, Subsection 2 of Section 1 states that the legislative assembly shall implement and
enforce this section by enacting, no more than 3 years after the effective date of this article,
and then it continues on and talks about the ultimate and true source of funds. That same
language is used saying that the Ethics Commission needs to adopt rules within 2 years of
the effective date of the article to define further what a gift is, but if you move to Subsection
5 of Section 2, it says that this subsection shall take effect 3 years after the effective date of
this article. | am reading them differently. | think Subsection 5 has the delayed effective date
but I am not sure that Subsection 2 of Section 1 and Subsection 1 of Section 2 have that
same delayed effective date. | still think that we are possibly all subject to what is written
here. We can delay the rule making process for that, but we still need to know what a gift is
now, and then what true and ultimate source of funds means because we are subject to those
now | believe.

Chairman Hogue: Do you agree?

Greg Stites: In response to the gifts and when it kicks in, if you look on page 3 of my analysis,
it is very clear near the bottom of the last paragraph, where it says that such rules may be
adopted within two years after the effective date of this article so as to allow for the adoption
of these rules. These prohibitions take effect two years after the effective date of this article.
The gift prohibition clearly does not until 1/5/2021. In terms of Subsection 2 of Section 1, that
is right in the language at the top where it states the legislative assembly shall implement
and enforce this by enacting no more than 3 years after the effective date laws that require
the prompt reporting etc. Clearly there is 3 years and nothing between now and then.

Chairman Hogue: You had indicated that you had removed the initial portions of the original
draft of 2148 based on the direction or the conclusion that since the commission is a
constitutional body, it is not appropriate to subject it to the Administrative Agencies Practices
Act. | have two related questions about that. One, is there anything in Article XIV that prohibits
the commission from having to go through the same process as every other agency? Second,
what it is about a constitutional body that would say that the legislature could not put
reasonable rules on their manor of operation?

Greg Stites: There are very few other constitutionally created entities like the Ethics
Commission. There is no question about it. All | can say is if you look at the provisions of
Article X1V in Section 4, it is very clear that it says that laws to be enacted by the legislative
assembly can facilitate, safeguard, and expand but not hamper, restrict or impair this article.
The article clearly says that the Ethics Commission has the authority to make rules. | could
see a scenario where so long as whatever parts of the administrative practices act that were
attempted to be thrust upon the ethics commission, so long as the court would rule that those
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restrictions in no way hampered, restricted, or impaired the intent of this, they could maybe
withstand constitutional scrutiny. But, it could go just the other way. The could follow them if
they want but don’t have to. | think evidence of that would be the fact that there are many
commissions and boards that don’t follow the Administrative Practices Act.

(1:01:22) Chairman Hogue: It does sort of go back and forth between the authority of the
legislature to impose fines and criminal sanctions and the authority of the Ethics Commission
to adopt rules. The gift one is one that is very specific. It says the commission shall adopt a
rule pertaining to gifts. Do you have any thoughts on what that should look like?

Greg Stites: My opinion is that they would put together a set of rules that would make it
permissible. In other words, Article XIV wants to encourage legislators meeting with members
of the public in social and educational settings. They say, let's make rules so that could be
done in a manner that doesn’t give rise to any ethical concerns. They would have to address
the conditions under which meetings would be held.

Senator Poolman: | just want to go back to my question regarding Section 3 of Article XIV
where it sets up the anonymous whistleblower hotline. Then when we have the section saying
that all complaints become public record; do you believe that it is the intent of Article XIV to
insure that any anonymous phone call or accusation should become public regardless of
merit? It seems to me that would be something that could be very easily used in any
campaign ad etc. Is that the intent or not?

Greg Stites: | think clearly the hotline is confidential and it would not be subject to the open
records or open meetings. The information provided would be confidential and it would not
be later disclosed.

Senator Poolman: That is where | need some clarification. Under 54-66-10 it is all released
later on. Once the investigation is completed it is all released. It appears that it is any
complaint regardless of how it comes to the commission. It is just a sincere question. Do you
believe that is the intent?

Greg Stites: | don'’t believe it is the intent.

(1:06:20) Vice Chair Unruh: In Subsection 2 of Section 1, That is the part that has the
delayed date for the legislative assembly to determine what the public disclosure of the
ultimate and true source of funds spent, | want to make sure | understand the effective date.
If we wait and study this over the next 2 years - in the meantime, how do we determine what
ultimate and true source of funds means?

Greg Stites: | believe that the 3 years’ effective date is clear that the reporting is not required
until after that period and that the next 2 years is going to be spent developing what | call the
box that this will be put into. There will be legislation required 2 years from now that will vest
one or more entities. This really discusses vesting one or more entities with the ability to
enforce and manage this process. Clearly there will need to be more definition on what the
ultimate and true source means. That will come to you from a variety of interested parties. |
can only say that the laws that you will need to promulgate as a result of that you must take
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from the intent of Article XIV which is up in Subsection 1. Also, back in Section 4 that talks
about not passing any laws to hinder or frustrate the purposes of Article XIV.

Chairman Hogue: | have one question on the standing provision. Could your organization,
if they did not like what the legislature did, | suppose they would be free to hire you to come
in and have the court review what the legislature does. Is that true?

Greg Stites: | believe that is broad enough to say that a resident that believes the intent of
Article XIV has been frustrated in some way by the legislature or the Ethics Commission or
by the Ethics Commission not carrying out its role in enforcement, can do that.

Vice Chair Unruh: More questions keep coming to me as keep reading this. Section 4,
Subsection 2, defines what a public office or public official means and it is a rather extensive
definition and it appears to include all state employees — is that correct?

Greg Stites: It does | believe.
Vice Chair Unruh: Does that extend down into local government as well?
Greg Stites: No.

(1:11:50) Ellen Chaffee, Senior Consultant, Association of Governing Boards of
Universities and Colleges: See Attachments #5 and #6 for testimony in favor of the bill.

(1:18:06) Chairman Hogue: On the financial disclosures that are currently going in the
Secretary of State’s office — do you see that staying there? Or do you think this measure
requires that to be brought under the Ethics Commission’s umbrella?

Ellen Chaffee: | see that saying in the Secretary of State’s office. Exactly how it is
implemented; the transparency piece definitely applies. As to how deep the revelation of
donors goes | don’t know. | foresee some discussion about that in the future.

Senator Anderson: Can you answer my question on disclosures?

Ellen Chaffee: Itis reported in the aggregate and the individual as | understand it. A number
of people from around the country contributed to the Measure 1 and as individual people they
are identified. Some of them contributed through these national organizations. Most of the
money that is reported from the national organizations is actually in kind services — where
they provided us with advice. Otherwise it came from the organizations operating funds.

Senator Anderson: My point is this. If the true and actual source of funds means that we
need to find out the individual who gave that money or if the checks are adequate? That is
the question all these people need to know because every one of them worked for some
organization that gives campaign contributions toward measures, and when the public says
they believe too much out of state money influences what goes on in North Dakota; 80% of
the money for Measure 1 came from out of state. So, the perception that the public has is
valid. Out of state money is effecting North Dakota. The corporation that many of these
people work from might be based in some other state but they are here doing business and
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are trying to effect what goes on in North Dakota. They have that concern about how we
accurately report where the money for Measure 1 came from?

Ellen Chaffee: As of Nov. 6, | have no standing to answer any of those questions. | can
give you opinions about things. Article XIV belongs to the people of North Dakota, and what
it says is that certain people, the right people, are supposed to be deciding those things. The
legislature is supposed to be deciding some of them and the Ethics Commission is supposed
to be deciding others of them. | know it is frustrating to have these uncertainties, but if we
view them as opportunities to do the right thing and to make it turn out in a way that is ethical
and honest and transparent and has integrity for the state of North Dakota, the legislators
and people, then we can hang onto those things and go ahead and make the right things
happen. Rather than worrying about who is looking over my shoulder when | don’t know what
to do. Let’s just figure out what is to be done.

Vice Chair Unruh: | agree and I hope that we are all here to make sure that we can do what
the people wanted us to do with the measure. To build a little bit on the question that Senator
Anderson asked. We talked about how after the election you did not have the standing to
help us try to and interpret this, but | would like to know what you had in your mind as for the
gifting clause going forward. What is your vision for what that looks like going forward?

Ellen Chaffee: I think | have the same vision you have. We want that open contact between
legislators and the people. Frankly, that is one of the motivating forces for those of us that
worked on this. A lot of times the legislators are too busy with interest groups and industries
to have time for the people. | know it is a tremendous challenge, but we don’t want to restrict
public access to their legislators.

Senator Mathern: Are you supportive of the amendments | brought forward, and is that the
preference of the North Dakota group to adopt those amendments?

Ellen Chaffee: Yes. We support it.

(1:25:35) Arik Spencer, President and CEO, Greater North Dakota Chamber: See
Attachment #7 for testimony in opposition of the bill.

(1:29:35) Senator Anderson: | sense that your interest here, even though some of these
things don’t start for 2 years, is to do the right thing and get ahead of what will be required if
you can.

Arik Spencer: That is correct.

Senator Mathern: | echo that comment. That really is the intent of the citizen committee.
They want to clarify too. They are just outlining a process. The amendments | proposed are
available. We learned in the process that there are ways to make it better.

Chairman Hogue: Closed the hearing on SB 2148.

See Attachments #8 to #11 for additional testimony provided to the committee.
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Chairman Hogue: Opened the hearing for SB 2148.
Senator Dever, District 32: See Attachment #1 for testimony.

(7:40) Senator Mathern: You brought up the national conference of state legislatures, and
they have a robust section of staff materials that are available to our states regarding ethics
and the different commissions around the country; | am wondering if you met with Mr.
Birdsong or anyone at NCSL? Have you discussed this legislation with them?

Senator Dever: | have not but | did see your e-mail that you extended an invitation for them
to come to North Dakota, and that may not be a bad idea.

Senator Mathern: See Attachment #2 for handout for a letter from those willing to come.
Their views might be helpful to us at some point.

Senator Dever: | did say that | try to listen to anyone and everyone, and | have a great
respect for the NCSL.

Senator Oban: | am sure | could ask this in committee discussion, but since you decided to
step up to the podium, why not ask the question with regard to some of your comments here?
| get the distinct impression that, as the bill was introduced, you don’t necessarily agree with
it and that the amendment that was already shared with the committee you don’t agree with
that either. Are you going to be sharing with us any proposals to make the bill better?
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Senator Dever: | suspect that those things will be part of our discussion and will come about.
As the bill was introduced and as it is proposed to be amended, it seems to be to be taking
a big hammer after a problem that is not nearly so extensive as would be represented.

(11:05) Geoff Simon, former Chairman, Coalition of North Dakotans for Sound
Government: See Attachment #3 for testimony in opposition of the bill.

(18:30) Senator Mathern: You note in your testimony the concern about the ethics
commission and its authority, and | agree with you that it does have authority and the
Constitution does in fact require us to have an Ethics Commission. | am wondering if you
have thought of who you would like to be on the Ethics Commission, and have you submitted
their names? That is one of the processes that this bill tries to bring forward is to find out who
the people will be and get them to start making some of the decisions as the Constitution
now requires.

Geoff Simon: We have developed that list of names, and it has been shared with those that
make that decision. We are looking for the wise and veterans that understand the policy
making process and who would make good decisions here. Frankly, | would have preferred
a measure on the ballot that would have stated that the legislature “shall” create an ethics
commission so that you have some idea what it’s responsibility and its limitations may be.

Senator Mathern: You have put together a list; would you trust those people to address your
concerns that you have raised in your testimony today?

Geoff Simon: | would trust them but | don’t think they will have very much to do.

Chairman Hogue: The ultimate and true source term that is found in Section 1.2 of Article
XIV; | know that is defined in the House bill, do you think that definition is adequate, or do
you have a different definition in mind?

Geoff Simon: That is a difficult question. | have no idea what that term means. The ultimate
and true source of funds— it is probably the US Treasury. That is where the bills are printed
aren’t they? | don’t know what it means. | think in their zeal to get after whatever “dark money”
they felt was out there, the sponsoring committee wrote language that they felt was as broad
as possible. Now, it is up to legislature to determine just what those words mean.

Senator Oban: | have a hard time understanding if one of your largest shared concerns, with
the number of the members who opposed the measure, is specifically about the language in
Section 1, Subsection 2, why would you be opposed to, when the effective date does not go
into effect for 3 years, not support an interim study to have a thoughtful discussion and try to
bring people together about what that means?

Geoff Simon: | believe the concern is that those reporting requirements are going to be in
effect retroactive — that the activities and activities that we perform and whatever gifts that
we might give in the previous two years, any of those activities would be reported upon
implementation or the effective date of the language. So, we have to know if we are doing
things right today because we are going to have to report those activities down the road. That
is the concern of the organization and why we would like to know. What is the expectation?
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(23:18) Kathy Tweeten, retired from NDSU Extension Service, and Director, Center for
Community Vitality and State Specialist for Community Economic and Leadership
Development: See Attachment #4 for testimony in favor of the bill.

(31:50) Senator Oban: | would like to ask how you would respond to the claim and concern
that was provided by Jeff about the timing. Do you feel or is it retroactive? Do they have a
reason to be concerned about what their actions are now verses what may come if there was
an interim study to try to flesh out those issues?

Kathleen Tweeten: No, | do not believe so. | would like Mr. Stipes as a person who knows
the legal ins and outs to respond to that as well.

Chairman Hogue: | want to make sure | understand your position. You support SB 2148 as
amended with Senator Mathern’s amendments?

Kathleen Tweeten: Yes, but there are some more amendments that you have not seen that
| think you need to see.

Chairman Hogue: Those are Senator Mathern’s?
Kathleen Tweeten: Yes.

Senator Anderson: Most of the lobbyist that are here are trying to get their act together so
that they do things right now that Article XIV is in place. They have said they would like to
start tomorrow. For example, in regards of gifts, some think that we eat and drink at expense
of lobbyists. Most of the time it is not more than $50 they give someone in an evening, but it
is a perception that the public has. Whether it is accurate or not we don’t know, but if | should
not be letting people buy me dinner, | would like to know that tomorrow if it is what is stated
in Article XIV. Those are the questions that are left unanswered right now. Obviously we can
appoint the Ethics Commission and wait and then next session we have one more year to do
this stuff. What were you thinking when you were working on this committee? Another
question is the true and ultimate source of funds. We talked about NCSL, | recently went and
they reimbursed me for the travel room while | was there. If you really look at the true source
of funds, many of those activities were sponsored by some organization. It was not the
government paying for me to go. What is the true and direct source of funds you were looking
for? Those are the questions that we are trying to answer here. | would have thought that the
organizing committee would have set the example for us and exposed the true and direct
source of funds. The last question | have is about the whistle blower line. It states that is
confidential, but it also says as long as the person is acting in good faith. How do we
determine if they are acting in good faith if we don’t know who they are? You can write that
down and get it back to the committee, or you can respond now if you like.

Kathleen Tweeten: | appreciate you saying that you can write the answers down. | do want
to respond to the last part. There is a clarification of the confidentiality piece. | know that will
be brought up here. On the true source of funds, that is part of that question of really digging
in and making sure that we do it right. And that we identify what we mean by that. (Gave
example of churches and reporting money given etc.) It takes time and energy and thought
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and Constitutional expertise to explain. We don’t want to hurry this. We don’t want to put a
bunch of stuff in the books to have to go back and clean up all the garbage. That is not the
intent of this. In regard to the gifts, that is not in effect right now. We want to get it right, and
that is what the interim study is for. There is nothing more than that intended. The information
needs to be gathered and a plan needs to be derived. The Ethics Commission will be there
to answer questions. It is not to penalize. They will have a much bigger job than taking
complaints.

(42:30) Vice Chair Unruh: You mentioned a couple of things that | am curious about. You
mentioned taking a look at and studying the gifts clause to see what it means and you also
mentioned the hotline and explaining what confidential means a bit further. As | read the
measure, it looks to me like the Ethics Commission is responsible for adopting those rules,
not the legislature. Do you expect the legislature to address those issues or the Ethics
Commission to address those issues?

Kathleen Tweeten: | believe it is the Ethics Commission that will be writing the rules.

Vice Chair Unruh: | ask that because you mentioned some amendments that Senator
Mathern will be bringing forward on the confidential piece. | am trying to figure out our role
moving forward.

Kathleen Tweeten: | guess we will wait till Senator Mathern has time to tell you about those.

(44:32) Christopher Dodson, Executive Director, North Dakota Catholic Conference:
See Attachment #5 for testimony in a neutral capacity on the bill.

(56:02) Vice Chair Unruh: You talked about the effective date on the ultimate and true
source of funds; | think it can be read two different ways. | cannot help but wonder if those
words are already in effect as of January 2019, but we are required to implement laws to take
them a step further before 2021.

Christopher Dodson: That is correct. The measure is effective now. Meaning that the clock
began ticking for that particular provision and the other ones have different effective dates.

Vice Chair Unruh: I think that Section 1.2 effective date reads differently than the gift Section
2.1 which does clearly state that we have 2 years before that section goes into effect. Section
1.2 appears to be in effective now.

Christopher Dodson: In regard to Section 1.2, you have to implement the rules to inforce
the disclosure triggers. What is subject to those triggers is revealing the ultimate and true
source of funds? If that money that is spent after January 5, 2022, was given in 2019, that is
the name of the person that has to be revealed after 2022. That is our main concern in
regards to giving. We don’t know what the rules are now. If you implement it without any
parameters, we would have to reveal all of those parishioners.

Senator Anderson: | like your idea of using the definitions we have in Century Code now as
well as the ethics provisions we currently have. Apparently, 54% of the public did not think
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that what we do now, and that is why we have Article XVI. Do you agree or disagree with
that?

Christopher Dodson: In part yes, but | have gotten to the point where we never know why
a voter votes the way they do. The fact is that it has been adopted and you have a job to
implement it. Keep in mind something else, there is this question about implementing and
also there is a question about the word usurp — usurping the role of the ethic commission.
You certainly cannot do that with 1.2, but also, you have plenary power. You could enact
legislation regarding ethics now. You don’t have to wait for any implementation. If you think
these are good rules now, you can do that. You don’t have wait for an interim study and you
don’t have to wait for the Ethics Commission. Maybe that is what the people wanted you to
do. There is no reason to wait if you want certainty now.

Senator Anderson: We do have those things now. The difference is that we are asked to
report what we spent that on in detail. My question is if what we are doing now not adequate,
and what legislation do we have to put forward to remedy that?

Christopher Dodson: You have obligations under the Constitution now to implement this
according to the measure. Everything | am suggesting is consistent with the new
constitutional provisions.

Senator Mathern: You speak about this person putting the money in, and the Catholic
Church does raise a lot of money. What about the alternative of a widow that may give her
$5 and wants it to be used to feed children and not used for lobbying? Does the Catholic
Church have a provision wherein it can assure her that her $5 is used in the charitable act of
feeding children?

Christopher Dodson: You might know that better than | do. It may be possible. | will say
this; that requiring a segregation of funds like that really interferes with the religious identity
of an organization. You were there with the establishment of the Catholic Conference for a
reason because it was an essential and integral part of who we are as Catholics. Not to be
separate from the rest of the mission. You could identify and put money into a certain thing,
but when you give to the general purpose, it would be wrong for the state to say that you
need to segregate that money because it would be interfering with how we identify ourselves
and our own religious identity.

(1:03:02) Richard Jensen, Fargo Resident: Testified in favor of the bill. | worked on this
campaign quite heavily. You have a hard job and | am learning that. | have respect for your
job. Speak to some truths here. The role of a lobbyist is to persuade and influence. | am
here to get you to open your minds. | don’t think the people think there is a lot of corruption,
but that there is potential for it and we are seeing that across the nation. | come from the
place of developing the workforce for individuals who support folks with disability. We are
always looking at understanding what is a mandated reporter who can cross the lines of what
is abuse. And defining abuse is important. Here we are talking about some very mature lines.
We need to get the commission going and let them start the work to get things certain. |
know it is your job to put certainty in the situation. We are seeing that we need this so people
understand the parameters. | want to impress upon you the importance of slowing things
down and make sure we are doing things right. | see you are being pulled to make some
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things defined now and you need to slow own and do this right. The people have spoken but
please take no offense.

(1:09:07) Chairman Hogue: We are pulled in two different directions. My question is what
information or knowledge do we not have today that we will acquire in the interim that
prevents us from acting now?

Richard Jensen: | think you do a lot of writing on laws that affect the state.
Chairman Hogue: Yes, | am on the Uniform Law Commission.
Richard Jensen: Making sure that it is constitutionally sound. That would be the key.

Senator Anderson: When you talk that we should not worry about this hammer that is
coming. We had provisions in place and if you listened to Senator Dever earlier, we thought
that we were doing a pretty good job, but now are being told we are not. | understand when
you say, let’s just take it to court, but someone has to pay the bill for that. We are defending
a lawsuit on a board that | am associated with now for two pieces of legislation that we passed
last time. We are at about $750,000 now and we haven’t even gotten to court yet. You could
imagine the cost if we have to go all the way to court. The people of North Dakota have to
pay the bill.

Richard Jensen: | would say that we would not see that ultimately. Hopefully we get it right
the first time. Providing the constitutionality. | don’t want to see it go that far. In the end it is
not one united people if that happens. | do not know what has pushed the people forward.
| have not been able to pull back any curtains. There were no big rumors being spread during
the campaign. | think it is more of recognizing that there is potential danger and we have
seen this through history. A lot of it is driven by big business. | am asking for honesty and
truthfulness.

(1:16:18) Joshua Gallion, State Auditor: See Attachment #6 for testimony in a neutral
position on the bill.

(1:22:10) Senator Anderson: All of your money gets appropriated by the legislature that you
spend in your office. Have you ever felt constrained in your activities by the fact that these
47 senators might not vote for your budget if you did not do what they individually or
collectively said?

Joshua Gallion: We will do our job down to the best of our ability within the appropriations
that we are given. We have never felt fear of retribution.

Senator Anderson: | thought that might be your answer. The inference here is that if you
get the money from someone, you might do just what we say or the chairman says because
we have control over your budget.

Chairman Hogue: | want to make sure | understand. Your concern is that the state’s Ethics
Commission gets up and established, it will either overlap or it would potentially preempt your
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statutory and constitutional authority to investigate state agencies and public officials what
you regard as ethical rules that are established. Is that your concern?

Joshua Gallion: Somewhat. There is so much is not known on how this will impact state
government and what they define as ethics may be different than what we define as ethics.
Is this going to create a scenario where now we have to report our findings to the ethics
commission? That could negatively impact our ability to work with state government agencies
and some of the independence we hold important. Again, making sure we have the ability to
draw those boundaries is important for the independence and the authority of the auditor’s
office.

(1:25:30) Senator Mathern: See Attachment #7 for amendments proposed to the
committee. | believe we need to do the prior set of amendments that | already handed out
but | am offering these in addition to address some of the concerns. Essentially, the first set
deals with confidentiality. | tried to address 3 issues; source of funds, gifts and bias. Clarifies
gifts not effective till 2021. (Gave a summary).

(1:34:00) Senator Anderson: My question is why do you think it will be clearer 2 years down
the road? | am not sure how it is going to be much clearer 2 years from today.

Senator Mathern: | have heard each of you articulate a point of view that | did not hear
before. You all add something to this discussion. All of us together can make a better decision
together. A major piece of this is creating an Ethics Commission and | believe these will be
people that we generally respect. Maybe people who have experience in being Sampson.
These will be people that the citizens will see as out of the fray of these tough dilemmas that
you and | have about these. The Ethics Commission itself adds that value that we can take
part in. | have an idea of who these people might be. It is up to Governor and the majority
and minority leaders. | think that process will bring people forward that will help us in the
dilemma you suggest.

Senator Anderson: | think those 5 people will be no more capable than the ones that are
sitting here. The difference will be that they will have the authority.

(2:37:15) Chairman Hogue: See Attachment #8 for amendments proposed to the
committee. These amendments go off the original bill. There were a couple of philosophical
things that drove my amendments. One is the debate on whether we wait for an interim study
committee, or do we invite people from outside North Dakota to tell us, or do we try to
implement something now? For a number of policy reasons, | think we should fully implement
now and if the Ethics Commission disagrees they have the prerogative to do so. But there is
value in creating certainty both for public officials and lobbyists affected by this. | share the
concern of Senator Anderson. You can punt this to an interim committee but they are not
going to be imbued with any greater knowledge or facts or developments that is going to
guide them anymore than what we are. The majority leader of the Senate appointed all of
us to this committee because he felt we were senior legislators that have wrestled with these
issues, both in our own campaigns and so there is no deference to holding off and hoping
some interim committee is going to find a greater solution than what we can achieve while
we are here hearing testimony and accessing Legislative Council for amendments. The 2™
thing is, if the Ethics Commission, when they are established, if they do not agree with us
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they will have the prerogative to say something different. (Gave an example of a gift.) Both
the House and Senate bill versions require the Ethics Commission to proceed with the
administrative process to be represented by the Attorney General and to require them to get
approval from our Administrative Rules Committee before they passed any further rules. |
split that in half. | think they should have to go through the administrative process like any
other agency to adopt their rules but should be their prerogative if they wish to be represented
by the Attorney General or not. | think it should be their prerogative if the rules they adopt do
not comply with the Constitution, this constitutional measure has a measure in it that will
remedy that. Anybody can walk into court and say they don’t agree with it. It is a highly
unusual provision in Article XIV that says that you can do that. Typically, what would be
provided is that either the administrative agency or the party that is being regulated can go
in and challenge a regulation, but this says that anyone in the state of North Dakota can. |
am not concerned about the legislature exceeding its authority relative to the commission, or
the commission not having the authority to push back. | think that is abundantly clear that
they do have that authority.

(1:42:30) Walked through the amendments.

Doesn’t support a study

Gift Clarity

Ultimate and True Source Addressed

Complaints that are determined of no substance and resolved to be confidential

Criminal Sanctions reduced

Appropriation changed to $422,000

(1:52:30) Senator Anderson: On Section, Page 1, where you talk about ultimate and true
source, a person would be construed in state law to mean corporation, individuals etc.

Chairman Hogue: A person would a natural person like you or | or it would be an entity. If
they are incorporated, either as a LLC or a corporation. (Briefly discussed a couple of
examples of who would have to disclose the information.)

Senator Mathern: (Explained were he got the appropriation dollar amount from.) The
amount of persons that would be in their purview is dramatically higher than the Judicial
Ethics Commission. There you have about 3000 people and here you have about 10,000 to
20,000 people. However, | do appreciate that you have brought forward these amendments
and that you requested the christmas tree version and | would ask if we could have two
christmas tree versions — one with your amendments and one with mine.

Chairman Hogue: | think that is a good suggestion. We will do that. |1 do not think that all
state employees are covered. Legislative employees are covered; which includes everyone
from Legislative Council and temporary staff during the session. Rank and file state
employees are not covered. That is my opinion, but if you see something different, | would
like to know about that.

Senator Dever: | often find that | am the only person in the room that is not being paid to be
there. Those are working committees. (Gave an example of a Long Term Care Association
meeting put together to consider long term care rate setting.) There were several meetings
and we were only provided lunch, but that would be included in this discussion. | think we
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need to thing about all of those kinds of things. These are things that we can put in place
and adjust them going forward as we encounter situations that we fail to contemplate.

Senator Anderson: | would like to think about construing the measure strictly. No meals, no
food, no nothing, and the same we can do for gifts. | would suggest we think about that. It
would save the lobbyists a lot of money.

Senator Mathern: Mr. Stites is available any time for questions.

Chairman Hogue: Adjourned the committee discussion on SB 2148.

See Attachments #9 and #10 for additional testimony provided to the committee.
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

Relating to restrictions on public officials and lobbyists, investigations of ethics violations, and
implementing requirements of article XIV of the Constitution of North Dakota; relating to
rulemaking procedures and requirements for the North Dakota ethics commission; to provide for
a legislative management study; to provide a penalty; and to provide an appropriation.

Minutes: Attachments: 1-4

Chairman Hogue: Opened SB 2148 for committee discussion. Reminded the committee that
two sets of amendments were distributed last time the committee met. | Made a request for
the Christmas Tree version of Hogue amendments. See Attachment #1 for that copy.

Senator Mathern: See Attachment #2 for amendments proposed (A combination of the two
prior amendments given to the committee.)
Moved Amendments #2.

Senator Oban: Seconded.
Senator Mathern:

Senator Dever: | am not sure exactly what we are doing here. You said to remove the
rulemaking authority?

Senator Mathern: In the first set of the amendments, | offered an amendment that you will
note on here to be the first page, that eliminated the present rule making authority and
therefore omitting the Ethics Commission to determine their own rulemaking authority. It was
the original amendment | offered at our first meeting and the second amendments that are
on page 2 and 3 of this document. There is nothing new here you have not seen.

Senator Dever: In our first hearing, | asked the question on whether the rules established
by the ethics commission overruled the rules established by the legislature and council said
that would be for the courts to decide. | have a real problem with not having any check at alll
on the work of the Ethics Commission. Not by the legislature through the administrative rule
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process. When we pass bills into statute the Governor can veto it and the people can refer
it, and now we have a constitutional set of five constitutional officers that can make any laws
they want without any check on it. Not even by the people.

(6:30) Senator Mathern: | think you just explained why one might vote “no” on these
amendments. | think it was important you have this opportunity to address the amendments
and work through this process in an orderly and deliberate manner. | suspect that after this
motion is dealt with, we would be looking at other amendments.

Senator Dever: | appreciate that Senator Mathern just suggested that we will be dealing with
this by disposing of it. | agree.

Chairman Hogue: Any further discussion on adopting 19.0422.020057?

Senator Poolman: | wish we had more time to look at these in comparison. | reluctant to
vote at this time just because | have not seen everything, or all of our options.

A Roll Call Vote Was Taken: 2 yeas, 4 nays, 1 absent.
Motion failed.

Chairman Hogue: Going to walk through Hogue amendments in Christmas tree version
handed out. (Attachment #1 — Hogue amendments applied to original bill.) (12:00) Reminded
the committee that all amendments proposed, including ones that Senator Unruh had drawn
up, will be looked at and discussed before the committee will finish up with the bill.

(13:20) Senator Anderson: Just to be sure now, that when you say the person in regard to
gift giving, that is probably means any corporation, LLC, or any person under the law.

Chairman Hogue: Anybody who has making the contribution.
Senator Anderson: But it is not an individual?
Chairman Hogue: No, it is an individual or any entity.

Senator Anderson: My second question directly related to that. Legally, how do we
determine what the burden of proof is for “knowingly contributed”?

Chairman Hogue: “Knowingly” means that you have specific knowledge. That what you are
doing is making a contribution for the purposes of influencing a statewide election or an
election for the legislative assembly. (Gave an example.)

Senator Anderson: if | give money to a political action committee, | don’t know specifically
where they are going to spend that money. | didn’t knowingly contribute that money because
they were going to support a specific campaign. So | didn’t knowingly support.

Chairman Hogue: Correct. So the key there would be to give it to me directly.

Senator Dever: Would this apply to supporter opposition to a measure?
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Chairman Hogue: Yes, it is a statewide election. The Article XIV, mentioned statewide ballot
measure, but they are statewide elections.

Senator Oban: Can | have clarification on Senator Anderson’s point. Currently, if you give
over $200 to a PAC, is that reportable right now?

Chairman Hogue: Yes.
Senator Oban: so, this changes nothing in regard to that question.

Chairman Hogue: Correct. Many of the provisions that are in Article XIV are already in
existing law. Including the contributions. They adjusted for inflation. (Returned to walking
through amendments.)

(17:00) page 2 of Christmas tree version

(18:00) page 11 to page 15

(19:00) page 15 — overstrike section 16 of the bill (Attorney General issue)

(21:09) Senator Dever: | understand intent. | am wondering if the effect of overstriking this
removes it as it applies to other agencies.

Chairman Hogue: | do not think so. (Claire Ness of LC indicated No.)
(21:45) Page 17 of amendment (reviewing Ethics Commission rules)
Page 21 — Inserted for clarity of what is not a gift and added the definition of a lobbyist.
Page 24 — Appeals on line 28 (Commission has to be in Bismarck but the appeal could
be venue in the county where they reside.)
Page 25 — Lines 7-9 increased what is considered confidential. (not time of filing of
complaint)
- Lines 23-25 attorney general to act as lawyer (added unless they object)
- Section 22 — study removed
Page 26 - Appropriation of $422,000 - 1.5 FTEs

(30:55) Senator Mathern: | would like to comment on your amendments. | think these are
very workable amendments in the context we are in. That context includes the fact that any
citizen can question anything we have done. Some citizens might. | also think between now
and the next legislative session the Ethics Commission will be in place. They might weigh in.
One of your amendments might need some touch up. That is the study. | wish there was a
study. If there is not a formal process of a study, | think people will informally study it anyway.
Next session it might be addressed. We are dealing with legislation now and not a
constitutional measure. | do have a concern on the ultimate and true source of funds in terms
of when someone is providing that contribution and | believe there should be a further
amendment in 16.1.

See Attachment #3 for additional amendment for section 16.1 to add to Chairman Hogue
amendments. | think Senator Hogue take a very pragmatic approach to the question of
alternate and true source of funds. If his amendments are adopted, that we include in the
other section of law that deals with political committees that organize and register according
to the federal law, that make independent expenditures. It is to carry that concept of ultimate
and true source of funds to the other activity; which has become very active in North Dakota.
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So there would be a way of some way accounting for those contributors in these political
committees that are organized. | think these are amendments that we can work with and |
look forward to Vice Chair Unruh’s amendments.

(35:55) Claire Ness, Legislative Council: Testified in neutral capacity. Under Senator
Mathern’s amendment, there is a section 16.1-08.1-03.7 that is currently in the Century Code.
That provision requires certain political committees that file reports under federal law to also
provide a copy of that federal report to the Secretary of State. The amendment would also
require those political committees to supplement the information in that report with
information on the ultimate and true source of funds for contributors that contribute more than
$200 adjusted for inflation according to the language in Article XIV used to make an
independent expenditure or disbursement. They would have to prepare on a different format
a supplement to that federal report that they share with the Secretary of State.

(37:42) Senator Anderson: Is the Ethics Commissioner who is responsible for publishing
the updates of the $200 adjusted for inflation?

Claire Ness: That is not specified in bill.

Senator Anderson: Under Subsection 4, we talk about the sub-contributor now too. What is
that?

Claire Ness: That is not defined in that chapter. It is used in other places. There are some
sections in that chapter that require sub-contributor information to be provided. Generally
speaking, | believe that has been interpreted as people whose combined contributions are
included in one bundle contribution.

Senator Anderson: In regard to the true source of funds, that is going to just be the person
under the law — whatever group, and we are not going to get to the sub-contributor. The
guestion is whether we want to know who the sub-contributor is if a large contribution comes
in and it is made up of various people’s money who may or may not have known that they
gave it for that specific purpose.

Claire Ness: That would be a policy decision and that would turn largely on the definition of
true and ultimate source.

Chairman Hogue: (Example) — amount over $200 for the year and then have to disclose?

Claire Ness: That is in a different definition. The definition of a contributor is someone who,
in the aggregate, would provide more than the threshold amount of contributions. A sub-
contributor would (it depends of course on the definition of ultimate and true source of funds);
but what you could considerate it as is if you have multiple people who provide you $210 in
contributions and those are bundled together into say a couple of thousand dollars — the
contribution of a couple thousand dollars is made; then depending on the definition you may
have to identify the individuals who provided over $200 to make up that total contribution.

Senator Anderson: To be more specific. This has nothing to do with what | give to a
particular senator, but what 1 am trying to get at is if the Association of Telephone
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Cooperative, for example, is an association of a whole bunch of telephone cooperatives who
each put money into their association who then comes to lobby, and the question is if we
need to know those individual associations that gave money to the larger association or not?

Claire Ness: It is a policy decision if you want to dig into that level of contributors. The way
that you make that determination will play into how you define the ultimate and true source
of funds. It is something for committee to determine.

Senator Anderson: that is what | asked of everyone who came here and testified and | still
am waiting to hear the answer of what they meant by that.

Senator Poolman: In Senator Mathern’s amendment that ultimate and true source of funds
listed by contributor and sub-contributor — he is saying, yes, we are going to put everyone
who donated to this organization on the list and they are all going to be reported, right?

Claire Ness: For this particular subsection that is correct.

Senator Poolman: So, this would pertain to any sort of organization? Is it just restricted only
to PACs? So they have to be a registered PAC in order for it to kick in?

Claire Ness: A political committee is a defined term in Chapter 16.108.1. If they organize
and register under federal law and make an independent expenditure or a disbursement that
meets that threshold amount. That is when this requirement to disclose the sub-contributor
would kick in under this subsection. It is a limited subset of a political committee.

Chairman Hogue: See Attachment #4 for Senator Unruh’s amendment.

(44:50) Claire Ness: Walked through Senator Unruh’s amendments (Attachment #4)
Compares the amendment to Senator Hogue’s amendment. It is very similar with a few
changes.

(50:40) Senator Dever: | am confused about where the rules of the Ethics Commission fits.
Are they amendments to Century Code, or are they considered to be administrative rules?
Are they subject to any kind of modification but the legislature?

Claire Ness: Those are good questions because there really isn’t solid case law that we
have found on that. Our position is that, no, they would not be amendments to the Century
Code under Article XIV of the Constitution. Only you have the authority to pass legislation,
which is what is codified in the Century Code. They are not administrative rules because
administrative rules are those that are passed by administrative agencies which are part of
the executive branch. Instead we have this direct constitutional authority for an entity that
does not reside in the legislative, judicial, or executive branches of government. They are
kind of their own entity, and their rules are distinct from what we currently have as statues or
rules.

Senator Dever: But they have the force of law?
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Claire Ness: That would be a commonly understood interpretation, but again we don’t have
case law on that.

Senator Dever: On the first page of Senator Unruh’s amendment, | saw that the Secretary
of State “shall” impose a fine of $5000. It does not say may impose and does not say “up to”
$5000. So, there is no flexibility on that.

Claire Ness: If it says “shall” and doesn’t have the language saying “up to”, that is correct.

Senator Dever: And then, is that as determined by the Ethics Commission or by the
Secretary of State?

Claire Ness: That is correct. The Secretary of State would have authority to determine a
violation. Also, if the Ethics Commission adopts a rule under Article XIV, potentially they could
investigate and have an investigative finding that that there is a violation of that provision
because it relates to Article XIV.

Chairman Hogue: Do you know what Senator Unruh’s intent is? Why she has the Secretary
of State imposing the fine as opposed to the Ethics Commission?

Claire Ness: | cannot speak to the policy, but | believe, based on the reading of it, that it is
because it is in Chapter 16.108.1; which is a chapter that the Secretary of State currently
administers.

Senator Mathern: As you finalized your comments, you noted it would increase the
appropriation — is this set of amendments considered in addition to Chairman Hogue’s
amendments?

Claire Ness: | misspoke. It decreases the appropriation from the original bill.

Senator Anderson: It seems to me that on your proposed amendments, on Page 2, Sub
section 2, you have exactly the same language about the Secretary of State imposing the
fine.

Chairman Hogue: That is bad policy.

(55:55) Senator Oban: With regard to that, in the Article, doesn’t it actually specifically say
that the legislative assembly shall appropriate civil and criminal sanctions for violations of
knowingly using a campaign contribution for personal use?

Chairman Hogue: It does, but what | was alluding to when | said bad policy is this idea that
the Secretary “shall” impose $5000 and it can’t be up to $5000. (Gave an example of where
a small infraction where it would seem excessive to impose a $5000 fine.) | am glad Senator
Anderson caught that, and if that scenario plays out | would not want to be fined $5000. If
these amendments are adopted, then | would put “up to”.

Senator Dever: It says whichever is higher.



Senate Ethics Committee
SB 2148

02/12/2019

Page 7

Chairman Hogue: Under its current dratft.

(58:00) Senator Anderson: As | was reading through your amendments, that same
language was used throughout, so we would need to change that in several places. (Clarified
that it was Page 26, Line 11 that was one instance that “shall” needed to be changed.)

Chairman Hogue: The policy behind “up to” — if you want it to be a mandatory minimum the
“shall” should be in there, but for these types of violations, | think that whoever is imposing
the fine should have the discretion to adjust that.

Senator Poolman: Just to clarify, especially toward the end of the Unruh amendments, she
basically says that the Ethics Commission will set up all of the rules, so they determine all of
that. Is that an accurate assessment of the last part?

Claire Ness: That is correct.

Chairman Hogue: It appeared to me that Senator Unruh’s amendments would say, no, they
don’t have to go through Administrative Agencies Practices Act to make their rules. What
they would do is they would make their rules, announce their rules, and tell us how they made
their rules after they were adopted. Is that true?

Claire Ness: That is mostly true. She does retain several provisions requiring them to go
through the public notice and hearing process and some of those. The provisions that were
removed were those that required either the Attorney General review or the Administrative
Rules Committee review and the possibility of voiding those rules. So, taking out the
legislative or executive ability to influence those rules or to oversee them.

Senator Anderson: On Page 7 of Unruh’s suggested rules, under 54.66.10, it reads — a
person who expends an amount greater than $200 adjusted for inflation to lobby or influence
state government or than to influence the statewide election or election for the legislative
assembly; can you tell me why that exclusion is in there?

Claire Ness: That is because those parts that are excluded are covered back in Chapter
16.108.1. If you look at the new section to 16.108.1 at the very beginning of her amendments,
and Section 3 of her amendments, both of those cover that reporting requirement that is
excluded from the provision that you just mentioned.

Senator Mathern: In these amendments, there are directions given to the Ethics
Commission — take an example of page 5, in light of the fact that the Ethics Commission is
established by Article XIV of the Constitution, are there constitutional questions raised by
directing them to do something by the legislature? Is that really a constitutionally acceptable
act or does it raise the questions that it is unconstitutional?

(1:03:55) Claire Ness: There are a couple of ways to analyze that with regard to these
amendments, especially that provision you just sited. The first is that language in that
provision is stemming from Article XIV itself. Article XIV really imposes those particular
requirements and then reiterates them for purposes of that chapter. The second way to think
about that is that there is that provision in Article XIV, Section 4 that says that the Legislative
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Assembly can enact laws to facilitate that article. There would be an argument that perhaps
this is facilitating that argument, but again, those particular ones are taken from the
obligations on the Ethics Commission from the article of the Constitution. The larger point is
that, yes, however there are unanswered questions about the interplay between the
Legislative Assembly’s authority and the Ethic Commission’s authority.

Senator Anderson: In Section 4 of Article X1V, it says that this is self-executing, which | wish
were true. (Lists several references to where the Legislative Assembly is mentioned in Article
XIV.) So, obviously the article says the legislative assembly needs to do those things, and |
think most of us are feeling like we should do that this session rather than waiting two years
when we only have one shot at it.

Chairman Hogue: Any further question for Claire?

Senator Dever: We know when the legislative session meets, we know when the laws take
effect — the rulemaking process for the commission is likely to be taking place throughout the
next two years. Statewide officials will begin announcing intentions to run for office, and they
will be raising money. They will be doing all the things that campaigns do. When do the rules
take effect, and if we file a report that shows activity that goes back to the first of the year
that by some subsequent rule is illegal, then how do we know?

Claire Ness: Laws and rules cannot retroactively make activity illegal. If you conduct an
activity in January and in June a law or rule were passed that said that activity was illegal, it
cannot retroactively apply. That would be a concern under the due process clause in the
federal Constitution.

Senator Dever: If it is reported in the year end or the general report, the timing of the activity
is critical. Then do the rules become effective immediately when they vote in the commission
to say what the rule is?

Claire Ness: That is going to depend on either the rules the Ethics Commission sets for
itself. The effective date of the rule will depend on the rules that the Ethics Commission sets
or the legislation that you pass — if the Ethics Commission ends up following legislation. So |
don’t have an answer regarding the effective date. Reporting requirements however, they
can look back.

Senator Dever: So then the effective date of the rule might be when they make their report
to the Administrative Rules Committee?

Claire Ness: That is a policy decision that you could include in the bill.

Senator Mathern: In terms of the appropriation, | know there is no noting of an FTE — the
original bill had salaries and expenses spelled out that were related to positions, operating
expenses, etc. This does not have that. | think the reality of the work is closer to this dollar
amount, but | am wondering if you are aware of a problem with funding the provisions if we
don'’t list FTE’s? What does that mean when no FTE'’s are in the amendment?
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Claire Ness: If there will be FTE’s working for the commission, you would want FTE’s spelled
out in the bill, and give the commission the authority to hire.

(1:11:00) Chairman Hogue: We have a number of opportunities here with amendments.
What are the committee’s wishes?

Senator Anderson: | think one of the first things we need to solve is if we want the sub-
contributor or just the contributor. When | read your amendment, | think it says the person
who contributes and that does not include the sub-contributor. Senator Mathern’s and
Senator Unruh’s includes the sub-contributor. Once we resolve that it will be easier to move
forward.

Senator Mathern: | think that is a positive point. | believe we should address the issue of
sub-contributors. It is one of the reasons Article XIV came about. There was this interest on
the part of the citizens wanting more information. My amendment takes the concept that the
Hogue amendments have in terms of the threshold of the $200, but it identifies a sub-
contributor. | would encourage that we take that amendment and put it on the Hogue
amendments. There are certainly others from Senator Unruh that maybe have merit that we
should include.

Senator Anderson: (Gave an examples of contributors and sub-contributors.) Do we need
to know those sub-contributors or not? Those are specific answers that we need to decide.

Chairman Hogue: | thought about that and | think my answer is that we do not need that. If
you have an association that the money came from — | do not think we need the sub-
contributors. If | know the objective of the organization, | think that is enough. The practical
side is — how would you compel that? | just don’t know how you would do it.

Senator Oban: | do not thing that you could make an educated decision about this specific
amendment of Senator Mathern’s unless you pull of the definitions in this section of code for
what a political committee is, what a political purpose is etc. | think every member needs to
look at those in order to make a decision. The crux of this is not the situations that are being
described right now. It is if you have a measure and you have a group that has decided to be
a spokesperson for or against it, and that group accepts a bunch of contributions from a
bunch of people that are never disclosed and then that group reports that they have spent
$500,000 to support or defeat a measure — that is what this is getting to. If you think that is
ok, then that is on you, but if you think that should be disclosed — that is what this would do.
Until you look at those definitions that are already provided, | do not think we are making an
educated decision on this.

Senator Mathern: | believe that is true and | believe it is the intent of the supporters of Article
XIV. To actually know the sub-contributors. | think it is a pretty crucial amendment. The
citizens might want it further than this amendment suggests.

(1:19:04) Senator Poolman: I like the Unruh amendments because it talks about the sub-
contributor. | would agree that the citizens intent was to get to every single person who has
put any money into these organizations. They want to see that. | think we keep talking about
what the intent of the proponents of the measure were, and | get very nervous about us trying
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to negotiate and interpret what intent was because | think that any group from here on out is
going to say they need to get it into the Constitution and then they get to negotiate as to what
it means. The Unruh amendments puts exactly the language from the article into the rules.
The Ethics Commission is on their own and they can make all of the rules. | appreciate that
part of her amendments that it clearly takes exactly what the article stated and it puts the
authority to the Ethics Commission. With all of my frustration with this from the very
beginning, | think that gets to the heart of the matter.

Senator Dever: | appreciate Senator Poolman expressing her piece and | would like to share
mine. Historically, the people that ever checked any of those contribution reports were called
opponents. Now all of the sudden, there is a large interest in it. | think it was the pre-general
contribution report on North Dakotans for Public Integrity that | printed about 40 pages, and
it was interesting the know that individuals had an interest in the ethics of North Dakota. |
found it very confusing, and | guess that one of the concerns that | have is that it was so
much information that most people will not bother to go through it. It was confusing, because
in addition to that report, if an organization made contributions to them, then they had a report
also that had all of that information.

Senator Poolman: Please don’t misinterpret my comments, that | think this is practical. Or
that the reporting requirements would be practical under the way that it is written in the
Constitution. It says what it says. Let the courts and the commission decide what it says.

Senator Dever: Or at some point to exhaust the storage capacity of the computer system.

Senator Mathern: You all highlight the rational for the study commission. Each of these
guestions were confusing to address and that was the rational for the interim study. However,
we have made some progress. | believe we would have had 3 sets of amendments here, but
now we have 2. | want everyone to know that part of that is pretty pragmatic on my part as
far as who is on this committee. If there are any provision of the original amendments that |
offered that still make sense, | hope we adopt them either on the Hogue or Unruh
amendments. It is important for us to realize that it is a big deal here in terms of the money.
Whether we fund or under fund it is a big deal. | don’t think any final action today would mean
it is the final bill.

Chairman Hogue: Senator Poolman | would respectfully disagree with your preference of
Senator Unruh ‘s amendments. The fundamental problem | have with hers is that, when |
come at it as a lawyer, | have been under ethical rules for 30 years and it does not matter
where the line is drawn as long as | know where the line is. | come at it with certainty, and |
want it as soon as possible. If there is a change down the road that is fine, but | should like
to know. The question of just having the Ethics Commission adopt all the rules; | think that is
fine except for the next 2 years we ought to know what the rules are. Everyone can adhere
to the rules if they know what they are. | don’t have any heartburn over the legislature
deciding what the rules are until the Ethics Commission make rules. Frankly, they can do
that. But, not knowing who is going to be on this commission and what their level of expertise
is — | contend the experts are in this room. We need certainty and | cannot abide putting it
off for 2 years. | think we should move forward if we can, because of the appropriation
process.
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Senator Mathern: Would you care to address the sub-contributor issue? As an amendment
| would offer to be in addition to your amendments.

Chairman Hogue: | think that would be proper as neither | or Senator Unruh’s amendments
addresses this particular reporting requirement.

Senator Mathern: Moved to add .02010 to .02009 version of the bill (Hogue
amendments).

Senator Oban: Seconded.

Senator Mathern: | think we are in some way tainted in North Dakota by what is going on
outside of North Dakota. | think this is just an attempt to make sure we have some sort of
transparency and reporting of who is putting money into those accounts. These political
committees have to keep track of that and then report it.

Chairman Hogue: | have a slight concern that Senator Oban shared — that do we know what
we are doing here. | know a little bit of what we are doing. | know the committees that |
interact with. This does not apply to them because they are not federal committees. | don’t
know an example of a federal committee.

Senator Oban: The Secretary of State’s office is here. They might be able to give us an idea.

(1:29:55) Jim Silrum, Deputy Secretary of State: You are asking about what are the federal
committees? Or an example of a federally registered committee?

Senator Oban: Do you have a copy of the amendment so you can read it?
Senator Dever: Wouldn’t that be the state parties and congressional candidates?

Jim Silrum: No, that would not be true. There are political action committees that are
definitely registered with the federal election commission. Under current law, they just submit
those portions of their report to our office. They also submit to the FEC, that shows North
Dakota activity. Whether that be contributions or expenditures made. As | would read this,
the question would be if they would have to show the name of any individual who gave a
portion of that contribution to the overall contribution. As Claire Ness stated previously,
whether or not that is all of the contributors who ever gave to that PAC or not, or just those
who gave a check that they specifically wanted to go to a certain measure or particular cause.
That would then be considered a sub-contributor. Or, if it is established by policy where it is
all of the member of that association. That would be something for the legislature or the
Ethics Commission to decide.

Senator Dever: We just had a big Senate race that took in a lot of money from across the
country, and a lot of that money sits in an account somewhere. If it is used in support of
candidates or a party in the next election, then this would require that each of those
contributors be listed?
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Jim Silrum: | don’t know if | can answer, because | don’t believe that it is clarified in here.

Senator Mathern: On this measure, there is some clarification. Tell me what portion is
unclear?

Jim Silrum: It depends on how it is interpreted. Where it says in Subsection 4, “collected or
used to make the independent expenditure or disbursement including”, it would have to be
determined if | am a member of a PAC and it contributes to a candidate or measure etc. that
| specifically say | want to contribute to, if that is the case, then all of the contributors need to
be listed. If not, then it has to be determined whether it is just those that say they want a
portion of their contribution to go to a specific area. | am not sure how | would understand
that. | would have to turn to our legal counsel to determine the understanding of that.

Chairman Hogue: Asked for further discussion on the motion.

Senator Anderson: Clarifies the motion. | think we have enough problems to solve with
working out the details of Article XIV and we ought not to get into this federal PAC business.

A Roll Call Vote Was Taken: 2 yeas, 4 nays, 1 absent.
Motion failed.

Senator Anderson: Do sense that you want to get this out of committee today rather than
have another meeting?

Chairman Hogue: This has a long way to go. We could have another meeting if we thought
that there was a lot of heavy lifting to do on either version. My thought is on my amendment
that | would like to take out the “shall impose” and get it “up to” for the decision maker to have
that discretion. | think the smart people in appropriations can handle the FTE issue.
(1:37:50) Senator Poolman: Moved amendments 19.0422.02008 (Unruh amendments).
Senator Oban: Seconded for purposes of discussion.

Senator Poolman: Asked for any committee discussion.

Senator Anderson: | agree with Senator Poolman on measure 1 and getting to the true and
direct source of funds, however, | think the language that we have and the solution is
impractical. | don’t think we are going to get there. | will oppose the Unruh amendment for
that reason.

Senator Dever: | kind of like the language that you put in including the gift. | would like to
see that included in whatever bill we put forward. If this is one at the exclusion of the other,
then that is not included. For that reason, | will not support the motion.

A Roll Call Vote Was Taken: 1 yea, 5 nays, 1 absent.

Motion failed.
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Senator Anderson: Would you like to proceed with your amendments and make the
corrections later?

Chairman Hogue: | think what | would like is for the committee to direct that wherever there
is a “shall impose” that we change it to an “up to” so that the decision maker has that
discretion. | don’t know where the committee is at on the FTE’s. | know that is something that
will garner the attention of the appropriations committee.

Senator Oban: | would rather leave that to the appropriations committee to adjust. | think
those changes can appropriately be made at the next step in this process.

Senator Dever: Regarding the definition of a gift, which begins on Page 21 of the
amendments, where it says gift does not mean; | would like to add a small amendment. |
think there should be some dollar amount included in the definition. (Gave an example as to
why.) Motion: To make a couple of changes to Hogue amendment - Page 22 Line 4 after
notice add “for” meals or related items with a value less than $30. | am thinking $30 because
it is in Century Code it is at $60. | do not believe that anyone could argue that raises an
ethical concern.

Chairman Hogue: That would have to be a section F because that is another way to say
something is not a gift. Is that your intent?

Senator Dever: That is true and | also said last time that often times | am the only one in the
room that is not being paid to be there. | know that is true of a lot of other people. | don’t think
that getting a free lunch as part of an event that | attend is a problem, but if my attendance
at one of those puts me under an ethical cloud, then | am going to have to quit doing that. |
would say that a lot of legislators do the same thing.

Chairman Hogue: The measure doesn’t talk about dollars. It just defines gifts in terms of
“‘doesn’t raise ethical concerns”, but the more | think about it, | like your amendment because
it provides that certainty.

Senator Mathern: | hope we don’t put that dollar amount in there. | think this is an
evolutionary process we are in. | with the Ethics Commission would struggle with that. | wish
we would until the next session. When you set that amount, you are also acknowledging g a
situation where there are people who don’t have $30 and they still want to meet with us. It
raises that issue about if it is really appropriate? | wish other people were involved in that
decision. | understand the need for certainty but | think the amendments here that Senator
Hogue has come up with are such that it lets us struggle with that yet, and gets the Ethics
Commission in place so the ownership is not just on us. It is on who the people said should
be establishing rules. That is what the measure calls for. That those people help us make
those decisions.

Senator Poolman: | think it says very clearly in the Constitution now that “gift” does not mean
any purely informational material, campaign contribution, or in order to advance opportunities
for North Dakota residents to meet with public officials in educational and social settings
inside the state. Any item, service, or thing of value given under conditions that do not raise
ethical concerns as determined by rules adopted by the Ethics Commission. It very
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specifically says that they are the ones who should be deciding what a gift is. | think we
should get their money appropriated as soon as possible, and get the Ethics Commission
appointed and they can provide the certainty. It very clearly states in the Constitution that we
don’t have the authority to do that. There are plenty of things that | wish it didn’t say, but |
think it says that. If the voters wanted it this way, then | think we have to stick to what the
voters wanted.

Senator Oban: | am with Senator Poolman on that one. | don’t like the arbitrary choosing 25
people or more either. Those things are best left up to the Ethics Commission.

Senator Mathern: Seconded for purpose of discussion.
Chairman Hogue: Clarified the motion.

A Roll Call Vote Was Taken: 3 yeas, 3 nays, 1 absent.
Motion failed.

Chairman Hogue: What about giving the fine imposer the right to exercise discretion? We
should have a formal sense of where the committee is on that?

Senator Anderson: Can we meet tomorrow after we get it fixed. That would satisfy Senator
Oban’s concern.

Chairman Hogue: We should act on one of these amendments with some guidance to get
further amendments.

(1:49:30) Senator Anderson: Moved to amend with 19.0422.02009, and take out “shall”
in regard to fines and make it an optional penalty “up to” that amount. It is at least two
places and maybe more.

Chairman Hogue: That is on page 2, line 4 of the 2009 version and it is also on page 26,
line 11.

Senator Oban: If we are doing that | would also ask for the committee’s consideration to
remove, on page 22, D and E as well.

Chairman Hogue: That is a separate motion. Let’s deal with that separately. Let’s deal with
the motion that the fines should be discretionary.

Senator Poolman: That it should be up to $5000.

Senator Dever: Do | understand correctly that it is to adopt the full amendment with those
changes. | am good with that.

Senator Mathern: | would rather we did not do that with regard to fines. To only have it “up
to” when we don’t know the commissioners — it could be a meaningless fine. | understand
the process we are in here. | don’t have any problem with proceeding to get consensus.
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Chairman Hogue: Why don’t we vote on that and we will take up Oban’s separate suggested
amendment. We will vote to move 2009 with the idea that the fines will be discretionary and
not mandatory.

Senator Oban: Seconded.

A Roll Call Vote Was Taken: 5 yeas, 1 nay, 1 absent.

Motion carried.

Chairman Hogue: Are there further motions?

(1:53:50) Senator Oban: Moved to further amend by removing sections D and E on the
top of Page 22.

Senator Mathern: Seconded.

Chairman Hogue: Clarified the amendment. Asked for any further discussion.

Senator Dever: Throughout this session, | think that there are many organizations that would
be conducting social events, except, they don’t know what the rules. The proponents of this
at our first hearing said that they recognize that the social events are important because
those organizations bring their members from across the state to meet with legislators. | think
this is well in keeping with that intent.

A Roll Call Vote Was Taken: 4 yeas, 2 nays, 1 absent.

Motion carried.

Chairman Hogue: Asked the committees if they would like to get the bill out of committee
today or hold onto it another day.

Senator Poolman: | thought that was the point of going through all of these amendments
today. Since we did all of this without Senator Unruh here. | think we better move it out.

Chairman Hogue: If any committee member wants to hold this over, we will do so.

Senator Dever: | would prefer to do that because we have talked about the amendments to
the bill but we have not had any conversation about anything else that is in the bill today.
That would be my preference. | would accede to the wisdom of the rest of the committee.

Senator Mathern: we have a bill before us that I think reflects a clear advance notice of the
amendments by Senator Hogue. It represents clear votes regarding the issues of the dollar
amounts for meals, regarding the issues of the amount of meals and those items that Senator
Oban brought forward, and | think we ought to move the bill to the appropriations committee.

Senator Poolman: Moved a Do Pass As Amended and Re-Refer to Appropriations.
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Senator Mathern: Seconded.
A Roll Call Vote Was Taken: 6 yeas, 0 nays, 1 absent.
Motion Carried.

Chairman Hogue: Will carry the bill.
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2148

Page 1, line 3, remove "to amend and"

Page 1, remove lines 4 through 7

Page 1, line 8, replace "rulemaking procedures and requirements for the North Dakota ethics
commission" with "to provide a statement of legislative intent"

Page 1, line 9, remove "and"
Page 1, line 9, after "appropriation" insert "; and to declare an emergency"
Page 1, remove lines 11 through 24
Page 2, remove lines 1 through 30
Page 3, remove lines 1 through 30
Page 4, remove lines 1 through 30
Page 5, remove lines 1 through 29
Page 6, remove lines 1 through 31
Page 7, remove lines 1 through 31’
Page 8, remove lines 1 through 31
Page 9, remove lines 1 through 31
Page 10, remove lines 1 through 30
Page 11, remove lines 1 through 31
Page 12, remove lines 1 through 31
Page 13, remove lines 1 through 31
Page 14, remove lines 1 through 30
Page 15, remove lines 1 through 29
Page 16, remove lines 1 through 31
Page 17, remove lines 1 through 31
Page 18, remove lines 1 through 31
Page 19, remove lines 1 through 31

Page 20, removes lines 1 through 11

Page 20, line 15, after "1." insert "For purposes of this chapter, unless the context otherwise
requires:
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Page 20, line 18, replace "2." with "b."

Page 20, line 20, replace "3." with "c."

Page 20, line 23, replace "4." with "d."

Page 20, remove lines 25 through 31

Page 21, remove lines 1 through 12

Page 21, line 13, replace "8." with "e."

Page 21, after line 14, insert:
"2. For purposes of article XIV of the Constitution of North Dakota, "lobbyist":

a.

Means a person who, directly or indirectly:

(1) Attempts to secure the passage, amendment, or defeat of any
legislation by the legislative assembly;

(2) Attempts to secure the approval or veto of any legislation by the
governor;
(3) Attempts to influence decisions regarding legislative matters

made by the leqgislative management or a legislative committee;
or

(4) Attempts to influence decisions regarding official matters made
by a public official in the executive branch of state government.

Does not mean:

(1) Aprivate citizen appearing on the citizen's own behalf; or

(2) A public official or an employee, officer, board member,
volunteer, or agent of the state or its political subdivisions acting
in the individual's official capacity."

Page 23, line 17, replace "until" with "unless"

Page 23, line 18, replace "issues its findings regarding the relevant complaint" with "has
determined the accused individual violated article XIV of the Constitution of North

Dakota, this chapter, or another law or rule regarding government ethics"

Page 23, line 25, after "2." insert "If a complaint is informally resolved under section 54-66-06,
the following information is a confidential record as defined in section 44-04-17.1,

except the information may be disclosed as required by law:

o

Information revealing the contents of the complaint;

b.

Information that reasonably may be used to identify the accused

individual or complainant;

Information relating to or created as part of the process leading to the

informal resolution; and

Information revealing the informal resolution.
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Page 24, after line 11, insert:

"54-66-14. Personal use of contributions prohibited - Penalty.

The ethics commission shall impose a fine of up to ten thousand dollars upon

any person that violates section 16.1-08.1-04.1. The ethics commission may impose a

fine of up to fifty thousand dollars per violation upon any person who violates section

16.1-08.1-04.1 more than once in a twelve-month period. Fines imposed under this

section are in addition to any fines imposed under section 16.1-08.1-07 for a violation

of section 16.1-08.1-04.1.

SECTION 2. LEGISLATIVE INTENT STATEMENT - CONSTITUTIONAL
EFFECTIVE DATES - PENALTIES.

1.

Subsection 2 of section 1 of article XIV of the Constitution of North Dakota
requires the legislative assembly to implement and enforce the subsection
by enacting laws by January 5, 2022, which will require disclosure of funds
spent for identified purposes and vest an entity with authority to administer
the disclosure requirements. The subsection does not take effect or
impose disclosure requirements or other obligations until the legislation is
enacted. Penalties may not be imposed under subsection 2 of section 1 of
article XIV until the legislative assembly enacts laws to implement and
enforce the subsection. However, the requirements and penalties under
chapters 16.1-08.1 and 54-05.1 remain in effect.

Subsection 1 of section 2 of article XIV of the Constitution of North Dakota
declares the prohibition on certain gifts under the subsection is not
effective until January 5, 2021. The subsection requires the ethics
committee to adopt rules providing additional guidance regarding the
prohibition and requires the legislative assembly to provide penalties for
violations of the prohibition. Penalties may not be imposed under
subsection 1 of section 2 of article XIV until the legislative assembly enacts
laws establishing the penalties for violations of the subsection.

Subsection 5 of section 2 of article XIV of the Constitution of North Dakota
declares the requirement for certain executive branch officials,and
employees to avoid the appearance of bias and be disqualified from
quasi-judicial proceedings is not effective until January 5, 2022. The
subsection requires the ethics commission and legislative assembly to
enforce the subsection by adopting rules and enacting laws. Penalties may
not be imposed under subsection 5 of section 2 of article XIV until the
legislative assembly enacts laws establishing the penalties for violations of

the subsection."

Page 24, line 21, replace "biennium" with "period"
Page 24, line 21, replace "July 1, 2019," with "with the effective date of this Act"

Page 24, after line 27, insert:

"SECTION 5. EMERGENCY. Section 2 through 4 of this Act and North Dakota
Century Code sections 54-66-11, 54-66-12, and 54-66-14, as created by section 1 of
this Act, are declared to be emergency measures."

Renumber accordingly
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19.0422.02010 Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for
Title. Senator Mathern
February 11, 2019

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2148
Page 1, line 4, after "sections" insert "16.1-08.1-03.7,"
Page 1, line 7, after "to" insert "reports of contributions and"

Page 1, after line 10, insert:

"SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Section 16.1-08.1-03.7 of the North Dakota Century
Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

16.1-08.1-03.7. Political committees that organize and register according to
federal law that make independent expenditures or disbursements to nonfederal
candidates, political parties, and political committees.

A political committee that organizes and registers according to federal law and
makes an independent expenditure or makes a disbursement in excess of two hundred
dollars to a nonfederal candidate seeking public office or to a political party or political
committee in this state shall file a copy of that portion of the committee's federal report
detailing the independent expenditure or the disbursement made. The political
committee shall file a copy of the committee's federal report, and supplementary
information as necessary under this section, with the secretary of state at the time of
filing the report with the applicable federal agency. The report and supplementary
information must include:

1. The name, mailing address, and treasurer of the political committee;
2. The recipient's name and mailing address; and

3. The date and amount of the independent expenditure or disbursement;
and

4. The ultimate and true source of funds listed by contributor and
subcontributor of any amount over two hundred dollars, adjusted for
inflation, collected or used to make the independent expenditure or
disbursement, including:

a. The name and address of the contributor;

b. The total amount of the contribution; and

c. _The date the last contribution was received."”

Page 14, line 1, remove "or ethics commission"

Page 14, line 2, remove "or ethics commission"

Renumber accordingly
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19.0422.02009 Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for
Title. Senator Hogue
February 11, 2019

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2148

Page 1, line 1, after "enact” insert "a new subsection to section 16.1-08.1-01, a new section to
chapter 16.1-08.1, and"

Page 1, line 2, after "to" insert "disclosures of expenditures,"
Page 1, line 4, after "sections" insert "16.1-08.1-04.1,"

Page 1, line 6, remove "28-32-14,"

Page 1, line 6, after the third comma insert "and"

Page 1, line 6, remove "28-32-17, 28-32-18, and 28-32-18.1,"

Page 1, line 7, after "to" insert "the prohibition on personal use of campaign contributions and
the"

Page 1, line 8, remove "to provide for"
Page 1, line 9, remove "a legislative management study;"
Page 1, after line 10, insert:

"SECTION 1. A new subsection to section 16.1-08.1-01 of the North Dakota
Century Code is created and enacted as follows:

"Ultimate and true source" means the person who knowingly contributed
over two hundred dollars, adjusted for inflation, to influence a statewide
election or an election for the legislative assembly.

SECTION 2. AMENDMENT. Section 16.1-08.1-04.1 of the North Dakota Century
Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

16.1-08.1-04.1. Personal use of contributions prohibited.

1. Acandidate may not use any contribution received by the candidate, the
candidate's candidate committee, or a multicandidate political committee
to:

T
&

Give a personal benefit to the candidate or another person;

2 b. Make aloan to another person;

3= c. Knowingly pay more than the fair market value for goods or services
purchased for the campaign; or
4- d. Payacriminal fine or civil penalty.

2 The secretary of state shall impose a fine of five thousand dollars or two
times the value of the contribution used in violation of this section,
whichever is higher, upon any person who violates this section.

SECTION 3. A new section to chapter 16.1-08.1 of the North Dakota Century
Code is created and enacted as follows:
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Ultimate and true source of funds - Required identification.

In any report under this chapter which requires the identification of a contributor

or subcontributor, the ultimate and true source of funds must be identified."

Page 6, line 24, remove "ethics commission or an"

Page 6, line 24, after the second comma insert "or the ethics commission"
Page 14, remove lines 16 through 30

Page 16, remove lines 9 through 31

Page 17, remove lines 1 through 31

Page 18, remove lines 1 through 31

Page 19, remove lines 1 through 24

Page 20, after line 14, insert:

"For purposes of this chapter and article XIV of the Constitution of North Dakota,

unless the context otherwise requires:"

Page 20, line 26, after the underscored period insert ""Gift" does not mean:

a.  Purely informational material;

b. A campaign contribution;

c. To advance opportunities for state residents to meet with public
officials in educational and social settings in the state, any item,
service, or thing of value given under conditions that do not raise
ethical concerns as set forth in rules adopted by the ethics
commission;

[

Meals and other items provided in social settings to which twenty-five
or more public officials were invited; and

e. Meals and other items provided in social settings to which the general
public is invited with at least seventy-two hours of advance notice."

Page 21, after line 14, insert:

"9. "Ultimate and true source" means the person that knowingly contributed
over two hundred dollars, adjusted for inflation, to lobby or influence state
government action."

Page 23, line 15, replace "Burleigh County” with "the county where the accused individual
resides"”

Page 23, line 25, after "2." insert "Information relating to or created as part of an informal
resolution of a complaint is confidential except the information may be disclosed by the

complainant and the accused individual.
g
Page 23, line 25, after "who" insert "knowingly"

Page 23, line 27, after "A" insert "knowing"
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Page 23, line 28, replace "ten" with "one"

Page 23, line 29, after "that" insert "knowingly"

Page 24, line 2, after "A" insert "knowing

Page 24, line 3, replace "ten thousand" with "five hundred"

Page 24, line 4, after "that" insert "knowingly"

Page 24, line 5, replace "fifty" with "one"

Page 24, line 5, remove "for each violation of the subsection"

Page 24, line 5, replace "that violates" with "for a second or subsequent knowing violation of"

Page 24, line 6, remove "more than once within a twelve-month period"

Page 24, line 8, after "commission" insert ", unless the ethics commission objects to the
representation by the attorney general in a specific matter"

Page 24, replace lines 12 through 17 with:

"564-66-14. Disclosure of ultimate and true source of funds.

A person who expends an amount greater than two hundred dollars, adjusted
for inflation, to lobby or influence state government, other than to influence a statewide
election or election for the legislative assembly, shall report the ultimate and true
source of funds for the expenditure to the secretary of state.

54-66-15. Lobbyist gifts - Penalty.

Alobbyist may not give, offer, solicit, initiate, or facilitate a gift to a public official
knowingly, and a public official may not accept a gift from a lobbyist knowingly. For the
first violation, the secretary of state shall impose a fine of five hundred dollars upon any

person who violates this section. For a second and subsequent violation of this section,

the person is guilty of an infraction.

54-66-16. Lobbyist requirements.

A person who meets the definition of a lobbyist under this chapter and article_
XIV of the Constitution of North Dakota is not required to comply with the requirements
of chapter 54-05.1, unless the person also meets the definition of a lobbyist under
section 54-05.1-02."

Page 24, replace line 24, with:
"Salaries and expenses $214,800"
Page 24, replace line 26, with:
"Total general fund $422,000"

Renumber accordingly
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19.0422.02008 Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for
Title. Senator Unruh
February 12, 2019

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2148

Page 1, line 1, after "enact" insert "a new subsection to section 16.1-08.1-01, a new section to
chapter 16.1-08.1, a new section to chapter 28-32, and"

Page 1, line 2, after "to" insert "disclosures of expenditures,"
Page 1, line 4, after "sections" insert "16.1-08.1-04.1,"

Page 1, line 6, remove "28-32-14, 28-32-15,"

Page 1, line 6, remove "and 28-32-18.1,"

Page 1, line 7, remove "subsections 2 and 4 of section"

Page 1, line 7, after "to" insert "the prohibition on personal use of campaign contributions and
the"

Page 1, line 8, remove "to provide for"
Page 1, line 9, remove "a legislative management study;"

Page 1, afterline 10, insert:

“"SECTION 1. A new subsection to section 16.1-08.1-01 of the North Dakota
Century Code is created and enacted as follows:

"Ultimate and true source" means the person who knowingly contributed
over two hundred dollars, adjusted for inflation, to influence a statewide
election or an election for the legislative assembly.

SECTION 2. AMENDMENT. Section 16.1-08.1-04.1 of the North Dakota
Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

16.1-08.1-04.1. Personal use of contributions prohibited.

1. Acandidate may not use any contribution received by the candidate, the
candidate's candidate committee, or a multicandidate political committee

to:
+ a. Give a personal benefit to the candidate or another person;
2 b. Make aloan to another person;
3 c. Knowingly pay more than the fair market value for goods or services
purchased for the campaign; or
4. d. Pay a criminal fine or civil penalty.

2. The secretary of state shall impose a fine of five thousand dollars or two
times the value of the contribution used in violation of this section,
whichever is higher, upon any person who violates this section.

SECTION 3. A new section to chapter 16.1-08.1 of the North Dakota Century
Code is created and enacted as follows:
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Ultimate and true source of funds - Required identification.

In any report under this chapter which requires the identification of a contributor
or subcontributor, the ultimate and true source of funds must be identified."

Page 6, line 20, after "chapter” insert ", as specified,"

Page 6, line 24, remove "ethics commission or an"

Page 6, line 24, after the second comma insert "or the ethics commission"

Page 7, line 30, overstrike the first comma and insert immediately thereafter "or"

Page 7, line 30, overstrike the second comma and insert immediately thereafter “; or, for an
administrative agency rule, until®

Page 7, line 31, overstrike the comma

Page 8, line 2, remove ", or the Constitution of North Dakota is amended to eliminate the
authority"

Page 10, line 12, remove "or the ethics commission"

Page 10, line 13, remove "or ethics commission"

Page 10, line 14, after the period insert "The ethics commission shall develop a fiscal note for
each ethics commission rule prior to adoption unless the ethics commission finds the
rule has no fiscal effect."

Page 12, line 29, after "rule" insert ", if applicable,"

Page 14, remove lines 16 through 30
Page 15, remove lines 1 through 27

Page 16, line 13, after "rule" insert "other than an ethics commission rule"

Page 16, line 14, remove "or ethics commission

Page 16, line 19, remove "or ethics commission"

Page 16, line 23, remove "or"

Page 16, line 24, remove "ethics commission"

Page 16, line 27, remove "or ethics commission

Page 16, line 30, remove "or ethics commission"

Page 17, line 1, remove "or ethics commission

Page 17, line 2, remove "or ethics commission"

Page 17, line 4, remove "or ethics commission"

Page 17, line 6, remove "or ethics commission"

Page 17, line 10, remove the overstrike over "ef-ageney-and-committee"

Page 17, line 12, after the first "rule" insert "other than an ethics commission rule"

Page 17, line 17, remove the overstrike over "statutory"
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Page 17, line 17, remove "under statute or the constitution"

Page 17, line 19, remove the overstrike over "A"

Page 17, line 19, remove "For rules proposed by an agency, a"

Page 17, line 22, remove "For rules proposed by the ethics commission, a failure to
substantially meet the"

Page 17, remove line 23

Page 17, line 24, remove "e."

Page 17, line 25, remove the overstrike over "e:"
Page 17, line 25, remove "{."

Page 17, line 26, remove the overstrike over "&"

Page 17, line 26, remove "g."

Page 17, line 28, overstrike "a" and insert immediately thereafter "an administrative agency"

Page 17, line 30, remove "or ethics commission"
Page 18, line 3, remove "or ethics"

Page 18, line 4, remove "commission"

Page 18, line 5, remove "or ethics"

Page 18, line 6, remove "commission"

Page 18, line 14, remove "or ethics commission

Page 18, line 15, remove "or ethics commission'

Page 18, line 18, remove "or ethics commission

Page 18, line 20, remove "or ethics commission

Page 18, line 21, remove "or ethics commission"

Page 18, line 24, remove "or the ethics commission
Page 18, line 25, remove "or"

Page 18, line 26, remove "ethics commission"

Page 18, line 31, remove ", ethics commission"

Page 19, remove lines 4 through 31

Page 20, replace lines 1 through 11 with:

"SECTION 19. A new section to chapter 28-32 of the North Dakota Century Code
is created and enacted as follows:
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Final report to administrative rules committee.

For each rule the ethics commission adopts, the ethics commission shall provide
to the administrative rules committee a copy of the rule and a final report summarizing
the rule and the procedures followed to adopt the rule.

SECTION 20. AMENDMENT. Section 28-32-19 of the North Dakota Century
Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

28-32-19. Publication of administrative code and code supplement.

1. The legislative council shall compile, index, and publish all rules filed by
administrative agencies pursuant to this chapter in a publication which
must be known as the North Dakota Administrative Code, in this chapter
referred to as the code. The code also must contain all objections filed with
the legislative council by the administrative rules committee pursuant to
section 28-32-17. The legislative council shall revise all or part of the code
as often as the legislative council determines necessary.

2. The legislative council may prescribe a format, style, and arrangement for
rules whish-are to be published in the code and may refuse to accept the
filing of any rule that is not in substantial compliance therewithwith the
legislative council requirements. In arranging rules for publication, the
legislative council may make sueh corrections in spelling, grammatical
construction, format, and punctuation of the rules as determined proper.
The legislative council shall keep and maintain a permanent code of all
rules filed, including superseded and repealed rules, whiehand the
administrative agency rules must be open to public inspection during office
hours.

3. The legislative council shall compile and publish the North Dakota
Administrative Code supplement according to the schedule of effective
dates of rules in section 28-32-15.

a. The code supplement must contain all rules that have been filed with
the legislative council or which have become effective since the
compilation and publication of the preceding issue of the code
supplement.

b. The code supplement must contain all objections filed with the
legislative council by the administrative rules committee pursuant to
section 28-32-17.

4. The legislative council, with the consent of the adopting administrative
agency, may omit from the code or code supplement any rule the
publication of which would be unduly cumbersome, expensive, or
otherwise inexpedient, if the rule in printed or duplicated form is made
available on application to the agency, and if the code or code supplement
contains a notice stating the general subject matter of the omitted rule and
stating how a copy may be obtained.

5. The code must be arranged, indexed, and printed or duplicated in a
manner to permit separate publication of portions thereefof the code
relating to individual agencies. An agency may print as many copies of
such separate portions of the code as it may require. If the legislative
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council does not publish the code supplement due to technological
problems or lack of funds, the agency whose rules would have been
published in the code supplement shall provide a copy of the rules to any
person upon request. The agency may charge a fee for a copy of the rules
as allowed under section 44-04-18.

The ethics commission shall consult with the leqislative council regarding

the publication of the rules of the ethics commission in conjunction with the
North Dakota Century Code."

Page 20, after line 14, insert:

"For purposes of this chapter, unless the context otherwise requires:"

Page 20, line 26, after the underscored period insert: ""Gift" does not mean:

a.  Purely informational material;

b. A campaign contribution;

c. __Any item, service, or thing of value given under conditions that do not
raise ethical concerns in order to advance opportunities for state
residents to meet with public officials in educational and social
settings in the state, as defined in rules adopted by the ethics
commission."

Page 21, after line 14, insert:

"9,

"Ultimate and true source" means the person that knowingly contributed

over two hundred dollars, adjusted for inflation, to lobby or influence state
government action."

Page 22, remove lines 10 through 31

Page 23, replace lines 1 through 25 with:

"54-66-05. Ethics commission rules.

The ethics commission shall adopt rules:

1

To identify any item, service, or thing of value given under conditions that
do not raise ethical concerns in order to advance opportunities for North
Dakota residents to meet with public officials in educational and social
settings inside the state, for purposes of subsection 1 of section 2 of
article XIV of the Constitution of North Dakota;

To enforce the requirements for a director, officer, commissioner, head, or

other executive of an agency to avoid the appearance of bias and
self-disqualify in quasi-judicial proceedings in which monetary or in-kind
support related to the individual's election for any office or in which the
individual's financial interest, not shared by the general public, creates an
appearance of bias to a reasonable person, for purposes of subsection 5
of section 2 of article XIV of the Constitution of North Dakota;

To define "financial interest not shared by the general public" under

subsection 2;
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4. Regarding the confidential whistleblower hotline maintained by the ethics
commission;

5. Related to transparency, corruption, elections, and lobbying, applicable to
any lobbyist, public official, or candidate for public office; and

6. Governing complaints to the ethics commission, informal resolutions of the
complaints, investigations of the complaints, referrals of the complaints to
other governmental agencies, investigative findings, impositions of
penalties established by the legislative assembly, and appeals.

54-66-06. Ethics commission duty and authority.

1. The ethics commission shall maintain a confidential whistleblower hotline
through which any person acting in good faith may submit relevant
information.

2. The ethics commission may investigate any alleged violation of an ethics
commission rule, article XIV of the Constitution of North Dakota, or related

statutes.

3. If the ethics commission finds a violation of an ethics commission rule,
article XIV of the Constitution of North Dakota, or a related statute
occurred, the ethics commission may impose a penalty authorized by law
for the violation."

Page 23, line 26, replace "54-66-11" with "54-66-07"

Page 23, line 27, after "A" insert "knowing

Page 23, line 28, replace "ten" with "one"

Page 23, line 29, after "that" insert "knowingly"
Page 24, line 1, replace "54-66-12" with "54-66-08"

Page 24, line 2, after "A" insert "knowing"

Page 24, line 3, replace "ten thousand" with "five hundred"

Page 24, line 4, after "that" insert "knowingly"
Page 24, line 5, replace "fifty" with "one"

Page 24, line 5, remove "for each violation of the subsection"

Page 24, line 5, replace "that violates" with "for a second or subsequent knowing violation of"

Page 24, line 6, remove "more than once within a twelve-month period"

Page 24, line 7, replace "54-66-13" with "54-66-09"

Page 24, line 8, after "commission" insert ", unless the ethics commission objects to the
representation by the attorney general”

Page 24, replace lines 12 through 17 with:
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"54-66-10. Disclosure of ultimate and true source of funds.

A person who expends an amount greater than two hundred dollars, adjusted for
inflation, to lobby or influence state government, other than to influence a statewide
election or election for the leqgislative assembly, shall report the ultimate and true source
of funds for the expenditure to the secretary of state.

54-66-11. Lobbyist gifts - Penalty.

A lobbyist may not qive, offer, solicit, initiate, or facilitate a gift to a public official
knowingly, and a public official may not accept a qift from a lobbyist knowingly. For the
first violation, the secretary of state shall impose a fine of five hundred dollars upon any
person who violates this section. For a second and subsequent violation of this section,
the person is guilty of an infraction."

Page 24, replace lines 24 through 26 with:

Salaries and wages $450,000
Operating expenses 350,000
Total general fund $800,000"

Renumber accordingly
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19.0422.02011 Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for
Title.04000 the Senate Ethics Committee
February 12, 2019

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2148

Page 1, line 1, after "enact" insert "a new subsection to section 16.1-08.1-01, a new section to
chapter 16.1-08.1, and"

Page 1, line 2, after "to" insert "disclosures of expenditures,"
Page 1, line 4, after "sections" insert "16.1-08.1-04.1,"

Page 1, line 6, remove "28-32-14,"

Page 1, line 6, after the third comma insert "and"

Page 1, line 6, remove "28-32-17, 28-32-18, and 28-32-18.1,"

Page 1, line 7, after "to" insert "the prohibition on personal use of campaign contributions and
the"

Page 1, line 8, remove "to provide for"
Page 1, line 9, remove "a legislative management study;"
Page 1, after line 10, insert:

"SECTION 1. A new subsection to section 16.1-08.1-01 of the North Dakota
Century Code is created and enacted as follows:

"Ultimate and true source" means the person who knowingly contributed
over two hundred dollars, adjusted for inflation, to influence a statewide
election or an election for the legislative assembly.

SECTION 2. AMENDMENT. Section 16.1-08.1-04.1 of the North Dakota Century
Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

16.1-08.1-04.1. Personal use of contributions prohibited.

1. A candidate may not use any contribution received by the candidate, the
candidate's candidate committee, or a multicandidate political committee

to:
4+ a. Give apersonal benefit to the candidate or another person;
2- b. Make aloan to another person;
3- c¢. Knowingly pay more than the fair market value for goods or services
purchased for the campaign; or
4. d. Pay acriminal fine or civil penalty.

2. The secretary of state may impose a fine of up to five thousand dollars or
two times the value of the contribution used in violation of this section,
whichever is higher, upon any person who violates this section.

SECTION 3. A new section to chapter 16.1-08.1 of the North Dakota Century
Code is created and enacted as follows:
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Ultimate and true source of funds - Required identification.

In any report under this chapter which requires the identification of a contributor
or subcontributor, the ultimate and true source of funds must be identified."

Page 6, line 24, remove "ethics commission or an"

Page 6, line 24, after the second comma insert "or the ethics commission"

Page 14, remove lines 16 through 30
Page 16, remove lines 9 through 31
Page 17, remove lines 1 through 31
Page 18, remove lines 1 through 31
Page 19, remove lines 1 through 24

Page 20, after line 14, insert:

"For purposes of this chapter and article XIV of the Constitution of North Dakota,

unless the context otherwise requires:"

Page 20, line 26, after the underscored period insert ""Gift" does not mean:

a. Purely informational material;

b. A campaign contribution; and

c. To advance opportunities for state residents to meet with public
officials in educational and social settings in the state, any item,
service, or thing of value given under conditions that do not raise
ethical concerns as set forth in rules adopted by the ethics
commission."

Page 21, after line 14, insert:

"9. "Ultimate and true source" means the person that knowingly contributed
over two hundred dollars, adjusted for inflation, to lobby or influence state
government action."

Page 23, line 15, replace "Burleigh County" with "the county where the accused individual
resides”

Page 23, line 25, after "2." insert "Information relating to or created as part of an informal
resolution of a complaint is confidential except the information may be disclosed by the
complainant and the accused individual.

3."

Page 23, line 25, after "who" insert "knowingly"

Page 23, line 27, after "A" insert "knowing

Page 23, line 28, replace "ten" with "one"

Page 23, line 29, after "that" insert "knowingly"

Page 24, line 2, after "A" insert "knowing
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Page 24, line 3, replace "ten thousand" with "five hundred"

Page 24, line 4, after "that" insert "knowingly"

Page 24, line 5, replace "fifty" with "one"

Page 24, line 5, remove "for each violation of the subsection"

Page 24, line 5, replace "that violates" with "for a second or subsequent knowing violation of"

Page 24, line 6, remove "more than once within a twelve-month period"

Page 24, line 8, after "commission" insert ", unless the ethics commission objects to the
representation by the attorney general in a specific matter"

Page 24, replace lines 12 through 17 with:

"54-66-14. Disclosure of ultimate and true source of funds.

A person who expends an amount greater than two hundred dollars, adjusted
for inflation, to lobby or influence state government, other than to influence a statewide
election or election for the leqgislative assembly, shall report the ultimate and true
source of funds for the expenditure to the secretary of state.

54-66-15. Lobbyist gifts - Penality.

A lobbyist may not give, offer, solicit, initiate, or facilitate a gift to a public official
knowingly, and a public official may not accept a gift from a lobbyist knowingly. For the
first violation, the secretary of state may impose a fine of up to five hundred dollars
upon any person who violates this section. For a second and subsequent violation of
this section, the person is guilty of an infraction.

54-66-16. Lobbyist requirements.

A person who meets the definition of a lobbyist under this chapter and
article XIV of the Constitution of North Dakota is not required to comply with the
requirements of chapter 54-05.1, unless the person also meets the definition of a
lobbyist under section 54-05.1-02."

Page 24, replace line 24, with:
"Salaries and expenses $214,800"
Page 24, replace line 26, with:
"Total general fund $422,000"

Renumber accordingly

Page No. 3 19.0422.02011
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REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE
SB 2148: Special Committee on Ethics (Sen.Hogue, Chairman) recommends
AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS
and BE REREFERRED to the Appropriations Committee (6 YEAS, 0 NAYS,
1 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). SB 2148 was placed on the Sixth order on the

calendar.

Page 1, line 1, after "enact" insert "a new subsection to section 16.1-08.1-01, a new section
to chapter 16.1-08.1, and"

Page 1, line 2, after "to" insert "disclosures of expenditures,"
Page 1, line 4, after "sections" insert "16.1-08.1-04.1,"

Page 1, line 6, remove "28-32-14,"

Page 1, line 6, after the third comma insert "and"

Page 1, line 6, remove "28-32-17, 28-32-18, and 28-32-18.1,"

Page 1, line 7, after "to" insert "the prohibition on personal use of campaign contributions
and the"

Page 1, line 8, remove "to provide for"
Page 1, line 9, remove "a legislative management study;"
Page 1, after line 10, insert:

"SECTION 1. A new subsection to section 16.1-08.1-01 of the North Dakota
Century Code is created and enacted as follows:

"Ultimate and true source" means the person who knowingly contributed
over two hundred dollars, adjusted for inflation, to influence a statewide
election or an election for the legislative assembly.

SECTION 2. AMENDMENT. Section 16.1-08.1-04.1 of the North Dakota
Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

16.1-08.1-04.1. Personal use of contributions prohibited.

1. Acandidate may not use any contribution received by the candidate, the
candidate's candidate committee, or a multicandidate political committee

to:
4+ a. Give apersonal benefit to the candidate or another person;
2:- b. Make aloan to another person;
3: c¢. Knowingly pay more than the fair market value for goods or services
purchased for the campaign; or
4- d. Pay a criminal fine or civil penalty.

2. The secretary of state may impose a fine of up to five thousand dollars or
two times the value of the contribution used in violation of this section,
whichever is higher, upon any person who violates this section.

SECTION 3. A new section to chapter 16.1-08.1 of the North Dakota Century
Code is created and enacted as follows:

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 1 s_stcomrep_29_005
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Ultimate and true source of funds - Required identification.

In any report under this chapter which requires the identification of a
contributor or subcontributor, the ultimate and true source of funds must be
identified."

Page 6, line 24, remove "ethics commission or an"

Page 6, line 24, after the second comma insert "or the ethics commission"

Page 14, remove lines 16 through 30
Page 16, remove lines 9 through 31
Page 17, remove lines 1 through 31
Page 18, remove lines 1 through 31
Page 19, remove lines 1 through 24

Page 20, after line 14, insert:

"For purposes of this chapter and article XIV of the Constitution of North
Dakota, unless the context otherwise reqguires:"

Page 20, line 26, after the underscored period insert ""Gift" does not mean:

a. Purely informational material;

b. A campaign contribution; and

c. To advance opportunities for state residents to meet with public
officials in educational and social settings in the state, any item,
service, or thing of value given under conditions that do not raise
ethical concerns as set forth in rules adopted by the ethics
commission."

Page 21, after line 14, insert:

"9. "Ultimate and true source" means the person that knowingly contributed
over two hundred dollars, adjusted for inflation, to lobby or influence state
government action."

Page 23, line 15, replace "Burleigh County" with "the county where the accused individual
resides"

Page 23, line 25, after "2." insert "Information relating to or created as part of an informal
resolution of a complaint is confidential except the information may be disclosed by

the complainant and the accused individual.

Page 23, line 25, after "who" insert "knowingly

Page 23, line 27, after "A" insert "knowing
Page 23, line 28, replace "ten" with "one"

Page 23, line 29, after "that" insert "knowingly"

Page 24, line 2, after "A" insert "knowing

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 2 s_stcomrep_29_005
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Page 24, line 3, replace "ten thousand" with "five hundred"

Page 24, line 4, after "that" insert "knowingly"
Page 24, line 5, replace "fifty" with "one"

Page 24, line 5, remove "for each violation of the subsection"

Page 24, line 5, replace "that violates" with "for a second or subsequent knowing violation of"

Page 24, line 6, remove "more than once within a twelve-month period"

Page 24, line 8, after "commission" insert ", unless the ethics commission objects to the
representation by the attorney general in a specific matter"

Page 24, replace lines 12 through 17 with:

"54-66-14. Disclosure of ultimate and true source of funds.

A person who expends an amount greater than two hundred dollars,
adjusted for inflation, to lobby or influence state government, other than to influence
a statewide election or election for the legislative assembly, shall report the ultimate
and true source of funds for the expenditure to the secretary of state.

54-66-15. Lobbyist gifts - Penalty.

A lobbyist may not give, offer, solicit, initiate, or facilitate a gift to a public
official knowingly, and a public official may not accept a gift from a lobbyist knowingly.
For the first violation, the secretary of state may impose a fine of up to five hundred
dollars upon any person who violates this section. For a second and subsequent
violation of this section, the person is gquilty of an infraction.

54-66-16. Lobbyist requirements.

A person who meets the definition of a lobbyist under this chapter and
article XIV of the Constitution of North Dakota is not required to comply with the
requirements of chapter 54-05.1, unless the person also meets the definition of a
lobbyist under section 54-05.1-02."

Page 24, replace line 24, with:

"Salaries and expenses $214,800"
Page 24, replace line 26, with:

"Total general fund $422,000"

Renumber accordingly

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 3 s_stcomrep_29_005
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2019 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES

Appropriations Committee
Harvest Room, State Capitol

SB 2148
2/18/2019
Job # 32879

O Subcommittee
O Conference Committee

Committee Clerk: Rose Laning

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

Relating to the prohibition on personal use of campaign contributions and the rulemaking
procedures and requirements for the North Dakota ethics commission; to provide a
penalty; and to provide an appropriation.

Minutes: Amendment 19.0422.04001

Legislative Council: Brady Larson
OMB: Becky Deichert

Chairman Holmberg called the committee to order on SB 2148. Roll call was taken.
We will be looking at financial aspect of SB 2148 - the ethics bill.

Senator Tim Mathern, District 11, Fargo,
Bill Sponsor
Amendment # 19.0422.04001 - Attached # 1.

We have an ethics committee which has reviewed the bill and has adopted amendments to
the bill that were offered by Senator Hogue. One of the amendments deal with the
appropriation. If you look at the bottom two lines of the amendment, you will note the number
$667,155. That is the recommended appropriation for the implementation of Article 14 of the
constitution.  This amount is essentially a compromise between Senator Hogue’s
amendments and what was in the original bill. The amount was arrived at by looking at some
research which you will see on the second page. It suggests for thr.ee staff; an attorney who
is also the executive director, an administrative assistant and an investigator. That comes
out to $485,000 for the biennium. The startup costs and operating costs are $212,768. As
this is a new entity, the data was gleaned from similar activities that are noted in OMB. The
duties of the ethics commission and staff are on the third page which outlines the adopting
of rules that must be done regarding transparency, corruption issues, lobbying issues,
adopting rules regarding gifts and the rules and context of defining issues regarding bias.

On the fourth page is further elaboration of the job description of the staff. These items
describe the need for an appropriation of $667,155.

Another piece of the amendment is technical. On page 14, line 29 & 30, we would be
removing the words “or ethics commission”. This would make it consistent with Senator
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Hogue’s amendments. The original bill had the ethics commission using our administrative
practices act in its full execution and oversight by the Attorney General and the legislature.
The amendments removed oversight by the AG and the legislature. These two words need
to be taken out to be made consistent. The bill and the Senator Hogue amendments are
attempting to make sure that this whole activity will be constitutional.

The third part of the amendment is section 2. In the ethics committee discussion, we
generally adopted the principal of reporting contributions in various sections of law when it
was over $200 which was a change from the original bill. We, however, did not include this
section of century code which are committees that organize and register according to federal
law and that make independent expenditures or disbursements to non-federal candidates,
political parties and political committees. Within that, there were disputes. Some organization
puts $100,000 into a campaign activity in ND, the goal was within article 14 of the constitution,
they would not only have to report that they put in $100,000, but they would also have to
report the individual contributors to that $100,000. In our committee, we couldn’t agree to
that amount. Not having any reporting criteria for that kind of committee leaves a big hole in
terms of reporting political contributions. We discussed what amount might make sense in
sub-reporting so that individuals of that $100,000 would have to be reported. In that
conversation, we came to this number. If this amount was being donated, they would have
to report to the SOS just like in the past, but in addition they would have to give a
supplemental report of all the individuals who gave money over $1000. That is the section
2 amendment.

Would this meet muster in terms of the constitutional provision of section 14? Some would
say it does not. It should be the same and it should be $200 like we have for all these
contributions. A court of law would have to determine if this is adequate. In the spirit of
moving a bill through the legislature and the inevitable compromises that come about in that
process. This is the suggestion.

There are three pieces; 1) the appropriation, 2) the technical correction, 3) adding the
provision of contributions in this specific kind of fund must include a list of sub-contributors
who give $1000 or more.

Chairman Holmberg: You list the ethics commission director as being an attorney lll. Does
that person have a relationship with the AG office as an assistant attorney general or would
he/she be an independent attorney working for this board?

Senator Mathern: The way the bill is standing right now, this would be an independent staff
person. It is really an attorney because it seems like that is the skill that would be needed,
however the bill as it is before us, permits the ethics commission to use the AG for assistance
if they want. This person would be a staff person first and not an attorney general.

Senator Oehlke: This mythical $100,000 donation that’s contributed to some thing or some
person — must it have that disclosure on it when the recipient receives it? Is the recipient not
allowed to do anything with it until he knows for sure all those criteria be met? Or must it be
returned because the disclosure is not there? If they accept it and the disclosure doesn’t
happen, are they in violation - individually or the organization that gave the money? Who
gets hung out to dry?



Senate Appropriations Committee
SB 2148

February 18, 2019

Page 3

(14:50) Senator Mathern: It is my belief that this outlines the responsibility of the contributor.
And also in further sections of the law for the SOS to receive and file that report. In this
session of the legislature or the next, the legislature could assign a further penalty. This is
not directing a requirement to the recipient but to the contributor.

Senator Hogue: If | get $100,000, I'd have to run for higher office. | don’t see that much
money involved in our legislative races. There are distinct duties for the contributor and for
the recipient of that contribution. As the recipient, my obligation is to disclose who it came
from and I'd deduce that by looking at the payer on the check or the cover letter that describes
who it came from. That's my obligation, but | have no obligation to report who the sub-
contributors are because | don’t know who they are.

Senator Poolman: Why would anyone give directly to a candidate then — because if they
can remain anonymous by giving a PAC $1000 knowing that $1000 would go directly to that
candidate. Why would they give directly anymore to the candidate? If you want to give $800
to a candidate and you don’t want anybody to know you’ve given it, isn’t the way to do it then
under this is to give it to a PAC and ask that PAC to give it to them.

Senator Mathern: This provision addresses only this kind of committee. There are other
committees and there are other ways for people to give. Those stay in the category of over
$200 and there are other provisions presently in law which permit and regulate those types
of contributions. That would continue. This only refers to this type of committee which
presently in law only refers to expenditures. This would take this section of law and expand
it to include contributions. This does not erase other possibilities, but adds criteria to this
type of political contributions. The intent of measure 1 is to have more transparency. The
constitution directs us to create the rules of transparency.

Senator Poolman: In a different section of code, that $800 contribution would be reported
anyway?

Senator Mathern: In THIS section of code, it would be required. For the other ones, the
present rules stay in place. This one has special category of listing sub-contributors, the large
out of state money coming into our state for political campaigns.

Senator Dever: In the normal course of events, we would’ve started this hearing with the bill
as it came out of committee. Are you suggesting we replace those amendments with this
amendment or do we factor this amendment into that.

Senator Mathern: This would be to amend the activity of the ethics committee work by this
further amendment. | support the amendments that came out of committee and in the
process learned that there are 3 different issues that need to be addressed.

Senator Dever: You're talking about a criminal investigator investigating ethical complaints.
You're talking about an attorney on staff similar to a special prosecutor. I’'m not aware of any
ethical violations that would justify that kind of an organization, but then it occurs to me that
if someone wanted to unduly influence a legislator or another official, that they would not
target somebody who would not be vulnerable to that like most of us here so I'm curious what
kinds of violations you may have seen that rise to that level.
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Senator Mathern: The only amendment I'm suggesting is the $667,000 and the additional
data about the attorney. The Ethics Commission may decide they don’t want an attorney or
they don’t need an investigator. That is not in the amendment. It’s only to demonstrate why
this amount would be necessary. We've looked at other places around the country and what
kind of investigator skills they have. It is so important that it be done correctly and there be
no missteps. However, that is up to the Ethics Commission. This just shows what kind of
staff they may want.

The entire article 14 is the establishment of the Ethics Commission. That is not done yet, and
then they decide what kind of people they want to hire and what skills they have.

In terms of your request for an example, | have none. My interest in this is we don’t have
violations. This is what we, as elected officials, should be looking at in our time going forward.
There was a study in the bill too, but the amendments take that out. I'm looking at making
sure we all know what the rules are going forward.

Senator Bekkedahl: Will the commission be prospective from the date of the bill passage
or retrospective to any complaints that are filed before the bill?

Senator Mathern: All of the activity that the Ethics Commission would determine as being
within the scope of their rules would be prospective, not retrospective.

Senator Bekkedahl: | understand what you did with the budget, but it looks like you’re
anticipating some rash of penalties or complaints coming in by the level of activity you're
supporting with the budget here. The criminal investigator here says to me that there must
be a lot of things that are going to hit the table right away or we wouldn’t have that position
specifically. And then the operating of $40,000 for each position, | understand that’s a figure
from NDSU that you just picked up. The commission travel and per diem, | believe the
original intent was for them to meet quarterly which would be eight meetings in a biennium ,
but it's $10,000 each for travel and per diem, expenses. | appreciate the time you’ve put into
it, but it still looks like the numbers I've seen in the original bill would better mirror what | think
will be adequate for the commission to start with.

Senator Mathern: This actually comes from looking at many ethics commissions around the
country. The NCSL (National Conference of State Legislatures) has a very complete list of
these commissions around the country. The sponsors of the measure 1 committee originally
had a budget of $1M and believed that it would take five staff people to do this right.

This takes what other state are doing and paring it down to 3 staff people. There are a lot of
rules to come up with. Every one of these questions you have has a number of details to go
through. The start-up work is considerable and we are saying you need to come up with all
these rules, however | think it would wonderful if they got done with all the rules and had no
complaints. We’d come back and say there is no way they would need three staff.

| would not move this motion now, but we can talk about this as a committee.

Chairman Holmberg: anyone else want to talk about the fiscal effect of this bill. The
executive budget had put $100,000 in the budget for OMB as kind of a placeholder, but our
sub-committee has removed that. Talking to the chairman of the special committee on ethics,
the money will be in here rather than the OMB budget.
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Chairman Holmberg: Closed the hearing on SB 2148.

(31:33) Chairman Holmberg: Let’s try to come to some resolution as to what we’re going to
recommend to the Senate on the financial portion of SB 2148. He asked Senator Hogue, as
chairman, on reflections of what he just heard.

Senator Hogue: | looked at the engrossed version of SB 2148 so Senator Mathern is correct
about removing the words “or ethics commission” on page 14, lines 29 & 30. Those are good
amendments and fall under the category of technical amendments.

As far as the appropriation, the committee recommended $422 and | see the amendments
would take it up to $697. The bulk of the increase in the engrossed version to Senator
Mathern’s proposal is the inclusion of the criminal investigator on page 2, that’'s $104,000
plus the 35% for benefits. That's $140,000. | would be troubled putting that as an FTE in
this new agency. A lot of the agencies that regulate various professions, they typically have
1 % FTEs and they are charged with a number of hats. #1 — implementing and amending
their regulations that govern their profession. Their put on continuing education seminars
which we put into statute which require members of the profession to participate in that
continuing education. They also do investigation of complaints. They range from the ethical
complaints to complaints about competency of a certain individual. They’re able to do all of
those without a criminal investigator. At times when they feel they need that expertise, they
are able to turn to the BCI or the local state’s attorney, but generally they don’t have a full
time person on staff whose characterized as a criminal investigator. My thought would be to
not support that, so that would take $140,000 out of Senator Mathern’s proposal.

The full committee didn’t look at the cost of a hotline. The committee definitely felt the ethics
commission should have its own office space so they would have to incur some rent and
enter into a triple net lease because I'm not sure where they’'d get space from the OMB.

The first amendment was presented to the full Senate ethics committee. We did vote on it
and reject it, however it was set at the $200 in the proposal by Senator Mathern. This
amendment relates to very specialized political committees which register under federal law.
If you and | have our campaigns, we don’t register under federal law, so this is one of the
specialized agencies. The policy question is do you want to capture who their sub
contributors are? Side bar discussion — seems like $200 is too low of a threshold because
some of those organizations can have thousands of contributors, so is it helpful to know who
they are? So my rationale was maybe we should increase that threshold to $1000 or some
other number.

My recommendations would be to accept the amendments — the two that appear on the
bottom of the amendment regarding the removal of the words “or ethics commission”. | think
| would be ok with the appropriation amount if we removed the $140,000 for the criminal
investigator. Since the policy committee did reject the 15t amendment on this page, | would
be reluctant to have the appropriations committee adopt it. Those would be my thoughts.

Chairman Holmberg: Divide the amendment into three sections.
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Vote 1 -

Section A - Page 14, lines 29 & 30, removing “or ethics commission”.
Senator Mathern: Moved section A.

Senator Hogue: seconded the motion.

Voice vote carried.

Section A passes.

Vote 2 -

Section B — reducing the general fund appropriation by $180,000 which would be $487,155.
Senator Mathern: Moved section B.

No second.

Section B fails.

Vote 3 -

Senator Hogue: Moved $697,868.00 less the funding for the criminal investigator 1 for
an appropriation of $517,155.

Senator Oehlke: seconded the motion.

Voice vote carried.

Vote 4 —

Section C - Insert proposed section 2 (page 1, after line 16, insert section 2).
Senator Mathern: Moved section C.

Senator Hogue: seconded the motion.

Chairman Holmberg: Said Senator Mathern has done a lot of work on this but is he is
always a little uncomfortable when the committee is asked to overturn what the policy
committee did.

A Roll Call Vote Was Taken: 3yeas, 11 nays, 0 absent.
Section C fails.

Vote 5 —

Senator Hogue: Moved to adopt revised amendments.
Senator Mathern: seconded the motion.

Voice vote carries.

Vote 6 -
Senator Mathern: Moved Do Pass on SB 2148 as Amended.
Senator Dever: Seconded the motion.

A Roll Call Vote Was Taken: 14 yeas, 0 nays, 0 absent.
Motion carried.

Senator Hogue will carry the bill.
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2148

Page 14, line 29, remove "or ethics commission"

Page 14, line 30, remove "or ethics commission

Page 22, replace lines 11 through 14 with:

"Ethics commission $517.155
Total general fund $517,155
Full-time equivalent positions 2.00"

Renumber accordingly
STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT:

This amendment increases the appropriation for the Ethics Commission from $422,000 to
$517,155 from the general fund and reduces the number of FTE positions from 3 to 2.
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REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE
SB 2148, as engrossed: Appropriations Committee (Sen. Holmberg, Chairman)
recommends AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends
DO PASS (14 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 0 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). Engrossed SB 2148
was placed on the Sixth order on the calendar.

Page 14, line 29, remove "or ethics commission"

Page 14, line 30, remove "or ethics commission"

Page 22, replace lines 11 through 14 with:

"Ethics commission $517,155
Total general fund $517,155
Full-time equivalent positions 2.00"

Renumber accordingly
STATEMENT OF PURPOSE OF AMENDMENT:

This amendment increases the appropriation for the Ethics Commission from $422,000 to
$517,155 from the general fund and reduces the number of FTE positions from 3 to 2.
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Ethics Committee
Pioneer Room, State Capitol

SB 2148
3/12/2019
Job #33596

] Subcommittee
] Conference Committee

Committee Clerk: ReMae Kuehn by Ellen LeTang

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

Relating to disclosures of expenditures, restrictions on public officials and lobbyists,
investigations of ethics violations and implementing requirements of Article XIV of the
Constitution of North Dakota; the prohibition on personal use of campaign contributions and
the rulemaking procedures and requirements for the North Dakota Ethics Commission.

Minutes: Attachments #1-3

Chairman Kasper: Opened the hearing on SB 2184.

Chairman Kasper: Purpose of the hearing is to listen to the comments and discussion on
SB 2148, which is Article XIV of the Constitution.

Senator Mathern~District 11-Prime Sponsor: (Attachment #1) | encourage the testimony
to be more specific to the amendment of this bill and not the general philosophy of the issue
before us. The bill seeks to fulfill legislative requirements set out by the article of the ND
Constitution. In the 90’s, legislation was introduced which morphed into the short educational
session in ethics that we hold for legislators during our organizational session.

| provided input to the sponsoring committee on the ballot Measure #1. Republicans and
Democrats were involved in the discussions and contents. | have shared all of the working
drafts of bills that lead up to this bill with leaders of the Republican and Democratic caucuses.
| also shared it with the chairman before we introduced the bill. | also recommended to the
speaker of the house.

As | reviewed the backgrounds, it is apparent that each of us has been accountable to codes
of ethics. Today we embark on the next step. We are addressing the ethical practices in the
public policy aspect of our lives. We are measuring the ethical conduct of legislators, other
government officials and lobbyists by passage of SB 2148.

Senator Hogue will explain the bill with the Senate amendments, which he authored and
were unanimously adopted by the Senate. Greg Stites, on behalf of the North Dakotans for
Public Integrity will address the concerns that we still have and offer an amendment
accordingly. | support the amendments and ask for a Do Pass recommendation.



House Ethics Committee
SB 2148

March 12, 2019

Page 2

Senator Hogue~District 38: | want to talk about the “solely” issue within the definition of
“ultimate and true source.” Lobbyists want the word “solely” inserted into the definition. Our
first major change was to remove “solely” because when there are fundraisers they will
provide meals and drinks. Our caucus has a golf tournament which we pay green fees, meals
and refreshments. So the question is, if you insert the word “solely” into the definition, you
are introducing the potential for the contributor who paid for the tournament and the recipient
which is the caucus to report two different numbers. They gave $500, but really only $300
was for the campaign and the other $200 was for the golf and meals. From the caucus
perspective, the caucus is we are going to report $500. Now you have two different amounts
from the same check. It didn’t make any sense. So we kept it clean that it is the amount that
you contribute to that event.

Second major change, the penalty for personal use of campaign funds. The .05000 version,
the 2"d engrossment, Section 2, there is a penalty that we inserted for what happens when
you are using contributions that you received for your campaign for personal purposes. We
changed that to a fine of up to $5,000 or 2-times the value of the contribution that was used
in violation of that section. The reason for that is we wanted to disincentive use of
contributions for personal purposes. The only way to do that is to ratchet that penalty up.
So, the public official cannot profit by that. Under the original version of the bill draft, say if |
buy a car, a $500 fine is not much of a penalty for that misappropriations.

The next major change relates to the whole idea of subjecting the Ethic Commission to
Chapter 28-32, which is the Administrative Agencies Practices Act. Beginning in Section 4,
that was a compromise between the house bill and this bill. The Ethics Commission is a
constitutional body and is embedded into the constitution. It should have some dignity apart
from an executive agency that has to go through the rulemaking process and be subject to
review by the legislative review committee and the Attorney General. We said that the Ethics
Committee shouldn’t have to do that. We don’t require the State Board of Higher Education
to have their rules reviewed by us. They are a constitutional body. We also don’t require the
judicial branch of the government to have their rules reviewed by the legislative branch. We
applied that principle to the Ethics Commission.

At the same time, the Ethics Commission is not free to do as it pleases. It is still subject to
the due process clause of the XIV amendment of the U.S. Constitution. It says that any time
the government acts, it has to do so by providing due process. That means notice and
opportunity to be heard by the public. They have to follow administrative rules for all the
rules that they make because they have to have some process. This seemed an appropriate
one but at the same time they don’t have to come before the legislative branch or the Attorney
General for a review of their rules.

Fourth change is the definition of “gift.” We parroted the definition of “gift” that is found in the
constitution, Section 20 of the bill. The constitution has a peculiar definition for “gift.” It says
that is anything of value including travel. Then it says what is not a gift and it doesn’t further
define what is not a gift. There should be a clear line on what a gift is and the dollar amount.
The committee did not adopt the dollar amount. What are the wishes of the committee? We
ended up inserting into this bill draft the language of the constitution in terms of what is a
“gift.”
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| disagree with some of my committee members in the authority of the legislature. There is
nothing in Article XIV that removed the authority of the legislature to regulate public official’s
campaign contributions, disclosure statements or any of that. If the legislature decided that
a gift of $40 is the threshold, that would be fine because we have that authority today.

If the Ethics Commission comes along later and says you can’t, that would not control that.
Until such time that it happens, the legislature has unfettered authority to define what a gift
is. A number of folks on the Senate Ethics Committee are of the belief that the legislature
has no ability to make that definition.

The 5th change is staffing. We made clear that the Ethics Commission is entitled to an
independent staff with two FTEs & a separate office. This office is not within an executive
branch agency.

The 6" change was not referred to.

The 7" major change that you see throughout the bill | can’t reference to a specific section.
Any time the accused is subject to a complaint and wishes to contest that in a court of law,
the venue should be where the accused resides. That follows civil law. We wanted to avoid
the Attorney General representing the Ethics Commission until they decide they want
someone else to represent them. The reason we thought the Attorney General is the most
appropriate person now is because the bulk of work will not necessarily be responding and
addressing complaints against a public official. It may well be adopting and formulating rules
under the Administrative Agency’s Practices Act. Who better to steer them through that
process than the Attorney General who does that for all the executive branch agencies.

Finally, we made the appropriation of $517,155. We did that based on the math for 2 FTEs,
leasing office space and other logistical items that need to be purchased.

Chairman Jim Kasper: On page 19, line 15, making a complaint. It appears to me that if a
complaint is made, your bill does not require that the person making the complaint be
identified. So the accused is not able to know who is making the complaint against him or
her. Is that correct?

Senator Hogue: | would not support the idea that the accused not learn the identity of who
their complainer is. That runs afoul of fundamental due process and the right to confront
because there are criminal penalties attached in both the House and Senate bill. If they
stand in jeopardy of criminal sanctions, they get to know who their accuser is.

Chairman Jim Kasper: Reads the bill starting on page 19, line 16 and ending on line 23.
Nowhere does it state that the accused is given the name of the accuser. It is just that they
are given the complaint.

Senator Hogue: That’s correct. | would support the accused learning the identity of the
accuser at the earliest possible stage. If you go to the informal resolution section 54-66-06
and 07, page 19, the accused is going to learn who the complainant is because it involves
that the commission do an informal mediation or negotiation between the accused and the
complainant. The accused should know who is the accuser at the earliest stage because
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that goes to bias and the veracity of the complaint. You have the criminal sanction; you get
to know who your accuser is.

(24:43)

Representative K Koppelman: | would like to talk about the rules that the commission will
make. Also, the comment about your contention that the legislature has the authority to
define what a gift is. Do the rules the commission makes have the force and effect of law?

Senator Hogue: They do and they will.

Representative K. Koppelman: The reason that the administrative rules committee has
authority is because constitutionally the legislative branch is the lawmaking branch of
government. The legislature has delegated some of that authority to the executive branch
like the PSC, elected or not elected. The reason we do what we do is for preserving that
legislative authority to make law. When the measure in question was being purposed and
advocated, the proponents were making statements that lead the public to persuade them to
vote for it, to believe that the rules the commission makes will be reviewed by the legislature.
| realize that it doesn’t state that clearly but that was the proposal. Was that a misinformed
statement, outright untruth, error or an attempt to get votes. | don’t know how to process that
if we are not going to do that.

Senator Hogue: If someone indicated that the legislature is going to review the rules, there
is no provision in Article XIV of the constitution that provides for that. In regard to the
definition of a “gift”, it explicitly provides that the Ethics Commission will promulgate those
rules. My point is that we all have to comply with the legislative enactment. | don’t know if
the proponents were saying that there is dual authority here. Which there is.

Representative K. Koppelman: The only reason | brought the gift up is because of your
comment. Your comment earlier was because of the legislative article in the constitution and
the legislature has not relinquished its authority to make and govern law. You felt that
because of the provision in the measure, until that is superseded by a rule they were to make
that the legislature has the authority. | agree with that, my only reason for bringing that up
and the question is that the legislature does retain its authority to make law. | struggle with
that people are voting on what they don’t know what they are voting on. When they are told
by those proposing and promoting it, this is the way it's going to work and then we read it
and say, it's doesn’t say that. If it is at all ambiguous, my thought is that we should honor
what the proponents intended.

Senator Hogue: | can’t disagree with that. The other point for not requiring legislative or
Attorney General review is a provision in the constitution which is highly unusual that gives
any taxpayer in North Dakota the ability to challenge what the Ethic Commission does in
terms of enforcing Article XIV. The reason | say that’s unusual is the court, congress and the
state almost always requires that the people who can challenge a decision of an
administrative agency are the ones that comes before that agency. Not just Joe Smith off
the street and you very rarely see that provision.
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(30:20)

Representative Steiner: On page 2, line 11, can you define sub-contributor? How does
that impact how we currently do in campaigns? We’ve had testimony on the house side about
certain groups that are 501C4. There is a designation where they don’t, by their bylaws,
release their sub-contributors. How does that all interact?

Senator Hogue: That's an open question and is so called “dark money.” 501C4’s is an
effort to conceal who is contributing to the political cause. | don’t know how we will do the
sub-contributor; | have a proposal that I'm going to introduce to the House bill.

My proposal is that if your organization doesn’t have 25 North Dakota residents, or your
organization’s board or leadership structure doesn’t have more the half North Dakota
residents, your advertisements will have to disclose that your organization doesn’t have a
substantial connection to the State of North Dakota.

| came up with that because trying to run down these sub-contributors is a shell game. It's
hard to figure out when you get a postcard in the mail, paid for by the Citizens Who Love
Truth and Justice in the American Way. It’s intentionally deceptive and vague. It's important
to know for North Dakotans that that organization is not a North Dakota based organization.

Representative K. Koppelman: Does that apply to any elective process like an initiative?

Senator Hogue: Yes, they are intentionally anonymous. So, how do you get at that with
these sub-contributor’s concept, I'm not sure you can do it.

Chairman Kasper: Section 1.2 of the measure--Public disclosure of the “ultimate and true
source of funds spent in any medium, an amount greater $200, adjusted for inflation.” How
did your committee on SB 2148 address those three words, “adjusted for inflation”?

Senator Hogue: | think we would have dealt with that in the definitions. | wanted to find the
most appropriate consumer price index and make sure that the amount was always rounded
up to the nearest dollar. | don’t see that in here.

Chairman Kasper: Your definitions start on page 17. That is a concern in talking with the
Secretary of State’s office. The point made was, first of all you need to define it but then
adjust for inflation. Our base is $200 adjusted for inflation. So we are going to begin to have
to report $201.44 or greater. The Secretary of State’s office said “this is going to be very
difficult to track as time goes on.” It is difficult for both the recipient and the giver.

The Secretary of State’s office did ask for an opinion about the amount of the gift. The
measure calls for an amount greater than $200 but I'm sure that you are aware that in our
statute, we require a reporting of a $100 or greater for committees. This is decreasing
transparency the way the measure was written.

| guess we can’t do anything about it because of what the measure says. It was probably an
overlook on part of the Measure 1 committee.
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Senator Hogue: You are correct. The committee did clarify whether you are in state or out
of state contributor.

George Stites~Attorney for North Dakotans for Public Integrity: (Attachments #2 & 3)

(47:00)
Representative Lefor: Do you believe adjusted for inflation, there should be some formula
attached to the consumer price index, for clarity for the Secretary of State’s office?

George Stites: | believe it would be appropriate to have the definition. It's not currently
listed in the definitions. The requirement for adjusting for inflation, in both places that the
Senate bill requires the reporting of the “ultimate and true source”, it does say adjusted for
inflation. It hasn’t defined what that is.

That could be handled obviously in 1 of 2 ways. You could provide a definition now or the
Ethics Commission could provide that under a rule. Clearly, there should be a set definition
because otherwise people could argue that the methodology is incorrect or is not supported
in some way.

Article XIV does not eliminate, in any way, the legislature’s ability to pass all sorts of additional
ethical laws. It doesn’t preempt the field. There is still concurrent jurisdiction over ethics by
the legislature. | do have one difference of opinion, you do so only to the extent the
constitution isn’t controlling what it is that you are saying. It is inappropriate, after 2 years
from now, for the legislature to set a different definition of gift and allow a laundry list of gifts
that would be permissible.

That because you are up against a constitutional provision. If the constitution says something
clearly, then the discretion for you to either redefine it or change it (say something different),
just isn’t there from a constitutional standpoint.

| absolutely agree that Article XIV didn't mean that the legislature just stops looking at
whether it bribery, corruption, ethics, etc. The Ethics Commission has it role in those five
areas of transparency and rulemaking authority. They will be busy doing that. If the
legislature thinks that there is something missing or something done differently, | believe they
are free to do so. So long as they are not violating the constitutional provisions.

Representative Lefor: When we talk about adding definitions, we have the statutory
authority to put it in now. Then the Ethics Commissions meets and they set a rule, they
define it. Their definition would take precedence, would it not?

George Stites: Yes, no legislature wants to pass a law in conflict with the constitution. If
you believe that the constitution defines certain things, then the legislature isn’t free to change
the definition. Article XIV has prohibited gifts from lobbyists. The exception is that gifts are
prohibited except for the Ethics Commission to pass rules as to North Dakota residents
getting together and social settings as to what will be not considered a prohibited gift. It
would otherwise be a gift.
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| would hope that they decide in a rule what is permissible in a public way by the procedures
set out by both of these bills.

Vice Chair Scott Louser: The “ultimate and true source” and specifically sub-contributors.
We have a mess of reports on the Secretary of State’s site right not because of sub-
contributors. If we were to pass a law in North Dakota to specifically require the disclosure
of sub-contributors. And an out-of-state PAC (Political Action Committee) suggests that they
can’t provide that disclosure. Can we impose a penalty or restrict the participation in a
measure committee whereby a PAC doesn’t disclose their sub-contributors?

George Stites: | do believe that Article XIV says you can and should set appropriate
penalties as to all reporting requirements. Section 1 says you should vest one or more entities
whether it is the Secretary of State or the Ethics Commission or some other entity you
choose. Then give that entity the power to prescribe and enforce the provisions that require
the ultimate and true source of reporting.

It ought to include either by them by rulemaking or decide yourself to set the penalties ahead
of time. Right now the campaign contributions statement chapter 16.1-08.1 has a penalty of
associated where it says “if there isn’t a penalty otherwise provided”, then it's a class A
misdemeanor for someone to violate what these requirements are.

Whether it's in state or out of state, it going to be irrelevant if they are not reporting
appropriately. It should subject them the penalties that you decide.

Vice Chair Scott Louser: Who is subject to the penalty after the election has occurred?
We have a year-end report that gets submitted in January and the election was in November
and there are no sub-contributors reported when they existed, now what?

George Stiltes: I'm not sure what you are asking?

(56:57)

Vice Chairman Louser: If you focus on an out-of-state PAC or group that has sub-
contributors and our campaign finance laws suggest require disclosure of sub-contributors,
we have that authority, and that PAC chooses or doesn’t have the ability or desire to disclose
the sub-contributors. What happens? The election has occurred, the contributions are
made, the year-end report comes in in January, who gets penalized?

George Stites: If the reporting requirement belongs to the PAC, then whoever the officers
are of that PAC have violated civil and criminal laws. This happens all the time whether it's
in-state or out-of-state that North Dakota prosecutes for not complying with North Dakota
laws. We not trying to change the election. We are trying to enforce the reporting
requirement. When these folks don’t report, | would hope that people would be upset enough
that they would be made an example of.

Vice Chair Scott Louser: The pre-general election report--we’ve heard the term “dark
money” and we've heard that it may be difficult or impossible to get these disclosures. If our
law says that it is required, do we run afoul of free speech if we ban a PAC that doesn’t
provide the sub-contributors reports?
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George Stites: It wouldn’t run afoul of the 1t amendment. | think that we would have the
ability to do that.

Representative Heinert: A follow-up on the sub-contributors, do you think that if the state
of North Dakota adopted rules that are currently under federal guidelines in reference to sub
contributors for the PACs, would that comply with Article XIV?

George Stites: I'm not sure because I'm not familiar with the federal reporting mechanism.
| believe the answer is “no” because Article X1V is very clear. North Dakota residents have
the right to timely information. | disagree that annually reporting is sufficient. The House bill
also said the Secretary of State could have 40 days after that to put it up on the website. The
reporting has to be quick enough to make a difference.

(1:03)
Representative Heinert: Are you giving the same handout for HB 1521 to the Senate like
you did for this bill? Can we receive a copy?

George Stites: Yes.

Representative Headland: Did you say that the legislature can establish definitions but the
Ethics Commission would have the ability to change that definition?

George Stites: The terms are not defined by Article XIV. The legislature can provide that.
We have something new now. We now have a 4" branch of government where the Ethics
Commission was given certain duties, rulemaking authority. Itis equal to what the legislature
might be doing. The constitution gives them that job to do.

Representative Headland: Would an Ethics Commission have the ability to change the
definition just because they wanted to?

George Stites: They are constrained the same way you are. The commission can modify
the rules down the road. They want stability and transparency.

Representative Headland: Would the Ethics Commission have the ability on a political
whim to make a change that fits their political agenda just because they could? If they have
the authority to changes definitions at any time, that is a scary thought.

George Stites: Because of the way the process works, they are required to follow the
rulemaking process. They could do bad things but that is no different than the legislature
could do bad things. It is another part of government that is accountable.

Representative Ruby: | have been thinking about your answer to the questions about the
disclosure statements and timing. Currently it is pre-primary disclosure and pre-general and
year end. After the pre-general, if there is a contribution of $500 or more, there is a 24-hour
requirement. With those guidelines you said people should know the information before they
vote. How is that possible with the timelines and with the final report for what happened after
the pre-general report?
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George Stites: Chapter 16.1-08.1 does a good job of making this information available as
soon as possible. Article XIV now pushes it more. Itis time now to look at this whole chapter
to see if the transparency that it offers should be more timely.

Out-of-state super PACs file paper forms. It is not electronically available. | went over to the
Secretary of State’s office to get a list of the super PACs that report. They have the paper
files but not a list. Within four years they ship the paper off to the archives. Section 1 of
Article XIV says we have to look at a new way of making this information available in a timely
manner.

Representative Boschee: Are you saying the 40-day window should be extended from
election? Or are you saying that you think a contribution of a certain size should be reported
within a certain time period available online.

George Stites: The old way of doing things needs to be looked at. It should be easier to
submit and easier for people to look at. This is our opportunity because of Article XIV.

Vice Chair Scott Louser: Have you seen the amended report as of March on the Secretary
of State’s site.

George Stites: No.

Vice Chair Scott Louser: Itis confusing and that is under current law. We need a solution.
| would appreciate by our next hearing if you could look at that and help interpret what is
being reported.

Representative K. Koppelman: You are an analyst hired by the proponents to determine
what legislative activity is necessary to implement it. You are also advocating for several
other items as well.

George Stites: Yes.

Representative K. Koppelman: Is there any other body in the constitution or government
that is not accountable to the people that has this much power?

George Stites: | could compare it to the appointed members to the State Board of Higher
Education.

Representative K. Koppelman: Section 3, subsection 3 you said provides a statement of
legal construction, severability and constitutional conflict. | would call it the supremacy
clause. Is there anything else in the constitution that gives a body supremacy over all the
other state government entities?

George Stites: | can’t think of one.
Representative K. Koppelman: Does a court even have the authority to exercise its

constitutional authority in analyzing something that may come up in this measure that might
conflict or is the measure going to rule over everything that has ever been done in our state?
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George Stites: There is no legal basis that would put them so far up that the Supreme Court
doesn’t have authority over them.

Representative K. Koppelman: Reads from Section 4, subsection 3: “If any provision of
this article is held to be invalid, either on its face or as applied to any person, entity, or
circumstance, the remaining provisions, and the application thereof to any person, entity, or
circumstance other than those to which it is held invalid, shall not be affected thereby. In
any case of a conflict between any provision of this article and any other provision
contained in this constitution, the provisions of this article shall control.” That sounds pretty
absolute to me.

Groups including the ACLU have indicated that this article is unconstitutional under the
federal constitution. What is your opinion on that?

George Stites: | disagree with the ACLU. | do believe that there is no question that it is
constitutional under federal law. It doesn’t infringe on first amendment rights. The case law
from the Citizens United case supports the proposition that increased transparency of
contributions made to influence government is paramount for the people to be able to know
who is influencing their government with money.

Representative K. Koppelman: Have you contemplated the idea that the Supreme Court
is being asked to deal with an issue like this where we are taking one article in our constitution
and placing it in authority over everything else? Is that even constitutional to take a section
of the constitution and say that it trumps everything else?

George Stites: To me this is not such an onerous provision. It is a new constitutional
provision put in place. When a court would consider the weight of a part that has existed for
100 years or this new provision, the scales of justice would balance in favor of Article XIV
because it is the newest.

Chairman Jim Kasper: Adjourned the meeting.
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Minutes: Attachments #1-3

Chairman Kasper: Called to order

Senator Mathern, Sponsor: (Attachment #1) Definition of lobbyist.
A definition that could be common is combining the intent of Article XIV and what we already
have in Century Code. Senate Bill 2148 did not have that definition.

There has been confusion about an amount adjusted for inflation. The adjustment for inflation
would relate to contributions. It could be left to the Ethics Commission. | worked on an
amendment for inflation. Then | learned that the Secretary of State also worked on an
amendment. If you are interested in simplifying that you can look at his. One idea is just
authorizing. We just don’t do anything with the inflationary rate or set it once a year.

(Attachment #2) Amendment #19.0422.05009

The House started with a bill regarding a study and so did the Senate. We are all learning in
this process. We are going to have five commissioners that are also learning. Consider
putting a study resolution in bill. It covers three areas:

1. Gives additional time for implementation and law making. If you intend to not take
that time, it would still be helpful to study those areas.

2. Develop a mechanism where the legislature and the Ethics Commissioners
collaborate in implementing Article XIV. The commissioners would sit at the table
with you as legislators. | suggest having two commissioners. Then there isn’t an
issue about having a quorum and giving notice.

3. Theinterim committee develop ways of educating the public and legislators on how
to carry out the request of Article XIV. That could be a workshop, a manual, an
online course, etc.
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Also | want to remind you of the amendment handed out March 12 which is #19.0422.05003
for “ultimate and true source.” That relates to the concept of sub contributors.

Representative Lefor: Your first amendment (Attachment #1) given today, #2 with all of the
lines deleted, is it your intent that the last sentence replaces the other verbiage?

Senator Mathern: The intentis that they are combined by that one sentence. If you wanted
letters e. or d. and have a further elaboration of people exempt, but it appeared that they all
fit that definition.

Representative Lefor: It wasn’t your intent to move these out of that chapter? It was to
change the wording in subsection 2 where you are putting it to a different definition. Is that
correct?

Senator Mathern: Yes. The goal is to make it consistent with Article XIV. It would take
investigation by Legislative Council.

(14:30)

Representative K. Koppelman: Your suggested amendment (Attachment #1) in # 2 does
restate subdivision c. But it doesn’t seem to capture what is listed under d. and e.

You would be talking about exempting public officials. There are other people defined. Yet
you said you were restating the language that is there.

Senator Mathern: Letter a. is a private citizen appearing on the citizen’s own behalf. Some
of the ones listed in the crossed out language are really there as a private citizen. So they
are covered there already. Or they are a board member or a volunteer. That would apply to
being involved in a trade or a professional association. The attempt is to bring them together.

Representative K. Koppelman: The last sentence of #2 seems to be referencing the state
or political subdivisions, excluding public officials.

Senator Mathern: | saw them also as being in the role of a citizen. The idea is to create
one definition.

(17:50)

Representative Steiner: part d under #2 (Attachment #1) “Invited by the chairman . . .
Sometimes we have people on the national level who are invited by the chairman to speak
to an interim committee. Sometimes they work for a group. Under your change are they
included as you consolidated to that one sentence or did you want them excluded?

Senator Mathern: They are coming as a citizen with a special passion that represents all
with the same passion. They are not regularly here. If you would like to keep it in there, that
is alright.

Representative Steiner: We sometimes ask a specialist, is he required to register as a
lobbyist? Is that person considered a citizen?
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Senator Mathern: | think that person would normally have other requirements and may be
involved in campaign contributions or hiring lobbyists. Other provisions of this bill would be
applicable. If you think that is a loophole, it would need some attention.

Representative D. Anderson: Could we leave (Attachment #1) part e in there?

Senator Mathern: | could see leaving part d in. Part e needs a little more work, so | would
take that out. Part e is getting close to some of the other provisions of the law.

Representative D. Anderson: Instead of saying “presenting testimony”, could we say
“‘educating the committee.”

Senator Mathern: The intent is to make sure that there is a way that everyone is accounted
for. If that person has more influence than the standard citizen, there should be more
requirements. That is related to making this consistent with Article XIV.

Representative D. Anderson: When we develop policy, it is important to receive all the
education we can get to make good decisions

Senator Mathern: | agree. That is why #1 applies and #2 we grant the exceptions. That
doesn’t mean we don’t want those people.

Representative Boschee: This is more about disclosing who is engaging with us. That is
what voters were looking for as far as transparency. We depend on professionals all the time
to help us make good policy.

Chairman Jim Kasper: When you make the statements that they should be held to a higher
standard of disclosure because of who they are, | get worried. The U.S. Constitution grants
the right of all people to have the freedom of speech.

You want more disclosure. You are getting into other areas that are already disclosed such
as a campaign contribution. It is disclosed. They have to be identified with name, address,
where they live, position, etc. The identification is received in the committee when the person
makes their points about the legislation.

Another area of concern, on your amendment (Attachment #1) you are crossing off the words
“a legislator.” We are legislators and we aren’t subject to the lobbyist requirement in the
statute. With your striking of “a legislator”, it appears now we become also a lobbyist. We
are lobbying each other every day. | am concerned about that part of your amendment.

Senator Mathern: The attempt to simplify was to have the legislator be noted as a public
official. In the language in #2, | would define you as a public official which exempts us from
this role as lobbyists. You would be here as a public official. Article XIV isn’t just about us.
It is also about the executive branch and other government officials.

Chairman Jim Kasper: It takes away clarity and makes it more ambiguous. What is wrong
with keeping it in?
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We have in code, Chapter 54-05.1, the definition of lobbyist and what you cited in your
amendment. This has been in code and amended over time. Everyone is used to that.
Measure 1 did not define lobbyist. It gives the legislature discretion to make legislation to
clarify Measure 1. If we do not define lobbyist, we have defined it from the perspective that
it is already in code. The people filing campaign reports for years are used to that
terminology. What is wrong with the definition that we have in code?

Senator Mathern: It appears the definition in code is more limited to the activity of the
legislative process. A lobbyist according to Article XIV is a person who engages in that
activity in more ways than our legislature. The goal is to take what we have in place and
make sure it is applicable to other areas of government which Article XIV requires. Our
statute was developed to regulate the activity in these halls. Article XIV expands that to
regulating activity beyond the halls of the legislature into the tower of the executive branch.

Representative Steiner: For example, an oil executive is only coming in because of a
change of a regulation. He is coming on behalf of his company. You are suggesting he
comes for that one time and he has to buy a $25 tag for the one day? When he testifies he
signs the board and identifies himself. How is the public not seeing the transparency? It is
a public meeting.

Senator Mathern: Yes. It would be easier for the citizens to know he is there if he is
registered. It is easier for the citizens to go to the Secretary of State’s list of registered
lobbyists than to go to every executive office to determine who has been there to lobby them
regarding a public policy matter. Yes, it another $25.

(36:19)
Representative Heinert: Just registering only gives the name and they are here to lobby.
It doesn’t tell who they talked to. Where is the transparency?

Senator Mathern: We are trying to move to more transparency. If you want to have them
identify who they went to see, when, and what they said is another level. Article XIV doesn’t
require that level of transparency. But we can add that.

Chairman Jim Kasper: Sounds like everyone has to wear a tracking device so anyone can
go online and find out where you have been. It is approaching scariness to me.

Representative Heinert: Where in Article XIV does it say they have to register if they want
to talk to a group at the capitol?

Senator Mathern: “Lobbyist” is used in Article XIV a number of times. There is no specific
definition. The intent is to have the legislature make that definition. Article XIV does give the
legislature the ability to do some of these things.

Representative Heinert: The commissioners may weigh in on the definition. If the
legislature develops the definition, can the commission change it?
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Senator Mathern: The commission will consider what the legislature has done and
determine if we have met the minimum requirements. That is why | suggest the study
committee and to have commissioners on it.

Representative Headland: With the example where an executive comes in to testify and
we require him to register as a lobbyist, are we going to find they will come in as a private
citizen?

Senator Mathern: There are other provisions in the statute and Article XIV that addresses
that. If they are representing a specific activity that they want us to do in government, that
is their work or business, it would not be above board to claim to be a citizen. That would be
a violation of Article XIV.

Representative Headland: | am a farmer and | testify as a citizen.

Senator Mathern: If you came as a farmer, you would be exempt. But if you represent all
farmers with an organization, you would not be exempt. The Ethics Commission would
further clarify that. We do that now in state agencies.

Representative R. Becker: Could one say they are an individual when everyone knows
they are not?

Senator Mathern: You just said “everyone knows.” They would need to register.

Representative R. Becker: If you are affiliated with an organization, can you be here in
your own capacity?

Senator Mathern: No. The degree that you outlined is further than what is in Article XIV.
We all have different hats. Look at the primary role of that person.

Chairman Jim Kasper: Reads the first amendment to the U. S. Constitution:

“Congress shall make no law respecting an establishment of religion, or prohibiting the free
exercise thereof; or abridging the freedom of speech, or of the press; or the right of the people
peaceably to assemble, and to petition the Government for a redress of grievances.”

This discussion in trying to micromanage people’s thoughts and intentions is impossible. If
someone identifies themselves, what more do we need? The Constitution guarantees they
have the right to speak. Some of the discussion on these amendments appears there is an
attempt to build barriers between the citizens and the first amendment. That is very
frightening.

Senator Mathern: Since that was placed in our constitution, there have thousands of cases
in court to implement and apply it.

| think it would be simpler to have a consistent definition. What is consistent is up to you.
| am bringing the concept that | think would be helpful.
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Representative Mock: What is the reason for the change? Is it because they may have
been politically active and you want the declaration of their involvement?

Senator Mathern: Under 1c (Attachment #1), the goal is to assure that the definition applies
to more than the legislative branch. The other intent is to simply it for the citizens, lobbyists,
etc.

Representative Mock: 2d and 2e is the invitation to come for informational purposes. What
is the concern with that individual speaking and not registering as a lobbyist?

Senator Mathern: You could keep 2d in there.

Representative Mock: Expanding to all branches is a good purpose. The title of law is
listed. Itis 54-05.1—Legislative Lobbying. While we are changing the definition, do we need
to change the title of that statute or create a new statute?

Senator Mathern: We don’t legislate titles of code. If we pass this, that would be up to
legislative council. There may be other sections of that chapter that we should be looking at.
We can only do so much. That is why Article XIV has the three-year time frame.

Representative Lefor: In looking at the amendment on the study (Attachment #2), my
understanding is the Ethics Commission can promulgate rules without the legislature. The
only way that can be changed is if itis judicial and a case is brought forth. If we put something
in definition, the Ethics Committee can change it. Why do you feel a study is important?

Senator Mathern: | see interim studies as opportunities for education including the
commissioners. The commissioners are going to be citizens. They also need education.

The intent is to promote collaboration and education. There has been a lot of tension about
this. It would create the atmosphere of avoiding conflicts in the future.

Tracey L. Wilkie: (Attachment #3)
Supports SB 2148 in its current form.

Representative Boschee: What happens if a lobbyist doesn’t register? How does your
office administer those complaints?

Jim Silrum, Deputy Secretary of State: We reach out to the individual and explain the
requirements. If they refuse, those are in place by a court of law and would engage the
Attorney General to bring charges.

Representative Boschee: You would administer the complaint but the action is with the
court system?

Jim Silrum: We are not given the enforcement authority. We can impose fines as specified
in law. In this instance it would have to be a court that would say they are guilty of an
infraction.
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Representative Boschee: How do you see Article XIV and the definition of lobbyists?

Jim Silrum: There is campaign finance and there is legislative lobbying. Even under Article
XIV, we believe the separation between the two still remains. Article XIV says a lobbyist
cannot deliver campaign contributions on behalf of someone else. That doesn’t prevent a
lobbyist from making a campaign contribution on their own.

Representative Boschee: Article XIV, Section 2, subsection 1 “A lobbyist may not
knowingly give, offer, solicit, initiate, or facilitate a gift to a public official. A public official
may not knowingly accept a gift from a lobbyist. These prohibitions do not apply if the
lobbyist is an immediate family member of the public official.” So it would have an impact
on people who register as a lobbyist whether we define it under legislative code or

SB 2148.

Jim Silrum: That is in the gray area of the statute. What is a gift? Itis defined, but we see
it different from a campaign contribution.

Representative Boschee: Yes, it does say that a gift is not a campaign contribution
Chairman Jim Kasper: Further comments that would help?

Jim Silrum: The amendments we prepared were on HB 1521. In those amendments we
are proposing that all references to “adjusted for inflation” be removed from the bill. If you
are a measure committee, you need to disclose any contribution in excess of $100. Any
others like a candidate or political party, you are to disclose the name of an individual who
gave more than $200. It is our understanding that even though Article XIV says adjusted for
inflation, the law can require more disclosure than the constitution requires. We think it is
simpler to leave the reporting thresholds at $100 and $200 so we are not changing them to
some odd amount. Contributions of $200 or less need to be reported; but you don’t have to
report the name of the individual who gave a contribution until it is one cent over $200. Then
their name and address must be disclosed. If we start changing it for inflation, it will promote
confusion? The only time it would need to be changed is if we have a drastic situation with
deflation that what is worth $200 now is worth less.

There should be reporting of sub contributors whenever someone gives a contribution to a
candidate or party. We are suggesting an amendment to 16.1-08.1 and 03.1 to make it clear
that all filers of campaign contribution statements need to report sub contributors.

That is the only section that requires sub contributors and that section only deals with
measure committees.

Representative Boschee: Is there a reason those same amendments aren’t added to
SB 2148 which has similar language?

Jim Silrum: | will submit them to this bill also.

Representative Ruby: | agree “adjusted for inflation” would have odd dollars and cents
amounts. It would be good to make those adjustments over several years. | hope your
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amendment would make the incremental jumps after the inflationary levels have reached a
certain threshold.

Jim Silrum: We offered our suggestion but we recognize you are the policy setting branch
of government.

Representative K. Koppelman: In this case the people have made a policy by passing a
measure that includes an inflationary increase. That is broader than current law. Periodic
adjustments would make sense.

Jim Silrum: We looked at the measure that was submitted for approval to circulate. We
also wondered because here was a measure that was intended to provide for greater
transparency and it provides less transparency because those amounts go up. It applies to
any filer. It exposes one of the difficulties with initiated measures. Once we give the approval
for circulation, there is no way to change it.

Representative Ruby: There was some recognition that over a period of years there are
inflationary levels. It hasn’t been changed since | have been in the legislature. By doing the
incremental where we don’t change it until the inflation has reached a threshold, we are being
more transparent.

John Olson, Lobbyist: | am bothered by the loose definitions we attach to lobbyists. We
as citizens have a right to express our opinions. Up until Measure 1, | knew what the rules
were under the lobbyist’s chapter. In that chapter everyone that comes before you and
expresses an opinion is a lobbyist. There are certain exemptions. A citizen is exempt from
registration along with those requested by the chair. The rules were understood.

Does Atrticle XIV relate to the definitions in Chapter 54? | would be more comfortable if you
would have an exclusionary definition and take out the citizen that appears on their own
behalf. That person is not a lobbyist.

(1:29:05)

Chairman Jim Kasper: Chapter 54-05.1-02, subsection 2--we do have that exemption for
a private citizen in current statute. The ambiguity is what is the definition because of

Article XIV.

John Olson: 54-05.1-02, subsection 1 says “this chapter applies to any person who, in
any manner whatsoever, directly or indirectly, performs any of the following activities:

a. Attempts to secure the passage, amendment, or defeat of any legislation.”
So everyone is a lobbyist. The problem is we have definitions of lobbyists now that cover
private citizens exercising their first amendment rights. The lobbyist term is incorporated into
Article XIV. That is where my confusion lies.
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Geoff Simon, Lobbyist: The answer lies with the federal government. As a former federal
registered lobbyist, all three of the following have to apply to the individual required to
register:

1. The individual must make more than one lobbying contact on behalf of their employer

2. Spend more than 20% of their time lobbying over a three-month period

3. The organization must spend more than $13,000 on lobbying in any given quarter
Again, all three must apply before an individual is required to register. That lobbying contact
does not include testimony before a committee or appearance before a regulatory body to
comment on a rule.

Representative Steiner: (question to Representative Boschee) You made a statement
“that if you use a loophole.” Are you concerned about a loophole?

Representative Boschee: My reference to “loophole” is the decision someone has to make
in terms of whether to register as a lobbyist or not. Some may try to come as a citizen to use
that as a loophole when they are from a company.

Chairman Jim Kasper: As a legislator have you had any situations where you did not know
when you were talking to a person whether they were a citizen or a lobbyist in hiding as a
citizen?

Representative Boschee: It was someone that was testifying.

Chairman Jim Kasper: Closed the hearing.
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the rulemaking procedures and requirements for the North Dakota Ethics Commission.

Minutes:

Chairman Kasper: Called to order

Chairman Jim Kasper: The Senate passed HB 1521 yesterday. They did amend it
dramatically.

Appointed a Conference Committee:

Representative Louser

Representative Mock

Representative Kasper

It is premature to act on SB 2148 until we have a feel for where HB 1521 is going.

Chairman Jim Kasper: Adjourned
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

Relating to disclosures of expenditures, restrictions on public officials and lobbyists,
investigations of ethics violations and implementing requirements of Article XIV of the
Constitution of North Dakota; the prohibition on personal use of campaign contributions and
the rulemaking procedures and requirements for the North Dakota Ethics Commission.

Minutes:

Chairman Jim Kasper: Gave update from Conference Committee for HB 1521.

Proposed amendment from Senator Hogue 1521 adopted most of what the Senate amended
into with additional amendments. The version from the Senate didn’t require the person who
made the complaint to identify themselves or require it to be in writing. It didn’t protect the
confidentiality of a complaint. Anyone could make a phone call from anywhere and lodge a
complaint. It does put the due process back in and simplify what we had sent to the Senate
originally. It also did increase the budget from what we sent.

Senator Mathern wants a study. There is no study in that version

Representative Steiner: | have an idea for more disclosure. It would be for travel
accommodations, meals, or refreshments. The public official submits a report to the
Secretary of State detailing the purpose and costs of the travel provided by the lobbyist within
30 days of returning. With transparency it would be of value to constituents. Itis a suggestion
to the Ethics Commission for out-of-state travel.

Chairman Jim Kasper: | would suggest adding that to HB 1521 tomorrow at the conference
committee.

Chairman Jim Kasper: Adjourned
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Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution:

Relating to disclosures of expenditures, restrictions on public officials and lobbyists,
investigations of ethics violations and implementing requirements of Article XIV of the
Constitution of North Dakota; the prohibition on personal use of campaign contributions and
the rulemaking procedures and requirements for the North Dakota Ethics Commission.

Minutes: Attachments #1 & 2

Chairman Jim Kasper: Reviewed Conference Committee results for HB 1521.

Speaker Klemin: Amendment for a study #19.0422.05013 (Attachment #1)
Questions that could be studied. (Attachment #2)

Amendment for a study not the same as what was in House Concurrent Resolution 3028.

The members of the Ethics Commission would be participating on the study committee as
nonvoting members. They could ask questions and become better informed.

SB 2148 won’t be needed in its original for when HB 1521 passes.

Transparency would be looked at along with funding sources, lobbyists, conflicts of interest,
responsibilities of the legislative assembly, responsibilities of the Ethics Commission, and
issues between the North Dakota and U.S. Constitution. Article XIV has a supremacy clause
that seems to supersede everything in the rest of the constitution. Are the sanctions
appropriate? How can everyone be better educated?

Representative Mock: Moved to adopt amendment #.05013

Representative Steiner: Seconded the motion.

Speaker Klemin: This is a mandatory study.
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Chairman Jim Kasper: The process that we have gone through is like what is outlined in
SCR 4001. That resolution states that if a constitutional amendment is passed, the
amendment will be presented to the next legislative session for debate and discussion. Then
the legislature will support the constitutional amendment as written or vote to put it back on
the ballot. The process we used here is that we have been vetting a bill with the difference
being that it is already in the constitution.

Voice Vote taken. Motion passed to adopt the amendment.

Representative Mock: Moved Do Pass as amended.
Representative K. Koppelman: Seconded the motion.

A Roll Call vote was taken: Yes 12 ,No O , Absent 2

Do Pass as amended carries.
Representative Louser will carry the bill.

Chairman Jim Kasper: Adjourned.
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19.0422.05013 Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for L{/Z%
Title.06000 Representative Klemin
April 22, 2019

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO REENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2148

Page 1, line 1, after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the bill with "for an Act to provide for a
legislative management study regarding article XIV of the Constitution of North Dakota
and related issues.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA:

SECTION 1. LEGISLATIVE MANAGEMENT STUDY - ETHICS COMMISSION
AND LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY RESPONSIBILITIES. During the 2019-20 interim, the
legislative management shall study the implementation and requirements of article XIV
of the Constitution of North Dakota concerning the transparency of funding sources,
lobbyists, conflicts of interest, and related matters, the responsibilities of the legislative
assembly and the ethics commission, and potential issues under the Constitution of the
United States and the Constitution of North Dakota. The members of the ethics
commission must be invited to participate on the study committee as nonvoting
members. The study must include a review of existing laws and laws enacted to
implement article XIV and consideration of whether the civil and criminal sanctions for
violations of the constitutional provisions and the statutes are appropriate; whether
legislative action regarding article XIV is necessary or desirable; and an effective
means to educate public officials, lobbyists, and the public on the requirements of
article XIV and other laws regarding government ethics. The legislative management
shall report its findings and recommendations, together with any legislation necessary
to implement the recommendations, to the sixty-seventh legislative assembly."

Renumber accordingly

Page No. 1 19.0422.05013



Roll Call Vote #:

2019 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE

House  Fthics

ROLL CALL VOTES
BILL/RESOLUTION NO.

SB 2148

Date: 4/23/2019

1

Committee

Amendment LC# or Description:

(0 Subcommittee

19.0422.05013

Recommendation: Adopt Amendment

O Do Pass
0 As Amended

J Do Not Pass

] Rerefer to Appropriations

[J Place on Consent Calendar

Other Actions: O Reconsider

Motion Made By Rep. Mock

(]

O Without Committee Recommendation

Seconded By  Rep. Steiner

Representatives Yes No Representatives Yes | No
Chairman Kasper Rep. Boschee
V. Chair Louser Rep. Mitskog
Rep. D. Anderson Rep. Mock
Rep. Becker
Rep. Headland
Rep. Heinert
Rep. K. Koppelman
Rep. Lefor
Rep. Rohr —

Eep- g. Ruby Voice Vote
ep. Steiner Motion Passed
Total (Yes) No
Absent

Floor Assignment

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent:



Date: 4/23/2019

Roll Call Vote #: 2

2019 HOUSE STANDING COMMITTEE
ROLL CALL VOTES
BILL/RESOLUTION NO. SB 2148

House Eth iCS Committee

0 Subcommittee

Amendment LC# or Description:  19.0422.05013

Recommendation: [ Adopt Amendment
X Do Pass (O Do Not Pass O Without Committee Recommendation

As Amended UJ Rerefer to Appropriations
(] Place on Consent Calendar
Other Actions: J Reconsider a
Motion Made By Rep. Mock Seconded By Rep. Koppelman
Representatives Yes | No Representatives Yes | No
Chairman Kasper 1 X Rep. Boschee X
V. Chair Louser X Rep. Mitskog X
Rep. D. Anderson X Rep. Mock X
Rep. Becker - ] X
Rep. Headland AB
Rep. Heinert X
Rep. K. Koppelman | X I
Rep. Lefor X
Rep. Rohr X
Rep. D. Ruby AB N - Y B
Rep. Steiner X
Total (Yes) 12 No O
Absent 2

Floor Assignment ReE' LOLlser

If the vote is on an amendment, briefly indicate intent:



Com Standing Committee Report Module ID: h_stcomrep_73_001
April 23, 2019 4:55PM Carrier: Louser
Insert LC: 19.0422.05013 Title: 06000

REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEE
SB 2148, as reengrossed: Ethics Committee (Rep. Kasper, Chairman) recommends
AMENDMENTS AS FOLLOWS and when so amended, recommends DO PASS
(12 YEAS, 0 NAYS, 2 ABSENT AND NOT VOTING). Reengrossed SB 2148 was
placed on the Sixth order on the calendar.

Page 1, line 1, after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the bill with "for an Act to provide for a
legislative management study regarding article XIV of the Constitution of North
Dakota and related issues.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA:

SECTION 1. LEGISLATIVE MANAGEMENT STUDY - ETHICS
COMMISSION AND LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY RESPONSIBILITIES. During the
2019-20 interim, the legislative management shall study the implementation and
requirements of article XIV of the Constitution of North Dakota concerning the
transparency of funding sources, lobbyists, conflicts of interest, and related matters,
the responsibilities of the legislative assembly and the ethics commission, and
potential issues under the Constitution of the United States and the Constitution of
North Dakota. The members of the ethics commission must be invited to participate
on the study committee as nonvoting members. The study must include a review of
existing laws and laws enacted to implement article XIV and consideration of
whether the civil and criminal sanctions for violations of the constitutional provisions
and the statutes are appropriate; whether legislative action regarding article XIV is
necessary or desirable; and an effective means to educate public officials, lobbyists,
and the public on the requirements of article XIV and other laws regarding
government ethics. The legislative management shall report its findings and
recommendations, together with any legislation necessary to implement the
recommendations, to the sixty-seventh legislative assembly."

Renumber accordingly

(1) DESK (3) COMMITTEE Page 1 h_stcomrep_73_001
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SB 2148- Senate Committee on Ethics- January 30, 2019
Chairman Hogue and Committee Members,

My name is Tim Mathern, Senator from Fargo. | sponsored SB 2148 which upon
passage will fulfill legislative requirements set out by Article 14 of the North
Dakota Constitution.

In the '90s | introduced legislation which eventually morphed into the educational
session in ethics we now have in our organizational sessions. Before the last
election | provided input to the Sponsoring Committee of ballot Measure #1. In
those activities and in the teamwork of drafting of SB2148 | have consistently
involved Republicans and Democrats in the discussions and content. The issues of
ethics are common to us all and the prevention of unethical behavior includes
clear guidelines. Leaders of both caucuses and the governor have had access to
drafts of this bill which has gone through many changes.

Members of the committee, as | review our backgrounds it is apparent that each
of us has been accountable to codes of ethics in our professions. Today we simply
embark on building on this in the public policy aspect of our lives and that of our
colleagues. In a deliberate and measured manner, we are clarifying the standards
of ethical conduct of legislators, other government officials, and lobbyists. North
Dakota citizens have directed us to do this by approving Article 14. | trust we can
work together implementing this directive.

To make efficient use of your time; Attorney Claire Ness of the Legislative Council
will explain the bill, Attorney Greg Stites will explain the rationale of the three-
tiered approach this bill presents- 1. establish the ethics commission, 2. do an
interim study, and 3. pass another bill in the '21 session. He will explain suggested
amendments which | have provided to you numbered 19.0422.02002. The Vice
President of North Dakotans for Public Integrity, Ellen Chaffee will give broader
attention to the citizen environment supporting this bill. Having the National
Conference of State Legislatures here did not work out but attached you will find
their offer of presentation which we can discuss in committee. | have asked other
advocates and those who have questions or oppose aspects to testify after that.

| ask you to adopt the amendments and | ask you to make a Do Pass
recommendation to the Senate. Thank you for your consideration.
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19.0422.02002 Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for
Title. Senator Mathern
January 29, 2019

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2148
Page 1, line 3, remove "to amend and reenact sections"
Page 1, remove lines 4 through 7
Page 1, line 8, remove "North Dakota ethics commission;"
Page 1, line 9, remove "and"
Page 1, line 9, after "appropriation” insert "; and to declare an emergency"
Page 1, remove lines 11 through 24
Page 2, remove lines 1 through 30
Page 3, remove lines 1 through 30
Page 4, remove lines 1 through 30
Page 5, remove lines 1 through 29
Page 6, remove lines 1 through 31
Page 7, remove lines 1 through 31
Page 8, remove lines 1 through 31
Page 9, remove lines 1 through 31
Page 10, remove lines 1 through 30
Page 11, remove lines 1 through 31
Page 12, remove lines 1 through 31
Page 13, remove lines 1 through 31
Page 14, remove lines 1 through 30
Page 15, remove lines 1 through 29
Page 16, remove lines 1 through 31
Page 17, remove lines 1 through 31
Page 18, remove lines 1 through 31
Page 19, remove lines 1 through 31
Page 20, removes lines 1 through 11

Page 20, after line 14, insert:
"1. For purposes of this chapter, unless the context otherwise requires:"

Page 20, line 15, replace "1." with "a."

Page No. 1 19.0422.02002
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Page 20, line 18, replace "2." with "b,"

Page 20, line 20, replace "3." with "c."

Page 20, line 23, replace "4." with "d." .
Page 20, remove lines 25 through 31

Page 21, remove lines 1 through 12

Page 21, line 13, replace "8." with "e,

Page 21, after line 14, insert:

"2. _For purposes of article X1V of the Constitution of North Dakota, "lobbyist":

a. Means a person who, directly or indirectly:

(1) Attempts to secure the passage, amendment, or defeat of any
leqislation by the legislative assembly;

(2) Attempts to secure the approval or veto of any legislation by the
governor;
(3) Attempts to influence decisions regarding legislative matters_

made by the legislative management or a legislative committee;
or

(4) Attempts to influence decisions regarding official matters made.

by a public official in the executive branch of state government.

b. Does not mean:

(1) A private citizen appearing on the citizen's own behalf; or

(2) A public official or an employee, officer, board member,.
volunteer, or agent of the state or its political subdivisions acting
in the individual's official capacity.”

Page 24, after line 11, insert:

"64-66-14. Personal use of contributions prohibited - Penalty.

The ethics commission shall impose a fine of up to ten thousand dollars upon.
any person that violates section 16.1-08.1-04.1. The ethics commission may impose a
fine of up to fifty thousand dollars per violation upon any person who violates section.
16.1-08.1-04.1 more than once in a twelve-month period. Fines imposed under this
section are in addition to any fines imposed under section 16.1-08.1-07 for a violation.
of section 16.1-08.1-04.1."

Page 24, line 21, replace "biennium" with "period"
Page 24, line 21, replace "July 1, 2019," with "with the effective date of this Act"
Page 24, after line 27, insert:

"SECTION 4. EMERGENCY. Section 3 of this Act and North Dakota Century
Code sections 54-66-11, 54-66-12, and 54-66-14, as created by section 1 of this Act,
are declared to be emergency measures."

Page No. 2 19.0422.02002



Renumber accordingly

Page No. 3 19.0422.02002



O © 00 N O O b W N -~

-—

-—
BN

12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22

@.
24

19.0422.02002

Sixty-sixth
Legislative Assembly
of North Dakota

SENATE BILL NO. 2148

Introduced by

Senator Mathern

A BILL for an Act to create and enact chapter 54-66 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating
to restrictions on public officials and lobbyists, investigations of ethics violations, and
implementing requirements of article XIV of the Constitution of North Dakota; te-amend-and-
reenact-sections-28-32-04,-28-32-02,-28-32-03,-28-32-06-28-32-07-and-28-32-08;
subsection-5-of seetion-28-32-08:4;-seetions-28-32-08:2,28-32-09,-28-32-40,-28-32-41--
28-32-42,-28-32-44-28-32-15,-28-32-16,-28-32-17-28-32-18;-and-28-32-18:4;and-
subsections-2-and-4-of section 28-32-19-of the North Daketa Gentury Code-relating to-
rulemaking procedures and requirements for the Nerth-Daketa-ethies-eommission:-to provide for
a legislative management study; to provide a penalty; ard-to provide an appropriation;_and to

declare an emergency.
BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA:

—SEGCHON-1-AMENDMENT-Section-28-32-0 +-of the-Nerth-Daketa-Gentury-Code-is

amended-and-reenacted-as-follows:

——28-32-04-Definitions:

in-this-chapter-unless-the eontext-or subjeet-matierotherwise-provides:

——31—Adjudicative-proceeding- means-an-administrative- matter-resulting-in-an-ageney-
issding-an-erder-after-an-opportunity-for-hearing-is-provided-errequired-An-
adjudicative-proceedingincludes-administrative matters-invelving-a-hearing-on-a
complaint against-a-speeific-named-respondent:-a-hearing-on-an-application-seeking-a-
right-privilege-or an-autherizationfrom-an-ageney,-such-as-a-ratemaking-or-licensing-
hearing:-or-a-hearing-on-an-appeal-to-an-ageney-An-adjudicative-proceeding-includes
reconsideration-rehearing-or reopening—Onee-an-adjudicative-proceeding-has-begun;-
the-adjudicative proceedinginecludes-any-informal-dispesition-of the-administrative-
matter under section 28-32-22 of another specifie statute or rule;unless-the-matter

Page No. 1 19.0422.02002
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has-been-specifically-converted-to-another type-of proceeding-undersection28-32-22-
An-adjudicative-proceeding-does rot include-a-deeision-or order to-file-ernot to file a
complaint-orto-initiate-an-investigation-an-adjudicative-proceeding-orany-other
proceeding before the agenecy-of-another ageney;- o a-court-An-adjudicative
proceeding-does-net-include-a-decision-or-orderto-issue-reconsider-or-reopen-an-
orderthat-precedes-an-opportunity-for-hearing-or that-under-anothersection-of this-
cede-is-ret-subjectto-review-in-an-adjudicative-proceeding-An-adjudicative-proceeding-
dees-neot-include rulemaking-under this chapter.

2. "Administrative ageney*- er-'ageney" means-cach-board buread- commission;
department-of other administrative unit of the exeeutive branch-of state government

tneluding ene-or-meore-officers-employees-or-ether-persons-direetiy-or-indirectly-
purperting-to-act-on-behalf or under-authority-of the-ageney-An-administrative-unit
lecated within or suberdinate to an administrative ageney-must be treated as part of
that-ageney-to-the-extent-it-purports-to-exereise-authority-subjeet-to-this-chapter-The-
term-administrative-ageney-dees-notinclude:

— a—The-office of management-and-budget except-with-respeet-to-rules-made-under- .
seection-32-12:2-14-rules-relating-to-conduct-on-the-capitel-grounds-and-in-
buildings-Hocated-on-the-capitol-grounds-undersection-84-24-18-rules-relating-to
the-elassified-serviee-as-authorized-under-section-54-44-3-07-and-rules-relating-
to-state-purchasing-practices-as-required-under-section-54-44:4-04:

——— b—Fhe-adjutant general with respect to the department of emergeney serviees:

—e——he-councit-on-the-arts:
——  d——The-state-auditor:
e—The-department-of commerce with-respect-to-the-division-ef econremie-
development-and-finanee:
f.—Fhe dairy prometion commission:

———g—Fhe-eduecation-factfinding commission:

——h—The-educational-technology-couneik

—— —The-board-of equalization-

——}—The board of higher education:

—— k—TFhe-indian-affairs-commission: .

Page No. 2 19.0422.02002
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—— k- Fhe industrial commission-with respeet-to-the-activities- of the-Bank-of-Nerth-
Baketa-Meorth-Daketa heusing finance ageney, publie finranee authority, Nerth-
Deaketa-mill-and-elevator-association-Nerth-Dakoeta-farm-finance-ageney-the
Nerth-Daketa transmission autherity-and the-Nerth-Daketa-pipeline-authority:

m—Fhe-departmentof-corrections-and-rehabilitation-exeeptwith-respeettothe
activities-of the division-of adult services-underchapter 54-234-

———p——TFhe-pardon-advisery-beard:

—————o——Fhe parks-and-reereation-department:

———F p——Fhe-parele-board:
—g—Fhe state fair association:

—  r—Fhe-attorrey-general-with-respect-to-activities-of the state-toxicologist and the-
state-erime laboratery.

- s Fhe administrative-committee-on-veterans-affairs-except with-respeet-to-rules
relating-to-the-supervision-and-government-of theveterans-heme-and-the
implementation-of pregrams-er services-provided-by-the veterans-home:

t.. Fhe industrial commission with-respect-to-the- lighite researeh-fund-exceptas-
required-under-section-57-61-04-5:

—————y——The-attorney-general-with-respect-to-guidelines-adepted-under-seetion-12:1-32-15-
for the risk assessment of sexual offenders, the risk level review precess; and
publie-diselosure-of information under section 12.4-32-15.

———y——The-commission-on-legal-counsel-for-indigents:

——w-—The-attorney general with respeet to twenty-four seven sobriety program
guidelines-and-program-fees:

—x—TFhe-irdustrial-commission with respect to-appreving oF seting- waterrates-under
chapter64-40:

——3——Ageney-head-means-an-individual-or-bedy-ef-individuals-in-whom-the-ultimate-legal-

adthority-of the-ageney-is-vested by law:

| ——4—"Complainant-means-any-persen-whe-files-a-complaint-before-an-administrative-

ageney-pursuant to section 28-32-21-and-any-administrative-ageney-that, when

| autherized-by-law.-files-sueh-a-complaint-before-such-agency-or-any-other-ageney:

Page No. 3 19.0422.02002
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— B "Fthies-commission" means the Nerth Dakota-ethies- eommission-established-by-article- ‘
X\ ef the Gonstitution of Nerth Baketa.

—5-6——Hearing-officer~means-any-agency-head-or-onc-e -more-members-ofthe-ageney
head-when-presiding-in-an-administrative-proceeding-of-unless-prohibited-by-law,-ene-
of more-other-persons-designrated-by the-ageney head-to- preside in-an-administrative
proceedingan-administrative lawjudge-from-the-office-of-administrative-hearings; of
any-other persen-duly-assigned;-appeinted; or-designated-to-preside-in-an-
administrative-proceeding-pursaant-to-statute-errule:

—6+#——License™ means-afranchise permit, certification; approval; registration, eharter, ofF
simiar-form-of authorization-required-by-law.

—7-8—"Ordermeans-any-agency-action-of-particular applicability-which-determines-the-legal
rights-duties;-privileges;-immunities;-er otherlegalinterests-ef-one-or-more-speeifie-
persens. Fhe term does neot include an exeeutive order issued by the goverrer.

—8.9- "Rarty-means-each-persen-named-or-admitted-as-a-party-erproperly-seeking-and-
entitled-as-of rightto-be-admitted-as-a-party-An-administrative-ageney-may-be-a-party-
lr-a-hearing for-the-suspensien-revocation-or disqualification-of an-operater's-license
under- tile -39;- the-term-may-inelude-each-eity-and-each-county-in-which-the-alleged-
conduct-oceurred;-but-the-city-or- county-may-not-appeal-the-decision-of the-hearing-

officer.

-9.46-—"Persen“includes-an-individual-asseciation-partnership- corperation - limited-liability-
company-the-ethies-commission—a-state-gevernmental-agenecy-or-geveramental-
subdivision, oF an-ageney of sueh gevernmental subdivision:

16— "Relevant-evidenee"means-evidence-having any-tendeney-to-make-the-existence-of
any fact-thatis-of consequence-to-the-determination-of the-administrative-action-mere-
probable-er less-prebable-than-it-weuld-be witheut the evidenee.

1142 "Rule" means the whele or a part of an ageney of ethies commission-statement of
general-applicability-which-implements-or preseribes taw or poliey-or the-erganization;
procedure-or practice-requirements-of the-ageney-or ethies eommission. The term-
includes-the-adoption-of new rules-and-the-amendment;repeal-or suspension-ef an
existing-rule—The-term-does-rot-inelude:

Page No. 4 19.0422.02002
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-a— A rule eoncerning-only-the internal-management ofan-ageney-erthe-ethies-

[ commission-which-does-not-direetly-or-substantially-affeet-the -substantive-of-
I procedural rights of duties of any segment of the-publie:

——b—Ardle-that-sets-forth-eriteria-e r guidelines to-be used-by the staff o f an-ageney-or
the-ethies-commission-in-the-performance-of audits, investigations, inspeetions;-
and-settling commereial disputes-er-negotiating-commercial-arrangements;-er in-
the-defense-proseeution-orsettlement of eases, if the disclosure-of the-
statementrule would:

————————{1)—Enable-lawviolators-to-aveid-detection:

| {2)—Facilitate-disregard-of requirements-imposed-by-law:-of
: —— (3 —Give-a-clearly-improperadvantage-to-persons-who-are-in-an-adverse
position-to-the state:
— —e—~A-rule-establishing-speeifie-prices-to-be-charged-for-particular-goods-er services:
sold-by-an-ageney:

——d——A-rule-coneerning-only-the-physical servieing-maintenance-orcare-of
agency-owned-of-agency-operated-ethics-commission-owned-or-ethies-
commission-eperated-facilities-or-property.

——e——#Arrule-relating-only-to-the-use-ef a-particularfacility or-property-owned -operated;
or-maintained-by the state-or-any-of-its-subdivisions-if the-substance-of the-rule-is-
adequately-indicated-by-means-of sighs-or sighals-to-persens-whe-use-the facility-
oF-property:

~-f—Ardle-concerning-only-inmates-of-a-correctional-or- detention faceility-students
enrolled in-an-educational institution, or patients admitted to-a hospital,-if adepted-

by-that-facility-institution-or-hospitak:
—g—~Aform-whese-contents-er- substantive-requirements-are-preseribed-by-rule-or
statute-or-are-instructions-for-the-exeeution-or-use-of- the-form:
—— h—An-agenecy-or-ethics-commission-budget
-—An-opinion-of-the-atterney-general:
——j—A-rdle-adopted-by-an-ageney-selection-committee-undersection-54-44.7-03-

Page No. 5 19.0422.02002
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Legislative Assembly
i —F— k—Any material-ireluding-a-guideline -interpretive-statement- statement of general
pelicy-manual, brechure, or pamphlet, which is explanatery and-retintended to
have-theforee-and-effectof-law-

——SEGHON-2-AMENDMENT-Seetion28-32-02-of the-North-Daketa-Gentury Gede-is-

28-32-02-Rulemaking-power-of-agencyauthority—Organizational-rule:

! —4—TFhe-authority-of-an-administrative-ageney-to-adopt-administrative-rules-is-authority-
delegated-by-the-legislative-assembly-As-part of that-delegation;-the-legistative-
assembly reserves to itself the authority to determine when-and-if-rules-ef
administrative-agencies-are-effective-Every-administrative-ageney-may-adopt-amend-
or-repeal-reasonable-rules-in-conformity-with-this-ehapter-and-any-statute-administered-

or-enforced-by-the-ageney:

2. |n addition to other rulemaking-requirerments-impoesed-by-taw-each-ageney may-
inelude-in-its-rules-a-deseription-of that-portion-of-its-erganization-and-functions-subject
to this ehapter and-may-include-a-statement-of the-general-course-and-methed-of-its- .

[ operations-and-how-the-publie may-obtain-information-er-make-submissions-or

requests:
3—The-autherity-of the-ethies-commission-to-adopt-rule s-arises-from-article-XI\V-of the-
Geonstitution-of-Nerth-Daketa-The-ethies-commission-shall-folow the-precess-and-
meet-the-requi ~iA-this to-adopt-amend o -its-rules:
——SEGHON-3-AMENDMENT-Section28-32-03-of the-North-Daketa-Gentury-Code-is-
amended-and-reenacted-asfollows:
—28-32-03-Emergenecy-rules:
—4——|f the ethies-commission-or-an-ageney-with-the-approval-of the-governor-finds-that
the -proposed rule to-be-an-interim-final rule- effective on-a date ne earlier than the date
of filing-with-the-legislative-council-of the-netice-required-by-seetion-28-32-10:

—2—A-proposed-rule-may-be-given-effect-on-an-emergeney-basis-under-this-seetion-if-any-
of the-following-grounds-exists-regarding that-rule:

———a—imminent-peril- threatens-public-health-safety-erwelfare-whieh-would-be-abated-
by-emergeney-effectiveness; .
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——b—A-delay-in-the-effective-date-efthe rule-is likely to-eause-a-less-of funds-
appropriated to-suppoert-a-duty-impesed-by-law-upon-the-ethies-commission of
ageney;
——e——Emergency-effectiveness-is-reasonably-necessary-to-aveoid-a-delay-in-
implementing-an-appropriations-measure;-of
d.—Emergeney effectivenessis-necessaryto-meet a mandate effederal-law.
—3—Adfinal-rule-adepted-after consideration-of-all-written-and-eral-submissionsrespecting-
the interim final rule; which-is substantially similar te the interim final rule - is-effective
as-of the-declared-effective-date-of the-interim-final-rule:
4—The-ethics-commission's-or ageney's-finding,-and-a-brief statement-of the-ethies
commission's-or-agenecy's-reasons-for-the-finding;-must-be-filed-with-the-legistative-
council-with-the-final-adopted-emergeney-rule:
——5—The-ethies-commission-or-ageney-shall-attempt-to-make-interim-final-rules-knewn-te-

persons-wheo-the-ethies-commission-er-ageney-can-reasonably-be-expeeted-to-believe-
may-have-a-substantial-interestin-them-As-used-in-this-subsection;“substantial-
interest—means-an-interest in the effeet of the rules which-surpasses-the commen
interest-of-all-eitizens-—-AnThe-ethies-commission-or-an-agency-adopting-emergeney-
rules-shall-comply-with-the-notice-requirements-of-section-28-32-10-which-relate-to-
emergeney-rules-and-shall-provide-notice-to-the-chairman-of- the-administrative-rules-

committee-of the-emergeney-status;-deelared-effective-date-and-grounds-for
emergenecy-status-of the-rules-undersubseetion-2-¥When-rotice-of emergeney rule-
adeoption is received;-thelegistative-couneil-shall-publish-the-rotice-and-emergeney-
rules-en-its-website:
——6—An-interim-final-rule-is-ineffective-one-hundred-ecighty-days-after-its-declared-effective-
date-unless first-adopted-as-a final rule.
-SEGHON 4. AMENDMENT-Section-28-32-06-of the Nerth-Daketa Gentury Gede'is-
amended-and-reenacted-as-follows:
—28-32-06-Force-and-effect-of rules:
—Upen-becoming-effectiverules-have-the foree-and effeet-of law unti-amended-errepealed-
by-the-agency-or-ethics-commissien-declared-invalid-by-a-final-court-decision,-suspended-or
found to be veid-by-the-administrative rules committee-or determined-repealed-by-the-
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legistative-couneil-because the authority for adoption-of the-rulesis-repealed-ortransferred-to- .
anether-agency-orf the-Gonstitution-of-Nerth-Dakota-is-amended-to-eliminate-the-authority.
——SEGHON-5-AMENDMENT-Section-28-32-07-of the-Nerth-Daketa-Century-Geode-is-
amended-and-reenacted-as-follows:

— 28-32-07. Deadline for rules to implement statutery ehange.
—AnRy-rule-change-including-a-ereation-amendment;-or-repeal-made-to-implement-a-
statutory-change-mustbe-adopted-and-filed-with-the legislative-eouneil-within-rine-menths-ef the-
effective date of the statutery ehange. i an ageney of the ethies eommission needs additienal
time-forthe-rule-change—a-request-for-additional time-must be-made-to-the-legislative-eouneik-
Fhe-legistative-couneil-may-extend-the-time- within-which-the-ageney-or-ethies-commission-must
adopt the rule change if the request by the ageney of ethies eommission is supperted by

evidenee-that-the-ageney-orethics-commission-needs-mere-time-through-no-deliberate fault-of-

Hs-own:

——SEGTION-6-AMENDMENT.-Section-28-32-08-of the-North-Daketa-Century Gode is-

amended-and-reenacted-asfollows:

——28-32-08.-Regulatoery analysis: .

—+—~An-ageney-ofrthe-ethics-commission-shall-issue-a-regulatery-analysis-ofa-propesed-

—a—Within-twenty-days-afterthe-last-published-notice-date-ef-a-propesed-rule-
hearing, a written-request for the analysis is filed by the gevernor or a-member-of
the-legislative-assembly:-er

——The-proposed-rule-is-expected-to-have-an-impact-en-the-regulated-community-in
exeess-of fifty-thousand-dellars-The-analysis-underthis-subdivisien-mustbe-
available on-or before the first date of publie netice as previded-for-in-seetion-
28-32-16:

——2—Fhe-regulatery-analysis-must-contain:

a—~A-deseription-ef the-elasses-of-persens-who-prebably-will-be-affected by-the-

propoesed-rulerinreluding-classes-that-will-bear the-costs-of the-propesed-rule-and
elasses-that will-benefitfrom the propesed rule:

- b—A-deseription-of the-probable-impact-including-economic-impact-of the-propesed-
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e——The-probable-costs to the-ageney-or ethies-commission-of the-implementation-
and enforcement of the-proposed-rule-and-any anticipated effect oen state
revendes:-and

———d—-A-description-of any-alternative-methods for-achieving-the-purpese-ef- the-

propesed-rule-that-were-seriously-considered-by-the-ageney-of ethics-commission-
and-the reasens why the metheds were-rejected-in-faver-of the-propoesed-rule.

——3—FEach-regulatery-analysis-must-include-quantification-of the datate the extent
practicable:

——4—The-agency-or ethics-commission-shall-mail-er- deliver-a-copy-ef the-regulatory-analysis-
to-any-persen-who-requests-a-copy-of the-regulatery analysis-Fhe-ageney-or-ethies-
commission-may-charge-a-fee-for-a-copy-of the-regulatory-analysis-as-allowed-under
seection-44-04-18:

——5—frequired-undersubsection-1-the-preparation-and-issuance-ef-a-regulatory-analysis-is-

a-mandatery-duty-ef the-ageney-or-ethies-commission-propesing-a-rule-Errers-in-a-
regulatery-analysis-including-erroreous-determinations-conrcerning-the-impact-of the
prepesed-rule-on-the-regulated-community-are-not-a-ground-upon-which-the-invalidity-
of-a-rule-may-be-asserted-or-declared:
——SEGTON-7-AMENDMENT.-Subsection-5-of section-28-32-08:1-ef the-North-Daketa-
Gentury-Code-is-amended-and-reenacted-as-follows:——
5—This-section-does-not-apply-to-the-ethics-commission-any-ageney-that-is-an-
eceupational-or-professional-licensing-authority-ner dees-this-section-apply-toer the-
following-agenecies-er-divisions-of-ageneies:
——a——Goeuneilonthe-arts:
b—~Beefcommission:
e—Dairy-promotion-commission:

d—Dry-bean-couneil:

| — e.—Highway-patrelmen's-retirement-beard:

—Ff—Indian-affairs-commission:
——g——Beard-for-Indian-sehelarships:
— h.—State-persennel-beard:
—Peotato-couneik
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{——Boeard-of publie-school-edueation:
k——Real-estate-trust-account-committee:
———Seed-commission:
m-——Soil-conservation-committee:

A——Oilseed-couneik

o—Wheat-commission:

p——State seed-arbitration-beard-
—  g—Neorth-Daketa-lottery.

——SEGHON 8. AMENDMENT. Section-28-32-08.2 of the-Nerth-Daketa-Gentury-Gede-is-
amended and reenacted as follows:

——28-32-08.2-Fiseal notes for administrative rules.

U2p| 149

B3

—When-an-ageney-erthe-ethics-commission-presents-rules for-administrative-rules-committee-
consideration-the-agenecy-orethies commission shall provide a fiscal nete or a-statement in-its

ageney of ethies commission.

changes-on-state-reventes and-expenditures -including-any-effect-en-funds-controlled-by-the- .

——28-32-09-Takings-assessment:

——SEGHON-9-AMENDMENT-Section28-32-09-ef the-North-Dakota-Gentury-Code-is-
amended and reenacted as follows:

—3—~An-ageney or the ethies eommission shall prepare a-written assessment ef the

constitutional takings-implications-of a-propesed-rule-that-may-Himit the-use-of private

real-property-The ageney s-assessmentmust

———  a—~ASSess-the-likelihoed-that-the-propesedrule-may-result-in-a-taking-erregulatory-

taking:

——b—Glearly-and-speecifically-identify-the-purpese-ef the-proposed-rule:

———— e~ Explain-why-the propesed-rule-is-recessary-to-substantially-advance that purpese

anrd-why-no-alternrative-action-is-available that-weuld-achieve-the-agerey's-or
ethies commission's goals while reducing the impaet on private property ewners:

At if a court determines that the

propesed-rule-constitutes-a taking-er regulatery taking:

Page No. 10
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1 —e—Identify-the source-of-payment-within-the ageney's or ethies-commission's budget-
2 for any compensation that may be erdered.
3 f—Gertify that-the benefits-of the propesed-rule-execeed-the-estimated-compensation-
4 easta:
5 | — 2 Any private landewner whe is or may be affected-by-a-rule-that-limits-the-use efthe-
6 | landowner's-private-real-property-may-requestin-writing- that the-ageney-or ethies-
7 commissien reconsider the application or-need-for the rule - Within-thirty-days-of
8 ‘ receiving-the-request-the-ageney-er-cthics-commission-shal-consider the-request-and-
9 shall-in-writing-inform-the landewner whether the-ageney-or-ethies-commission-intends-
10 to keep the rule in place meodify application of the rule, of repeal the rule.
11 -3 in-an ageney's analysis of the takings implications-of a propesed-rule—taking~means-
12 I the-taking-of private-real-property,-as-defined-in-seetion-47-01-03-by-government
13 | action-which-requires-compensation-to-the-owner of that property by the fifth-or
14 feurteenth-amendmentto-the-Constitution-of the-United-States-or-seetion-16-of-article-|-
15 of the-Gonstitution-of Nerth-Daketa—Regulatory talking~means-a-taking-ef real-
16 property-through the-exereise of the-pelice-and-regulatery-pewers-of-the-state-whieh-
17 reduees-the-value-of-the-real-property-by-mere-than-fifty-pereent-However-the-
18 exereise of a poliee of regulatory power does not effect a taking if it substantially
19 advanees-legitimate state-interests-does nroet deny an owner econemically-viable-use-
20 of the ewner's-land -or isin accordance with-applicable-state-erfederal-law:
21 | —SEGHON-10-AMENDMENT-Section-28-32-10-of the-North-Dakeota-Gentury-Code-is-
22 | amended-and-reenacted-as-follows:
23 | - 28-32-10.-Netice-of rulemaking—Hearing-date:
24 | —1—An-ageney-orthe-ethies-commission-shall-prepare-a full notice-and-an-abbreviated-
25 netice-ef rulemaking:
26 a—Fhe-ageney's-full- notice-of the-proposed-adeoption,-amendment-orrepeat-of-a-rule-
27 must-inelude-a-short-speeific-explanation-of the propesed rule and the purpese-of
28 the propesed rule, identify the emergeney status and deeclared-effective date of
29 any-emergeney-rules;-include-a-determination-o fwhether the-propesed-
30 rulemaking-is-expected to have an impaet on the regulated-eemmunity-in-exeess
31 offifty- thousand-dolars-identify at least oene location where interested persens
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may-reviewthe-text of the-propesed-rule-previde-the-address-to-which-written- .
cemments-concerning-the-propesed-rule-may-be-sent-provide-the-deadline-for-

the-billrumberand-generats
the-propesedrule—Fheethies commission's full netice must inelude a-statement-
subject-matter-of-any-legistation-being-implemented-by-the-propesed-rule-Fhe-
ageney'sfullnetice-mustbe filed with-the-legistative-eouncil,-accompanied-by-a-
copy of the-prepesed-rules:

——b—The-ageney-or-ethies-commission-shall-request-publication-of-an-abbreviated
newspaper publication-neotice-at-least-once-in-each-official-county-newspaper

publie-hearing-en-the-rules:
——2—The-agency-or-cthies-commission-shallmail-or- deliver-by-electronic-mail-a-copy-of the

commission-may mail-of otherwise-provide-a copy-of the-ageney's-full-netice-te-any-
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persen-whe-is-likely-to-be-an-interested-person-Fhe-ageney-orethies commission-may
charge-persons whe-are-rot-members-of the legislative-assembly-fees-for-copies-ef-
the-proposed-rule-as-allowed-under-seection-44-04-18-

-3, —inr-addition to the other notice-requirements-of this-subsection;-the-superintendent-of-
publie-instruction-shall-proevide-notice-of-any-propesed-rulemaking by the
superintendent of public-instruction to-each association with-statewide-membership-
whese-primary-foeus-is-clementary-and-secendary-education-issues which-has
requested to reeeive notice from the superintendent under this-subseetion and te the
superintendent-of-cach-public-sehool-distriet-in-this-state;-or the-president-ef the-sehoeeol
board for school districts that have ro-superirtendent-at-least twenty-days-before the-
date-of the-hearing-deseribed-inthe-notice—Notice-provided-by-the-superintendent-of
public instruction under this section must be by first-class-maik-However-upon-request-
of-a-group-or-person-entitled-to-notice-under-this-seetion-the-superintendent-of publie
instruction-shall-provide the-group-or-persen-notice-by-eleetronie-maik

——4—TFhe-legislative-council-shall-establish-standard-procedures-for- the-ethies-commission-
and-all-ageneies-to-follow-in-complying-with-the-provisions-of this-section-and-a
procedure-to-alow-any-person-to-request-and-receive mailed-copies-of all-filings-made-
by-ageneies-and-the-ethics-commission-pursuantio-this-section—The-legislative-couneil-
may-charge-an-annualfee-as-established-by-the-administrative-rules-committee-for-

providing-copies-ef-the filings:

5 At-least-twenty days-must-elapse-bebween-the-date-of the-publication-of the-netice-and
the-date-of the-hearing-Withinfifteen-business-days-afterreceipt-of a-netice-underthis-
seetion-a-copy-of the-notice-must-be-mailed-by-the-legislative-couneil-to-any-persen-
whe-has paid the annual fee established-undersubsection 4.

——SEGTON-41-AMENDMENT-Section28-32-11-ofthe-North-Dakota-Gentury-Gode-is
amended-and-reenacted-as-follows:
——28-32-14--Conduct-of-hearings—Notice-of-administrative rules-committee

consideration - Gonsideration and-written record-of-comments:

| —Fhe-ageney-or-ethics-commission shalladept a-procedure whereby all-interested-persens

are afforded reasonable-opportunity-to-submit-data,-views;-er arguments,-orally orf in writing,
eeneerning the proposed-rule-including data-respecting-the-impact-of the propesed-rule- The-
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ageney-or-ethies-commission-shall-adept-a-procedure-to-alow-interested-parties-to-request and .
receive-notice-from-the-ageney-or-ethies-commission-of the-date-and-place-the-rule-will-be-
reviewed-by-the-administrative-rules-committee -1r-case-of substantive-rales - the-ageneyeF

ethies commission shall conduet an oral-hearing-Fhe-ageney of ethies-commission-shall-

considerfully-all-written-and-oral-submissions-respecting-a-proposed-rule-prier-to-the-adoption;-
amendment-orrepeal-of-any-rule-net-of-an-emergency-nature-Fhe-ageney-or-ethies-
eommission-shall-make-a-written-record-of its-consideration-of-all-written-and-oral-submissions-
contained in the rulemaking-recerd-respeeting-a propesed-rule:
——SEGHON-12-AMENDMENT-Seection-28-32-12-of the North-Daketa-Gentury-Code-is-
amended-and-feenacted-asfollows:

——28-32-42-Comment period:

—TFhe-ageney-orethies-commission-shall-allow-after the-conelusion-of-any-rulemaking-
hearinga-comment period-of at-least ten-days during which-data; views, er arguments
conecerning the propesed-rulemaking-will-be-received by the-ageney-er ethies-commission-and-
made-a-part-of-the-rulemaking-record-to-be-considered-by-the-ageney-or-ethies-commission:
——SEGHON-13-AMENDMENT--Seetion-28-32-14-of the-Neorth-Daketa-Gentury-Cede-is- .
amended-and-reenacted-as-follows:

—28-32-14.- Attorney-general-review-of -rules:
——Every-propesed-rule-proposed-by any-administrative-agerey-must-be-submitted-to-the-
attorney-generalfor-an-epinion-as-te-its-legality before final-adeption-and-the-atterney-general
promptly-shall-furnish-cach-such-opinion-The-attorney-general-may-net-approve-any-rule-asto
legality-and-shall-advise-the-ageney-or ethies-commission-of-any-necessary-rewerding-of-

revision-of the-rute-when-the:

—4—TFhe-rule-exceeds-the-statutory-autherity-of the-ageney-or the-statutery-or constitutional
authority-of the-ethies-commission:

——2—TFhe-rule-is-written-in-a-mannerthat-is-not concise or easily understandable: oF when-
the

3 The procedural requirements for adoption of the rule in this ehapter are-pot-

substantially -met-The-attorney-general shall advise an ageney of any revision-ef
rewording-of arule-necessary to-correct-ebjeetions-as-to-legality:
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1 SEGHON 14 -AMENDMENT-Section-28-32-15-of the-Nerth-Daketa-Gentury-Code-is

2 amended-and-reenacted-as-follows:

3 ——28-32-15-Filing-of rules-for-publication—Effective-date-of rules:

4 1. Acopyefeach rule adopted by an administrative ageney or the ethies eommission, a

5 copy-of each-written-comment-and-a-written-summary-of each-oral-comment on-the-

6 rale-and-the-atterney-general's-epinion-en-therule-must-be-filed-by-the-adepting

7 ageney-of-ethies eommission-with the legislative-couneil for publication-of the-rule-in-

8 the-Nerth-Daketa-Administrative-Cede:

9 ——2-—a-—Nonemergeney rules approved by the attorney general-as-te legality-adepted-by-
10 an-administrative-agenecy of-the-ethies-commission;-and filed-with-the-legistative
11 eouneit; and not veided-or held for consideration by the administrative rules
12 committee-become-cffective-aceording-to-the-following-sehedule:

13 | ————————1)—Rulesfiledwith-the-legistative-eouneil from August seecond-through

14 Nevember-first-become-effective-on-the-immediately-sueeeeding-January-
15 first:

16 &) Rulesfiled-with the legislative eouneil from-November second-through-

17 February-first become-effective-on-the-immediately-suceeedingApril-first
18 ——————3)—Rulesfiled-with-the-legistative-couneil-from-February-second through-May
19 first-become-effective-on-the-immediately-suceeceding-July-first:

I
20 | —————4)—Rdlesfiledwith-thedegislative-couneil-from-May-second-through August-first

21 become -effective-on-the-immediately succeeding Oetober first

22 | ————b—If-publicationis-delayedforany-reason-otherthan-action-efthe-administrative-
23 rales-eommittee-nonremergeney rules; unless-etherwise previded, beeceme
24 effective when-publication-would-have-ececurred-but-for-the-delay:

25 | — — —e—A-+rdle-held for consideration by the administrative-rules-committee-becomes
26 effective-on-the first-effective-date-of-rules-under the-sehedule-in-subdivision-a
27 following the -meeting-at which-that-rule-is-reconsidered-by-the-committee:

28 SEGHON-15- AMENDMENT-Section-28-32-16 of the Nerth Daleta Gentury Gede is

29 | amended-and-reenacted-as-follows:
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——28-32-16-Petition-for- reconsideration-of rule - Hearing-by ageney: .
—ARy-person-substantially-interested-in-the-effect-of a-rule-adopted-by-an-administrative-
ageney-or-the-ethies-commission-may-petition-suchthe-ageney-ofr ethies-commission-fora-
reconsideration-of any-suchthe rule-er for-an-amendment-or-repeal-thereof-Suchef the-rule-The-

petition-must-state-clearly-and-coneisely-the-petitioners-alleged-grounds-for sueh-
reconsideration-or-for the-propesed-repeal-er-amendment-of suchthe-rule-The-ageney-of-ethies-
commission may grant the petitioner a publie hearing tupeon suehen the terms and conditions as
the-ageney-may-preseribeor-ethies-commission-preseribes:
——SEGTHION-16-AMENDBMENT-Section28-32-17-of the-Nerth-Daketa-Gentury-Godeis
amended-and-reenacted-as-folows:

28-32-47-Administrative-rules-committee-objection:
—H the-legistative-management's-administrative-rules-committee objects-to-all-or any portion-
of-a-rule-because-the-committee-deems-it to-be-unreasenablearbitrary-capricious;-erbeyond

the-authority-delegated-to-the-adopting-ageney-or-ethies-commission-the-committee-may-file-
that-objection-in-certified-form-with-the-legislative-couneil-The-filed-objection-must-containa- .
coneise-statement-of the-committee's-reasonsforits-action:

1. The legislative council-shall-attach-to-cach-objection-a-certification of the-time-and-date
of-its-filing-and-as-soon-as-possible-shal-transmit-a-copy-of the-ebjection-and-the-
certification-to-the-agency-of-ethics-commission adepting the-rule-in-question-The
legistative-council-also-shall- maintain-a-permanentregisterof-all-committec-objections:

——2—TFhe-legislative-council-shall-publish-an-objection-filed-pursuant-to-this-section-in-the-
next-issue-of the code-supplement-tnr-case-of a-filed committee ebjection to-arule-
subjeet-to-the-execeptions-of the-definition-of rule-in-section-28-32-04-the-agerey-of
ethies-commission-shall-indicate-the-existence-ef thatobjection-adjacentto-the-rule-in
any-compilation-containing that rule:

——3—Within-fourteen-days-afterthe filing-of-a-committce-objeetion-to-a-rule; the-adepting
ageney-of-ethics-commission-shall-respond-in-writing-to-the-committee-After receipt-of
the-respenser-the-commitice-may-withdraw-or modify-its-ebjection:

——4—Afterthe-filing-of-a-commitice-objection-the-burden-ef persuasion-is-upen-the-ageney

establish-that-the-whele-or-pertion-thereofof the-rule-ebjeeted-te-is-within-the: .
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procedural-and-substantive-authority delegated-te-the-ageney-or ethies-commissionH-
the ageney or ethics commission fails to meet its burden-of persuasion, the-court shall
declare-the-whele-or pertion-ef-the-rule-objected-to-invalid-and judgment-must-be
rendered-against-the-ageney-er-ethics-commission-for court-costs—Fhese-court-costs
mustinclude a reasonable atterrey's fee and must be payable from the appropriation-
of the-ageney-or-cthics-commission-which-adepted-the-rule-in-question:

——SEGCTHON-17-AMENDMENT.-Section 28-32-18 of the MNerth-Daketa Gentury Gede is

amended-and-reenacted-as-follows:

-28-32-18-Administrative riles-eommittee-may-void-rule—Grounds-—Amendment-by

agreement-of ageney-and-committee.
—34—TFhelegislative-management's-administrative-rules-committee-may-find that- all-erany-

portion-of-a rdle-is-veoid-if that-rule-is-initially considered-by the -committee-notlater than-
the fifteenth-day-of the-month-before-the-date-of the-administrative-code-supplement-in-
which-the-rule-change-is-scheduled-to-appear-The-administrative-rules-committee-may
find-a-rule-or-portion-of a-rule-void-if the-committee-makes-the-specificfinding-that-with-

regard-to-that-rule-er-portion-ef-a-rule-there-is:
——a—An-absenee-of statutory autherity under statute-or the constitution.
— b—An-emergency-relating-to-public-healthsafety-or-welfare:

-e—AFor rules-propesed-by-an-ageney.-a-failure-to-comply with-express-legistative-
intent-or-to-substantially-meet-the-procedural-requirements-ef- this-chapterfor
adeption-ef-the-rule:

—d—Forrules-propesed-by-the-ethics-commissiona-failure-to-substantialy-meet-the
procedural-requirements-for-this-chapter for adoption-of the-rule:

-a—Arconflict-with-state-taw:

— e Arbitrariness and capriciousness.

{.g-—Afaillure-to-make-a-written-record-of-its-consideration-of written-and-oral-
submissions-respecting-the-rule-under-seetion-28-32-14-

——2—Fhe-administrative-rules-committee-may-find-a-rule veoid-at- the-meeting-atwhich-the-
rule-is-initially-considered-by-the-commitice-or-may-hold-consideration-of thatrule-for
one subsequent meeting. H no representative of the ageney or ethies commission
appears-before the administrative-rules-committee-when-rules-are-seheduled for
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committee-consideration-these-rules-are-held-overfor consideration-atthe-next
subsequent-committee-meeting—Rules-are-rot-considered-initially-considered-by-the-
committee-under-this-subseection until a representative of the ageney or ethies:
commission-appears-before-the-administrative-rules-committee-when-the-rules-are
seheduled-for committee-consideration—H ro-representative-of the-ageney-or-ethies-
commission -appears before the administrative rules eommittee meeting to whieh rales
are-held-over for consideration, the rules are veid if the rules were adepted as-
emergeney rules and fer rules-not-adepted-as-emergency-rules-the-administrative-
rules-committee-may-veoid-the rules;-allow the-rules-to-become-effective,-er-hold-ever
consideration of the rules to-the rext subsequent committee meeting-Within-three-
business days-after the-administrative rules-committeefinds-that-a-rule-is-veid;-the-
legistative-couneil-shall-provide-written-notice-of that finding-and-the-committee's-
speeifie-finding-under-subdivisionsa-through f of subsection-1-to the adepting ageney-
or ethies commission-and-to-the-chairman-of the-legistative-management-Within-
feurteen-days-afterreceipt-of the-noticethe-adopting-ageney-or ethics-commission-
may file-a petition with the ehairman of the legislative management for review by the
legistative-management-of the-decision-of the-administrative-rules-committee-Hthe-
adopting-agenecy-of-ethies-commission-dees-notfile-a-petition-forreview the-rule-
beecomes void-enthe fifteenth day after the netice from the legislative couneil to the

adopting-ageney-er-ethics-commission-HFwithin-sbdy-days-after receipt-ef the-petition
from-the-adepting-ageney-or-ethics-commission-the-legislative-management-has-not-
disapproved-by-motion-the-finding-of the-administrative-rules-committeethe-rule-is-
veid:
—3—An-ageney-ofthe-ethics-commission-may-amend-or-repeal-a-rule-or ereate-a-related
rule-if-after consideration of rules by the-administrative-rules-committee-the-ageney-of
cthies-eommission-and-the-committee-agree-that-the-rule-amendment; repeal-er

ereation-is-necessary-to-address-any-of the-considerations-under subseetion-4-A-rule-
amended;-repealed-or-ereated-underthis-subsectionis-ret subject to-the-other
requirements of this ehapter relating to adoption of administrative rules and-may-be-
published-by-the-legislative-council-as-amended -repealed;-or- ereated-H requested-by
the-ageney-ethies-commission—or-any-interested-party-a-rule-amended-repealed-or
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ereated-under this-subsection-must-be-reconsidered-by-the-administrative-rules-
committee at a subsequent meeting at which public comment on the-agreed-rule
change-must-be-allowed-

——SEGTION-18. AMENDMENT-Seetion 28-32-18:1-of the North-Daketa - Gentury-Cede is:

amended-and-reenacted-as-follows:

28-32-18:4-Administrative-rules-ecommittee-review-of existing-administrative-rules:
- 1. -Upen request by the administrative rules commitiee, an administrative agency efthe

0 N O oA W N -
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ethies-commission-shall-brief the-committee-on-its-existing-administrative-rules-and-
peintout-any-provisions-that-appearto-be-obseolete-and-any-arcas-in-which-statutory-or
constitutional-authority-has-ehanged-erbeen-repealed since-the-rules-were-adopted-er
amended-
An-agenecy-of-the-ethies-commission-may-amend-or-repeat-a-rule-witheut-complying-
with-the-ether requirements-of this-chapter relating to-adoption-of administrative-rules:
and-may-resubmit-the-change-to-thelegislative-couneil-for-publication-provided:

————a——The-ageney o cthics commission-initiates the request to-the-administrative-rules

committee-for-consideration-of the-amendment-errepeak:

———b. The ageney or cthies commission provides netice-to-the regulated-community-in-

a-manner-reasonably-caleulated-to-provide-notice-to-those-persons-interested-in-
the-rdle-of the-time-and-place-the-administrative-rules-committee will-consider the
request-for amendment er repeal-of the-rule:-and
e—The-agency-or-ethics-commission-and-the-administrative-rules-committece-agree-
the-rule-amendment-or-repeal-climinates-a-provision-that-is-ebselete-er-re-longer-
in-complianee-with-law and that-ne-detriment-weuld-result-to-the-substantive-

rights-of the-regulated-community-from-the-amendment-er-repeal:

— SEGCHON-19. AMENDMENT. Subsection-2-of section-28-32-19-of the Nerth Daketa
Gentury-Gode-is-amended-and-reenacted-as-follows:
2—Fhe-legislative -council may preseribe-athe-format-style-and-arrangement for rules

which-are-to-be-published-in-the-code-and-may-refuse-to-aceept-the-filing-ef-any-rule-
that-is-net in substantial- complianee-therewithwith-the format style and arrangement:-

in-arranging-rules-for publication-thelegislative-couneil-may-make-such-corrections-in
spelling-grammatical construction- format-and-punctuation-of the rules as
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1 determinedthe legislative-council-determines-are-proper-The-legistative-council-shalt .
2 keep-and maintain a permanent code of all rales filed; ineluding superseded and
3 repealed-rales—which-must-be-opento-public-inspection-during-effice-hours:
4 | —SEGTION-20-AMENDMENT.-Subsection-4-of section-28-32-19-of the-Nerth-Daketa-
5 GCentury Gode is amended and-reenacted-as follows:
6 ——4—The legislative-couneil with-the consent of the adepting ageney or ethics commission,
7 may-omit-from-the-code-or-code supplement-any rale the publication-ef which-weuld-be-
8 unduly-eumbersome,-expensive -or-otherwise-inexpedient-if the-rule-in-printed-of
9 duplicated-form-is-made-available-on-applicationte-the-ageney-or-ethics-commission;
10 and i the code or code supplement eontains a notice stating the general subjeet
11 matter of the omitied rule and stating how a copy may be obtained.
12 SECTION 1. Chapter 54-66 of the North Dakota Century Code is created and enacted as
13 | follows:
14 54-66-01. Definitions,
15 1. For purposes of this chapter, unless the context otherwise requires:
16 4+ a. "Accused individual" means an individual who is alleged to have violated article .
17 X1V of the Constitution of North Dakota, this chapter, or another law or rule.
18 regarding government ethics.
19 Z b. "Complainant" means an individual who, in writing or verbally, submits a
20 complaint to the ethics commission.
21 3= c. "Complaint" means a verbal or written allegation to the ethics commission that
22 article X1V of the Constitution of North Dakota, this chapter, or another law or rule.
23 regarding government ethics has been violated.
24 4. d. "Ethics commission" means the North Dakota state ethics commission
25 established under article X|V of the Constitution of North Dakota.
26
27 | 5rGift"means-any-item-serviee-or thing-ef value-net given-in-exchange for fair- market
28 consideration-including-travel-and-reereation:
29 | ——6—"Lobbyist"
30 | ————a—Means-a-personwho-direectly-orindirectly:
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—— ) —Attempis to-seeure the passage-amendment.-or defeat-of any-legislation-by-
the legislative-assembly:
—Attempts-to-seeure-the- val-or-veto-ef-an istation- ©-governor:
2r—Attemptsto-influence-deeisions-regarding-legistative-matters-made-by-the-
legistative management or a-legislative-committee: of
—{4)—Attemptstoinfluence decisions-regarding-official matters-made-by-a-publie-
official-in-the-exeeutive-branch-of state-goverament
— b—Dees-not-mean:

h—A-private-eitizen-appearing-en-the-citizen's-own-behatf-or
{2}—A-public-official-or an-employee-officer-board-member-volunteer-oragent
of the-state-er-its-pelitical-subdivisions-acting-in-the-individual's-official-
capaeity.
—F—Public-official~means-an-elected-o rappeinted-official-of the-state's-executive-or
legislative-branch-members-of the-ethies-commission-members-of the-geverner's
cabinet-and-employees-of the-legislative-braneh:

8 e. "Receives the complaint" means one or more members of the ethics commission

learn of the complaint.

2. For purposes of article XIV of the Constitution of North Dakota, "lobbyist":

a. Means a person who, directly or indirectly:

(1) Attempts to secure the passage. amendment, or defeat of any legislation by

the legislative assembly;

(2) Attempts to secure the approval or veto of any legislation by the governor;

(3) Attempts to influence decisions regarding legislative matters made by the

leqgislative management or a legislative committee; or
(4) Attempts to influence decisions regarding official matters made by a public_

official in the executive branch of state government.

b. Does not mean:

1 A private citizen appearing on the citizen's own behalf; or

(2) A public official or an employee, officer, board member, volunteer, or agent.

of the state or its political subdivisions acting in the individual's official.

capacity,
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54-66-02. Ethics commission Members - Appointments - Compensation. .
1. The majority leader of the senate, the minority leader of the senate, and the governor
shall appoint the five members of the ethics commission by consensus agreement for
four-year terms, except all vacancies must be filled for the unexpired term. The terms_
of the initial members must begin on or before July 1, 2019, and be staggered to.

ensure no more than two members' terms expire in one year. The terms of the initial

members may be less than four years to accommodate the required staggering of
terms,
2. Ethics commission members are entitled to:
a. Compensation per day for each day necessarily spent conducting ethics
commission business in the amount provided for members of the legislative_

management under section 54-35-10; and

b. Payment for mileage and travel expenses necessarily incurred in the conduct of
ethics commission business as provided under sections 44-08-04 and 54-06-09.
54-66-03. Ethics commission staff.
The ethics commission shall appoint an executive director and other staff necessary to.
assist the ethics commission in carrying out its duties.
54-66-04. Ethics commission office.
The director of the office of management and budget shall allocate office space in the state
capitol for the ethics commission, or, if office space in the capitol is unavailable, shall negotiate.
for, contract for, and obtain office space for the ethics commission in the city of Bismarck or in_

the Bismarck area. The ethics commission's office space may not be located in the office space

of any other government agency. board, commission, or other governmental entity, and must_

provide sufficient privacy and security for the ethics commission to conduct its business. The
director shall charge the ethics commission an amount equal to the fair value of the office space

and related services the office of management and budget renders to the ethics commission.

54-66-05. Making a complaint - Informing the accused individual.

A complaint may be made to the ethics commission verbally or in writing. The ethics.

commission shall inform the accused individual the ethics commission received a complaint

against the accused individual as soon as reasonably possible. |f the complaint was made in

writing, the ethics commission shall provide a copy of the complaint to the accused individual .
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1 later than nty calendar days after the ethics commission receives th mplaint, If the_

2 mplai as made verba ethics commission shall inform accused individual of the.
3 egations a informati vided in the complaint no later than

4  after the ethics commission receives the complaint.

5 54-66-06. Informal resolution.

6 The ethics commission may attem negotiate or mediate an informal resolution between
7 the accused individual and the complainant after receiving a complain

8 54-66-07, Investigations and referrals,

9 1. The ethics issi ay investigate a aint if the accused individual and the

10 mplainant have n r n an informal resolution. An investigation must include_
11 ate interviews wi accused individual and the complainant, unless the

12 sed individual or complainant refuses interviewed, a sideration of the
13 circumstances surrounding the allegations.

14 2. The ethics commission may refer a matter described in or arising from a complain

15 h reau of criminal investigation or other appropriate law enforcement agency if a

16 majority of the ethics ission members reasonably believ rime was

17 commi r the safi f the complainant is at ris

18 4-66-08. Investigation findings - Penalties.

19 1. Atth

20 findings to the accused individual a mplainant.

21 2. The findings must state whether the ethics commission believes, based on a

22 reponderance of the evidence as viewe areasona a violati

23 article XIV of th nstitution of North Dakota, this chapter, or another law or rule

24 regardin vernmen ics rred. Th individual an mplainant may.

25 respond in writin he findings within twen lendar days of receiving the findings..
26 The ethi mmission shall maintain copie ings ri sponse.
27 to the findings.

28 3. Ifthe ethi mmission finds a violati red, th i mmission may impose._
29 a penalty specified by law for the violation.
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1 54-66-09. Appeals. .
2 An accused individual or complainant may appeal a finding of the ethics commission to the
3  district court of Burleigh County,
4 54-66-10. Confidential information - Penalty.
5 1. The following information is a confidential record as defined in section 44-04-17.1 until
6 the ethics commission issues its findings regarding the relevant complaint. except the
7 information may be disclosed as required by law or as necessary to conduct an_
8 investigation arising from the complaint:
9 a. _Information revealing the contents of a complaint;
10 b. Information that reasonably may be used to identify an accused individual or
11 complainant; and
12 c. Information relating to or created as part of an investigation of a complaint.
13 2. Anpubilic official who violates this section is guilty of a class C felony.
14 54-66-11. Restriction on lobbying by public officials - Penalty.
15 violation of subsection 2 of section 2 of article XIV of the Constitution of North Dakota is a
16  class A misdemeanor. The ethics commission shall impose a fine of up to ten thousand dollars. .
17  upon any person that violates the subsection,
18 54-66-12. Lobbyist delivery of campaign contributions prohibited - Penalty.
19 A violation of subsection 3 of section 2 of article XIV of the Constitution of North Dakota is a.

20 class A misdemeanor. The ethics commission shall impose a fine of up to ten thousand dollars

21  upon any person that violates the subsection. The ethics commission may impose a fine of up_
22 to fifty thousand dollars for each violation of the subsection upon any person that violates the

23  subsection more than once within a twelve-month period.

24 54-66-13. Attorney general to provide legal services.

25 The attorney general shall serve as legal counsel for the ethics commission. When a

26 conflict of interest prevents the attorney general from providing legal services to the ethics

27 commission, the attorney general may appoint a special assistant attorney general to serve as

28 | legal counsel for the commission.

29 | 54-66-14. Personal use of contributions prohibited - Penalty.
30 | The ethics commission shall impose a fine of up to ten thousand dollars upon any person
31 | that violates section 16.1-08.1-04.1. The ethics commission may impose a fine of up to fifty .
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thousand dollars per violation upon any person who violates section 16.1-08.1-04.1 more than

once in a twelve-month period. Fines imposed under this section are in addition to any fines

imposed under section 16.1-08.1-07 for a violation of section 16.1-08.1-04.1.

SECTION 2. LEGISLATIVE MANAGEMENT STUDY. During the 2019-2020 interim, the

legislative management shall consider studying subsection 2 of section 1 of article XIV, and
subsections 1 and 5 of section 2 of article XIV of the Constitution of North Dakota, and the
responsibilities of the legislative assembly under those provisions. The legislative management
shall report its findings and recommendations, together with any legislation necessary to
implement the recommendations, to the sixty-seventh legislative assembly.

SECTION 3. APPROPRIATION. The funds provided in this section, or so much of the funds
as may be necessary, are appropriated out of any moneys in the general fund in the state
treasury, not otherwise appropriated, to the North Dakota ethics commission for the purpose of
defraying the expenses of the commission, for the bieanitmperiod beginning July-4--2049;with

the effective date of this Act and ending June 30, 2021, as follows:

Appropriation
Salaries and expenses $754,736
Operating expenses 207,200
Total general fund $961,936
Full-time equivalent positions 3.00

SECTION 4. EMERGENCY. Section 3 of this Act and North Dakota:Century Code sections
54-66-11, 54-66-12, and 54-66-14, as created by section 1 of this Act; are declared to be

emergency measures.
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SB 2148 Senate Committee on Ethics January 30, 2019
Chairman Hogue and Committee Members,

My name is Gregory Stites. | am a North Dakota attorney and live in District 47. |
am here on behalf of North Dakotans for Public Integrity (NDPI) in support of SB
2148.

| have practiced law for over 40 years. | have worked in regional and national law
firms, as general counsel of the ND Insurance Department and as an assistant
attorney general. | have also worked as senior counsel for the National
Association of Insurance Commissioners (NAIC) representing all 50 state
commissioners. For the last almost 20 years of my career, | worked as senior
counsel and chief compliance officer for a large US-based international software
company.

During my years with the NAIC, | filed numerous “friend of the court” briefs in
state courts, US courts of appeals and the United States Supreme Court. These
briefs often argued issues of constitutional law. | was once honored to have the
United States Supreme Court refer to my brief as the basis of its holding in a case.

| was not part of those individuals who sought to enact Article XIV. Rather, | was
recently retained by NDPI to analyze Article XIV and determine what specific laws
are necessary to implement it.

Article XIV was designed to be implemented over a 3 year period. Certain
provisions became effective 60 days after its passage. Certain provisions become
effective in 2 years. And certain provisions no later than in 3 years. This was done
in order to give the Legislative Assembly 2 sessions to complete its work in a
deliberate and measured way.

To aid in your deliberations, | have prepared a document titled “SB 2148 and the
66" Legislative Assembly - Required Implementation of Article XIV to the North
Dakota Constitution.” This document sets out the actual language of Article XIV -
section by section - followed by my analysis of the required actions - if any — to be
taken by the Legislative Assembly and in what time frames.
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On page 1 of this handout is a summary of those required actions to be taken by
the 66" Legislative Assembly. On page 1, | have noted how SB 2148 addresses
those subsections requiring action. Of the 14 subsections in Article X1V, only 4
subsections require any action by the 66" Legislative Assembly. Of the XIV
subsections, 7 do not ever require Legislative Assembly involvement. 3 of the
subsections require an interim study so as to be implemented in a more
measured and deliberate way. The actual details regarding implementation of
each subsection of Article XIV follow on pages 2 through 6.

Since the introduction of SB 2148, a number of improvements have been
developed and are now being offered by Senator Mathern in an Amendment
(19.0422.02002). That amendment would:

Strike Sections 1-20. Upon further legal review and analysis, it appears that
Sections 1-20 would have required the new Ethics Commission to be subject to
the Administrative Agencies Practice Act (AAPA) for rulemaking purposes. This
would be inappropriate because the Ethics Commission is a constitutionally
created entity. This is not to say that the Ethics Commission cannot or will not
voluntarily choose to follow the AAPA. It is important to note that numerous
other commissions, boards and departments are exempt from following the
AAPA. See § 28-32-01(2) for the list.

It was discovered that SB 2148 included definitions for “public official” and “gift”
when both terms are already clearly defined in Article XIV. Those definitions in SB
2148 have been struck by amendment as unnecessary, and because neither
captured the exact language contained in Article XIV.

SB 2148 does provide a definition for the term “lobbyist”. However, the definition
appeared to apply only to the new Chapter 54-66 related to the affairs of the new
Ethics Commission. A technical amendment clarifies that the purpose of the
definition for “lobbyist” is to apply whenever that term is used in Article XIV.

It was discovered that the required civil sanction for a violation of “knowingly
using a campaign contribution for personal use” was inadvertently not included in
SB 2148 (addressing Subsection 4 of Section 2 of Article XIV). The amendment
provides an appropriate civil penalty. The criminal penalty for such an offense
already exists as a class A misdemeanor.
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Finally, because certain provisions of Article XIV became effective as of January 5,
2019, an emergency provision has been added to the amendment to fund the
Ethics Commission and to immediately enact the new civil or criminal penalty
sections being created as §§ 54-66-11, 54-66-12, and 54-66-14.

| support the Amendment (19.0422.02002) and ask that the Committee support
it. With these improvements being made to SB 2148, | speak in favor of SB 2148

and urge the Committee to vote it out favorably as well.

Thank you for your time.
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T SB 2148 and 66th Legislative Assembly Required Implementation of Article XIV to the North Dakota Constitution

This document highlights the steps or actions necessary to implement Article XIV by the 66th Legislative Assembly Legislative Assembly and addresses those actions to be
g taken up by the 67" Legislative Assembly. Article XIV was designed to be implemented over a staggered three year period. Section 4 of Article XIV requires that laws enacted
to implement the article are required to “facilitate, safeguard, or expand, but not to hamper, restrict, or impair, this article.”

‘J" Summary of Required Actions in Article XIV for the 66th Legislative Assembly. See bolded Subsections below:

Section 1 —Transparency
Subsection 1- No action ever required.
Subsection 2- With 3 years to implement, no 66th Legislative Assembly actions are necessary. However, it is recommended the 66" Legislative Assembly
authorize a 2 year interim study seeking input from all interested parties that would provide necessary input for the 67" Legislative Assembly to enact
new laws that properly vest one or more entities with the authority to implement, interpret and enforce the requirements of Subsection 2.
SB 2148 sets up an interim study in Section 22.

Section 2 —Lobbyists and Conflicts of Interest

Subsection 1- With 2 years before the effective date, no 66th Legislative Assembly actions are necessary. Over the next 2 years, the Ethics Commission is to adopt
ethical rules to provide certain exceptions for items of value that do not rise ethical concerns. The 67" Legislative Assembly can then provide for the
appropriate civil and criminal sanctions for violations and may consider doing so on an emergency basis.
SB 2148 sets up an interim study in Section 22.

Subsection 2- The 66th Legislative Assembly is to provide for appropriate civil and criminal sanctions for violations.
SB 2148 enacts sanctions in Section 21. The Committee may want to consider whether to do so on an emergency basis.

Subsection 3- The 66th Legislative Assembly is to provide for appropriate civil and criminal sanctions for violations.
SB 2148 enacts sanctions in Section 21. The Committee may want to consider whether to do so on an emergency basis.

Subsection 4- Having already set a criminal penalty, the 66th Legislative Assembly is to provide an appropriate civil sanction for violations.
SB 2148 does not currently address establishing a civil sanction. It is recommended the Committee amend SB 2148 to do so.

Subsection 5- With 3 years before the effective date, no 66" Legislative Assembly actions are necessary. Over the next 2 years, the Ethics Commission is to adopt
definitional rules on bias. The 67" Legislative Assembly can then provide for the appropriate “enforcement penalties”.
SB 2148 sets up an interim study in Section 22.

Subsection 6- No action ever required.
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Section 3 —North Dakota Ethics Commission
Subsection 1- No action ever required.
Subsection 2- The 66" Legislative Assembly is required to provide for timely and adequate funding of the new Ethics Commission.
SB 2148 does this in Section 23. The Committee may want to consider whether to do so on an emergency basis.
Subsection 3- No action ever required.

Section 4 —General Provisions
Subsection 1- No action ever required.
Subsection 2- No action ever required.
Subsection 3- No action ever required.
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The table below analyzes the steps necessary for the 66th Legislative Assembly to implement Article XIV section by section.

Dead-lines

Article X1V language set forth below:

Relevant Comments and Legislative Assembly Actions Required to
Implement Article XIV
(Note: underlining below is for emphasis only.)

Section 1. Transparency

Subsection = Effective Date “The people of North Dakota need information to choose candidates | Constitutional statement of citizen’s right to transparency and
1 1/5/2022 for office, vote on ballot measures, and ensure that their accountability. This subsection expands the people’s right to timely
representatives are accountable. This transparency must be sufficient | know the source and nature of resources used to “influence” state
to enable the people to make informed decisions and give proper elections or state government actions, including action by the
weight to different speakers and messages. The people therefore executive and legislative branches of government.
have the right to know in a timely manner the source, quantity,
timing, and nature of resources used to influence any statewide No Legislative Assembly action ever required.
election, election for the legislative assembly, statewide ballot-issue
election, and state government action. This right is essential to the
rights of free speech, assembly, and petition guaranteed by the First
Amendment to the United States Constitution and shall be construed
broadly.”
1
Subsection | Effective Date “The Legislative Assembly shall implement and enforce this Section | Within 3 years, requires prompt public disclosure of “ultimate and
2 1/5/2022 by enacting, no more than three years after the effective date of true source of funds” spent in an amount greater than two hundred

Article X1V, laws that require prompt, electronically accessible, plainly
comprehensible, public disclosure of the ultimate and true source of
funds spent in any medium, in an amount greater than two hundred
dollars, adjusted for inflation, to influence any statewide election,
election for the legislative assembly, statewide ballot-issue election,
orto lobby or otherwise influence state government action.”

“The legislative Assembly shall have an ongoing duty to revise these
laws as necessary to promote the purposes of this Section in light of
changes in technology and political practices.”

“The Legislative Assembly “shall vest by law one or more entities
with authority to implement, interpret and enforce this subsection
and legislation enacted thereunder.”

“If the laws or rules enacted or an implementation, interpretation, or
enforcement action taken under this subsection fail to fully vindicate

dollars, to influence state elections or state government actions.
Given the critical importance of this transparency requirement, this
Subsection provides up to three years for the Legislative Assembly,
the Ethics Commission, and policy makers to seek broad input and
to carefully develop laws that properly interpret and fully
implement the requirement.

Provides resident taxpayers with standing to sue the Legislative
Assembly, Ethics Commission or other entity should the rights
provided for in this Subsection not be fully vindicated.

With 3 years to implement, no 66th Legislative Assembly actions
are necessary. However, it is recommended the 66th Legislative
Assembly authorize a 2 year interim study seeking input from all
interested parties that would provide necessary input for the 67th
Legislative Assembly to enact new laws that properly vest one or
more entities with the authority to implement, interpret and

2
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the rights provided in this subsection, a resident taxpayer may bring
suit in the courts of this state to enforce such rights.”

J

enforce the requirements of Subsection 2 before its effective date
set for no later than 1/5/2022.

8:] Section 2. Lobbyists and Conflicts of Interest.
- _

Subsection
=2l
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Effective Date
1/5/2021

“A lobbyist may not knowingly give, offer, solicit, initiate, or facilitate

a gift to a public official. A public official may not knowingly accept a
gift from a lobbyist. These prohibitions do not apply if the lobbyist is
an immediate family member of the public official.”

"Gift," as used in this Subsection, means any item, service, or thing of
value not given in exchange for fair market consideration, including
gifts of travel or recreation.”

“However, “gift” does not mean any purely informational material or
campaign contribution, or, in order to advance opportunities for
North Dakota residents to meet with public officials in educational
and social settings inside the state, any item, service, or thing of
value given under conditions that do not raise ethical concerns, as
determined by rules adopted by the ethics commission. Such rules
must be adopted within two years after the effective date of this
Article. So as to allow for the adoption of these rules, these
prohibitions shall take effect two years after the effective date of this
Article. Appropriate civil and criminal sanctions for violations of this
Subsection shall be set by the Legislative Assembly.”

Effective after 1/5/2021, lobbyists may not give “gifts” — a defined
term - to public officials. Public officials may not accept gifts from a
lobbyist. Prohibited “gifts” are unambiguously defined. Exceptions
to what are not gifts are plainly provided. The Ethics Commission is
required to adopt ethical rules to provide certain exceptions for
items of value that do not rise ethical concerns.

Public officials are defined in Section 4, Subsection 2 of Article XIV
and include “any elected or appointed office or official of the state’s
executive or legislative branch, including members of the ethics
commission, or members of the governor’s cabinet, or employees
of the legislative branch, and “agency” means each board, bureau,
commission, department, or other administrative unit of the
executive branch of state government, including one or more
officers, employees, or other persons directly or indirectly
purporting to act on behalf or under authority of the agency.” It is
to this expansive list of people that gifts will now be prohibited
from being given.

"Lobbying" means influencing or attempting to influence public
officials on a particular issue. States generally define lobbying as an
attempt to influence government action. A "lobbyist" means any
person who engages in lobbying. Under this Subsection 1, such
persons are prohibited from giving gifts to public officials.

The term “lobbyist’ is this Subsection 1 is broader than to those
lobbyists required to be registered under NDCC Chapter 54-05.1. In
fact, Chapter 54-05.1 seeks only to regulate a small number of
lobbyists who 1) seek to secure or defeat legislation or the approval
or veto of legislation by the governor, or 2) attempts to influence
decisions made by legislative management or by an interim
committee. The Chapter also provides a long list of exceptions of
persons who are lobbyists but are not required to register with the
State.

This Subsection 1 does not take effect until January 5, 2021.
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With 2 years before the effective date, no 66th Legislative
Assembly actions are necessary. Over the next 2 years, the Ethics
Commission is to adopt ethical rules to provide certain exceptions
for items of value that do not rise ethical concerns. The 67th
Legislative Assembly can then provide for the appropriate civil and
criminal sanctions for violations and may consider doing so on an
emergency basis.
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Subsection | Effective Date “An elected public official may not be a lobbyist while holding office The definitions for “public official” and “lobbyist” are described in
2 1/5/19 or for two years after holding office.” Subsection 1 above. This Subsection 2 applies only to “elected”
public officials.
“Appropriate civil and criminal sanctions for violations of this
Subsection shall be set by the Legislative Assembly.” The 66th Legislative Assembly is required to provide for
appropriate civil and criminal sanctions for violations of this
Subsection and may consider doing so on an emergency basis as
the effective date of this Subsection was January 5, 2019.
Subsection | Effective Date “A lobbyist may not knowingly deliver a campaign contribution made | Except as permitted in this Subsection 3, a lobbyist may not deliver
3 1/5/19 by another individual or entity. “Deliver,” as used in this Subsection, campaign contribution funds from others.
means to transport, transfer, or otherwise transmit, either physically
or electronically.” The 66th Legislative Assembly is required to provide for
appropriate civil and criminal sanctions for violations of this
“This prohibition does not apply to a person who delivers a campaign | Subsection and may consider doing so on an emergency basis as
contribution to the person’s own campaign, or to the campaign of the effective date of this Subsection was January 5, 2019.
the person’s immediate family member. This prohibition shall not be
interpreted to prohibit any person from making a campaign
contribution or from encouraging others to make a campaign
contribution or to otherwise support or oppose a candidate.”
“Appropriate civil and criminal sanctions for violations of this
Subsection shall be set by the Legislative Assembly.”
Subsection | Effective Date “A statewide candidate, candidate for the legislative assembly, or This Subsection 4 makes Constitutional the 2017 Legislative
4 1/5/19 public official may not knowingly use a campaign contribution for Assembly’s ban on personal use or enrichment from campaign

personal use or enrichment.”

“Appropriate civil and criminal sanctions for violations of this
subsection shall be set by the Legislative Assembly.”

contributions.

The 66th Legislative Assembly is required to provide for an
appropriate civil sanction for a violation of this Subsection and
may consider doing so on an emergency basis as the effective date
of this Subsection was January 5, 2019. It has already provided for
a criminal penalty in NDCC 16.1-08.1-07 (Class A misdemeanor).
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) Subsection
5

Effective Date
1/5/22

“Directors, officers, commissioners, heads, or other executives of
agencies shall avoid the appearance of bias, and shall disqualify
themselves in any quasi-judicial proceeding in which monetary or in-
kind support related to that person’s election to any office, or a
financial interest not shared by the general public as defined by the
ethics commission, creates an appearance of bias to a reasonable
person.

The Legislative Assembly and the ethics commission shall enforce this
provision by appropriate legislation and rules, respectively. So as to
allow for the adoption of such legislation or rules, this Subsection
shall take effect three years after the effective date this Article.”

Effective 1/5/2022, bias and appearance of bias is prohibited in
quasi-judicial proceedings within state government. This Subsection
requires certain elected and unelected decision-making state
officials (directors, officers, commissioners, heads, or other
executives of agencies) to disqualify themselves from voting on or
making regulatory decisions that are related to their campaign
contributors or their financial interest as defined by the ethics
commission. This Subsection does not take effect until January 5,
2022.

No action required by 66th Legislative Assembly. This Subsection
has a three-year delay period that allows time for the Ethics
Commission to adopt its definitional rules and then for the 67th
Legislative Assembly to provide for appropriate “enforcement
penalties”.

Subsection
6

Subsection
1

Subsection
2

Effective Date
1/5/19

Section 3. North Dakota Ethics Commission

Effective Date
1/5/19

Effective Date
1/5/19

“Governments of foreign countries, foreign nationals not lawfully
admitted for permanent residence in the United States, and
corporations organized under the laws of or having their principal
place of business in a foreign country, are prohibited from making
contributions or expenditures in connection with any statewide
election, election for the legislative assembly, or statewide ballot-
issue election.”

This Subsection makes Constitutional the 2017 Legislative
Assembly’s ban on foreign contributions and expenditures.

No Legislative Assembly action ever required.

“In order to strengthen the confidence o f the people of North Dakota
in their government, and to support open, ethical, and accountable
government, the North Dakota Ethics Commission is hereby
established.”

“The ethics commission may adopt ethics rules related to
transparency, corruption, elections, and lobbying to which any
lobbyist, public official, or candidate for public office shall be subject,
and may investigate alleged violations of such rules, this Article XIV,
and related state laws. The ethics commission shall maintain a
confidential whistleblower hotline through which any person acting
in good faith may submit relevant information.”

5

Establishes the new Ethics Commission as of January 5, 2019. The
ethics commissioners should be appointed as soon as possible.

No Legislative Assembly action ever required.

Duties, powers and funding of Ethics Commission. This Subsection
defines the authority and duties of the new Ethics Commission.

The 66th Legislative Assembly is required to provide for timely and
adequate funding of the new Ethics Commission and may consider
doing so on an emergency basis as it was established on January 5,
2019.
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“The Legislative Assembly shall provide adequate funds for the
proper carrying out of the functions and duties of the ethics
commission.”
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Subsection
3

Effective Date
1/5/19

“The ethics commission shall consist of five members, appointed for
four-year terms by consensus agreement of the governor, the
majority leader of the senate, and the minority leader of the senate.
No member of the ethics commission may hold other public office or
be a lobbyist, candidate for public office, or political party official.”

Section 4. General Provisions.

Members, appointment and qualifications of Ethics Commission.

No Legislative Assembly action ever required.
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Subsection | Effective Date “This Article is self-executing and all of its provisions are mandatory. Provides for effective date of Article and protection against harmful
1 1/5/19 Laws may be enacted to facilitate, safeguard, or expand, but not to laws. All the provisions of Article XIV take effect on January 5, 2019,

hamper, restrict, or impair, this article. This Article shall take effect except those specifically listed with a later effective date.

sixty days after approval.”

No Legislative Assembly action ever required.

Subsection | Effective Date “For the purposes of this Article, “public office” or “public official” Provides definitions for “public office” and “public official”.
2 1/5/19 means any elected or appointed office or official of the state’s

executive or legislative branch, including members of the ethics No Legislative Assembly action ever required.

commission, or members of the governor’s cabinet, or employees of

the legislative branch, and “agency” means each board, bureau,

commission, department, or other administrative unit of the

executive branch of state government, including one or more officers,

employees, or other persons directly or indirectly purporting to act on

behalf or under authority of the agency.”
Subsection | Effective Date “If any provision of this Article is held to be invalid, either on its face Legal construction, severability and Constitutional conflict provision.
3 1/5/19 or as applied to any person, entity, or circumstance, the remaining

provisions, and the application thereof to any person, entity, or
circumstance other than those to which it is held invalid, shall not be
affected thereby. In any case of a conflict between any provision of
this Article and any other provision contained in the Constitution, the
provisions this Article shall control.”

No Legislative Assembly action ever required.
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Senate Ethics Committee

January 30, 2019

Ellen Chaffee, Ph.D., Vice President
North Dakotans for Public Integrity, Inc.
Bismarck, ND - District 8

Testifying in Favor of SB 2148

Chairman Hogue, Members of the Committee:

My name is Ellen Chaffee. | served the state for 31 years as a leader in the University System
office, NDSU, Mayville State, and Valley City State. Now | am a senior consultant with the
Association of Governing Boards of Universities and Colleges. My Stanford University Ph.D. Is
in administration and policy analysis. | am a founder and vice-president of North Dakotans for
Public Integrity, the authors of Article XIV.

Today | will speak for the people of North Dakota. It's deathly cold out - they’re not here in
person. But | can bring you their voices. Here's how.

NDPI began writing the measure nearly two years ago, with plenty of good ideas. After many
drafts, we began a series of three “high-test” state-wide polls because initiated measures are
very expensive. We wanted to win. Like you at re-election time, we needed to know what the
people would vote for. For strategic reasons, our poll results were highly confidential until now.

Measure 1 got a solid 54 percent majority, and it got even more of YOU - 93 legislators were
elected in pro-Measure 1 districts. Measure 1 got 54 percent of the votes and 66 percent of the
legislators. We took the poll results very seriously in writing Measure 1, and we strongly
recommend that you do the same. Here’s what they said.

About legislators:
The North Dakota State Legislature has only a 39% approval rating from voters.
More than 80 percent believe political leaders are more interested in protecting their
power and perks than doing what is right for North Dakota.
Nearly 80% of us want greater oversight and accountability from you.

- Seventy percent of us believe you work for the wealthy and powerful, not people like us.

Nearly two-thirds believe there is widespread corruption and abuse of power among
public officials and employees.

About the political system in North Dakota:
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- A striking 85% of us believe money and campaign contributions have too much influence
on government.
Over three-fourths say powerful interests have rigged the system for themselves,
undermining the moral foundations of North Dakota.
Sixty percent believe the political system in North Dakota is broken and needs major
changes.

- We support political reform regardless of age, gender, and political party.

Finally, every section of Article XIV speaks for the people:
* Section 1: Transparency

- 76% support prompt, electronically accessible public disclosure of the ultimate, true source
of funds spent to influence elections or government actions
* Section 2: Integrity

- 69% support prohibiting gifts from lobbyists to public officials.

- 73% support prohibitions against public officials deciding when they have a conflict of
interest
 Section 3: Accountability

- 82% support the Ethics Commission

Those of us who worked on Article XIV delivered a message from the people to you. They

expect you to take them seriously. You do that by establishing and funding the ethics

commission and pursuing an open, thoughtful process for other key elements. SB 2148 does ‘
that. It's the right thing to do next.

Thank you for your time and attention.
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Written testimony related to SB 2148 and HB 1521 in the
66" North Dakota Legislative Assembly

January 29, 2019

Submitted by:  Eric D. Raile, Ph.D. be DR
Department of Political Science
Montana State University
Bozeman, Montana

Dear Members of the responsible legislative committees,

I submit this written testimony as a former resident and as a recognized expert who cares about
the quality of governance in North Dakota. | was born and grew up in Wishek, North Dakota, and
worked at North Dakota State University in the Department of Criminal Justice and Political
Science from 2008-2012. Furthermore, I worked for the United States Office of Government
Ethics for over a decade on issues of government ethics, accountability, and transparency both
domestically and internationally. Since that time, | have published academic work on government
ethics and on public views of government corruption. The comments here are my own and do not
imply endorsement by any of my previous or current employers.

I am submitting this testimony in general support of the North Dakota Legislative Assembly
crafting effective legislation in response to the public’s affirmative vote on Constitutional Measure
#1 last November. Getting this all right will require work, but many other governments throughout
the country and world have supplied examples and experiences that can be very useful.

The core reasons for establishing an effective ethics commission are simple. Governance in a
representative democracy relies on the consent of the governed. Citizens want to know that the
rule of law is being respected. They also want to know that their public officials and employees
are making decisions based on sound principles rather than based on their own personal gain or
the influence of hidden outside interests. Further, effective governance requires accountability to
those citizens, and such accountability cannot be achieved without transparency. Interested citizens
must have the ability to examine the decision making of public officials and employees in order to
hold them accountable. Without basic transparency mechanisms, citizens tend to lose confidence
in the integrity of government decisions. This loss of confidence erodes the ability of government
to perform well and efficiently and complicates the work of elected representatives.

Though constructing an effective ethics commission takes effort, failure to respond to public
demand for truly transparent government can produce significant negative consequences. Beyond
crafting solid laws and rules, I note that such effectiveness also crucially requires adequate
authority and resources for the officials implementing the ethics program.

I urge legislators to see this for what it is — an opportunity to strengthen the relationship between
government and the citizenry in North Dakota. Taking this opportunity seriously can have positive
consequences for generations of people in North Dakota. Thank you for your consideration.
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Testimony in Support of SB 2148 and in Opposition to HB 1521
North Dakota Senate and House Committees on Ethics

January 30, 2019

Chairman Hogue and Members of the North Dakota Senate Ethics Committee:
Chairman Kasper and Members of the North Dakota House Ethics Committee:

We urge a DO PASS on SB 2148 and a DO NOT PASS on HB 1521.

When we see how many bills legislators have to deal with, we are struck with a certain awe
regarding how much thought must go into this lawmaking process. Fortunately, in the case of
Article 14 of the constitution, which ND voters have instituted (54% of North Dakota voters
voted for Measure 1 in the November 2018 election), there is no reason to take too much time
and effort on this.

The constitution now says that the ethics commission must be created and must be funded.
Period. Let’s do this gracefully; it’s time that individual voters have a vote that won’t crumble to
nothing in the face of big money from big oil and big money from big tobacco. We need to see
when big money is trying to influence the votes of legislators, and we need rules of ethics--that’s
why we worked hard and instituted Article 14.

Get the commission chosen and get it funded properly, this is going to happen anyway one way .
or another.

We urge a DO PASS on SB 2148 and a DO NOT PASS on HB 1521.

Sharon E. Buhr

Dr. James B. Buhr

613 Chautauqua Blvd
Valley City, ND 58072
701-845-5197
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Senate and House Committees on Ethics
Madeline Luke

Valley City

Mr. Chairman, Members of the Committee:
| urge you to support Senate Bill 2148 and oppose HB 1521.

The passage of Measure 1with a 53% majority makes it abundantly clear that the
citizenry feels there needs to be greater transparency and accountability in Bismarck.
The voters fulfilled their responsibility by listening to both sides, making a decision and
casting their ballots. Now it is your responsibility to honor our wishes and institute this
measure without changing its original intent. Furthermore, you must give the ethics
commission adequate funding to carry out its duties. Tax money is our money and we
want a share of the communal pot to go towards restoring some faith and honesty in
government.

| personally went door to door in Valley City and you should know that people of all
ages and party affiliation voiced mistrust in government in general. The catch words
“done deal” pretty much expressed their feelings about the decisions made by elected
and appointed officials.

Your vote on SB2148 and HB1521 is a gage for your respect for both the people you
are supposed to represent and the constitution you are supposed to uphold.

Please consider that you serve at the pleasure of the people and for the people and
vote accordingly.

Yours truly,
Madeline Luke
701 845 5407
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Mr. Chairman, Members of the Ethics Committees for the House and Senate:

We urge you to support Senate Bill 2148 and oppose HB 1521.

We, the people of North Dakota, voted for Measure 1 in November, and we intend to
make our legislators’ votes on this issue a central factor when they run for re-election.
This issue is important enough to be the only issue for re-election because it measures
your respect for both the people you are supposed to represent and the constitution you
are supposed to uphold. Why would we re-elect you if you fail both the voters and the

constitution?

We do not hold you personally responsible for the damaged culture in which you work,
but we do hold you responsible for fixing it.

Please respect the vote of the people and uphold what Measure 1 stands for:
Support 2148 and Oppose HB 1521.

Thank you.
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Mr. Chairman, Members of the Ethics Committees for the House and Senate:

We urge you to support Senate Bill 2148 and oppose HB 1521.

We, the people of North Dakota, voted for Measure 1 in November, and we intend to
make our legislators’ votes on this issue a central factor when they run for re-election.
This issue is important enough to be the only issue for re-election because it measures
your respect for both the people you are supposed to represent and the constitution you
are supposed to uphold. Why would we re-elect you if you fail both the voters and the

constitution?

We do not hold you personally responsible for the damaged culture in which you work,
but we do hold you responsible for fixing it.

Please respect the vote of the people and uphold what Measure 1 stands for:
Support 2148 and Oppose HB 1521.

Thank you.
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Mr. Chairman, Members of the Ethics Committees for the House and Senate:
We urge you to support Senate Bill 2148 and oppose HB 1521.

We, the people of North Dakota, voted for Measure 1 in November, and we intend to
make our legislators’ votes on this issue a central factor when they run for re-election.
This issue is important enough to be the only issue for re-election because it measures
your respect for both the people you are supposed to represent and the constitution you
are supposed to uphold. Why would we re-elect you if you fail both the voters and the
constitution?

We do not hold you personally responsible for the damaged culture in which you work,
but we do hold you responsible for fixing it.

Please respect the vote of the people and uphold what Measure 1 stands for:
Support 2148 and Oppose HB 1521.

Thank you.
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Mr. Chairman, Members of the Ethics Committees for the House and Senate:
We urge you to support Senate Bill 2148 and oppose HB 1521.

We, the people of North Dakota, voted for Measure 1 in November, and we intend to
make our legislators’ votes on this issue a central factor when they run for re-election.
This issue is important enough to be the only issue for re-election because it measures
your respect for both the people you are supposed to represent and the constitution you
are supposed to uphold. Why would we re-elect you if you fail both the voters and the
constitution?

We do not hold you personally responsible for the damaged culture in which you work,
but we do hold you responsible for fixing it.

Please respect the vote of the people and uphold what Measure 1 stands for:
Support 2148 and Oppose HB 1521.

Thank you.
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January 28,2019

Mr. Chairman, Members of the Ethics Committees for the North Dakota House
and Senate:

We urge a DO PASS for SB 2148 and a DO NOT PASS on HB 1521.

Measure 1 passed in our November election with 54% voting yes in ND, and 57%
voting yes in Barmes County and in District 24. It is now tltled Article 14 of our
ND Constitution. This is a solid foundation that can built upon to make a stronger
state.

Article 14 will guarantee that everyone has the same opportunity to exercise their
right to free equal speech that is not weighted for those with the most money.

Each of us, even the person with the least amount of money should be heard
equally with those of greater means.

We urge a DO PASS for SB 2148 and a DO NOT PASS on HB 1521.
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Voices of the People

Measure 1 deserves careful
treatment

jan 14,2019

The people of North Dakota are surprisingly fair-minded. In November we
collectively chose to make a historic step forward in our state. By voting for
Measure 1, now known as Article XIV, we put into black and white what we
have always valued -- that our representatives must be ethical in the way

they represent us.

New it is law, and it’s going to be a pressing issue on our elected
representatives in this current legislative session. I am so excited as an
ordinary citizen to get to sit down with my representatives from District 47,
and talk about how we can bring as much careful thought and care into the
details of enacting it, as I as a voter did as I carefully considered how I voted
on Measure 1. I am very proud of my vote, both on Measure 1, and for the

District 47 candidates I chose to represent me.

I'm very hopeful that the Legislature will show good faith in the people’s
voice as they consider how to fulfill the requirements of Measure 1, just as
the people had good faith in them as they filled the bubble next to their

name on the same ballot on Election Day.

Willow Hall, Bismarck
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Letter: Of course we're ethical. Ask any of us.

Written By

Cole Carley
Jan 27th 2019 - 1pm.

Share
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Most job descriptions usually contain a short phrase that
reads roughly: “and other duties as assigned.”

As an employee, the duties you’re assigned will vary. You may find some are more
difficult and that you may not have chosen to do were it not assigned by the boss.

But you are expected to carry out those assignments to the best of your ability.
That’s why you were hired. You don’t get to decide that the boss is wrong and you’re
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going to do it your way because the boss just doesn’t get it.

Unless you are a leader of the North Dakota Legislature, elected by citizens who had
the idea that their vote meant something. Evidently a Constitutional amendment
created by a citizen-initiated measure doesn’t fit the job description legislative
leaders wish to follow. Because we citizens have no business telling the people we’ve
elected (hired) what we want done.

Which brings us to the latest example of legislative lollygagging: the ethics
commission. This voter-passed measure was created by an organization led by two
North Dakotans, a Republican and a Democrat, both of whom had vast experience
working with state government agencies, one of whom spent years as a lobbyist.
Theyknew first-hand what problems can ensue when ethics aren’t defined and
regularly inspected. Like it or not, they got the vote out and the measure passed.

In several past legislative sessions, citizens or naive legislators have tried to
introduce such ideas only to be crushed by leadership. Legislators demand
transparency of organizations and people who receive state funds but really don’t
like it to apply to themselves with regard to campaign funds, lobbyists, little things
like that.

“Ethics? We don’t need no stinking ethics!”

OK, they didn’t say that. What they basically said was “Al, do you think we need an
ethics commission?” “No, Jim, I don’t. I think we conduct ourselves just fine. Do you
agree, Kim?” “You bet, guys. Oh, which lobbyist is buying the drinks and dinner
tonight?”

They really don’t like being told what to do, especially if it affects their ability to
socialize, graze and fundraise

OK, smart guy, what do you think they should do?
Glad I asked. Just for basics, they could:

e Check the 44 other states who have done this already to see what ideas they
might glean

e Visit the National Conference of State Legislatures subsection on ethics:
http://www.ncsl.org/research/ethics.aspx

e Use the specific provisions in the amendment passed by the voters:
https://www.ndintegrity.org/xiv

e Or, drop the whole adversarial attitude (hey, a guy can hope), assume that this
might actually be in everyone’s best interests and meet with Dina Butcher and
Ellen Chaffee, the two North Dakotans who got this initiative started. Ask them
what they hoped to achieve, specifically in seeing this ethics commission
created, and then listen. Just sayin’...

So, to the members of the North Dakota Legislature: The boss has given you a task.
Are you going to take it on with the zeal that the boss expects? Or are you going to
decide (again) that you’re in charge here and that the boss should just leave you

jObSHQ\'\" It's more than a car

It's your future. .

Graduate Architect
Executive Director
Automotive Sales
Food Service Workers

Quick Lube Technician

Search Today!




The anti-ethics
establishment
gets all hulty

t dudn't take long tor
I the entrenshed political
establishment 1o bepin o
crHisade to undernyne the wishas
of Nurth Dakota voters who in
Novemlier approved Measure 1,
thee erhies COMTi SAan qaaesiion,
by a strong marghis.
When 1 tijgde that
patnt in a Sandav
column a few
weeks agoe, two
establishment
regulars got their
knickers in a knot,
IAEH and said | was
2 misrepresenti
o the mg:wau:)l?ss
- of the opposition,
Christopher Dodson,
the highly capable
executive director and general
counsel of the North Dakota
Catholic Conference, and Beqte
Grande, a tormer Repablican
legistator from Farpo who writes
a coduman of commentary tos
The Forum, did an intellectually
dishonest quick step arcund
the cere of the tssue, which is
this: North Dakotans voted for
transparency in government and
campalgn financing; and they
expect the Legislature o carry
out the mandate, no matter
how ditficult it is to gert it done.
Pertod
Dodsan complained in a letter
to the editor published Nov.
24 that my characterizing his
organization as “fat cat™ was
unfair and inaccurate. He said
the Catholic Conference does not
contribute money to cambidates,
does not endorse candidates,
and does pot 0 much as buy a
candulate or 4 legislator a cup af
coffee dulx)u;f political campaigns
ot while Dodson Is lobbying ar the
Legisiature, He emiphasized that
the ctganization’s role is moral
persuasion on matters that are
central ta the Catholic tradition
Fair enough
Bt it seems a tad incongruous
that purveyars af such a noble
misston waiild be apainst
senshine in government and
politics. It seems contradictory
that Dodson and the conference
would rather see government
operate in the dark, would rather
net know wha s buying influence
with carspalgn contributions,
and would resist a mechanism
to investigate ethical lapses by
elected office bolders. You know,
ethics - a measure of right amd
wrong - which, it seems to me,
vught (o be of pritmary interest to
all relipious praxis.
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Alas, the wretched record of
the Catholic Church's decades
long campaign te pratect cletgy
who were guilty of child abuse,
supgests advice on ethics and
transparency from the churchi
Its surrogates or its detenders ts
hardly tenable

In her Dec. 2 Forum column,
Grande alleged the measure was
poorly written, can’t do what it
says i will do, and that st will
discourage North Dakotans trom
participating in the political
process. That's prattie and hooey.

The bipartisan group that
champloned the measure
was careful to write broad
bat invielahie principles
within which lawmakers have
latitide to banor the intent
of the measure and legislate
pragmatic implementation. If the
Legisiatare’s majority members,
many of whom advocated a "no"
vote, stall or try to change the
measure’s fecid provisions, all
hell will break loose. They will be
shewered. Most legislators are not
dedts. Most are honorstde. They
have the smarts (o respect the
voters. They will cobble together
an ethirs watchdog system that
cemports with the spirit and
directives of the measure,

As for Grande, she served in the
state House of Representatives
beginning in 1997, She was
Pooted aul in 2014 by the voters
of then relishly Republican, Fargo
Diszrict 41 - where they know her
st
Lasnbi, whe rethsed im 1817 siter 30 ers & The

Foruen's ebboriel page st v i ot i
veertribestor bo the epver peges Contaethon ot

(vt b o i i 70134185231 of
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Let’s work together to frame a trustworthy government

By Dina Butcher,
Ellen Chaffee, Waylon
Hedegaard, Allen Hoberg
and Kathy Tweeten
Nurth Dakotans came
together across the
spectrum last year to make
a significant decision.
East or west, regardless of
party or ideology, we vited
to improve transparency
and accountability in
state government. [t was
called Measure 1 before
the election; now it is
Article XIV of the state
constitution.
Implementing Article
XIV begins with the
Ethics Commission bill
in the current legislative
session. The bill primarily
establishes and funds
the Ethics Commission
and calls tor an interim
legislative study to prepare

legislation on the rest of
Article XIV for the 2021
session.

Article XIV and the
bill have the potential to
make MNorth Dakota one
of the mast trustworthy
governments in the
nation. Research clearly
shows that a trustworthy
rovernment helps prevent
?raud, wiaste and abuse,
and it attracts and grows
strong businesses. The
result is more productivity
for our tax dollars.

Authors ot Article X1V
charged our public otticials
with implementing Article
XIV because they trusted
the officials to do their
jobs wisely and taithfully
Yet a few have said the
amendment was badly
written by people who did
not know what they were

Forum of Fargo-Moorhead, Friday, January 4, 2019, page A7

doing. The truth is, those
who complain the loudest
are those who gained
power and p#rks trom the
broken system they helped
create.

Article XIV is now
a fact — a part of the
Constitution we live
under and public officials
swear to uphold. All of
us have an opportunity
to come together now
and craft North Dakota’s
best response to the
principles of government
transparency, integrity
and accountability. North
Dakotans for Public
Integrity looks torward to
working on it with you and
your representatives

and Tweeten are members of the
North Dakcotars tor Public integrity
Board of Directors.
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MAJORITY OF NORTH DAKOTA

LEGISLATIVE DISTRICTS VOTE YES ON
MEASURE 1

m YES (66%)  NO (34%)

53.63% of North Dakotan voters voted YES on Measure #1 “Pertaining to the
Transparency of Funding, Confllicts of Interests and the Establishment of an Ethics
Commission.” The majority of voters in 66% of ND Legislative Districts voted YES.

Names of legislators and their district vote on reverse side.



Legislators from YES districts. (93 legislators)

Richard Marcellais
Tim Mathern
Judy Lee

David Clemens
Scott Meyer
Kathy Hogan
Gary Lee

Kristin Roers

Kyle Davison

Curt Kreun

JoNell Bakke
Merrill Piepkorn
Ronald Sorvaag
Jim Roers

Brad Bekkedahl
Oley Larsen
Jordan Kannianen
Janne Myrdal
John Grabinger
Dave Oehlke

Ray Holmberg
Karen Karls
Randy Schobinger
Bill Devlin

SB 214

Ethics is a NON-Partisan Issue

Tracy Boe
Gretchen Dobervich
Austen Schauer
Ben Koppelman
Corey Mock
Mary Schneider
Michael Howe
Thomas Beadle
Pamela Anderson
Jake Blum

Mary Adams
Josh Boschee
Mary Johnson
Jim Kasper
Patrick Hatlestad
Jeff Hoverson
Clayton Fegley
Chuck Damschen
Jim Grueneich
Dennis Johnson
Mark Sanford
Lisa Meier
Nathan Toman

Marvin E Nelson
Ron Guggisberg
Kim Koppelman
Andrew Marschall
Steve Vetter
LaurieBeth Hager
Brandy Pyle

Ruth Buffalo
Michelle Strinden
Emily O'Brien
Matt Eidson

Karla Rose Hanson
Tom Kading
Shannon Roers-Jones
David Richter

Bob Paulson
Terry Jones

David Monson
Bernie Satrom
Greg Westlind
Mark S Owens
Gary Paur

Aaron McWilliams
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Robert Fors
Arne Osland
Joan Heckaman
Larry Robinson
Larry Luick

Jim Dotzenrod
Dick Dever
Dwight Cook
Erin Oban
Karen Krebsbach
Wayne Trottier
Richard Holman
Don Vigesaa
Daniel Johnston
Cindy Schreiber-Beck
Sebastian Ertelt
Pat Heinert
Todd Porter
Bob Martinson
Matthew Ruby
Dwight Kiefert
Alisa Mitskog
Kathy Skroch
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SB 2148 =T
Senate Ethics Committee
January 30, 2019

Mr. Chairman and members of the Senate Special Ethics Committee, my name is Arik Spencer,
President & CEO of the Greater North Dakota Chamber (GNDC). GNDC is North Dakota’s largest
statewide business advocacy organization. We stand in opposition to SB 2148.

As many people know, GNDC was part of a coalition of nearly four dozen organizations who
opposed measure one because of concerns about the measure’s constitutionality, and
specifically that of section 1.2 of this amendment to the North Dakota Constitution.

Measure one was passed by the voters last year and while we still have concerns about the
constitutionality of the measure at a federal level, we do believe the legislature now has an
obligation to implement this new section of the ND Constitution regardless of our opinion.

Our opposition to SB 2148 is not because we are upset about the passage of measure one but
rather that associations, citizens, and business who wish to take part in the public policy
process need certainty about any rules and laws that must be complied with.

While many of the questions that must be answered by the legislature and ethics commission
to give the public the certainty we need are proposed for a study, Subsectionﬂf‘ rticle r 2-
related to gifting, becomes effective at the beginning of the next legislative session and will
require quicker action that a study cannot provide without a special session.

A second area that requires clarification is a new definition of a lobbyist found on, page 20, line
27 through page 21, line 9. While this new definition is offered, the existing definition found in
54-05.1 remains the same. The creation of a second definition only serves to cause confusion
about who must register as a lobbyist. If the new definition, which adds attempts to influence
decisions regarding official matters made by a public official in the executive branch of state
government, were to be chosen, care would have to be given about the implications for those
who apply for grants, bid for contracts, or apply for various licenses. This definition change may
also be hard to enforce as it may not always be possible for a public official to determine when
they are being lobbied on an issue vs when private citizens advocates on an issue depending on
what situation they are in.

In closing we only ask for clarity for those who wish to participate in the public process because
without it, our open public policy process will only suffer.

Champions \f\;h Business

PO Box 2639 I Bismarck, ND 58502 1 (701) 222-0929
www.ndchamber.com
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Senate Ethics Committee
January 30, 2019
Testimony of Dina Butcher

Former Deputy Commissioner of Agriculture, former Director of the Division of Community Services,
former Human Rights Director and Lobbyist for numerous commodity organizations and Private
Investigator with WT Butcher and Associates

President of North Dakotans for Public Integrity

In favor of SB 2148

Mr. Chairman and Members of the Committee:

Article XIV is in the Constitution of North Dakota. As legislators you have taken an oath to uphold that
Constitution. | respectfully ask that you recommend passage of SB 2148 to provide the relatively simple
steps necessary to uphold the Constitution with sufficient funding as required in the Article XIV.

To avoid distraction from the major policy and funding issues with which this session is faced, SB 2148
wisely provides for an interim study with which that established Ethics Commission could assist in
providing guidance for the 2021 Legislative Assembly to judiciously implement those sections of Article
XIV which do not go into effect until later.

Thank you for all the good work you do and | respectfully ask for your recommendation of a do pass on
SB 2148.
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Support SB 2148
Kathleen Tweeten, Bismarck ND

Retired: NDSU Extension Service, Director of the Center for Community Vitality and
State Specialist for Community Economic and Leadership Development.

Specialist Emeritus in the Department of Agribusiness and Applied Economics
Secretary/Treasurer for North Dakotans for Public Integrity
Support a do pass on SB 2148 because:

It is consistent with Article XIV of the North Dakota Constitution with
amendments that have been introduced.

The majority of voters in North Dakota voted yes on Measure 1 “Pertaining to the
Transparency of Funding, Conflicts of Interests and the Establishment of an Ethics
Commission.” The campaign with all its misperception is over. It will take time,
citizen input and constitutional expertise to properly implement all four sections of
Article XIV. Up tothree years has been provided.

It is important that this not be rushed which is what SB 2148 allows.
Thank you for your attention.

Please DO Pass SB 2148.
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Senate Bill 2148
. January 30, 2019 ps \

Chairman Kasper and members of the committee, my name is Scott Skokos and I am the
Executive Director of Dakota Resource Council. I stand here today in support of Senate Bill
2148.

Throughout DRC’s 40-year history, DRC members have pushed for increased
transparency and ethics in Government. This has meant, at times, taking unpopular positions
regarding various energy and agriculture issues and also challenging elected officials that are
influenced by out of state and corporate interests.

In recent years, money in politics has become not only a problem in North Dakota
(especially with the influx of the money from the oil boom) but also a national issue due to more
and more money flowing into our political system from concealed sources (i.e. dark money).

. There is clear need to reform our system to ensure that politicians are more accountable to the

people of North Dakota, not dark money. This goes for both sides of the political aisle.

2012-13 Conflict of Interest Lawsuit

In 2012, Dakota Resource Council sued members of the North Dakota Public Service
Commission for violating federal conflict of interest laws for taking campaign contributions from
coal company executives that had a mining permit decision pending with the PSC (I might also
add that one of the Public Service Commissioners that we named in the case is current United
States Senator, Kevin Cramer.) Although we lost the case, in the ruling on the conflict of interest
case the judge made it clear that he did not approve of the actions of the Public Service
Commissioners in taking campaign contributions from a company they were supposed to be
regulating.

. Specifically, U.S. District Court Judge Daniel Hovland concluded that:
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. January 30, 2019

"the authority to undertake an enforcement action of the state program is discretionary and
unreviewable,"and as such, the federal court lacks jurisdiction in the matter. However, he added
in a footnote: "This order should in no manner be construed as an endorsement of the practice of
PSC Commissioners accepting campaign contributions from individuals or political action
committees closely associated with coal companies and coal mining activities. "Although the
acceptance of campaign contributions from such entities may be lawful ... the decision to do so is
ill-advised, devoid of common sense, and raises legitimate questions as to the appearance of
impropriety."

Public officials should not be taking money from the same companies that they have
pending permitting decision with and it was clear that Judge Hovland agree with our contention
in his ruling. We think the majority of North Dakotans agree with DRC and Judge Hovland,

. which was reflected at the ballot box when 54% of North Dakotans voted to pass Measure 1.

Beyond our case regarding the PSC, DRC also supported efforts in past legislative
sessions to install an ethics commission. Unfortunately, the bills pushing for an ethics
commission were defeated almost as quickly as they were introduced. Due to our past stances on
ethics and transparency, DRC was early endorser of Measure 1, and as a result we support the full
implementation of Article 14 of the Constitution.

In conclusion, DRC supports SB 2148 because it takes a measured approach allowing for
the full implementation of Article 14 of the Constitution, while at the same time respecting the

will of the voters. We urge this committee to give SB 2148 a do pass recommendation.
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January 30, 2019

RE: Public Comment on Senate Bill No. 2148

My name is Lisa DeVille. I am an enrolled member of the Mandan, Hidatsa, and Arikara Nation.
[ and my husband are lifelong residents of Mandaree a community on Fort Berthold
Reservation.

[ am writing to you in support of Senate Bill No. 2148. This bill is very important. This bill will
implement an ethics committee for state held offices as approved by the voters in the last
election. I believe in accountability and transparency from ND elected officials. These ND
elected officials represent the people. We need structure, without it we will fall apart. I live with
oil and gas in the Bakken region where I witness that industry is favored over the people of ND.
If you have any questions please email me at lisadeville2013(@gmail.com. Thank you!
Sincerely,

Lisa DeVille

Mandaree, ND
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Testimony for SB 2148 on Ethics

. Senator Dick Dever

Early in my Legislative Career, | heard a speaker at an NCSL Conference say that
our most important responsibility as Legislators is to bring honor to the
institution.

As elected officials, we have a responsibility to defend the honor of the
institution. |1 won’t say that corruption doesn’t exist, but | will say this; corruption
in North Dakota exists to a much greater extent in perception than in reality.

Itis time to break the ice. The Legislative process is best served when various
opinions are freely expressed. Disagreement on the bill is not opposition to ethics
and is not against the will of the people. We all support Ethics. Thatis why much
of what became Article 14 of the Constitution already existed in Statute.

Success in the legislative process is a matter of relationships. Integrity is
. everything. That is true for everyone involved in the process including Legislators,
lobbyists, state agencies, and the citizens who come here.

| occasionally have the opportunity visit with groups about the Legislative process,
and so do others. Senators Poolman and Oban have heard me say this — Lobbyists
are important to us for the information they provide. State agency people are
important to us for the information they provide. But, far and away the most
important people to testify before us are the people who are affected by the laws
that we pass.

| know that it can feel intimidating to come to the Legislature and testify. We all
wear suits and we use formal procedures. Thatis not because we like to hear
ourselves called Senator, but because it keeps the conversation at a respectful
level that allows everyone to be heard.

| have a strong reputation of listening to anyone and everyone, being respectful
to all, and then making up my own mind regardless of outside influence. The
. same could be said of almost all legislators.
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. It is easy to project an image of Congress on the State Legislature. Here are some
differences —

e Inthe ND Constitution, it is considered bribery for legislators to trade votes
and a Class C felony

e NDis the only State where every bill that is introduced gets a hearing and
goes to the floor for a vote. A Legislator cannot tell a constituent, “Sure I'll
sponsor that bill for you.” And then go to leadership and say, “ | never want
to see that again.”

e Sometimes violated, but generally followed, the Legislature has a rule that
requires that everything in a bill must be germane to the bill. Pet projects
are not put in a bill in order to gain votes.

e |n Congress, seniority is everything. In the Legislature, seniority only
applies in the selection of a parking spot and a seat in the Chamber.

e |In most States, Legislators have personal staff who serve as a gateway to
access. In the ND Legislature, most legislators put their cell phone on the

. Legislative website.

In the first hearing on this bill, the Democrat co-chair of the Measure sponsoring
committee stood at this podium and told us that she knows the will of the people
of North Dakota better than you and | do.

Everyone of us is on the ballot every four years. Most of us go out and knock on
all those doors. If we are seated here, it is by the will of the people. We each
know the people of our Districts and they know us.

Whether the people of North Dakota read the Measure, whether they understood
it, and whether they considered the implications of it, are all irrelevant. They

exercised the right and assumed the responsibility and passed it.

We are now tasked with passing legislation to implement it. We each took an
oath to uphold the Constitution of the United States and the Constitution of the
State of North Dakota. We will do that.
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The people voted to create a commission of five appointed people with the ability
to make rules, to investigate violations, and to assess penalties as developed by
the Legislature.

The bill before us, provides for civil penalties equal to a Class C felony on the first
offense and 2 % times a Class A felony on the second offense.

If a person wants to preserve their fifth amendments rights, they need to refuse
to cooperate with the Commission and be prepared for the due process provided
under a criminal complaint.

The bill provides for the creation of a three person agency completely
independent of any oversight. Included as an FTE would be an Attorney, who
arguably could serve as a Special Prosecutor.

Our founding fathers created a system of separation of powers and checks and
balances. If the Legislature passes a law, the Governor can veto it, or the citizens
can refer it. Administrative rules have the force of law and are developed with
the approval of the Legislative rules committee.

As it was introduced, this bill recognized those checks and balances. Asiitis
proposed to be amended, it abandons any check on the power of the
Commission.

We are required by Article 14 to pass legislation. We should adhere to the intent
of the measure and consider the will of the people. | think itis a real stretch to

say that is represented in this bill as it is currently constructed.

| think each of us will uphold the Constitution as we consider this bill. We will
consider the message that came to us on Election Day.

| hope that the finished product is something that restores honor to the
institution. When | say “institution”, | am thinking not just of the Legislature, but
of our Government of the people, by the people, and for the people. The
Institution includes everyone involved.
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Senator Mathern,

The Center for Ethics in Government at the National Conference of State
Legislatures (NCSL) would be pleased to provide a presentation on state ethics
commissions. The presentation would begin with an overview of how states
differently define the powers, responsibilities, and structure of ethics
commissions. | would draw heavily from NCSL’s 50-state survey on the subject. |
would follow up with a discussion of trends in legislative ethics oversight,
including the results of several commission-creating ballot measures before
voters during the November 2018 election.

Sincerely,

Nicholas Birdsong, J.D.

Policy Associate, Center for Ethics in Government
National Conference of State Legislatures
www.ncsl.org

Strong States, Strong Nation
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Geoff Simon, Lobbyist #144
Testimony SB 2148

Senate Ethics Committee
February 6, 2019

Mr. Chairman, members of the Special Ethics Committee, my name is Geoff Simon. | come before this
committee as a concerned citizen and former chairman of a coalition called North Dakotans for Sound
Government that was formed to defeat the passage of Measure One on the 2018 ballot.

The coalition’s primary concern was, and continues to be, that the language of this measure infringes on
the Free Speech rights of North Dakota citizens. Our coalition was comprised of more than 40 groups
and organizations, including groups as diverse as the National Rifle Association and the American Civil
Liberties Union. We had the Greater North Dakota Chamber, local chambers, farm and ranch groups,
energy groups, utilities, retailers, bankers, contractors, school groups, religious organizations and on and
on. All of us shared a common concern, that the language in this measure — specifically subsection 2 of
Section 1 — interfered with the ability of individual citizens to freely communicate with their elected
officials. An honest reading of the language — which requires the disclosure of the “ultimate and true
source of funds ... spent ... to influence state government action — suggests that it would compel
ordinary citizens who travel to Bismarck to meet with their elected representatives, to track their
expenses and report them to the government. That was my primary motivation for engaging with those
opposed to the measure. | frequently call upon my members, who come to the Capitol to explain to
legislators the issues they see happening on the front lines.

A reporting requirement that requires my members to track their expenses would obviously have a
chilling effect on the desire of citizens to engage in the policy making process. But equally bad is the fact
that there are no exemptions provided to the language in this section. We attempted to warn citizens
that this measure would compel businesses and organizations to disclose the names of their members
and donors, which again would have a chilling effect on speech. Even newspapers and television and
radio stations, could be compelled by the plain language to submit a list of their subscribers and
advertisers. But despite our best efforts to educate the public about these pitfalls, this measure was
approved by a slim majority of voters in November.

This measure was carelessly written, its disclosure language is overly broad, provides no exceptions, and
its approval by voters doesn’t make it any better. The language in this measure is bad policy for North
Dakota, and unfortunately you in the legislature have the unpleasant task of trying to fix the mess. As |
see it, you have two choices: Write a law that fully implements the overly broad disclosure language
found in Section 1.2 of what is now Article XIV in our Constitution, and prepare for the inevitable lawsuit
that would find it unconstitutional. Or you can try to implement the law in a way that preserves the Free
Speech rights of our citizens, and hopefully avoid a costly legal challenge.

With all due respect to Senator Mathern and SB 2148, | think | can speak for the members of the
coalition that opposed this measure when | say we do not want to wait two years to learn the
implications of language. And interim study is still a good thing, but we need an implementation bill now
so North Dakota citizens can begin to understand what the language in this measure means.
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With respect to the Ethics Commission itself, | believe the amendment Senator Mathern proposed to his
own bill confirms what we suspected. Withdrawing the language that would make the rules enacted by ‘
the Ethics Commission subject to the Administrative Agencies Practices Act, confirms our suspicion that

the Ethics Commission will, in effect, become a fourth branch of government. We heard in testimony

last week that the rules of the Ethics Commission may be subject to the administrative rules process, but

only if the Ethics Commission voluntarily submits to have its rules reviewed. The language on p.5, lines

16-17, of SB 2148 seems to suggest the Ethics Commission will be a new branch of government, with

language referencing Ethics Commission ownership of property and operation of ethics commission

facilities.

I think it’s important that we’re all honest about how we got here. This measure was billed as being anti-
corruption, but | would argue the only reason it passed was because those two words were actually
printed on the ballot, even though they’re not found in the language of the measure.

This measure was not about weeding out corruption in our government because it doesn’t exist. This
measure from the outset was anti-business. It was brought by a sponsoring committee whose members
believe business organizations have an out-sized influence over state government policy. It was largely
funded by out-of-state anti-business groups. Organizations like End Citizens United pour thousands of
dollars into the campaign. By imposing onerous reporting requirements, and restricting the ability of
lobbyists to communicate with elected officials, they hoped to diminish the influence of business in
North Dakota’s political process.

I, for one, am very grateful we have lobbyists here to represent the business interests of North Dakota.
There’s an old joke that “lobbyists are the people we hire to protect us from the people we elect.” It’s a ‘
humorous expression, but there’s some truth in it.

Legislators understand the role of lobbyists. We’re basically teachers. Our job is to help legislators
understand the hundreds of complicated issues they deliberate each session. | am not a business
lobbyist, per se, but | appreciate the work they do. They are here to advocate for the enactment of
policies that foster a positive business climate, and ultimately a strong economy in North Dakota.

We should be grateful for business lobbyists, not attempt to vilify them.

In conclusion, | would urge the defeat of SB 2148. We need to know what this measure means, and can
not, and should not have to wait for an interim study committee to figure it out.

There is a competing bill on the House side. | believe House Bill 1521 takes a common sense approach
to implement the Measure in a way that respects the wishes of voters for greater transparency. And by
providing definitions for the terminology is Section 1.2, the House bill assures North Dakota citizens they
will be allowed to freely engage with their elected officials, without fear of having to comply with a
requirement that they report their expenses.

Thank you for your attention, and | will stand for questions.
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Support SB 2148 February 6, 2019
Mr. Chairman and members of the committee,

My name is Kathleen Tweeten from Bismarck ND. [am retired from the NDSU
Extension Service where I was the Director of the Center for Community Vitality and
State Specialist for Community Economic and Leadership Development. Prior to that I
was an Area Leadership Specialist and before that an Extension Agent in Stutsman
County for a total of a little over 30 years. I now have the title of Specialist Emeritus in
the Department of Agribusiness and Applied Economics at NDSU. [ am also the
Secretary/Treasurer for North Dakotans for Public Integrity

[ support a do pass on SB 2148 because:

It is consistent with Article XIV of the North Dakota Constitution with
amendments that have been introduced.

The majority of voters in North Dakota voted yes on Measure 1 “Pertaining to the
Transparency of Funding, Conflicts of Interests and the Establishment of an Ethics
Commission.” The campaign with all its misperception is over. It will take time,
citizen input and constitutional expertise to properly implement all four sections of
Article XIV. Up to three years has been provided. The amendments make those
timelines very clear as to when reporting and implementation takes place.

It is important that this not be rushed which is what SB 2148 allows with the
proposed interim study.

[ want to clear up a major misunderstanding that is being alleged about the intent of
Article XIV. Article XIV clearly recognizes the benefits that lobbyists make to good
government. If I didn’t believe that to be true, I wouldn’t be wearing this lobbyist
badge. Article XIV shows this by excluding in the definition of prohibited gifts any
and all "purely informational materials" given to public officials. See Section 2
Subsection 1. Subsection 1 also promotes and advances opportunities for ND residents
including lobbyists to meet with public officials in educational and social settings, like
the Extension Rural Leadership North Dakota social that we had last month. We had a
wonderful turnout from both our participants and the legislators. Thank you for
attending. It means a lot to us that many of you were interested in what RLND is and
does. These types of socials will continue if they do not give rise to ethical concerns
(to be as defined by the new Ethics Commission by 1/5/2021). This timeline gives us
the opportunity to make our case that the RLND social will not raise ethical concerns.
Just like every other social and public event where legislators and state officials are
invited, the Ethics Commission will within 2 years disseminate rules as to what is
allowed in such circumstances. Otherwise, Article XIV will prohibit gifts to public
officials meant to eliminate undue influence and favoritism in the legislature, the
governor's office and by other state officials.
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What Article XIV does is to try and stop a public perspective that some lobbyists have ’
"unfair or undue influence" upon state government. Right or wrong, many ND residents

believe that "some" lobbyists - not all - use "gifts" in various forms to corral and

dominate public officials’ time and minds by providing those gifts that were allowed by

law prior to passage of Article XIV. Remember that the prohibition of gifts to public

officials in Article XIV does not go into effiect until 1/5/2021 and only after the

legislature provides for sanctions.

Everyone should be able to agree that lobbyists nor those they represent should be able
to pay for, or arrange to pay for through others, public officials to travel to and attend
"conferences, seminars or other opportunities” as currently allowed (including
associated meals, refreshments, etc.). And this would continue to be allowed under HB
1521. After all, I'm a true believer that if public officials need to go and learn about
something of benefit or value to their job then the state should pay for that and it should
be publicly known and should include all associated expenses. Allowing lobbyists or
anyone else for that matter to pay for such trips and expenses is promoting undue
influence of public officials. After all, one person's idea of what is "educational" is
another person's idea of a strictly political and partisan event. The oil industry for
example is not going to send a legislator to a Sierra Club sponsored environmental
seminar. It will only pay to send that legislator to a seminar friendly and "educational"
to its own benefit. The reverse is also true. I expect my public officials to learn from
unbiased and balanced sources, nonpartisan in nature and blue ribbon in assembly.

All lobbyists, just like ordinary citizens should more properly influence and advocate
from their presence here in front of legislative committees and hearings and offier
testimony and informational documents and materials on the record and certainly not be
able to send public officials on trips around the world to rub shoulders with other
people seeking to gain unfair advantage of the time and minds of those public officials.

Again, SB2148 gives the proper time and attention to the implementation of Article
XIV so that it can be done correctly.

Thank you for your attention.

I recommend a DO Pass on SB 2148.
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To: Senate Ethics Committee

From: Christopher T. Dodson, Executive Director
Subject: Senate Bill 2148 - Ethics

Dakota Date: February 6, 2019

_Jorth

Catholic ‘ The North Dakota Catholic Conference appreciates this opportunity to provide

input on Senate Bill 2148. The conference has a neutral position on SB 2148, as

Conference

introduced. However, the bill currently lacks some needed provisions and some

of the statements made at the last hearing about possible amendments and

Representing the Diocese of
Fargo and the Diccese of
Bismarck

interpretations of Article XIV give us concern.

103 South Third Street

Suite 10 Although the final product of this Legislative Assembly may not be perfect and
Bismarck ND 58501 . L .
701-223.2519 may not address all the possible constitutional problems with the new
pESEHIE constitutional provisions, it should address two of the conference’s main

ndcatholic@ ndcatholic.org

concerns about Measure 1. First, it should make clear that individuals who

donate to the general operation of a church or charity will not have their privacy

unduly infringed. Second, it should provide some certainty regarding process
. and what will or wili not be allowed, thereby possibiy resioring some of the
public’s confidence that they can participate in the democratic process without

unkncingly or wrongly running afoul of the law.
Disclosure/Transparency Provisions

Each year approximately 20,600 Catholics prayerfully choose to give to the
Catholic dioceses of Bismarck and Fargo. Their contributions support ministries
like education, seminarian formation, communications, and Catholic schools.
None of this money is used to support political candidates. None of it goes to

contributions to politicians. None of it is used to help political parties.

Like other churches and charities, however, the Catholic Church participates in
the public square and expresses opinions on legislation and ballot measures.

Doing =o typically amounts to spending less than one percent of its total budget.

If Measure 1 was implemented without any clarifying parameters, the dioceses or
. the conference would have to disclose the names of every one of those
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parishioners whenever we spent over two hundred dollars for lobbying or taking a position on a
ballot measure, even if the parishioner gave just one dollar. During the campaign, proponents
for the measure repeatedly stated that the legislature would have the authority to make sure this
did not occur.! The legislature should adopt their earlier position and enact legislation now,

rather than later, to place common sense parameters on the disclosure provisions.

In addition to requiring disclosure, as directed by Article XIV, the implementing legislation should
define “ultimate and true source” of funds to mean the person who knowingly contributed over

two hundred dollars solely to a campaign, to lobby, or to influence state government action.

This definition includes two crucial features. First, it clarifies that people who donate less than
two hundred dollars will not be subject to disclosure. This makes sense. Subsection 2 of
Section 1 of Article XIV requires disclosure only for expenditures over two hundred dollars. For
that reason, it makes sense that the disclosure requirement should only apply to contributions

over two hundred dollars.

Second, requiring that the contribution be knowingly and solely for one of the triggering
purposes makes it clear that organizations would not be forced to reveal the names of
individuals, such as parishioners, who give toward the general operation of the organization.
Churches, like many nonprofits, engage in numerous activities of which legislative advocacy
may constitute only a tiny fraction. It would be unduly burdensome and extreme overreach
beyond the purpose of Article XIV to require disclosure of all sources of funding merely because

some of the money was used for engaging in public policy advocacy.

The bill should also include practical definitions for “lobby” and “influence state government

action.”

Article XIV does not define “lobby.” During the campaign people raised concerns that the lack of
a definition meant that any individual communicating to a legislator could be subject to the
disclosure provision. Proponents of the measure, however, claimed that the provisions only
encompassed actual lobbyists. Presumably, this means that “lobby” is intended to mean
lobbying as defined in the North Dakota Century Code, which applies to advocating or opposing

the passage of legislation or a decision by Legislative Management on behalf of someone else.
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Building on existing law, SB 2148 should incorporate that definition for purposes of

implementing Article XIV.

Similarly, Measure 1 lacked a definition of “influence state government action.” During the
campaign the North Dakota Catholic Conference and others expressed concern that “influence
state government action” could encompass acts such as Catholic Charities discussing and
negotiating the contract for the corporate guardianship program or an adoption agency
submitting paperwork to be approved as a child placement agency. People also raised
questions about seeking professional licenses or permits. Supporters of Measure 1 indicated
that the measure was not supposed to encompass those acts and the legislature would be

charged with defining “state government action.”

Although Article XIV does not define “influence state government action,” we can conclude as a
matter of grammar that it is something different from lobbying or campaign engagement. In
other words, it must, by elimination, refer to executive branch actions. The bill in the other
chamber, for example, defines “influencing state government action” as promoting or opposing
the final adoption of a rule by an administrative agency. It is difficult to imagine what other
official executive branch actions exist. If the phrase is not defined as the adoption of a rule by
an executive office, “influencing state government action” could encompass practically all
communications and interactions with state agencies. In addition to being unnecessarily
overbroad and reaching non-official actions, such an open-ended scope would likely be

unconstitutional.

To summarize, by defining “lobby” and “influence state government action,” and by defining
“ultimate and true source,” SB 2148 could address our concems about the potential scope of
the disclosure requirement. Such definitions are reasonable and consistent with purpose of
Measure 1. [f the national office of the Knights of Columbus gave over two hundred dollars to
the North Dakota Catholic Conference for the purpose of helping us pass a ballot measure, we
would have to disclose that donation. People can argue whether that requirement is good
public policy or constitutional, but the fact remains that the people of North Dakota put that
requirement into the state constitution. Rather than delaying the requirement, the Legislative
Assembly should, as the proponents of Measure 1 said the legislature could do, put it into

statute with clear parameters.
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Delaying implementation of the disclosure requirements with clear definitions would create more
uncertainty and have a possible chilling effect on charitable giving. Although the disclosure
provisions may not go in effect prior to January 5, 2022, the donations that would be subject to
the disclosure law might be made in 2021, 2020, or even 2019. Donors should know now if the
contributions they might make during the next few years could be forcibly disclosed after

January of 2022.
Guidelines and Certainty

The second broad area of concern the North Dakota Catholic Conference had about Measure 1
related to its possible chilling effect on participation in the public square. People have a right to
participate in the political process. The measure, in our opinion, contained too many undefined
terms, procedures, and areas of confusion that could deter participation in the democratic

process, especially by nonprofits, small organizations, and average citizens.

This committee can address some those concerns without running afoul of the new article’s
requirements by:
Using existing and already familiar definitions where possible, such as for “lobby” and
“campaign contribution,” and campaign “conduit;”
Employing existing mechanisms and time periods for reporting;
+ Setting out due process requirements for complaints;
« Providing definite effective dates;
Clarifying that organizations like the North Dakota Catholic Conference can have their
church service and appreciation dinner for public officials without violating the anti-
gifting provisions; and
Consistent with the proponents’ position during the campaign, specifying a
rulemaking process that gives the public advance notice of meetings and an

opportunity to provide public input, just like any other rulemaking body.2

These provisions would give the public some clarity and certainty after a heated campaign
marked by differing interpretations of the new provisions. The people of North Dakota have a
right to know, now rather than later, that they can participate in the political process without

transgressing the new provisions. In addition, by specifying the disclosure requirements now
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rather than later, individuals can be assured that they can continue to donate to their favorite

Testimony on Senate Bill 2148, page 5

charity without having to sacrifice their privacy.

The North Dakota Catholic Conference believes that ethical behavior should be the hallmark of

our political process. No action by anyone in the process is immune from the command to do
what is right and to do it honestly. While we may have disagreed with the proponents of
Measure 1 about the measure itself, its implementation, subject to constitutional limitations,
should not be in dispute and we do not support intentionally frustrating or unnecessarily

delaying its implementation.

We ask this committee to take these concerns into consideration as it works on SB 2148.

1 Dina Butcher, Good Talk Minot, September 24, 2018; (https://directory.libsyn.com/episode/index/id/
7304732/tdest_id/446532); Legal memorandum from the Campaign Legal Center in support of Measure
1 released by NDPI in support of the measure, September, 25, 2018 (https://campaignlegal.org/
document/transparency-ballot-north-dakotas-initiative-disclosure-money-politics); NDPI press release
citing Campaign Legal Center’s endorsement of Measure 1, October 1, 2018, (https://www.ndintegrity.org/
campaign_legal_center_endorses_north_dakota_measure_1); Dina Butcher, Prairie Public’s Main Street,
October 23, 2018 (http://radiobookmark.com/listener-interactive/webplayer/#/fullscreen/ondemand/
Fc6yEwIPkL2ZANvC/program/3549); Ellen Chaffee, Prairie Public’s Main Street, October 23, 2018,
(http://radiobookmark.com/listener-interactive/webplayer/#/fullscreen/ondemand/Fc6yEwOPkL2ZANVC/
program/3549).

2 Dina Butcher, Good Talk Minot, September 24, 2018; A/dir ryli .com/epi /index/id/
7304732/tdest id/446532): “That commission, then, will set about to writing the rules and regulations like
any commission or council or body of government would do then take out for public hearings and then be

approved by the legislative process for rulemaking.”

Dina Butcher, Prairie Public’s Main Street, October 23, 2018, Prairie Public’s Main Street
hitp://radiobookmark.com/listener-interactive/webplayer/#/fullscreen/ondemand/Fc6yEw9PkL 2ZANvVC/
program/3549) “The ethics commission will develop rules subject to legislative review.”
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Office of the
State Auditor

TESTIMONY TO SENATE ETHICS COMMITTEE
SB 2148 & HB 1521 Creation of Ethics Commission
2/6/19 & 2/7/2019

Good afternoon, Chairman Hogue/Kasper and members of the committee, my name is Joshua Gallion
and | serve as the State Auditor. I’'m here today to discuss the State Auditor’s Office, providing
information regarding our efforts to fulfill our statutory obligations while improving accountability and
promoting transparency of our state’s government.

As you are aware, the State Auditor is a constitutional state official elected by the citizens of North
Dakota. My job is to lead the way in providing truthful, objective and independent information to you
and the citizens of North Dakota. Our mission is to produce informative audits to improve government
through our vision of a diverse team committed to generating greater value for our taxpayers.

North Dakota Constitution, Article V, Section 2

Section 2, paragraph 2. The powers and duties of the agriculture commissioner, attorney general,
auditor, insurance commissioner, public service commissioners, secretary of state, superintendent of
public instruction, tax commissioner, and treasurer must be prescribed by law. If the legislative
assembly establishes a labor department, the powers and duties of the officer administering

that department must be prescribed by law.

North Dakota Century Code 54-10
Government Auditing Standards are referred to 6 times.

U.S. Government Accountability Office, Government Auditing Standards 2018 Revision

Chapter 1: Foundation and Principles for Use and Application of Government Auditing Standards
1.02 — Effective, Efficient, Economical, Ethical

1.05 — Government auditing is essential in providing accountability to legislators, oversight bodies, those
charged with governance, and the public.

1.07 — ...When auditors conduct their work in this manner and comply with GAGAS in reporting the
results, their work can lead to improved government management, better decision making and
oversight, effective and efficient operations, and accountability and transparency for resources and
results.

Chapter 3: Ethics, Independence, and Professional Judgement (38 Pages)

Chapter 8: Fieldwork Standards for Performance Audits

Ethical issues can be viewed as wasteful or abuse. Section 8.120

Most recent example
Performance Audit of Governor’s Travel and use of Resources. We questioned the use of the state plane

for out-of-state trips when less expensive commercial flights were available.

Concern for your consideration
How will the Ethics Commission’s Rulemaking affect the statutory duties of the State Auditor’s Office?

pg. 1 — North Dakota State Auditor’s Office SB 2148 & HB1521
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Chapter 1: Foundation and Principles for the

@)’se and Application of Government Auditing
Standards

1.01 This chapter provides guidance for engagements conducted in
accordance with generally accepted government auditing standards
(GAGAS). This chapter also

a. explains the types of auditors and audit organizations that may
employ GAGAS to conduct their work,

b. identifies the types of engagements that may be conducted in
accordance with GAGAS, and

c. explains terminology that is commonly used in GAGAS.

1.02 The concept of accountability for use of public resources and
government authority is key to our nation’s governing processes.
Management and officials entrusted with public resources are responsible
for carrying out public functions and providing service to the public
effectively, efficiently, economically, and ethically within the context of the
. statutory boundaries of the specific government program.

Introduction

1.03 As reflected in applicable laws, regulations, agreements, and
standards, management and officials of government programs are
responsible for providing reliable, useful, and timely information for
transparency and accountability of these programs and their operations.
Legislators, oversight bodies, those charged with governance, and the
public need to know whether (1) management and officials manage
government resources and use their authority properly and in compliance
with laws and regulations; (2) government programs are achieving their
objectives and desired outcomes; and (3) government services are
provided effectively, efficiently, economically, and ethically.

1.04 “Those charged with governance” refers to the individuals
responsible for overseeing the strategic direction of the entity and
obligations related to the accountability of the entity. This includes
overseeing the financial reporting process, subject matter, or program
under audit, including related internal controls. Those charged with
governance may also be part of the entity's management. In some
audited entities, multiple parties may be charged with governance,
including oversight bodies, members or staff of legislative committees,
boards of directors, audit committees, or parties contracting for the
engagement.

Page 3 GAO-18-568G Government Auditing Standards
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Chapter 1: Foundation and Principles for the P5 3
Use and Application of Government Auditing
Standards

1.05 Government auditing is essential in providing accountability to
legislators, oversight bodies, those charged with governance, and the
public. GAGAS engagements provide an independent, objective,
nonpartisan assessment of the stewardship, performance, or cost of
government policies, programs, or operations, depending upon the type
and scope of the engagement.

1.06 The professional standards and guidance contained in this
document provide a framework for conducting high-quality engagements
with competence, integrity, objectivity, and independence. Auditors of
government entities, entities that receive government awards, and other
entities, as required by law or regulation or as they elect, may use these
standards. Overall, GAGAS contains standards for engagements
comprising individual requirements that are identified by terminology as
discussed in paragraphs 2.02 through 2.10. GAGAS contains
requirements and guidance dealing with ethics, independence, auditors’
professional judgment and competence, quality control, peer review,
conducting the engagement, and reporting.

1.07 Engagements conducted in accordance with GAGAS provide
information used for oversight, accountability, transparency, and
improvements of government programs and operations. GAGAS contains
requirements and guidance to assist auditors in objectively obtaining and
evaluating sufficient, appropriate evidence and reporting the results.
When auditors conduct their work in this manner and comply with GAGAS
in reporting the results, their work can lead to improved government
management, better decision making and oversight, effective and efficient
operations, and accountability and transparency for resources and
results.

1.08 Laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements, and policies
frequently require that engagements be conducted in accordance with
GAGAS. In addition, many auditors and audit organizations voluntarily
choose to conduct their work in accordance with GAGAS. The
requirements and guidance in GAGAS in totality apply to engagements
pertaining to government entities, programs, activities, and functions, and
to government assistance administered by contractors, nonprofit entities,
and other nongovernmental entities when the use of GAGAS is required
or voluntarily adopted.

1.09 The following are some of the laws, regulations, and other
authoritative sources that require the use of GAGAS:

Page 4 GAO-18-568G Government Auditing Standards
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Chapter 8: Fieldwork Standards for 2 ‘
Performance Audits PE)

evaluation of identified findings when developing the cause element of
the identified findings when internal control is significant to the audit
objectives.

Application Guidance: Findings

8.118 Findings may involve deficiencies in internal control;
noncompliance with provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements; or instances of fraud.

8.119 Given the concept of accountability for use of public resources and
government authority, evaluating internal control in a government
environment may also include considering internal control deficiencies
that result in waste or abuse. Because the determination of waste and
abuse is subjective, auditors are not required to perform specific
procedures to detect waste or abuse in performance audits. However,
auditors may consider whether and how to communicate such matters if
they become aware of them. Auditors may also discover that waste or
abuse are indicative of fraud or noncompliance with provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements.

8.120 Waste is the act of using or expending resources carelessly,
extravagantly, or to no purpose. Importantly, waste can include activities
that do not include abuse and does not necessarily involve a violation of
law. Rather, waste relates primarily to mismanagement, inappropriate
actions, and inadequate oversight.

8.121 The following are examples of waste, depending on the facts and
circumstances:

a. Making travel choices that are contrary to existing travel policies
or are unnecessarily extravagant or expensive.

b. "Making procurement or vendor selections that are contrary to
existing policies or are unnecessarily extravagant or expensive.

8.122 Abuse is behavior that is deficient or improper when compared with
behavior that a prudent person would consider reasonable and necessary
business practice given the facts and circumstances, but excludes fraud
and noncompliance with provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grant agreements. Abuse also includes misuse of authority or position for

Page 187 GAO-18-568G Government Auditing Standards
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personal financial interests or those of an immediate or close family
member or business associate.

8.123 The following are examples of abuse, depending on the facts and
circumstances:

a. Creating unneeded overtime.

b. Requesting staff to perform personal errands or work tasks for a
supervisor or manager.

c. Misusing the official’s position for personal gain (including actions
that could be perceived by an objective third party with knowledge
of the relevant information as improperly benefiting an official’s
personal financial interests or those of an immediate or close
family member; a general partner; an organization for which the
official serves as an officer, director, trustee, or employee; or an
organization with which the official is negotiating concerning future
employment).

8.124 Criteria: To develop findings, criteria may include the laws,
regulations, contracts, grant agreements, standards, measures, expected
performance, defined business practices, and benchmarks against which
performance is compared or evaluated. Criteria identify the required or
desired state or expectation with respect to the program or operation. The
term program includes processes, projects, studies, policies, operations,
activities, entities, and functions. Criteria provide a context for evaluating
evidence and understanding the findings, conclusions, and
recommendations in the report.

8.125 Condition: Condition is a situation that exists. The condition is
determined and documented during the audit.

8.126 Cause: The cause is the factor or factors responsible for the
difference between the condition and the criteria, and may also serve as a
basis for recommendations for corrective actions. Common factors
include poorly designed policies, procedures, or criteria; inconsistent,
incomplete, or incorrect implementation; or factors beyond the control of
program management. Auditors may assess whether the evidence
provides a reasonable and convincing argument for why the stated cause
is the key factor contributing to the difference between the condition and
the criteria.

Page 188 GAO-18-568G Government Auditing Standards
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19.0422.02003 Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for
Title. Senator Mathern
February 6, 2019

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2148
Page 1, line 8, after the semicolon insert "to provide a statement of legislative intent;"

Page 23, line 17, replace "until" with "unless"

Page 23, line 18, replace "issues its findings regarding the relevant complaint" with "has
determined the accused individual violated article XIV of the Constitution of North
Dakota, this chapter, or another law or rule regarding government ethics"

Page 23, line 20, replace "the" with "a"

Page 23, line 25, after "2." insert "If a complaint is informally resolved under section 54-66-06,
the following information is a confidential record as defined in section 44-04-17.1,
except the information may be disclosed as required by law;

Information revealing the contents of the complaint;

|

b. Information that reasonably may be used to identify the accused
individual or complainant;

c. Information relating to or created as part of the process leading to the

informal resolution; and

|

Information revealing the informal resolution.

3'"

Page 24, after line 11, insert:

"SECTION 22. LEGISLATIVE INTENT STATEMENT - CONSTITUTIONAL
EFFECTIVE DATES - PENALTIES.

#)
Pf)\

1. Subsection 2 of section 1 of article XIV of the Constitution of North Dakota
requires the legislative assembly to implement and enforce the subsection
by enacting laws by January 5, 2022, which will require disclosure of funds
spent for identified purposes and vest an entity with authority to administer
the disclosure requirements. The subsection does not take effect or
impose disclosure requirements or other obligations until the legislation is
enacted. Penalties may not be imposed under subsection 2 of section 1 of
article XIV until the legislative assembly enacts laws to implement and
enforce the subsection. However, the requirements and penalties under
chapters 16.1-08.1 and 54-05.1 remain in effect.

2. Subsection 1 of section 2 of article XIV of the Constitution of North Dakota
declares the prohibition on certain gifts under the subsection is not
effective until January 5, 2021. The subsection requires the ethics
committee to adopt rules providing additional guidance regarding the
prohibition and requires the legislative assembly to provide penalties for
violations of the prohibition. Penalties may not be imposed under
subsection 1 of section 2 of article XIV until the legislative assembly enacts
laws establishing the penalties for violations of the subsection.

Page No. 1 19.0422.02003
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3. Subsection 5 of section 2 of article XIV of the Constitution of North Dakota
declares the requirement for certain executive branch officials and
employees to avoid the appearance of bias and be disqualified from
quasi-judicial proceedings is not effective until January 5, 2022. The ‘
subsection requires the ethics commission and legislative assembly to
enforce the subsection by adopting rules and enacting laws. Penalties may
not be imposed under subsection 5 of section 2 of article XIV until the
legislative assembly enacts laws establishing the penalties for violations of
the subsection."

Renumber accordingly

Page No. 2 19.0422.02003
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Senator Mathern,

The Center for Ethics in Government at the National Conference of State
Legislatures (NCSL) would be pleased to provide a presentation on state ethics
commissions. The presentation would begin with an overview of how states
differently define the powers, responsibilities, and structure of ethics
commissions. | would draw heavily from NCSL’s 50-state survey on the subject. |
would follow up with a discussion of trends in legislative ethics oversight,
including the results of several commission-creating ballot measures before
voters during the November 2018 election.

Sincerely,

Nicholas Birdsong, J.D.

Policy Associate, Center for Ethics in Government
National Conference of State Legislatures
www.ncsl.org

Strong States, Strong Nation
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2148

Page 1, line 1, after "enact" insert "a new subsection to section 16.1-08.1-01, a new section to
chapter 16.1-08.1, and"

Page 1, line 2, after "to" insert "disclosures of expenditures,"
Page 1, line 4, after "sections" insert "16.1-08.1-04.1,"

Page 1, line 6, remove "28-32-14,"

Page 1, line 6, remove "28-32-17, 28-32-18, and 28-32-18.1,"

Page 1, line 7, after "to" insert "the prohibition on personal use of campaign contributions and
the"

Page 1, line 8, remove "to provide for"
Page 1, line 9, remove "a legislative management study;"
Page 1, after line 10, insert:

"SECTION 1. A new subsection to section 16.1-08.1-01 of the North Dakota
Century Code is created and enacted as follows:

"Ultimate and true source" means the person who knowingly contributed
over two hundred dollars, adjusted for inflation, to influence a statewide
election or an election for the leqislative assembly.

SECTION 2. AMENDMENT. Section 16.1-08.1-04.1 of the North Dakota
Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

16.1-08.1-04.1. Personal use of contributions prohibited.

1. A candidate may not use any contribution received by the candidate, the
candidate's candidate committee, or a multicandidate political committee
to:

+
)

Give a personal benefit to the candidate or another person;

2= b. Make aloan to another person;

FP
fs)

Knowingly pay more than the fair market value for goods or services
purchased for the campaign; or

4. d. Pay a criminalfine or civil penalty.

2. The secretary of state shall impose a fine of five thousand dollars or two
times the value of the contribution used in violation of this section,
whichever is higher, upon any person who violates this section.

SECTION 3. Anew section to chapter 16.1-08.1 of the North Dakota Century
Code is created and enacted as follows:

Page No. 1 19.0422.02004
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Ultimate and true source of funds - Required identification. (,)5 2

In any report under this chapter which requires the identification of a contributor
or subcontributor, the ultimate and true source of funds must be identified." ‘

Page 6, line 24, remove "ethics commission or an"

Page 6, line 24, after the second comma insert "or the ethics commission"

Page 14, remove lines 16 through 30
Page 16, remove lines 9 through 31
Page 17, remove lines 1 through 31
Page 18, remove lines 1 through 31
Page 19, remove lines 1 through 24
Page 20, after line 14, insert:

"For purposes of this chapter, unless the context otherwise requires:"

Page 20, line 26, after the underscored period insert: "'Gift" does not mean:

a. Purely informational material;

b. A campaign contribution;

c. To advance opportunities for state residents to meet with public
officials in educational and social settings in the state, any item,
service, or thing of value given under conditions that do not raise
ethical concerns as set forth in rules adopted by the ethics .
commission;

d. Meals and other items provided in social settings with twenty-five or
more public officials in attendance; and

e. Meals and other items provided in social settings to which the general
public is invited with at least seventy-two hours of advance notice."

Page 21, after line 14, insert:

"9. '"Ultimate and true source" means the person that knowingly contributed
over two hundred dollars, adjusted for inflation, to lobby or influence state
government action."

Page 23, line 15, replace "Burleigh County" with "the county where the accused individual
resides"

Page 23, line 25, after "2." insert "Information relating to or created as part of an informal
resolution of a complaint is confidential except the information may be disclosed by the
complainant and the accused individual.

i"

Page 23, line 25, after "who" insert "knowingly"
Page 23, line 27, after "A" insert "knowing"

Page No. 2 19.0422.02004
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Page 23, line 28, replace "ten" with "one"
Page 23, line 29, after "that" insert "knowingly"
Page 24, line 2, after "A" insert "knowing"

Page 24, line 3, replace "ten thousand" with "five hundred"

Page 24, line 4, after "that" insert "knowingly"

Page 24, line 5, replace "fifty" with "one"

Page 24, line 5, remove "for each violation of the subsection"

Page 24, line 5, replace "that violates" with "for a second or subsequent knowing violation of"

Page 24, line 6, remove "more than once within a twelve-month period"

Page 24, line 8, after "commission" insert ", unless the ethics commission objects to the
representation by the attorney general in a specific matter"

Page 24, replace lines 12 through 17 with:

"64-66-14. Disclosure of ultimate and true source of funds.

A person who expends an amount greater than two hundred dollars, adjusted
for inflation, to lobby or influence state government, other than to influence a statewide
election or election for the legislative assembly, shall report the ultimate and true
source of funds for the expenditure to the secretary of state.

54-66-15. Lobbyist gifts - Penalty.

A lobbyist may not give, offer, solicit, initiate, or facilitate a gift to a public official
knowingly, and a public official may not accept a qift from a lobbyist knowingly. For the
first violation, the secretary of state shall impose a fine of five hundred dollars upon any
person who violates this section. For a second and subseguent violation of this section,
the person is guilty of an infraction."

Page 24, replace line 24, with:
"Salaries and expenses $214,800"
Page 24, replace line 26, with:
"Total general fund $422,000"

Renumber accordingly

Page No. 3 19.0422.02004
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Support SB 2148
Kathleen Tweeten, Bismarck ND

Retired: NDSU Extension Service, Director of the Center for Community Vitality and
State Specialist for Community Economic and Leadership Development.

Specialist Emeritus in the Department of Agribusiness and Applied Economics
Secretary/Treasurer for North Dakotans for Public Integrity
Support a do pass on SB 2148 because:

It is consistent with Article X1V of the North Dakota Constitution with
amendments that have been introduced.

The majority of voters in North Dakota voted yes on Measure 1 “Pertaining to the
Transparency of Funding, Conflicts of Interests and the Establishment of an Ethics
Commission.” The campaign with all its misperception is over. It will take time,
citizen input and constitutional expertise to properly implement all four sections of
Article XIV. Up to three years has been provided.

It is important that this not be rushed which iswhat SB 2148 allows.
Thank you for your attention.

Please DO Pass SB 2148.



SR Rk 2lel 9 # 10

Senate Ethics Committee
January 30, 2019
Testimony of Dina Butcher

Former Deputy Commissioner of Agriculture, former Director of the Division of Community Services,
former Human Rights Director and Lobbyist for numerous commodity organizations and Private
Investigator with WT Butcher and Associates

President of North Dakotans for Public Integrity

In favor of SB 2148

Mr. Chairman and Members of the Committee:

Article XIV is in the Constitution of North Dakota. As legislators you have taken an oath to uphold that
Constitution. | respectfully ask that you recommend passage of SB 2148 to provide the relatively simple
steps necessary to uphold the Constitution with sufficient funding as required in the Article XIV.

To avoid distraction from the major policy and funding issues with which this session is faced, SB 2148
wisely provides for an interim study with which that established Ethics Commission could assist in
providing guidance for the 2021 Legislative Assembly to judiciously implement those sections of Article
XIV which do not go into effect until later.

Thank you for all the good work you do and | respectfully ask for your recommendation of a do pass on
SB 2148.
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Senator Mathern

A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new subsection to section 16.1-08.1-01, a new section
to chapter 16.1-08.1, and chapter 54-66 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to
disclosures of expenditures, restrictions on public officials and lobbyists, investigations of ethics
violations, and implementing requirements of article XIV of the Constitution of North Dakota; to
amend and reenact sections 16.1-08.1-04.1. 28-32-01, 28-32-02, 28-32-03, 28-32-06, 28-32-07,
and 28-32-08, subsection 5 of section 28-32-08.1, sections 28-32-08.2, 28-32-09, 28-32-10,
28-32-11, 28-32-12, 28-32-14-28-32-15, and 28-32-16, 28-32-17;-28-32-18;-and-28-32-18:%+-
and subsections 2 and 4 of section 28-32-19 of the North Dakota Century Code, relating to_the_

prohibition on personal use of campaign contributions and the rulemaking procedures and

requirements for the North Dakota ethics commission; te-previde-for a-legislative-management-
study:-to provide a penalty; and to provide an appropriation.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA:

SECTION 1. A new subsection to section 16.1-08.1-01 of the North Dakota Century Code is
created and enacted as follows:
"Ultimate and true source" means the person who knowingly contributed over
nd llars, adjusted for inflation, to influence a statewide election or an election.
[ the legislative asse
SECTION 2. AMENDMENT. Section 16.1-08.1-04.1 of the North Dakota Century Code is
amended and reenacted as follows:
16.1-08.1-04.1. Personal use of contributions prohibited.
1.__Acandidate may not use any contribution received by the candidate, the candidate's
candidate committee, or a multicandidate political committee to:
4+.__a. Give a personal benefit to the candidate or another person;

2 b. Make aloan to another person;
Page No. 1 19.0422.02009
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3-___c. Knowingly pay more than the fair market value for goods or services purchased
for the campaign; or
4. d, Pay acriminalfine or civil penalty.
The secretary of state shall impose a fine e thousan llars imes the

value of the contribution used in violation of this section, whichever is higher, upon any

erson i is s
SECTION 3. A new section to chapter 16.1-08.1 of the North Dakota Century Code is
created and enacted as follows:
nd true source of funds - Required jdentification
In_ any report under this chapter which requires the identification of a contributor or.
s ntributor, the ultimate and true source of funds must be identified

SECTION 4. AMENDMENT. Section 28-32-01 of the North Dakota Century Code is

amended and reenacted as follows:

28-32-01. Definitions.

In this chapter, unless the context or subject matter otherwise provides:

1. "Adjudicative proceeding" means an administrative matter resulting in an agency
issuing an order after an opportunity for hearing is provided or required. An
adjudicative proceeding includes administrative matters involving a hearing on a
complaint against a specific-named respondent; a hearing on an application seeking a
right, privilege, or an authorization from an agency, such as a ratemaking or licensing
hearing; or a hearing on an appeal to an agency. An adjudicative proceeding includes
reconsideration, rehearing, or reopening. Once an adjudicative proceeding has begun,
the adjudicative proceeding includes any informal disposition of the administrative
matter under section 28-32-22 or another specific statute or rule, unless the matter
has been specifically converted to another type of proceeding under section 28-32-22.
An adjudicative proceeding does not include a decision or order to file or not to file a
complaint, or to initiate an investigation, an adjudicative proceeding, or any other
proceeding before the agency, or another agency, or a court. An adjudicative
proceeding does not include a decision or order to issue, reconsider, or reopen an

order that precedes an opportunity for hearing or that under another section of this

Page No. 2 19.0422.02009
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code is not subject to review in an adjudicative proceeding. An adjudicative proceeding

does not include rulemaking under this chapter.

2.  "Administrative agency" or "agency" means each board, bureau, commission,
department, or other administrative unit of the executive branch of state government,
including one or more officers, employees, or other persons directly or indirectly
purporting to act on behalf or under authority of the agency. An administrative unit
located within or subordinate to an administrative agency must be treated as part of
that agency to the extent it purports to exercise authority subject to this chapter. The
term administrative agency does not include:

a. The office of management and budget except with respect to rules made under
section 32-12.2-14, rules relating to conduct on the capitol grounds and in
buildings located on the capitol grounds under section 54-21-18, rules relating to
the classified service as authorized under section 54-44.3-07, and rules relating
to state purchasing practices as required under section 54-44.4-04.

b. The adjutant general with respect to the department of emergency services.

c. The council on the arts.

d. The state auditor.

e. The department of commerce with respect to the division of economic
development and finance.

f.  The dairy promotion commission.

The education factfinding commission.

> @

The educational technology council.

The board of equalization.

j- The board of higher education.

k. The Indian affairs commission.

I.  Theindustrial commission with respect to the activities of the Bank of North
Dakota, North Dakota housing finance agency, public finance authority, North
Dakota mill and elevator association, North Dakota farm finance agency, the
North Dakota transmission authority, and the North Dakota pipeline authority.

m. The department of corrections and rehabilitation except with respect to the

activities of the division of adult services under chapter 54-23 4.

Page No. 3 19.0422.02009
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n. The pardon advisory board.
0. The parks and recreation department.
The parole board.

p
g. The state fair association.

o

The attorney general with respect to activities of the state toxicologist and the

state crime laboratory.

s. The administrative committee on veterans' affairs except with respect to rules
relating to the supervision and government of the veterans' home and the
implementation of programs or services provided by the veterans' home.

t. The industrial commission with respect to the lignite research fund except as
required under section 57-61-01.5.

u. The attorney general with respect to guidelines adopted under section 12.1-32-15
for the risk assessment of sexual offenders, the risk level review process, and
public disclosure of information under section 12.1-32-15.

v. The commission on legal counsel for indigents.

w. The attorney general with respect to twenty-four seven sobriety program
guidelines and program fees.

x.  The industrial commission with respect to approving or setting water rates under
chapter 61-40.

"Agency head" means an individual or body of individuals in whom the ultimate legal

authority of the agency is vested by law.

"Complainant" means any person who files a complaint before an administrative

agency pursuant to section 28-32-21 and any administrative agency that, when

authorized by law, files such a complaint before such agency or any other agency.

"Ethics commission" means the North Dakota ethics commission established by article

56,

XIV of the Constitution of North Dakota.

"Hearing officer" means any agency head or one or more members of the agency
head when presiding in an administrative proceeding, or, unless prohibited by law, one
or more other persons designated by the agency head to preside in an administrative

proceeding, an administrative law judge from the office of administrative hearings, or

Page No. 4 19.0422.02009
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any other person duly assigned, appointed, or designated to preside in an
administrative proceeding pursuant to statute or rule.

"License" means a franchise, permit, certification, approval, registration, charter, or
similar form of authorization required by law.

"Order" means any agency action of particular applicability which determines the legal
rights, duties, privileges, immunities, or other legal interests of one or more specific
persons. The term does not include an executive order issued by the governor.
"Party" means each person named or admitted as a party or properly seeking and
entitled as of right to be admitted as a party. An administrative agency may be a party.
In a hearing for the suspension, revocation, or disqualification of an operator's license
under title 39, the term may include each city and each county in which the alleged
conduct occurred, but the city or county may not appeal the decision of the hearing
officer.

"Person" includes an individual, association, partnership, corporation, limited liability

company, the ethics commission, a state governmental agency or governmental

subdivision, or an agency of such governmental subdivision.

"Relevant evidence" means evidence having any tendency to make the existence of
any fact that is of consequence to the determination of the administrative action more
probable or less probable than it would be without the evidence.

"Rule" means the whole or a part of an agency or ethics commission statement of

general applicability which implements or prescribes law or policy or the organization,

procedure, or practice requirements of the agency or ethics commission. The term

includes the adoption of new rules and the amendment, repeal, or suspension of an

existing rule. The term does not include:

a. Arule concerning only the internal management of an agency or the ethics_
commission which does not directly or substantially affect the substantive or
procedural rights or duties of any segment of the public.

b. Arule that sets forth criteria or guidelines to be used by the staff of an agency or

the ethics commission in the performance of audits, investigations, inspections,

and settling commercial disputes or negotiating commercial arrangements, or in

Page No. 5 19.0422.02009
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the defense, prosecution, or settlement of cases, if the disclosure of the
statementrule would:
(1) Enable law violators to avoid detection;
(2) Facilitate disregard of requirements imposed by law; or
(3) Give a clearly improper advantage to persons who are in an adverse
position to the state.

c. Arule establishing specific prices to be charged for particular goods or services
sold by an agency.

d. Arule concerning only the physical servicing, maintenance, or care of

agency-owned ef, agency-operated, ethics commission-owned, or ethics

commission-operated facilities or property.

e. Arule relating only to the use of a particular facility or property owned, operated,
or maintained by the state or any of its subdivisions, if the substance of the rule is
adequately indicated by means of signs or signals to persons who use the facility
or property.

f.  Arule concerning only inmates of a correctional or detention facility, students
enrolled in an educational institution, or patients admitted to a hospital, if adopted
by that facility, institution, or hospital.

g. Aform whose contents or substantive requirements are prescribed by rule or
statute or are instructions for the execution or use of the form.

h. An agency or ethics commission budget.

i.  An opinion of the attorney general.

j.  Arule adopted by an agency selection committee under section 54-44.7-03.

k. Any material, including a guideline, interpretive statement, statement of general
policy, manual, brochure, or pamphlet, which is explanatory and not intended to
have the force and effect of law.

SECTION 5. AMENDMENT. Section 28-32-02 of the North Dakota Century Code is
amended and reenacted as follows:

28-32-02. Rulemaking pewer-of-ageneyauthority - Organizational rule.

1. The authority of an administrative agency to adopt administrative rules is authority

delegated by the legislative assembly. As part of that delegation, the legislative

Page No. 6 19.0422.02009
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assembly reserves to itself the authority to determine when and if rules of
administrative agencies are effective. Every administrative agency may adopt, amend,
or repeal reasonable rules in conformity with this chapter and any statute administered
or enforced by the agency.

In addition to other rulemaking requirements imposed by law, each agency may
include in its rules a description of that portion of its organization and functions subject
to this chapter and may include a statement of the general course and method of its
operations and how the public may obtain information or make submissions or
requests.

The authority of the ethics commission to adopt rules arises from article XIV of the

Constitution of North Dakota. The ethics commission shall follow the process, and

meet the requirements, in this chapter to adopt, amend, or repeal its rules.

SECTION 6. AMENDMENT. Section 28-32-03 of the North Dakota Century Code is

amended and reenacted as follows:

28-32-03. Emergency rules.

il

If the ethies-eemmission-er-an-agency, with the approval of the governor, or the ethics

commission _finds that emergency rulemaking is necessary, the ethics commission or

agency may declare the proposed rule to be an interim final rule effective on a date no

earlier than the date of filing with the legislative council of the notice required by

section 28-32-10.

A proposed rule may be given effect on an emergency basis under this section if any

of the following grounds exists regarding that rule:

a. Imminent peril threatens public health, safety, or welfare, which would be abated
by emergency effectiveness;

b. Adelay in the effective date of the rule is likely to cause a loss of funds

appropriated to support a duty imposed by law upon the ethics commission or

agency;
c. Emergency effectiveness is reasonably necessary to avoid a delay in
implementing an appropriations measure; or

d. Emergency effectiveness is necessary to meet a mandate of federal law.

Page No. 7 19.0422.02009
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3. Afinal rule adopted after consideration of all written and oral submissions respecting
the interim final rule, which is substantially similar to the interim final rule, is effective
as of the declared effective date of the interim final rule.

4. The ethics commission's or agency's finding, and a brief statement of the ethics

commission's or agency's reasons for the finding, must be filed with the legislative

council with the final adopted emergency rule.

5. The ethics commission or agency shall attempt to make interim final rules known to

persons who the ethics commission or agency can reasonably be expected to believe

may have a substantial interest in them. As used in this subsection, "substantial
interest" means an interest in the effect of the rules which surpasses the common

interest of all citizens. ArThe ethics commission or an agency adopting emergency

rules shall comply with the notice requirements of section 28-32-10 which relate to
emergency rules and shall provide notice to the chairman of the administrative rules
committee of the emergency status, declared effective date, and grounds for
emergency status of the rules under subsection 2. When notice of emergency rule
adoption is received, the legislative council shall publish the notice and emergency
rules on its website.

6. Aninterim final rule is ineffective one hundred eighty days after its declared effective
date unless first adopted as a final rule.

SECTION 7. AMENDMENT. Section 28-32-06 of the North Dakota Century Code is

amended and reenacted as follows:
28-32-06. Force and effect of rules.
Upon becoming effective, rules have the force and effect of law until amended or repealed

by the agency or ethics commission, declared invalid by a final court decision, suspended or

found to be void by the administrative rules committee, or determined repealed by the
legislative council because the authority for adoption of the rules is repealed or transferred to
another agency, or the Constitution of North Dakota is amended to eliminate the authority.

SECTION 8. AMENDMENT. Section 28-32-07 of the North Dakota Century Code is

amended and reenacted as follows:

Page No. 8 19.0422.02009
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28-32-07. Deadline for rules to implement statutory change.

-

Any rule change, including a creation, amendment, or repeal, made to implement a
statutory change must be adopted and filed with the legislative council within nine months of the

effective date of the statutory change. If an agency or the ethics commission needs additional

time for the rule change, a request for additional time must be made to the legislative council.

The legislative council may extend the time within which the agency or ethics commission must

adopt the rule change if the request by the agency or ethics commission is supported by

evidence that the agency or ethics commission needs more time through no deliberate fault of

its own.

SECTION 9. AMENDMENT. Section 28-32-08 of the North Dakota Century Code is
amended and reenacted as follows:

28-32-08. Regulatory analysis.

1. An agency or the ethics commission shall issue a regulatory analysis of a proposed

rule if:

a. Within twenty days after the last published notice date of a proposed rule
hearing, a written request for the analysis is filed by the governor or a member of
the legislative assembly; or

b. The proposed rule is expected to have an impact on the regulated community in
excess of fifty thousand dollars. The analysis under this subdivision must be
available on or before the first date of public notice as provided for in section
28-32-10.

2. Theregulatory analysis must contain:

a. Adescription of the classes of persons who probably will be affected by the
proposed rule, including classes that will bear the costs of the proposed rule and
classes that will benefit from the proposed rule;

b. Adescription of the probable impact, including economic impact, of the proposed
rule;

c. The probable costs to the agency or ethics commission of the implementation

and enforcement of the proposed rule and any anticipated effect on state

revenues; and
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d. A description of any alternative methods for achieving the purpose of the

proposed rule that were seriously considered by the agency or ethics commission

and the reasons why the methods were rejected in favor of the proposed rule.
3.  Each regulatory analysis must include quantification of the data to the extent
practicable.

4. The agency or ethics commission shall mail or deliver a copy of the regulatory analysis

to any person who requests a copy of the regulatory analysis. The agency or ethics_
commission may charge a fee for a copy of the regulatory analysis as allowed under
section 44-04-18.

5. If required under subsection 1, the preparation and issuance of a regulatory analysis is

a mandatory duty of the agency or ethics commission proposing a rule. Errors in a

regulatory analysis, including erroneous determinations concerning the impact of the
proposed rule on the regulated community, are not a ground upon which the invalidity
of a rule may be asserted or declared.
SECTION 10. AMENDMENT. Subsection 5 of section 28-32-08.1 of the North Dakota
Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

5. This section does not apply to the ethics commission, any agency that is an

occupational or professional licensing authority, rer-dees-this-seetion-apply-toor the

following agencies or divisions of agencies:

a. Council on the arts.

b. Beefcommission.

c. Dairy promotion commission.
d. Dry bean council.

e. Highway patrolmen's retirement board.
f.  Indian affairs commission.

g. Board for Indian scholarships.

h. State personnel board.

i. Potato council.

j- Board of public school education.

k. Real estate trust account committee.

I.  Seed commission.
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m.
n.
0.
p.
g.

Soil conservation committee.
Oilseed council.

Wheat commission.

State seed arbitration board.

North Dakota lottery.

SECTION 11. AMENDMENT. Section 28-32-08.2 of the North Dakota Century Code is

amended and reenacted as follows:

28-32-08.2. Fiscal notes for administrative rules.

When an agency or the ethics commission presents rules for administrative rules committee

consideration, the agency or ethics commission shall provide a fiscal note or a statement in its

testimony that the rules have no fiscal effect. A fiscal note must reflect the effect of the rules

changes on state revenues and expenditures, including any effect on funds controlled by the

agency or ethics commission.

SECTION 12. AMENDMENT. Section 28-32-09 of the North Dakota Century Code is

amended and reenacted as follows:

28-32-09. Takings assessment.

1. An agency or the ethics commission shall prepare a written assessment of the

constitutional takings implications of a proposed rule that may limit the use of private

real property. The ageney's assessment must:

a.

Assess the likelihood that the proposed rule may result in a taking or regulatory
taking.

Clearly and specifically identify the purpose of the proposed rule.

Explain why the proposed rule is necessary to substantially advance that purpose
and why no alternative action is available that would achieve the agency's or_

ethics commission's goals while reducing the impact on private property owners.

Estimate the potential cost to the government if a court determines that the

proposed rule constitutes a taking or regulatory taking.

Identify the source of payment within the agency's or ethics commission's budget
for any compensation that may be ordered.
Certify that the benefits of the proposed rule exceed the estimated compensation

costs.
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1 2. Any private landowner who is or may be affected by a rule that limits the use of the
2 landowner's private real property may request in writing that the agency or ethics
3 commission reconsider the application or need for the rule. Within thirty days of
4 receiving the request, the agency or ethics commission shall consider the request and
5 shall in writing inform the landowner whether the agency or ethics commission intends
6 to keep the rule in place, modify application of the rule, or repeal the rule.
7 3. In an ageney's analysis of the takings implications of a proposed rule, "taking" means
8 the taking of private real property, as defined in section 47-01-03, by government
9 action which requires compensation to the owner of that property by the fifth or
10 fourteenth amendment to the Constitution of the United States or section 16 of article |
11 of the Constitution of North Dakota. "Regulatory taking" means a taking of real
12 property through the exercise of the police and regulatory powers of the state which
13 reduces the value of the real property by more than fifty percent. However, the
14 exercise of a police or regulatory power does not effect a taking if it substantially
15 advances legitimate state interests, does not deny an owner economically viable use
16 of the owner's land, or is in accordance with applicable state or federal law.
17 SECTION 13. AMENDMENT. Section 28-32-10 of the North Dakota Century Code is
18 amended and reenacted as follows:
19 28-32-10. Notice of rulemaking - Hearing date.
20 1. An agency or the ethics commission shall prepare a full notice and an abbreviated
21 notice of rulemaking.
22 a. The ageney's full notice of the proposed adoption, amendment, or repeal of a rule
23 must include a short, specific explanation of the proposed rule and the purpose of
24 the proposed rule, identify the emergency status and declared effective date of
25 any emergency rules, include a determination of whether the proposed
26 rulemaking is expected to have an impact on the regulated community in excess
27 of fifty thousand dollars, identify at least one location where interested persons
28 may review the text of the proposed rule, provide the address to which written
29 comments concerning the proposed rule may be sent, provide the deadline for
30 submission of written comments, provide a telephone number and post-office or
31 electronic mail address at which a copy of the rules and regulatory analysis may
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be requested, and, in the case of a substantive rule, provide the time and place
set for each oral hearing. FheAn agency's full notice must include a statement of
the bill number and general subject matter of any legislation, enacted during the

most recent session of the legislative assembly, which is being implemented by

the proposed rule. The ethics commission's full notice must include a statement

of the provision of the Constitution of North Dakota or the bill number and general

subject matter of any legislation being implemented by the proposed rule. The

ageney's full notice must be filed with the legislative council, accompanied by a
copy of the proposed rules.

The agency or ethics commission shall request publication of an abbreviated

newspaper publication notice at least once in each official county newspaper
published in this state. The abbreviated newspaper publication of notice must be
in a display-type format with a minimum width of one column of approximately
two inches [5.08 centimeters] and a minimum depth of approximately three
inches [7.62 centimeters] and with a headline describing the general topic of the
proposed rules. The notice must also include the telephone number or address to
use to obtain a copy of the proposed rules, identification of the emergency status
and declared effective date of any emergency rules, the address to use and the
deadline to submit written comments, and the location, date, and time of the

public hearing on the rules.

2. The agency or ethics commission shall mail or deliver by electronic mail a copy of the

ageney's full notice and proposed rule to each member of the legislative assembly

whose name appeared as a sponsor or cosponsor of legislation, enacted during the

most recent session of the legislative assembly, which is being implemented by the

proposed rule and to each person who has made a timely request to the agency or

ethics commission for a copy of the notice and proposed rule. The agency or ethics

commission may mail or otherwise provide a copy of the ageney's full notice to any

person who is likely to be an interested person. The agency or ethics commission may

charge persons who are not members of the legislative assembly fees for copies of

the proposed rule as allowed under section 44-04-18.
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3.

In addition to the other notice requirements of this subsection, the superintendent of
public instruction shall provide notice of any proposed rulemaking by the
superintendent of public instruction to each association with statewide membership
whose primary focus is elementary and secondary education issues which has
requested to receive notice from the superintendent under this subsection and to the
superintendent of each public school district in this state, or the president of the school
board for school districts that have no superintendent, at least twenty days before the
date of the hearing described in the notice. Notice provided by the superintendent of
public instruction under this section must be by first-class mail. However, upon request
of a group or person entitled to notice under this section, the superintendent of public
instruction shall provide the group or person notice by electronic mail.

The legislative council shall establish standard procedures for the ethics commission

and all agencies to follow in complying with the provisions of this section and a
procedure to allow any person to request and receive mailed copies of all filings made
by agencies and the ethics commission pursuant to this section. The legislative council
may charge an annual fee as established by the administrative rules committee for
providing copies of the filings.

At least twenty days must elapse between the date of the publication of the notice and
the date of the hearing. Within fifteen business days after receipt of a notice under this
section, a copy of the notice must be mailed by the legislative council to any person

who has paid the annual fee established under subsection 4.

SECTION 14. AMENDMENT. Section 28-32-11 of the North Dakota Century Code is

amended and reenacted as follows:

28-32-11. Conduct of hearings - Notice of administrative rules committee

consideration - Consideration and written record of comments.

The agency or ethics commission shall adopt a procedure whereby all interested persons

are afforded reasonable opportunity to submit data, views, or arguments, orally or in writing,

concerning the proposed rule, including data respecting the impact of the proposed rule. The

agency or ethics commission shall adopt a procedure to allow interested parties to request and

receive notice from the agency or ethics commission of the date and place the rule will be

reviewed by the administrative rules committee. In case of substantive rules, the agency or.
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ethics commission shall conduct an oral hearing. The agency or ethics commission shall

consider fully all written and oral submissions respecting a proposed rule prior to the adoption,

amendment, or repeal of any rule not of an emergency nature. The agency or ethics

commission shall make a written record of its consideration of all written and oral submissions
contained in the rulemaking record respecting a proposed rule.

SECTION 15. AMENDMENT. Section 28-32-12 of the North Dakota Century Code is
amended and reenacted as follows:

28-32-12. Comment period.

The agency or ethics commission shall allow, after the conclusion of any rulemaking

hearing, a comment period of at least ten days during which data, views, or arguments

concerning the proposed rulemaking will be received by the agency or ethics commission and

made a part of the rulemaking record to be considered by the agency or ethics commission.
SEGHON 16-AMENDMENT-Seetion-28-32-14-of the-North-Daketa-Gentury-Gode-is-

amended-and-reenacted-as-follows:

—28-32-14-Attorney-general-review-of rules:

——FEvery-propoesed-rule-proposed-by-any-administrative-agenecy-must-be-submitted-to-the

atterney-general-for an-opinion-as-te-itslegality-before-final-adoption-and-the-attorney-general

promptly shall furnish each such opinion- The atterney general may not approve any rule-aste-

legality—and-shall-advise-the-ageney-or-ethics-commission-of any-neeessary-rewerding-of

revision-ef the-rule-when-the:

——1—TFhe rule-exceeds-the-statutory-autherity of the-agency.-or the statutery-er eenstitutional
atthority-of the-ethies- issien:

——2—Fhe-rule-is-written in a manner that is not eoneise or easily understandable: er when
the

——3-—TFhe proeedural requirements for adoption-of the-rule-in-this-chapterare-net-
substantially-met-The-attorney-general-shall-advise-an-ageney-ef-any-revision-of
rewording-of a-rule-neeessary-to-correct-objections-a s-to-legality:

SECTION 16. AMENDMENT. Section 28-32-15 of the North Dakota Century Code is

amended and reenacted as follows:
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28-32-15. Filing of rules for publication - Effective date of rules.

1. A copy of each rule adopted by an administrative agency or the ethics commission, a

copy of each written comment and a written summary of each oral comment on the

rule, and the attorney general's opinion on the rule must be filed by the adopting

agency or ethics commission with the legislative council for publication of the rule in
the North Dakota Administrative Code.
2. a. Nonemergency rules approved by the attorney general as to legality, adopted by

an administrative agency or the ethics commission, ard filed with the legislative

council, and not voided or held for consideration by the administrative rules

committee become effective according to the following schedule:

(1) Rules filed with the legislative council from August second through
November first become effective on the immediately succeeding January
first.

(2) Rules filed with the legislative council from November second through
February first become effective on the immediately succeeding April first.

(3) Rules filed with the legislative council from February second through May
first become effective on the immediately succeeding July first.

(4) Rules filed with the legislative council from May second through August first
become effective on the immediately succeeding October first.

b. If publication is delayed for any reason other than action of the administrative
rules committee, nonemergency rules, unless otherwise provided, become
effective when publication would have occurred but for the delay.

c. Arule held for consideration by the administrative rules committee becomes
effective on the first effective date of rules under the schedule in subdivision a
following the meeting at which that rule is reconsidered by the committee.

SECTION 17. AMENDMENT. Section 28-32-16 of the North Dakota Century Code is
amended and reenacted as follows:

28-32-16. Petition for reconsideration of rule - Hearing by-ageney.

Any person substantially interested in the effect of a rule adopted by an administrative

agency or the ethics commission may petition suekhthe agency or ethics commission for a

reconsideration of any-suehthe rule or for an amendment or repeal thereef-Suehof the rule. The
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petition must state clearly and concisely the petitioners' alleged grounds for sueh-
reconsideration or fer the proposed repeal or amendment of suehthe rule. The agency or ethics
commission may grant the petitioner a public hearing apen-suehon the terms and conditions as-
the agency may-preseribeor ethics commission prescribes.

——SEGHON 19. AMENDMENT.- Scetion 28-32-17 of the Nerth Daketa Gentury-Gede-is-
amended-and-reenacted-as-follows:

——28-32-47-Administrative-rules- ecommittee-objection.

——H the legislative-manragement's administrative rules-committee objects to all- oF any portion-
of a rule beeause the committee deems it to be unreasenable, arbitrary, eapricious, oF beyond
the-authority-delegated-to-the-adopting-ageney-or-ethies-commission; the-committee-may-file-
that-objection-in-certificd-form-with-the-legislative-eouneil-The-filed-ebjection-must-eontain-a

eoncise-statement-of the-committee's-reasonsfor-its-action:
1—Thelegislative-council-shall-attach-to-each-objection-a-certification-of the time-and-date
of-its-filing-and,-as-soon-as-pessible-shall- transmit-a-copy-of the-objection-and-the-
legislative-eouneil-also-shall-maintain-a-permanent-register-of all-ecommitice-objections:
—2—Thelegislative-couneit- shall-publish-an-objection-filed-pursuant to this section-in-the
next-issue-of the-code-supplement-ln-case-of-a-filed-committee-objection-to-a-rule-
subjeet-to-the-exceptions-of the-definition-of rule-in-seetion-28-32-04;-the-ageney of
ethies-commission-shall-indicate-the-existence-of-that ebjection-adjacent-to-the-rule-in-
any-compilation-containing-that-rule:
3.—Within fourtcen-days-after the filing-of a-commitice-objection-to-a-rule; the adopting

agenecy of ethies commission shall respend in writing to the commitice. After receipt of
the-respense;-the-committee-may-withdraw-of meodify-its-objection:

——4—Afterthe-filing-of a-commitice-objection-the-burden-of persuasion-is-upon-the-ageney
of ethies eommission in any action for judicial review or for enforcement ef the rule to
establish-that the-whele-or-portion therecofef the rule ebjected to-is within the
procedurat-and-substantive-autherity-delegated-to-the-ageney-or-ethies-ecommission—tf-
the-ageney-or-ethies-commission fails to-meetits-burden-of persuasion;the-court shall
deelare-the whele-or-portion-of the-rule-objected-to-invalid-and-judgment mustbe-

rendered against the ageney of ethies-commission for eourt costs-Fhese court eosts
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mustinclude a reasenable atterney's fee-and-must-be-payable-from-the-appropriation
of-the-agency-or-ethies-commission-which-adopted-the-rule-in-gquestion:
——SEGTION-20- AMENDMENT--Section-28-32-18-of the-North-Daketa-Gentury Gede is
amended-and-reenacted-as-follows:
——28-32-18-Administrative-rules-committee may void-rule - Grounds—-Amendment by

agreement of ageney-ahd committee:

——1—TFhe-legistative-management's-administrative-rules-committee-may find that alt erany
portion-of-a-rule-is-void-if that-rule-is-initially-considered-by-the-committee-notlaterthan-
the-fifteenth-day-of the-month-before-the-date-of the-administrative-code-supplement-in-

find-a-rule-or-portion-ef-a-rule-void-if the-ecommittee-makes the speeific finding-that-with-
regard-to-that rule-or-pertion-of a-rule;-there-is:
&—An-absenee-of statutery-autherity- under statute or the-eenstitution:

——b—An-emergeney-relating-to-public-health-safety-erwelfare:

—e—AFor rules-propesed-by-an-ageney.-a failure to- comply with-express legislative-
intent-or to-substantially-meetthe-proeedural requirements-of this-chapter for-
adeption-of the-rule:

——d—Forrules-propesed-by-the-ethies-commission—afailure-to-substantially-meet-the-
proeedural-requirements-for this-ehapter for-adeption-of the-rule:

— & Aconflict with state law

e.£—Arbitrariness-and-capriciousness:

f.g-—Afailure to-malke a written-reeord- of its-consideration-of written-and-oral-
submissions-respeeting-the-rule-under-seetion-28-32-14-

——2.—The administrative rules committee may find a rule void at the meeting at which the:

rale is initially eonsidered by the commitiee of may hold eonsideration of that rule for

one subsequent meeting-H-ro-representative-of the-ageney-or ethies-commission-

appears befere the administrative rales committee when rules are seheduled for

committee-consideration-those-rules-are-held-ever-for-consideration-atthe-next-

subsequent-committee-meeting-Rules-are-not-considered-initially-considered-by-the-

commission appears befoere the administrative rules committee ywhen the rules are:
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scheduled-for ecommitiee-consideration-if-no-representative-ef the-ageney-or-ethies-
commission appears before the administrative rules committee meeting to whiech rules
are held ever for consideration, the rules are void-if the-rules were-adepted-as
emergeney rules and for rules not-adopted as emergeney rules the administrative-
rules-committee-may veoid-the rules; allew the rules-to-become-effective; orheld ever
eonsideration-of the-rules-to-the-next-subsequent-committee-meeting-Within-three-
business-days- after-the-administrative-rules-committee-finds-that-a- rule -is-veid; the-
legistative eouneil shall provide written notiee of that finding and the committee's
speeifie finding-under subdivisions-a-threugh f of subsection-1-to-the-adepting-ageney-
of-ethies-eommmission-and-te-the-chairman-of the-legislative-management-Within-

may file a petition with the chairman of the legislative management for review by the
legislative-management-of the-decision-of the-administrative-rules-committeetf the-
adopting-ageney-or-ethies-commission-does-net-file-a-petition-for-review, the-rule-
beeomes void on the fifteenth day afterthe netice- from the legislative-eeuneil-to-the-
adepting-ageney-of-ethies-commission—tF-within-shety-days-after receipt-of the-petition
fromr-the-adopting-ageney-ef-ethies-commmission the-legistative managementhas-not-
disapproved-by-metion-the finding-of the-administrative-rules-commitiee, the rule-is-
void:

related rule-if - after consideration of rules by the administrative rules eommittee, the

ageneyor ethies commission and the-committee-agree that the-rule-amendment:-
-OF efeation is-neeessary to-address ef the- j iens under
5 ior 1. A rale amended, d.-oF- gnder this subsesction is-n

rules and -be- ished by the legisiative eouneil as amended, SOF
- i requested-by the agen ies-commission-of -irter d- a-fule-
amended, ed, of -  this-subseetion must-be- asidered by the

‘at whieh public eomment en
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— - SECGTHION 21. AMENDMENT. Seection 28-32-18.1-of the North-Daketa Century-Code-is-
amended and reehacted as follows:

——28-32-18:1-Administrative-rules-committee-review-of existing-administrative rules:
——4-—Upen-request by the administrative rules eommittee-an-administrative-ageney efthe-

ethies-eommission-shal-briefthe-committec-on-ts-existing-administrative-rules-and-
point-out-any-provisions-that appear to-be-obseolete and-any-areas-in-which-statutory of
constitutiopal-authority-has-changed-orbeen-repealed-sinee-the-rules-were-adopted-or
amended:

—2—An-ageney-of- the-ethies-eommission-may-amend-orrepeat-a-rule-witheut-complying-

with-the-otherrequirements-of this-ehapter relating-to-adoption-of administrative-rules
and-may-resubmitthe-change-to-the-legislative-council-for-publication-provided:

———a—Fhe ageney oF ethies eommission initiates the request to the administrative rules

committee for consideration-of the amendment oF repeal:

——b—The-ageney-or-cthies-commission-provides-notice-to-the-regulated-community;-in

a-mannRer-reasenably-caleulated-to-provide-notice-to-those-persons-interested-in-
the rule; ef the time and place the administrative rules eommittee will eonsider the
request for-amendment-or repeal-of-the-rule:-and

———e—Fhe-ageney-or-ethies-commission-and-the-administrative-rules-committee-agree-

the-rule-amendment-or-repeal-eliminates-a-provision-that-is-ebselete-or-nro-longer-
in-compliance-with-law-and-that-n o-detriment- would-result-to-the-substantive-
rights-ef the regulated eemmunity from the amendment of repeak:

SECTION 18. AMENDMENT. Subsection 2 of section 28-32-19 of the North Dakota Century

Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

2.

The legislative council may prescribe athe format, style, and arrangement for rules
whieh-are to be published in the code and may refuse to accept the filing of any rule

that is not in substantial compliance therewithwith the format, style, and arrangement.

In arranging rules for publication, the legislative council may make sueh corrections in
spelling, grammatical construction, format, and punctuation of the rules as

determinedthe legislative council determines are proper. The legislative council shall

keep and maintain a permanent code of all rules filed, including superseded and

repealed rules, which must be open to public inspection during office hours.
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SECTION 19. AMENDMENT. Subsection 4 of section 28-32-19 of the North Dakota

Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

4.

The legislative council, with the consent of the adopting agency or ethics commission,

may omit from the code or code supplement any rule the publication of which would be

unduly cumbersome, expensive, or otherwise inexpedient, if the rule in printed or

duplicated form is made available on application to the agency or ethics commission
and if the code or code supplement contains a notice stating the general subject

matter of the omitted rule and stating how a copy may be obtained.

SECTION 20. Chapter 54-66 of the North Dakota Century Code is created and enacted as

follows:

54-66-01. Definitions.

For purposes of this chapter and article X1V of the Constitution of North Dakota, unless the
context otherwise requires:

il

"Accused individual" means an individual who is alleged to have violated article XIV of

the Constitution of North Dakota, this chapter, or another law or rule regarding

government ethics.

"Complainant" means an individual who, in writing or verbally, submits a complaint to.

the ethics commission.

"Complaint" means a verbal or written allegation to the ethics commission that article

XIV of the Constitution of North Dakota, this chapter, or another law or rule regarding.

government ethics has been violated.

"Ethics commission" means the North Dakota state ethics commission established
under article XIV of the Constitution of North Dakota.

"Gift" means any item, service, or thing of value not given in exchange for fair market

consideration including travel and recreation. "Gift" does not mean:

a.  Purely informational material;

b. A campaign contribution;

c. To advance opportunities for state residents to meet with public officials in.

educational and social settings in the state, any item, service, or thing of value

given under conditions that do not raise ethical concerns as set forth in rules

adopted by the ethics commission;
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d. Meals and other items provided in social settings to which twenty-five or more

public officials were invited; and

e Meals and other items provided in social settings to which the general public is

invited with at least seventy-two hours of advance notice.

6. "Lobbyist":

a. Means a person who, directly or indirectly:

(1) Attempts to secure the passage, amendment, or defeat of any legislation by

the legislative assembily;

(2) Attempts to secure the approval or veto of any legislation by the governor;
Q)

Attempts to influence decisions regarding legislative matters made by the.

legislative management or a legislative committee; or

(4) Attempts to influence decisions regarding official matters made by a public

official in the executive branch of state government.

b. Does not mean:

(1) Aprivate citizen appearing on the citizen's own behalf; or

(2) Apublic official or an employee, officer, board member, volunteer, or agent

of the state or its political subdivisions acting in the individual's official

capacity.

"Public official" means an elected or appointed official of the state's executive or.

legislative branch, members of the ethics commission. members of the governor's

cabinet, and employees of the legislative branch.

"Receives the complaint" means one or more members of the ethics commission learn

of the complaint.

"Ultimate and true source" means the person that knowingly contributed over two

hundred dollars, adjusted for inflation, to lobby or influence state government action

54-66-02. Ethics commission Members - Appointments - Compensation.

1

The maijority leader of the senate, the minority leader of the senate, and the governor

shall appoint the five members of the ethics commission by consensus agreement for

four-year terms, except all vacancies must be filled for the unexpired term. The terms

of the initial members must begin on or before July 1, 2019, and be staggered to_

ensure no more than two members' terms expire in one year. The terms of the initial
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members may be less than four years to accommodate the required staggering of
terms.

2. Ethics commission members are entitled to:

a. Compensation per day for each day necessarily spent conducting ethics

commission business in the amount provided for members of the leqgislative

management under section 54-35-10; and

b. Payment for mileage and travel expenses necessarily incurred in the conduct of

ethics commission business as provided under sections 44-08-04 and 54-06-09.

54-66-03. Ethics commission staff.

The ethics commission shall appoint an executive director and other staff necessary to

assist the ethics commission in carrying out its duties.

54-66-04. Ethics commission office.

The director of the office of management and budget shall allocate office space in the state

capitol for the ethics commission, or, if office space in the capitol is unavailable, shall negotiate

for, contract for, and obtain office space for the ethics commission in the city of Bismarck or in

the Bismarck area. The ethics commission's office space may not be located in the office space

of any other government agency, board. commission, or other governmental entity, and must

provide sufficient privacy and security for the ethics commission to conduct its business. The

director shall charge the ethics commission an amount equal to the fair value of the office space

and related services the office of management and budget renders to the ethics commission.

54-66-05. Making a complaint - Informing the accused individual.

A complaint may be made to the ethics commission verbally or in writing. The ethics

commission shall inform the accused individual the ethics commission received a complaint

against the accused individual as soon as reasonably possible. If the complaint was made in

writing, the ethics commission shall provide a copy of the complaint to the accused individual no

later than twenty calendar days after the ethics commission receives the complaint. If the

complaint was made verbally, the ethics commission shall inform the accused individual of the

allegations and other information provided in the complaint no later than twenty calendar days

after the ethics commission receives the complaint.
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54-66-06. Informal resolution.

The ethics commission may attempt to negotiate or mediate an informal resolution between

the accused individual and the complainant after receiving a complaint.

54-66-07. Investigations and referrals.

1

The ethics commission may investigate a complaint if the accused individual and the

complainant have not agreed on an informal resolution. An investigation must include

separate interviews with the accused individual and the complainant, unless the

accused individual or complainant refuses to be interviewed, and consideration of the
circumstances surrounding the allegations.

The ethics commission may refer a matter described in or arising from a complaint to

the bureau of criminal investigation or other appropriate law enforcement agency if a.

majority of the ethics commission members reasonably believes a crime was

committed or the safety of the complainant is at risk.

54-66-08. Investigation findings - Penalties.

1

At the conclusion of an investigation, the ethics commission shall issue its written

findings to the accused individual and complainant.

The findings must state whether the ethics commission believes, based on a

preponderance of the evidence as viewed by a reasonable person, a violation of

article XIV of the Constitution of North Dakota, this chapter, or another law or rule

regarding government ethics occurred. The accused individual and complainant may

respond in writing to the findings within twenty calendar days of receiving the findings.

The ethics commission shall maintain copies of the findings and any written response

to the findings.

If the ethics commission finds a violation occurred, the ethics commission may impose

a penalty specified by law for the violation.

54-66-09. Appeals.
An accused individual or complainant may appeal a finding of the ethics commission to the

54-66-10. Confidential information - Penalty.

1

The following information is a confidential record as defined in section 44-04-17.1 until

the ethics commission issues its findings regarding the relevant complaint, except the
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information may be disclosed as required by law or as necessary to conduct an

investigation arising from the complaint:

a. Information revealing the contents of a complaint;

b. Information that reasonably may be used to identify an accused individual or

complainant; and

c. Information relating to or created as part of an investigation of a complaint.

2. Information relating to or created as part of an informal resolution of a complaint is

confidential except the information may be disclosed by the complainant and the

accused individual.

3. A public official who knowinaly violates this section is quilty of a class C felony.

54-66-11. Restriction on lobbying by public officials - Penality.
A knowing violation of subsection 2 of section 2 of article XIV of the Constitution of North

Dakota is a class A misdemeanor. The ethics commission shall impose a fine of up to teprone

thousand dollars upon any person that knowingly violates the subsection.
54-66-12. Lobbyist delivery of campaign contributions prohibited - Penalty.

A knowing violation of subsection 3 of section 2 of article XIV of the Constitution of North

Dakota is a class A misdemeanor. The ethics commission shall impose a fine of up to ter-

theusandfive hundred dollars upon any person that i

ethics commission may impose a fine of up to fiftyone thousand dollars fer-eaeh-violatior-ef the-

etienp upon an rson that-vielatesfor a seco ing violati the
subsection mere-than-enee-within-a-twelre-month-peried.

54-66-13. Attorney general to provide legal services.

The attorney general shall serve as legal counsel for the ethics commission, unless the

ethics commission objects to the representation by the attorney general in a specific matter.

When a conflict of interest prevents the attorney general from providing legal services to the

ethics commission, the attorney general may appoint a special assistant attorney general to

serve as legal counsel for the commission.
——SEGTION-22-LEGISLATIVE-MANAGEMENT-STUDY--During-the 2019-2020-interim,-the-
legislative-management-shall-eonsider studying-subseetion-2-of seetion-1-of article XIV-and
subseetions 1 and 5 of seetion 2 of article XI\-of the Gonstitution - of North-Daketa; and the-
respensibilities-of the-legislative-assembly-underthose-provisions-Fhelegislative-management-
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shall reportits findings-and recommendations-together with-any legislation-neeessary to
implement the recommendations; to the sixty-seventh legislative-assembly:

54-66-14. Disclosure of ultimate and true source of funds.

A person who expends an amount greater than two hundred dollars, adjusted for inflation,_

to lobby or influence state government, other than to influence a statewide election or election

for the legislative assembly. shall re he ultimate and true source of funds for th

expenditure to the secretary of state.
54-66-15. Lobbyist gifts - Penalty,

and a public official may not accept a gift from a lobbyist knowingly. For the first violation, the

secretary of state shall impose a fine of five hundred dollars upon any person who violates this

section. For a second and subsequent violation of this section, the person is guilty of an

infraction.

54-66-16. Lobbyist requirements.

A person who meets the definition of a lobbyist under this chapter and article XIV of the

Constitution of North Dakota is not required to comply with the requirements of chapter 54-05.1,

unless the person also meets the definition of a lobbyist under section 54-05.1-02.

SECTION 21. APPROPRIATION. The funds provided in this section, or so much of the

funds as may be necessary, are appropriated out of any moneys in the general fund in the state
treasury, not otherwise appropriated, to the North Dakota ethics commission for the purpose of
defraying the expenses of the commission, for the biennium beginning July 1, 2019, and ending

June 30, 2021, as follows:

Appropriation
Salaries-and expenses - $764 736
Salaries and expenses $214.800
Operating expenses 207.200
Fetal-general-fund $964,936
Total general fund — 422
Full-time equivalent positions 3.00
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19.0422.02005 Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for
Title. Senator Mathern
February 11, 2019

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2148
Page 1, line 3, remove "to amend and"
Page 1, remove lines 4 through 7

Page 1, line 8, replace "rulemaking procedures and requirements for the North Dakota ethics
commission" with "to provide a statement of legislative intent"

Page 1, line 9, remove "and"

Page 1, line 9, after "appropriation" insert "; and to declare an emergency"
Page 1, remove lines 11 through 24
Page 2, remove lines 1 through 30
Page 3, remove lines 1 through 30
Page 4, remove lines 1 through 30
Page 5, remove lines 1 through 29
Page 6, remove lines 1 through 31
Page 7, remove lines 1 through 31
Page 8, remove lines 1 through 31
Page 9, remove lines 1 through 31
Page 10, remove lines 1 through 30
Page 11, remove lines 1 through 31
Page 12, remove lines 1 through 31
Page 13, remove lines 1 through 31
Page 14, remove lines 1 through 30
Page 15, remove lines 1 through 29
Page 16, remove lines 1 through 31
Page 17, remove lines 1 through 31
Page 18, remove lines 1 through 31
Page 19, remove lines 1 through 31
Page 20, removes lines 1 through 11

Page 20, line 15, after "1." insert "For purposes of this chapter, unless the context otherwise
requires:

a.
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Page 20, line 18, replace "2." with "b."
Page 20, line 20, replace "3." with "c."
Page 20, line 23, replace "4." with "d." .
Page 20, remove lines 25 through 31

Page 21, remove lines 1 through 12

Page 21, line 13, replace "8." with "e."

Page 21, after line 14, insert:
"2. For purposes of article XIV of the Constitution of North Dakota, "lobbyist":

a. Means a person who, directly or indirectly:

(1) Attempts to secure the passage, amendment, or defeat of any
legislation by the legislative assembly;

(2) Attempts to secure the approval or veto of any legislation by the
governor;
(3) Attempts to influence decisions regarding legislative matters

made by the leqislative management or a leqislative committee;
or

(4) Attempts to influence decisions regarding official matters made
by a public official in the executive branch of state government.

Does not mean: ‘

(1) A private citizen appearing on the citizen's own behalf; or

[

(2) A public official or an employee, officer, board member,
volunteer, or agent of the state or its political subdivisions acting
in the individual's official capacity."

Page 23, line 17, replace "until" with "unless"

Page 23, line 18, replace "issues its findings regarding the relevant complaint" with "has
determined the accused individual violated article XIV of the Constitution of North
Dakota, this chapter, or another law or rule reqarding government ethics"

Page 23, line 25, after "2." insert "If a complaint is informally resolved under section 54-66-06,
the following information is a confidential record as defined in section 44-04-17.1,
except the information may be disclosed as required by law:

a. Information revealing the contents of the complaint;

b. Information that reasonably may be used to identify the accused
individual or complainant;

c. Information relating to or created as part of the process leading to the
informal resolution; and
d. Information revealing the informal resolution.
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Page 24, after line 11, insert:

"54-66-14. Personal use of contributions prohibited - Penalty.

The ethics commission shall impose a fine of up to ten thousand dollars upon
any person that violates section 16.1-08.1-04.1. The ethics commission may impose a
fine of up to fifty thousand dollars per violation upon any person who violates section
16.1-08.1-04.1 more than once in a twelve-month period. Fines imposed under this
section are in addition to any fines imposed under section 16.1-08.1-07 for a violation
of section 16.1-08.1-04.1.

SECTION 2. LEGISLATIVE INTENT STATEMENT - CONSTITUTIONAL
EFFECTIVE DATES - PENALTIES.

1.  Subsection 2 of section 1 of article XIV of the Constitution of North Dakota
requires the legislative assembly to implement and enforce the subsection
by enacting laws by January 5, 2022, which will require disclosure of funds
spent for identified purposes and vest an entity with authority to administer
the disclosure requirements. The subsection does not take effect or
impose disclosure requirements or other obligations until the legislation is
enacted. Penalties may not be imposed under subsection 2 of section 1 of
article XIV until the legislative assembly enacts laws to implement and
enforce the subsection. However, the requirements and penalties under
chapters 16.1-08.1 and 54-05.1 remain in effect.

2. Subsection 1 of section 2 of article XIV of the Constitution of North Dakota
declares the prohibition on certain gifts under the subsection is not
effective until January 5, 2021. The subsection requires the ethics
committee to adopt rules providing additional guidance regarding the
prohibition and requires the legislative assembly to provide penalties for
violations of the prohibition. Penalties may not be imposed under
subsection 1 of section 2 of article XIV until the legislative assembly enacts
laws establishing the penalties for violations of the subsection.

3. Subsection 5 of section 2 of article XIV of the Constitution of North Dakota
declares the requirement for certain executive branch officials,and
employees to avoid the appearance of bias and be disqualified from
quasi-judicial proceedings is not effective until January 5, 2022. The
subsection requires the ethics commission and legislative assembly to
enforce the subsection by adopting rules and enacting laws. Penalties may
not be imposed under subsection 5 of section 2 of article XIV until the
legislative assembly enacts laws establishing the penalties for violations of
the subsection."

Page 24, line 21, replace "biennium" with "period"
Page 24, line 21, replace "July 1, 2019," with "with the effective date of this Act"

Page 24, after line 27, insert:

"SECTION 5. EMERGENCY. Section 2 through 4 of this Act and North Dakota
Century Code sections 54-66-11, 54-66-12, and 54-66-14, as created by section 1 of
this Act, are declared to be emergency measures."

Renumber accordingly
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19.0422.02010 Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for
Title. Senator Mathern
February 11, 2019

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2148
Page 1, line 4, after "sections" insert "16.1-08.1-03.7,"
Page 1, line 7, after "to" insert "reports of contributions and"
Page 1, after line 10, insert:

"SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Section 16.1-08.1-03.7 of the North Dakota Century
Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

16.1-08.1-03.7. Political committees that organize and register according to
federal law that make independent expenditures or disbursements to nonfederal
candidates, political parties, and political committees.

A political committee that organizes and registers according to federal law and
makes an independent expenditure or makes a disbursement in excess of two hundred
dollars to a nonfederal candidate seeking public office or to a political party or political
committee in this state shall file a copy of that portion of the committee's federal report
detailing the independent expenditure or the disbursement made. The political
committee shall file a copy of the committee's federal report, and supplementary
information as necessary under this section, with the secretary of state at the time of
filing the report with the applicable federal agency. The report and supplementary
information must include:

1. The name, mailing address, and treasurer of the political committee;
2. The recipient's name and mailing address; and

3. The date and amount of the independent expenditure or disbursement;
and

4. The ultimate and true source of funds listed by contributor and
subcontributor of any amount over two hundred dollars, adjusted for
inflation, collected or used to make the independent expenditure or
disbursement, including:

The name and address of the contributor;

|

The total amount of the contribution; and

o

c. The date the last contribution was received."

Page 14, line 1, remove "or ethics commission"

Page 14, line 2, remove "or ethics commission"

Renumber accordingly
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Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for
Senator Unruh
February 12, 2019

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO SENATE BILL NO. 2148

Page 1, line 1, after "enact" insert "a new subsection to section 16.1-08.1-01, a new section to
chapter 16.1-08.1, a new section to chapter 28-32, and"

Page 1, line 2, after "to" insert "disclosures of expenditures,”

Page 1, line 4, after "sections" insert "16.1-08.1-04.1,"
Page 1, line 6, remove "28-32-14, 28-32-15,"

Page 1, line 6, remove "and 28-32-18.1,"

Page 1, line 7, remove "subsections 2 and 4 of section"

Page 1, line 7, after "to" insert "the prohibition on personal use of campaign contributions and

the"

Page 1, line 8, remove "to provide for"

Page 1, line 9, remove "a legislative management study;"

Page 1, after line 10, insert:

"SECTION 1. Anew subsection to section 16.1-08.1-01 of the North Dakota
Century Code is created and enacted as follows:

"Ultimate and true source" means the person who knowingly contributed
over two hundred dollars, adjusted for inflation, to influence a statewide
election or an election for the legislative assembly.

SECTION 2. AMENDMENT. Section 16.1-08.1-04.1 of the North Dakota
Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

16.1-08.1-04.1. Personal use of contributions prohibited.

1.

¢ * +

A candidate may not use any contribution received by the candidate, the
candidate's candidate committee, or a multicandidate political committee
to:

a. Give a personal benefit to the candidate or another person;

b. Make a loan to another person;

c. Knowingly pay more than the fair market value for goods or services
purchased for the campaign; or

d. Pay a criminal fine or civil penalty.

The secretary of state shall impose a fine of five thousand dollars or two

times the value of the contribution used in violation of this section,
whichever is higher, upon any person who violates this section.

SECTION 3. A new section to chapter 16.1-08.1 of the North Dakota Century
Code is created and enacted as follows:
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Ultimate and true source of funds - Required identification.

In any report under this chapter which requires the identification of a contributor
or subcontributor, the ultimate and true source of funds must be identified."

Page 6, line 20, after "chapter” insert ", as specified,"

Page 6, line 24, remove "ethics commission or an"

Page 6, line 24, after the second comma insert "or the ethics commission"

Page 7, line 30, overstrike the first comma and insert immediately thereafter "or"

Page 7, line 30, overstrike the second comma and insert immediately thereafter "; or, for an
administrative agency rule, until"

Page 7, line 31, overstrike the comma

Page 8, line 2, remove ", or the Constitution of North Dakota is amended to eliminate the
authority"

Page 10, line 12, remove "or the ethics commission"

Page 10, line 13, remove "or ethics commission"

Page 10, line 14, after the period insert "The ethics commission shall develop a fiscal note for
each ethics commission rule prior to adoption unless the ethics commission finds the
rule has no fiscal effect."

Page 12, line 29, after "rule" insert “, if applicable,"

Page 14, remove lines 16 through 30

Page 15, remove lines 1 through 27

Page 16, line 13, after "rule" insert "other than an ethics commission rule"

Page 16, line 14, remove "or ethics commission"

Page 16, line 19, remove "or ethics commission"

Page 16, line 23, remove "or"

Page 16, line 24, remove "ethics commission"”

Page 16, line 27, remove "or ethics commission"

Page 16, line 30, remove "or ethics commission"

Page 17, line 1, remove "or ethics commission"

Page 17, line 2, remove "or ethics commission”

Page 17, line 4, remove "or ethics commission"

Page 17, line 6, remove "or ethics commission"

Page 17, line 10, remove the overstrike over "eof-ageney-and-committee"

Page 17, line 12, after the first "rule" insert "other than an ethics commission rule"

Page 17, line 17, remove the overstrike over "statutory"
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Page 17, line 17, remove "under statute or the constitution"

Page 17, line 19, remove the overstrike over "A"

Page 17, line 19, remove "For rules proposed by an agency, a"

Page 17, line 22, remove "For rules proposed by the ethics commission, a failure to
substantially meet the"

Page 17, remove line 23

Page 17, line 24, remove "e."

Page 17, line 25, remove the overstrike over "e:"
Page 17, line 25, remove "{."

Page 17, line 26, remove the overstrike over "£"

Page 17, line 26, remove "g."

Page 17, line 28, overstrike "a" and insert immediately thereafter "an administrative agency"

Page 17, line 30, remove "or ethics commission"

Page 18, line 3, remove "or ethics"
Page 18, line 4, remove "commission"
Page 18, line 5, remove "or ethics"
Page 18, line 6, remove "commission"

Page 18, line 14, remove "or ethics commission"

Page 18, line 15, remove "or ethics commission"

Page 18, line 18, remove "or ethics commission"

Page 18, line 20, remove "or ethics commission"

Page 18, line 21, remove "or ethics commission"

Page 18, line 24, remove "or the ethics commission"

Page 18, line 25, remove "or"

Page 18, line 26, remove "ethics commission"

Page 18, line 31, remove ", ethics commission"

Page 19, remove lines 4 through 31
Page 20, replace lines 1 through 11 with:

"SECTION 19. A new section to chapter 28-32 of the North Dakota Century Code
is created and enacted as follows:
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Final report to administrative rules committee.

For each rule the ethics commission adopts, the ethics commission shall provide
to the administrative rules committee a copy of the rule and a final report summarizing
the rule and the procedures followed to adopt the rule.

SECTION 20. AMENDMENT. Section 28-32-19 of the North Dakota Century
Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

28-32-19. Publication of administrative code and code supplement.

1. The legislative council shall compile, index, and publish all rules filed by
administrative agencies pursuant to this chapter in a publication which
must be known as the North Dakota Administrative Code, in this chapter
referred to as the code. The code also must contain all objections filed with
the legislative council by the administrative rules committee pursuant to
section 28-32-17. The legislative council shall revise all or part of the code
as often as the legislative council determines necessary.

2. The legislative council may prescribe a format, style, and arrangement for
rules whieh-are to be published in the code and may refuse to accept the
filing of any rule that is not in substantial compliance therewithwith the
legislative council requirements. In arranging rules for publication, the
legislative council may make suaeh corrections in spelling, grammatical
construction, format, and punctuation of the rules as determined proper.
The legislative council shall keep and maintain a permanent code of all
rules filed, including superseded and repealed rules, whiehand the
administrative agency rules must be open to public inspection during office
hours.

3. Thelegislative council shall compile and publish the North Dakota
Administrative Code supplement according to the schedule of effective
dates of rules in section 28-32-15.

a. The code supplement must contain all rules that have been filed with
the legislative council or which have become effective since the
compilation and publication of the preceding issue of the code
supplement.

b. The code supplement must contain all objections filed with the
legislative council by the administrative rules committee pursuant to
section 28-32-17.

4. The legislative council, with the consent of the adopting administrative
agency, may omit from the code or code supplement any rule the
publication of which would be unduly cumbersome, expensive, or
otherwise inexpedient, if the rule in printed or duplicated form is made
available on application to the agency, and if the code or code supplement
contains a notice stating the general subject matter of the omitted rule and
stating how a copy may be obtained.

5.  The code must be arranged, indexed, and printed or duplicated in a
manner to permit separate publication of portions thereefof the code
relating to individual agencies. An agency may print as many copies of
such separate portions of the code as it may require. If the legislative
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council does not publish the code supplement due to technological
problems or lack of funds, the agency whose rules would have been
published in the code supplement shall provide a copy of the rules to any
person upon request. The agency may charge a fee for a copy of the rules
as allowed under section 44-04-18.

The ethics commission shall consult with the leqislative council regarding
the publication of the rules of the ethics commission in conjunction with the
North Dakota Century Code."

Page 20, after line 14, insert:

"For purposes of this chapter, unless the context otherwise requires:"

Page 20, line 26, after the underscored period insert: ""Gift" does not mean:

a. Purely informational material;

b. A campaign contribution;

c. _Any item, service, or thing of value given under conditions that do not
raise ethical concerns in order to advance opportunities for state
residents to meet with public officials in educational and social
settings in the state, as defined in rules adopted by the ethics
commission."

Page 21, after line 14, insert:

“&

"Ultimate and true source" means the person that knowingly contributed
over two hundred dollars, adjusted for inflation, to lobby or influence state
government action."

Page 22, remove lines 10 through 31

Page 23, replace lines 1 through 25 with:

"54-66-05. Ethics commission rules.

The ethics commission shall adopt rules:

1.

To identify any item, service, or thing of value given under conditions that
do not raise ethical concerns in order to advance opportunities for North
Dakota residents to meet with public officials in educational and social
settings inside the state, for purposes of subsection 1 of section 2 of
article XIV of the Constitution of North Dakota;

To enforce the requirements for a director, officer, commissioner, head, or

other executive of an agency to avoid the appearance of bias and
self-disqualify in quasi-judicial proceedings in which monetary or in-kind
support related to the individual's election for any office or in which the
individual's financial interest, not shared by the general public, creates an
appearance of bias to a reasonable person, for purposes of subsection 5
of section 2 of article XIV of the Constitution of North Dakota;

To define "financial interest not shared by the general public" under

subsection 2;
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4. Regarding the confidential whistleblower hotline maintained by the ethics
commission;

5. Related to transparency, corruption, elections, and lobbying, applicable to .
any lobbyist, public official, or candidate for public office; and

[©

Governing complaints to the ethics commission, informal resolutions of the
complaints, investigations of the complaints, referrals of the complaints to
other governmental agencies, investigative findings, impositions of
penalties established by the legislative assembly, and appeals.

54-66-06. Ethics commission duty and authority.

1. The ethics commission shall maintain a confidential whistleblower hotline
through which any person acting in good faith may submit relevant
information.

N

The ethics commission may investigate any alleged violation of an ethics
commission rule, article XIV of the Constitution of North Dakota, or related
statutes.

3. If the ethics commission finds a violation of an ethics commission rule,
article XIV of the Constitution of North Dakota, or a related statute
occurred, the ethics commission may impose a penalty authorized by law
for the violation."

Page 23, line 26, replace "54-66-11" with "54-66-07"

Page 23, line 27, after "A" insert "knowing"

Page 23, line 28, replace "ten" with "one"

Page 23, line 29, after "that" insert "knowingly"
Page 24, line 1, replace "54-66-12" with "54-66-08"

Page 24, line 2, after "A" insert "knowing"
Page 24, line 3, replace "ten thousand" with "five hundred"

Page 24, line 4, after "that" insert "knowingly"

Page 24, line 5, replace "fifty" with "one"

Page 24, line 5, remove "for each violation of the subsection"

Page 24, line 5, replace "that violates" with "for a second or subsequent knowing violation of"

Page 24, line 6, remove "more than once within a twelve-month period"

Page 24, line 7, replace "54-66-13" with "54-66-09"

Page 24, line 8, after "commission" insert ", unless the ethics commission objects to the
representation by the attorney general”

Page 24, replace lines 12 through 17 with:

Page No. 6 19.0422.02008
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"54-66-10. Disclosure of ultimate and true source of funds.

A person who expends an amount greater than two hundred dollars, adjusted for
inflation, to lobby or influence state government, other than to influence a statewide
election or election for the legislative assembly, shall report the ultimate and true source
of funds for the expenditure to the secretary of state.

54-66-11. Lobbyist gifts - Penalty.

A lobbyist may not give, offer, solicit, initiate, or facilitate a gift to a public official
knowingly, and a public official may not accept a qift from a lobbyist knowingly. For the
first violation, the secretary of state shall impose a fine of five hundred dollars upon any
person who violates this section. For a second and subsequent violation of this section,
the person is quilty of an infraction."

Page 24, replace lines 24 through 26 with:

Salaries and wages $450,000
Operating expenses 350,000
Total general fund $800,000"

Renumber accordingly

Page No. 7 19.0422.02008
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO ENGROSSED SENATE BILL NO. 2148
Page 1, line 5, after "sections" insert "16.1-08.1-03.7,"

Page 1, line 9, after "contributions" insert ", reporting requirements for certain political
committees,"

Page 1, after line 16, insert:

"SECTION 2. AMENDMENT. Section 16.1-08.1-03.7 of the North Dakota
Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

16.1-08.1-03.7. Political committees that organize and register according to
federal law that make independent expenditures or disbursements to nonfederal
candidates, political parties, and political committees.

A political committee that organizes and registers according to federal law and
makes an independent expenditure or makes a disbursement in excess of twe
hundredone thousand dollars to a nonfederal candidate seeking public office or to a
political party or political committee in this state shall file a copy of that portion of the
committee's federal report detailing the independent expenditure or the disbursement
made. The political committee shall file a copy of the committee's federal report, and
supplementary information as necessary under this section, with the secretary of state
at the time of filing the report with the applicable federal agency. The report or
supplementary information must include:

1. The name, mailing address, and treasurer of the political committee;
2. The recipient's name and mailing address; and

3. The date and amount of the independent expenditure or disbursement;
and

4. The ultimate and true source of funds listed by contributor and
subcontributor of any amount over two hundred dollars, adjusted for
inflation, collected or used to make the independent expenditure or
disbursement, including:

a. The name and address of the contributor;

b. The total amount of the contribution; and

c. The date the last contribution was received."

Page 14, line 29, remove "or ethics commission"

Page 14, line 30, remove "or ethics commission"

Page 22, replace lines 11 through 13 with:

"Ethics commission $667,155
Total general fund $667,155"

Page No. 1 19.0422.04001
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Renumber accordingly
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ETHICS COMMISSION BUDGET

2 year budget

STAFF***

Salary (based on ND OMB Salary rates)
Attorney w/ 4+ yrs experience
Admin Asst. Il w/3+ yrs experience
Criminal Investigator |

Benefits @ 35%

Expenses

Start up costs (computers, furniture, supplies, etc)
Operating @ 40,000 each position*

Hotline@ $ 28.00 (OMB fiscal note.)
Commissioner travel and perdiem - $10,000 ea
Office space @ $1.40 per sq ft for 3 10x12 offices**

$ 171,780.00
S 86,160.00
$ 103,960.00

$ 123,200.00
$ 485,100.00

$ 30,000.00
$ 120,000.00
$  672.00
$ 50,000.00
$ 12,096.00

$ 212,768.00

jﬁ' / SB A48
A-18-LolT

P12

$ 485,100.00

$ 212,768.00
Total S 697,868.00

* Operating includes average for 3 positions for travel, perdiem, professional development, internet, utilities,
Assume operating will be more for some positions and less for others but will average out to be
about $40,000 each. This is the number that we used at NDSU for ea. new position.

** These would be small offices with no allowance given for storage or reception area. Should probably be m

***Staff salaries are based on ND OMB salaries for similar positions and responsibilities. (see attached)
https://www.nd.gov/omb/state-employee/employment-and-compensation/job-class-descriptions?field_cate
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Article XIV — Constitutional Responsibilities of Ethics Commission

Section 3, Subsection 2. Adopt rules regarding: 1) transparency, 2) corruption, 3)
elections, and 4) lobbying. Investigate alleged violations of such rules, this Article XIV
and related state laws. Maintain a confidential hotline to report violators. See
underlined authority from Article XIV:

“The ethics commission may adopt ethics rules related to transparency, corruption, elections, and
lobbying to which any lobbyist, public official, or candidate for public office shall be subject, and may
investigate alleged violations of such rules, this Article XIV, and related state laws. The ethics commission
shall maintain a confidential whistleblower hotline through which any person acting in good faith may
submit relevant information.

The Legislative Assembly shall provide adequate funds for the proper carrying out of the functions and
duties of the ethics commission.”

Section 2, Subsection 1. Adopt rules regarding gifts. See underlined authority from
Article XIV:

“A lobbyist may not knowingly give, offer, solicit, initiate, or facilitate a gift to a public official. A public
official may not knowingly accept a gift from a lobbyist. These prohibitions do not apply if the lobbyist is
an immediate family member of the public official.

"Gift," asused in this Subsection, means any item, service, or thing of value not given in exchange for fair
market consideration, including gifts of travel or recreation.

However, “gift” does not mean any purely informational material or campaign contribution, or, in order to
advance opportunities for North Dakota residents to meet with public officials in educational and social
settings inside the state, any item, service, or thing of value given under conditions that do not raise
ethical concerns, as determined by rules adopted by the ethics commission. Such rules must be adopted
within two years after the effective date of this Article. So as to allow for the adoption of these rules,
these prohibitions shall take effect two years after the effective date of this Article. Appropriate civil and
criminal sanctions for violations of this Subsection shall be set by the Legislative Assembly.”

Section 2, Subsection 5. Adopt rules regarding bias. See underlined authority from
Article XIV:

“Directors, officers, commissioners, heads, or other executives of agencies shall avoid the appearance of
bias, and shall disqualify themselves in any quasi-judicial proceeding in which monetary or in-kind support
related to that person’s election to any office, or a financial interest not shared by the general public as
defined by the ethics commission, creates an appearance of bias to a reasonable person.

The Legislative Assembly and the ethics commission shall enforce this provision by appropriate legislation
and rules, respectively. So as to allow for the adoption of such legislation or rules, this Subsection shall
take effect three years after the effective date this Article.”
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Source: ND OMB https://www.nd.gov/omb/state-employee/employment-and- ﬁj/

compensation/job-class-

descriptions?field category tid=All&field code value=&title=investigator&field grade selecti

on category tid=All

Administrative Assistant Il

This work is considered the highest level of administrative office support. Therefore, individuals
in positions assigned this classification most often report to senior-level management. Work
involves significant responsibility for management and coordination of administrative office
support and/or business functions, such as purchasing, printing, and fundamental accounting-
related functions. Therefore, work at this level is of a highly complex and sensitive nature, often
requiring extensive contact with customers and the general public, and requires a high degree
of knowledge, skills, and abilities and/or specialization in specific subject matter. Work activities
involve decision-making within parameters of approved policies and procedures.

Ethics Commission Director/Attorney Il

Work at this level involves providing legal services that include a broad scope and a variety of
cases for an entire agency and/or supervision of other attorneys. Serve as legal advisor to an
agency. Direct the work activities of subordinate legal staff to facilitate the attainment of work
goals and ensure the consistent application of administrative policies, procedures, standards,
and legal requirements. Present information or testimony at public meetings or
judicial/legislative hearings to provide and explain legal and policy information. May serve as
hearing officer in issues involving legal disputes between the agency and persons or parties
who are appealing administrative decisions and/or rulings of the agency.

Criminal Investigator |

Work involves planning, developing, coordinating, and conducting investigations of cases
involving public official misconduct/complaints.

Note: these are abbreviated descriptions and not the full duties or required qualifications of
the positions since these are new.
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PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO REENGROSSED@%NATE BILL NO. 23%
Page 1, line 5, after "sections" insert "16.1-08.1-03.7,"

Page 1, line 9, after "contributions" insert ", reporting requirements for certain political
committees,"

Page 1, after line 16, insert:

"SECTION 2. AMENDMENT. Section 16.1-08.1-03.7 of the North Dakota
Century Code is amended and reenacted as follows:

16.1-08.1-03.7. Political committees that organize and register according to
federal law that make independent expenditures or disbursements to nonfederal
candidates, political parties, and political committees.

A political committee that organizes and registers according to federal law and
makes an independent expenditure or makes a disbursement in excess of two hundred
dollars to a nonfederal candidate seeking public office or to a political party or political
committee in this state shall file a copy of that portion of the committee's federal report
detailing the independent expenditure or the disbursement made. The political
committee shall file a copy of the committee's federal report, and supplementary

. information as necessary under this section, with the secretary of state at the time of

filing the report with the applicable federal agency. The report or supplementary
information must include:

1. The name, mailing address, and treasurer of the political committee;
2. The recipient's name and mailing address; and

3. The date and amount of the independent expenditure or disbursement;
and

4. The ultimate and true source of funds listed by contributor and
subcontributor of any amount over two hundred dollars, adjusted for
inflation, collected or used to make the independent expenditure or
disbursement, including:

a. The name and address of the contributor;

b. The total amount of the contribution; and

c. The date the last contribution was received."

Renumber accordingly

Page No. 1 19.0422.05003
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SB 2148 Second Engrossment I
House Committee on Ethics @ch 12, 2019

Chairman Kasper and Committee Members,

My name is Gregory Stites. | am a North Dakota attorney and live in District 47. |
am here on behalf of North Dakotans for Public Integrity (NDPI) in support of SB
2148.

| have practiced law for over 40 years. | have worked in regional and national law
firms, as general counsel of the ND Insurance Department and as an assistant
attorney general. | have also worked as senior counsel for the National
Association of Insurance Commissioners (NAIC) representing all 50 state
commissioners. For the last almost 20 years of my career, | worked as senior
counsel and chief compliance officer for a large US-based international software
company.

During my years with the NAIC, | filed numerous “friend of the court” briefs in
state courts, US courts of appeals and the United States Supreme Court. These
briefs often argued issues of constitutional law. | was once honored to have the
United States Supreme Court refer to my brief as the basis of its holding in a case.

| was not part of those individuals who sought to enact Article XIV. Rather, | was
retained early this year by NDPI to analyze Article XIV and determine what specific
laws are necessary to implement it.

Article XIV was designed to be implemented over a 3 year period. Certain
provisions became effective 60 days after its passage. Certain provisions become
effective in 2 years. And certain provisions no later than in 3 years. This was done
in order to give the Legislative Assembly 2 sessions to complete its work in a
deliberate and measured way.

To aid in your deliberations, | have prepared a document titled “Legislative
Assembly Required Implementation of Article XIV to the North Dakota
Constitution.” This document sets out the actual language of Article XIV - section
by section - followed by my analysis of the required actions - if any — to be taken
by the Legislative Assembly and in what time frames.
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On pages 1 and 2 of this handout is a Summary of those required actions to be
taken by the Legislative Assembly. Of the 14 subsections in Article XIV, 7 do not
ever require Legislative Assembly involvement.

Pages 3 through 7 are a Table that sets out the actual language of Article XIV
subsection by subsection. Next to each subsection appears a column of relevant
comments and the Legislative Assembly actions required to implement Article
XIV. | trust that this Summary and Table will aid you in your deliberations of SB
2148 Second Engrossment.

The next document | have prepared for you is a Summary of SB 2148 Second
Engrossment. | have chosen to highlight the 10 most significant provisions of
Article XIV followed by comments on how SB 2148 addresses those requirements.

Chairman Hogue and the members of the Senate Special Committee on Ethics
were razor-focused on properly implementing Article XIV in ways consistent with
the Constitution.

In summary, in keeping with the mandate given to the Legislative Assembly by the
people, SB 2148 Second Engrossment principally implements the requirements of
Article XIV in a manner so as to facilitate, safeguard, or expand the substance of
Article XIV; and, hopefully, not in any manner that would hamper, restrict, or
impair Article XIV in legal ways that would give rise to constitutional challenges.

| support SB 2148 Second Engrossment as passed by the Senate and ask that the
House Special Committee on Ethics vote it out favorable.

Thank you for your time.
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Summary of SB 2148 Second Engrossment
Article XIV to the ND Constitution was passed by ND voters in November 2018 and became effective on
January 5, 2019. Article XIV was designed to be implemented over a staggered three-year period. Article XIV
requires the Legislative Assembly to implement the article by passage of laws intended to facilitate, safeguard,
or expand, but not to hamper, restrict, or impair, the substance of the article. In case of a conflict between a
provision of Article XIV and any other provision contained in the Constitution, the provisions of Article XIV
control.

What Article XIV provides for is shown below in bolded italics followed by comments on how SB 2148
addresses those requirements:

1. Requires prompt, electronically accessible, plainly comprehensible, public disclosure of the ultimate and
true source of funds spent in any medium, in an amount greater than two hundred dollars, adjusted for
inflation, to influence any, 1) statewide election, 2) election for the legislative assembly, 3) statewide
ballot-issue election, or 4) to lobby or 5) otherwise influence state government action. Goes into effect
no later than January 5, 2022.

SB 2148 requires disclosure of the ultimate and true source of funds by any person who knowingly
contributes over $200 to influence any of the 5 categories.' SB 2148 requires the Secretary of State to
collect and make this data publicly available in a timely manner.

2. Stops lobbyists from giving gifts to state public officials and stops state public officials from accepting
gifts from lobbyists. Prohibited "gifts" means anything of value including travel or recreation. The new
Ethics Commission may enact rules to allow for limited exceptions. Goes into effect on January 5, 2021.

SB 2148 provides a civil penalty of up to $500 for a first offense. Subsequent violations are an infraction.

3. Stops an elected state public official from being a lobbyist while in office and stops an elected state
public official from becoming a lobbyist for 2 years after leaving state government.

SB 2148 provides a civil penalty of up to $1000 and makes it a class A misdemeanor.
4. Stops a lobbyist from delivering a campaign contribution made by another individual or entity.

SB 2148 provides a civil penalty of up to $500 for a first offense and up to $1000 for subsequent violations
and makes it a class A misdemeanor.

5. Stops a statewide candidate, candidate for the legislative assembly, or state public official from using
campaign contributions for personal use or enrichment.

SB 2148 provides a civil penalty of up to $5000 or 2 times the value of the contribution used in the
violation, whichever is greater. Current law already makes it a class A misdemeanor.

6. Directs all officers, commissioners, directors, heads, or other executives of agencies to avoid the
appearance of bias in their work and requires that they disqualify themselves in any quasi-judicial
proceedings in which they have a financial interest as defined by the new Ethics Commission. Goes into
effect on January 5, 2022.

TA legislative change remains to be made to NDCC §16.1-08.1-03.7 regarding certain political committees that do not currently report
contributions. Article XIV requires these political committees to report the ultimate and true source of funds collected or used to make
independent expenditures or disbursements.

March 11, 2019 3
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With 3 years before the effective date, no 66th Legislative Assembly actions are necessary because over
the next 2 years, the Ethics Commission is required to adopt definitional rules on bias. Based upon those
rules, the 67th Legislative Assembly will be able to provide for appropriate enforcement penalties based
upon those definitional terms.

7. Stops governments of foreign countries, foreign nationals not lawfully admitted for permanent residence
in the US, and corporations organized under the laws of or having their principal place of business in a
foreign country, from making contributions or expenditures in connection with any statewide election,
election for the legislative assembly, or statewide ballot-issue election.

No 66" Legislative Assembly action is required. This ban on foreign contributions and expenditures was
already prohibited by statute and is now also part of the ND Constitution.

8. Establishes an Ethics Commission — independent from either the legislative assembly or the state
executive — to support an open, ethical, and accountable state government. Requires the Legislative
Assembly to provide adequate funds for the proper carrying out of the functions and duties of the Ethics
Commission.

SB 2148 creates a new Chapter 54-66 to the ND Century Code for laws appropriate to the Ethics
Commission. The Chapter codifies commission members appointments and compensation, provides for
staffing and office space, permits the attorney general to provide legal services, and provides for an
appropriation of $517,155.

9. Provides legal authority to the Ethics Commission to adopt ethics rules related to 1) transparency, 2)
corruption, 3) elections, and 4) lobbying —to which any lobbyist, state public official, or candidate for
state office must comply with.

SB 2148 requires the Ethics Commission to use specific provisions of the Administrative Agency Practices
Act to adopt its ethics rules. SB 2148 does not include those provisions of the AAPC that would be
unconstitutional to apply to the Ethics Commission.

10. Provides legal authority for the Ethics Commission to investigate alleged violations of its ethics rules, any
of the provisions of Article XIV, and any related state laws.

SB 2148 provides in a new Chapter 54-66, the due process and confidentiality protections for individuals
accused of wrongdoing. Applicable definitions are provided. Reasonable procedures are put in place for
making complaints, investigations, informal resolutions, referrals to law enforcement, provisions for
investigation findings, penalties and appeals.

Section 1 of Article XIV has a unique provision that gives any resident taxpayer the right to bring suit against
the legislature, executive branch or the ethics commission if they believe the laws or rules enacted or an
implementation, interpretation, or enforcement action taken under Section 1, fails to fully vindicate the rights
provided to the people on transparency. SB 2148 is a good first step in implementing Section 1 of Article XIV.
Further refinements, if necessary, can be enacted in the next session.

In summary, in keeping with the mandate given to the Legislative Assembly by the people, SB 2148 implements
the requirements of Article XIV in a manner so as to facilitate, safeguard, or expand the substance of Article
XIV; and, hopefully, not in a way to hamper, restrict, or impair Article XIV in legal ways that would give rise to
constitutional challenges.

l_.l
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‘V)B‘Article X1V to the North Dakota Constitution was passed by the people in November 2018 and became effective on January 5, 2019. Article XIV was designed to

be implemented over a staggered three-year period. Article XIV requires the Legislative Assembly to implement the article by passage of laws intended to
facilitate, safeguard, or expand, but not to hamper, restrict, or impair the substance of the article. In case of a conflict between a provision of Article XIV and any
other provision contained in the Constitution, the provisions of Article XIV control.

The language in Article XIV is consistent with other provisions in the North Dakota Constitution. For example, Section 24 of Article | of the Constitution provides
that “the provisions of this constitution are mandatory and prohibitory unless, by express words, they are declared to be otherwise.” In recognition that Article
XIV was a constitutional amendment passed by an initiative of the people, Section 1 of Article Ill states “while the legislative power of this state shall be vested in
a legislative assembly . . . the people reserve the power . .. to propose and adopt constitutional amendments by the initiative. . . . Laws [by the Legislative
Assembly] may be enacted to facilitate and safeguard, but not to hamper, restrict, or impair these powers.” In other words, the Legislative Assembly must be
careful not to enact laws that go against the intent or plain wording of a constitutional provision.

In further describing the role of the Legislative Assembly in such matters, Section 13 of Article IV states, “the legislative assembly shall enact all laws necessary to
carry into effect the provisions of this constitution.” And when enacting “laws necessary to carry into effect” a provision of the constitution, a rule of
constitutional construction is that words are to be given their plain, ordinary and commonly understood meaning. Verry v. Trenbeath, 148 N.W.2d 567, 574 (N.D.
1967). The intent and purpose of a constitutional provision is to be determined, if possible, from the language itself. Bulman v. Hulstrand Constr. Co., Inc., 521
N.W.2d 632, 636 (N.D. 1994).

This document highlights the steps or actions necessary to implement Article XIV by the Legislative Assembly. It is interesting to note that only seven of the 14
subsections contained in Article XIV require any actions to be taken by the Legislative Assembly.

Summary of required actions by the Legislative Assembly to implement Article XIV. See bolded >Subsection numbers below:

Article XIV

Section 1 —Transparency
Subsection 1- No action ever required.
>Subsection 2- Within three years of January 5, 2019, the Legislative Assembly must enact laws that properly vest one or more entities with the authority
to implement, interpret and enforce this subsection that requires prompt public disclosure of the “ultimate and true source of funds” spent in an amount
greater than two hundred dollars, to influence statewide elections, elections to the Legislative Assembly or to lobby or otherwise influence state
government action. The Legislative Assembly then has an ongoing duty over time to revise these laws as necessary in light of changes in technology and
political practices.

Section 2 —Lobbyists and Conflicts of Interest
>Subsection 1- Gifts to public officials will be prohibited after January 5, 2021. Over the next 2 years, the Ethics Commission is to adopt ethical rules to
provide certain exceptions for items of value that do not rise ethical concerns. The Legislative Assembly is required to provide for appropriate civil and
criminal sanctions for violations of this subsection.
>Subsection 2- Prohibits elected public officials from being a lobbyist while holding office or for two years after holding office. The Legislative Assembly is
required to provide for appropriate civil and criminal sanctions for violations on an emergency basis.

1 ©March 10, 2019




( >Subsection 3- Lobbyist may not deliver certain campaign contributions to public officials. The Legislative Assembly is required to provide for appropriate
ON
N N civil and criminal sanctions for violations on an emergency basis.
m N {\g >Subsection 4- Certain candidates and public officials may not use campaign contributions for personal use. Because a criminal penalty already exists,
\_%\ 14 & the Legislative Assembly is required to provide an appropriate civil sanction for violations on an emergency basis.
Q \%) >Subsection 5- Becoming effective after January 5, 2022, this subsection prohibits bias by certain decision-makers in state government. Over the next 2
W years, the Ethics Commission is to adopt definitional rules for what constitutes the appearance of bias and the conditions under which these decision-

makers must remove themselves from quasi-judicial proceedings in which they have a financial interest. The Legislative Assembly is to provide for
appropriate “enforcement penalties” only as the Ethics Commission is to define the definitional terms.
Subsection 6- Foreign entities are prohibited from making contributions or expenditures in ND elections. No action ever required.

Section 3 —North Dakota Ethics Commission
Subsection 1- No action ever required.
>Subsection 2- The Legislative Assembly is required to provide for timely and adequate funding of the Ethics Commission on an emergency basis.
Subsection 3- No action ever required.

Section 4 —General Provisions
Subsection 1- No action ever required.
Subsection 2- No action ever required.
Subsection 3- No action ever required.

2 ©March 10, 2019
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The table below analyzes the steps necessary for the Legislative Assembly to implement Article XIV section by section.

Article XIV | Implementation

Dead-lines

Article XIV language set forth below:

| Relevant comments and Legislative Assembly actions required to

implement Article XIV
(Note: underlining below is for emphasis only.)

Section 1. Transparency

Subsection | Effective Date “The people of North Dakota need information to choose candidates Provides a constitutional statement of citizen’s right to transparency
1 1/5/2022 for office, vote on ballot measures, and ensure that their and accountability. This subsection expands the people’s right to
representatives are accountable. This transparency must be sufficient timely know the source and nature of resources used to “influence”
to enable the people to make informed decisions and give proper state elections or state government actions, including action by the
weight to different speakers and messages. The people therefore have | executive and legislative branches of government.
the right to know in a timely manner the source, quantity, timing, and
nature of resources used to influence any statewide election, election No Legislative Assembly action ever required.
for the legislative assembly, statewide ballot-issue election, and state
government action. This right is essential to the rights of free speech,
assembly, and petition guaranteed by the First Amendment to the
United States Constitution and shall be construed broadly.”
Subsection = Effective Date “The Legislative Assembly shall implement and enforce this Section by | Within 3 years, requires prompt public disclosure of “ultimate and
2 1/5/2022 enacting, no more than three years after t he effective date of Article true source of funds” spent in an amount greater than two hundred

XIV, laws that require prompt, electronically accessible, plainly
comprehensible, public disclosure of the ultimate and true source of
funds spent in any medium, in an amount greater than two hundred
dollars, adjusted for inflation, to influence any statewide election,
election for the legislative assembly, statewide ballot-issue election, or
to lobby or otherwise influence state government action.”

“The legislative Assembly shall have an ongoing duty to revise these
laws as necessary to promote the purposes of this Section in light of
changes in technology and political practices.”

“The Legislative Assembly “shall vest by law one or more entities with
authority to implement, interpret and enforce this subsection and
legislation enacted thereunder.”

“If the laws or rules enacted or an implementation, interpretation, or
enforcement action taken under this subsection fail to fully vindicate
the rights provided in this subsection, a resident taxpayer may bring

suit in the courts of this state to enforce such rights.”

3

dollars, to influence statewide elections, elections to Legislative
Assembly, lobby or otherwise influence state government actions.
Given the critical importance of this transparency requirement, this
subsection provides up to three years for the Legislative Assembly, the
Ethics Commission, and policy makers to seek broad input and to
carefully develop laws now and in the future that properly interpret
and fully implement the requirement.

Provides resident taxpayers with standing to sue the Legislative
Assembly, Ethics Commission or other entity should the rights
provided for in this subsection not be fully vindicated.

With 3 years to implement, the Legislative Assembly must enact
laws that properly vest one or more entities with the authority to
implement, interpret and enforce the requirements of this
subsection. The Legislative Assembly then has an ongoing duty to
revise these laws as necessary in light of changes in technology and
political practices.

March 10, 2019
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Section 2. Lobbyists and Conflicts of Interest.

Subsection
1

Effective Date
1/5/2021

“A lobbyist may not knowingly give, offer, solicit, initiate, or facilitate
a gift to a public official. A public official may not knowingly accept a
gift from a lobbyist. These prohibitions do not apply if the lobbyist is
an immediate family member of the public official.”

"Gift," as used in this Subsection, means any item, service, or thing of
value not given in exchange for fair market consideration, including
gifts of travel or recreation.”

“However, “gift” does not mean any purely informational material or
campaign contribution, or, in order to advance opportunities for North
Dakota residents to meet with public officials in educational and social
settings inside the state, any item, service, or thing of value given
under conditions that do not raise ethical concerns, as determined by
rules adopted by the ethics commission. Such rules must be adopted
within two years after the effective date of this Article. Soasto allow
for the adoption of these rules, these prohibitions shall take effect two
years after the effective date of this Article. Appropriate civil and
criminal sanctions for violations of this Subsection shall be set by the
Legislative Assembly.”

Effective after 1/5/2021, lobbyists may not give “gifts” — a defined
term - to public officials. Public officials may not accept gifts from a
lobbyist. Prohibited “gifts” are unambiguously defined. Exceptions to
what are not gifts are plainly provided. The Ethics Commission is
required to adopt ethical rules to provide certain exceptions for items
of value that do not rise ethical concerns.

Public officials are defined in Section 4, Subsection 2 of Article XIV and
include “any elected or appointed office or official of the state’s
executive or legislative branch, including members of the Ethics
Commission, or members of the governor’s cabinet, or employees of
the legislative branch.” It is to this expansive list of people that gifts
from lobbyists will now be prohibited.

"Lobbying" means influencing or attempting to influence public
officials on a particular issue. States generally define lobbying as an
attempt to influence government action. A "lobbyist" means any
person who engages in lobbying. Under this subsection, such persons
are prohibited from giving gifts to public officials.

The term “lobbyist” is this subsection is broader than to those
lobbyists required to be registered under NDCC Chapter 54-05.1. In
fact, Chapter 54-05.1 seeks only to regulate a small number of
lobbyists who 1) seek to secure or defeat legislation or the approval or
veto of legislation by the governor, or 2) attempts to influence
decisions made by legislative management or by an interim
committee. Chapter 54-05.1 also provides a long list of exceptions of
persons who are lobbyists but are not required to register with the
State.

This Subsection 1 does not take effect until January 5, 2021.

Over the next 2 years, the Ethics Commission is to adopt ethical
rules to provide certain exceptions for items of value that do not rise
ethical concerns. The Legislative Assembly is required to provide for
the appropriate civil and criminal sanctions for violations.

Subsection
2

Effective Date
1/5/19

“An elected public official may not be a lobbyist while holding office or
for two years after holding office.”

| “Appropriate civil and criminal sanctions for violations of this

| The definitions for “public official” and “lobbyist” are described in the

commentary to subsection 1 above. This subsection applies only to
“elected” public officials.

4
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Subsection shall be set by the Legislative Assembly.”

The Legislative Assembly is required to provide for appropriate civil
and criminal sanctions for violations of this subsection on an
emergency basis as the effective date of this subsection was January
5,2019.

Subsection | Effective Date “A lobbyist may not knowingly deliver a campaign contribution made Except as permitted in this subsection, a lobbyist may not deliver
3 1/5/19 by another individual or entity. “Deliver,” as used in this Subsection, campaign contribution funds from others.
means to transport, transfer, or otherwise transmit, either physically
, Q\' or electronically.” The Legislative Assembly is required to provide for appropriate civil
\ and criminal sanctions for violations of this subsection on an
Pﬁ “This prohibition does not apply to a person who delivers a campaign emergency basis as the effective date of this Subsection was January
%( contribution to the person’s own campaign, or to the campaign of the 5,2019.
m person’s immediate family member. This prohibition shall not be
interpreted to prohibit any person from making a campaign
contribution or from encouraging others to make a campaign
contribution or to otherwise support or oppose a candidate.”
“Appropriate civil and criminal sanctions for violations of this
Subsection shall be set by the Legislative Assembly.”
Subsection | Effective Date “A statewide candidate, candidate for the legislative assembly, or This subsection makes Constitutional the 2017 Legislative Assembly’s
4 1/5/19 public official may not knowingly use a campaign contribution for ban on personal use or enrichment from campaign contributions.
personal use or enrichment.”
The Legislative Assembly is required to provide for an appropriate
“Appropriate civil and criminal sanctions for violations of this civil sanction for a violation of this Subsection on an emergency
subsection shall be set by the Legislative Assembly.” basis as the effective date of this Subsection was January 5, 2019. It
has already provided for a criminal penalty in NDCC 16.1-08.1-07
(Class A misdemeanor).
Subsection | Effective Date “Directors, officers, commissioners, heads, or other executives of Effective 1/5/2022, bias and appearance of bias is prohibited in quasi-
5 1/5/22 agencies shall avoid the appearance of bias, and shall disqualify judicial proceedings within state government. This subsection requires

themselves in any quasi-judicial proceeding in which monetary or in-
kind support related to that person’s election to any office, or a
financial interest not shared by the general public as defined by the
ethics commission, creates an appearance of bias to a reasonable
person.

The Legislative Assembly and the ethics commission shall enforce this
provision by appropriate legislation and rules, respectively. So as to
allow for the adoption of such legislation or rules, this Subsection shall
take effect three years after the effective date this Article.”

certain elected and unelected decision-making state officials
(directors, officers, commissioners, heads, or other executives of
agencies) to disqualify themselves from voting on or making
regulatory decisions that are related to their campaign contributors or
their financial interest as defined by the Ethics Commission. This
subsection does not take effect until January 5, 2022.

This subsection has a three-year delay period that allows time for
the Ethics Commission to adopt its definitional rules and then for the
Legislative Assembly to provide for appropriate “enforcement

| penalties” only.

5
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Subsection
6

Effective Date
1/5/19

| “Governments of foreign countries, foreign nationals not lawfully

admitted for permanent residence in the United States, and
corporations organized under the laws of or having their principal
place of business in a foreign country, are prohibited from making
contributions or expenditures in connection with any statewide
election, election for the legislative assembly, or statewide ballot-issue
election.”

This subsection makes constitutional the 2017 Legislative Assembly’s
ban on foreign contributions and expenditures.

No Legislative Assembly action ever required.

Section 3. North Dakota Ethics Commission

Subsection | Effective Date “In order to strengthen the confidence of the people of North Dakota As of January 5, 2019, establishes a new, constitutional Ethics
1 1/5/19 in their government, and to support open, ethical, and accountable Commission independent from either the legislative or executive
government, the North Dakota Ethics Commission is hereby branches of government. The ethics commissioners are be appointed
established.” as soon as possible.
No Legislative Assembly action ever required.
Subsection | Effective Date “The ethics commission may adopt ethics rules related to This subsection defines the authority and duties of the new Ethics
2 1/5/19 transparency, corruption, elections, and lobbying to which any Commission, and requires adequate funding.
lobbyist, public official, or candidate for public office shall be subject,
and may investigate alleged violations of such rules, this Article XIV, The Legislative Assembly is required to provide for timely and
and related state laws. The ethics commission shall maintain a adequate funding of the new Ethics Commission on an emergency
confidential whistleblower hotline through which any person acting in | basis as it was established on January 5, 2019.
good faith may submit relevant information.”
“The Legislative Assembly shall provide adequate funds for the proper
carrying out of the functions and duties of the ethics commission.”
Subsection | Effective Date “The ethics commission shall consist of five members, appointed for Provides for appointment and qualifications of members of the Ethics
3 1/5/19 four-year terms by consensus agreement of the governor, the majority | Commission. .

leader of the senate, and the minority leader of the senate. No
member of the ethics commission may hold other public office or be a
lobbyist, candidate for public office, or political party official.”

No Legislative Assembly action ever required.

Section 4. General Provisions.

Subsection
1

Effective Date
1/5/19

“This Article is self-executing and all of its provisions are mandatory.
Laws may be enacted to facilitate, safeguard, or expand, but not to
hamper, restrict, or impair, this article. This Article shall take effect
sixty days after approval.”

Provides for the effective date of Article XIV and provides for
protection against unconstitutional laws being enacted. All the
provisions of Article XIV take effect on January 5, 2019, except those
specifically listed with a later effective date.

No Legislative Assembly action ever required.

©March 10, 2019
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Effective Date

1/5/19

Effective Date
1/5/19

“For the purposes of this Article, “public office” or “public official”
means any elected or appointed office or official of the state’s
executive or legislative branch, including members of the ethics
commission, or members of the governor’s cabinet, or employees of
the legislative branch, and “agency” means each board, bureau,
commission, department, or other administrative unit of the executive
branch of state government, including one or more officers,
employees, or other persons directly or indirectly purporting to act on
behalf or under authority of the agency.”

”u ”

Definitions for “public office,” “public official” and “agency”.

No Legislative Assembly action ever required.

“If any provision of this Article is held to be invalid, either on its face or
as applied to any person, entity, or circumstance, the remaining
provisions, and the application thereof to any person, entity, or
circumstance other than those to which itis held invalid, shall not be
affected thereby. In any case of a conflict between any provision of
this Article and any other provision contained in the Constitution, the
provisions this Article shall control.”

Provides a statement of legal construction, severability and
constitutional conflict.

No Legislative Assembly action ever required.

©March 10, 2019
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. Suggested Amendment to for uniform definition of “lobbyist”

SECTION 1. AMENDMENT. Section 54-05.1-02 of the North Dakota Century Code is
amended and reenacted as follows:

54-05.1-02. Applicability — Meaning of lobbyist.

1 This chapter applies to any person who, in any manner whatsoever, directly or

indirectly, performs any of the following activities:
a. Attempts to secure the passage, amendment, or defeat of any legislation by
the legislative assembly or the approval or veto of any legislation by the
governor of the states;
b. Attempts to influence decisions regarding legislative matters made by the
legislative management or by-an-interim-a legislative committee efthelegislative
management:; or
c. Attempts to influence decisions regarding official matters made by a public
official in the executive branch of state government.

2. This chapter does not apply to any person who is:
a. A-legislater:
b-A private citizen appearing on the citizen's own behalf.
€. An employee, officer, board member, volunteer, or agent ofthe state orits
political-subdivisions-whether-elected-or-appointed-and-whetheror-not

. compensated; whe is-acting in that person's official capacity.

d. lnvited by the chairman of the legislative management, an interim committee
of the legislative-management; or a standing committee of the legislative
assembly to appear before the legislative management, interim committee;, or
standing committee for the purpose of providing informatien:
e-An-individual-who-appears-before a-legislative committee forthe sole purpose
of presenting testimony on behalf of a trade or professional organization or a
business-or industry if the individual is-introduced to the committee by the
registered lobbyist for the trade or professional erganization or the business er
industry. A public official or an employee, officer, board member, volunteer, or
agent of the state or a political subdivision of the state acting in the individual’s
official capacity.
3. For the purposes of this chapter, persons required to register under this
chapter because of the performance of the activities described in subsection 1
must be known as "lobbyists".

Senator Tim Mathern, April 10, 2019
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Title. Senator Mathern
April 9, 2019

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO REENGROSSED SENATE(?ILL NO.£1@
Page 1, line 10, after the first semicolon insert "to provide for a legislative management study;"
Page 22, after line 4, insert:

"SECTION 21. LEGISLATIVE MANAGEMENT STUDY - ETHICS
COMMISSION AND LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY RESPONSIBILITIES. During the
2019-20 interim, the legislative management shall consider studying subsection 2 of
section 1 of article XIV and subsections 1 through 5 of section 2 of article XIV of the
Constitution of North Dakota, and the responsibilities of the legislative assembly and
ethics commission under the subsections. The study committee must include two
members of the ethics commission selected by the ethics commission. The study must
include consideration of whether the civil and criminal sanctions for violations of the
constitutional provisions are appropriate; whether additional authority is needed by the
entity vested to implement, interpret, and enforce section 1 of article XIV; and effective
means to educate public officials, lobbyists, and the public on the requirements of
article XIV and other laws regarding government ethics. The legislative management
shall report its findings and recommendations, together with any legislation necessary
to implement the recommendations, to the sixty-seventh legislative assembly."

Renumber accordingly

Page No. 1 19.0422.05009
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From: Tracey Wilkie <tracey_wilkie@yahoo.com>

Sent: Wednesday, April 10, 2019 6:16 PM

To: NDLA, H AGR - Kuehn, ReMae

Subject: SB 2148

CAUTION: This email originated from an outside source. Do not click links or open attachments unless you know they
are safe.

Boozoo,

SB 2148 is effective in its current form.

The voters have made it clear they want transparency. I was not in North Dakota for the election, I'm an
enrolled member of the Turtle Mountain Reservation and spent half of my 52 years here. This is my home and

['m thankful to witness this accountability.

If changes are made to SB 2148 they should be to increase the budget of the ethics committee. Let's strengthen
the confidence of all North Dakotains.

Chi Miigwech,
Tracey L Wilkie Waabishki Giiwedin Miquay White North Wind Woman

Sent from Yahoo Mail on Android
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19.0422.05013 Prepared by the Legislative Council staff for

Representative Klemin
April 22, 2019

PROPOSED AMENDMENTS TO REENGROSSED SENATE@_LN_O._2148

Page 1, line 1, after "A BILL" replace the remainder of the bill with "for an Act to provide for a

legislative management study regarding article XIV of the Constitution of North Dakota
and related issues.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY OF NORTH DAKOTA:

SECTION 1. LEGISLATIVE MANAGEMENT STUDY - ETHICS COMMISSION
AND LEGISLATIVE ASSEMBLY RESPONSIBILITIES. During the 2019-20 interim, the
legislative management shall study the implementation and requirements of article XIV
of the Constitution of North Dakota concerning the transparency of funding sources,
lobbyists, conflicts of interest, and related matters, the responsibilities of the legislative
assembly and the ethics commission, and potential issues under the Constitution of the
United States and the Constitution of North Dakota. The members of the ethics
commission must be invited to participate on the study committee as nonvoting
members. The study must include a review of existing laws and laws enacted to
implement article XIV, consideration of whether the civil and criminal sanctions for
violations of the constitutional provisions and the statutes are appropriate; whether
legislative action regarding article XIV is necessary or desirable; and an effective
means to educate public officials, lobbyists, and the public on the requirements of
article XIV and other laws regarding government ethics. The legislative management
shall report its findings and recommendations, together with any legislation necessary
to implement the recommendations, to the sixty-seventh legislative assembly."

Renumber accordingly

Page No. 1 19.0422.05013
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600 EAST BOULEVARD
BISMARCK, ND 58505-0360

Representative Lawrence R. Klemin Speaker of the House
District 47

3929 Valley Drive

Bismarck, ND 58503-1729

R: 701-222-2577
Iklemin@nd.gov

TESTIMONY OF REP. LAWRENCE R. KLEMIN
HOUSE ETHICS COMMITTEE
HOUSE CONCURRENT RESOLUTION 3028
FEBRUARY 12, 2019

Mr. Chairman and members of the House Ethics Committee. | am Lawrence R. Klemin,
Representative from District 47 in Bismarck. | am here today to testify in support of
House Concurrent Resolution No. 3028, relating to a study of Article XIV of the North
Dakota Constitution which establishes a North Dakota Ethics Commission.

Article XIV contains requirements for transparency of funding sources used to influence
statewide elections, elections for the Legislative Assembly, statewide ballot issue
elections and state government action. There are also requirements relating to lobbying

. and conflicts of interest, as well as the powers and duties of the Legislature and the
Ethics Commission. Some of the provisions in Article XIV are internally inconsistent
and ambiguous. Many issues in Article XIV are left to the Legislature to implement.

Although there are two bills pending in the Legislature, namely SB 2148 and HB 1521,
there are many questions that arise about the meaning of the words and phrases in
Article XIV that may not be fully answered by either bill. In addition, there are deferred
effective dates in Article XIV, which gives the Legislature time to further analyze its
provisions regardless of whether either bill gains Ieglslatlve approval. Consequently, an
interim study is appropriate.

Some of the questions raised by a review of Article XIV include:

Section 1. Transparency.

What is the meaning of "timely," "source," and "nature of resources"?

Does the word "transparency" in Section 1, relating to the Legislature, have the same or
a different meaning than the word "transparency" as used in Section 3, relating to the
Ethics Commission?

What is the extent and meaning of the "right to know" in Article 1, Section 1, and how

. does that reasonably relate to the rights of free speech, assembly and petition
guaranteed by the First Amendmentto the United States Constitution?
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Does "petition" in the First Amendment, which is referenced in Article XIV, include ‘7723//?
"petitions" provided for in the North Dakota Constitution and the laws enacted

thereunder, such as a "petition" for the initiative or referendum contained in Article Il of
the North Dakota Constitution?

How is the "ultimate and true source of funds" to be defined for purposes of
implementation of Article XIV?

What are the potential "one or more entities" in Section 1, subsection 2, that the
Legislature is authorized to "vest" with the "authority to implement, interpret, and
enforce" Section 1? Is that authority limited to campaign finance and lobbyist reporting
requirements currently vested in the Secretary of State, or does it encompass other
entities and responsibilities since Section 1 is required to be "construed broadly"?

With regards to citizen suits, can those suits be brought against the Legislature or the
Ethics Commission if the "laws" (enacted by the Legislature) or the "rules" (adopted by
the Ethics Commission) fail to fully "vindicate" the "rights' in Section 1. What does
"vindicate" mean? Are the "rights" in a citizen suit limited to the "right to know," since
that is the only "right" mentioned in Section 1. What is the meaning of "resident
taxpayer"’? Does this include anyone who pays income tax property tax, sales tax, use
tax, excise tax, or other taxes?

Are the existing provisions of the law related to campaign finance and lobbyists in
compliance with the mandates of Article XIV or is more required?

Do the provisions of Article XIV impair, impede, or violate the rights in the United States
Constitution, particularly with respect to the right of freedom of speech in the First
Amendment and the right of confrontation guaranteed to accused persons by the Fifth
Amendment?

Are there other provisions in the United States Constitution which may invalidate
provisions in Article XIV of the North Dakota Constitution?

What are the inconsistencies in Article XIV and can the Leglslature implement laws to
reconcile those inconsistencies? -

Section 2. Lobbyists and Conflicts of Interest.

"Gift" is defined by both inclusion and exclusion in subsection 1 of Section 2. The
Legislature is authorized by Section 4, subsection 1, to enact laws as follows: "Laws
may be enacted to facilitate, safeguard, or expand, but not to hamper, restrict, or impair,
this article." To what extent can the Legislature enact laws to explain or expand upon
the definition of "gift"?

There are also terms within the definition of "gift" that may require further definition.
Some of those terms include:

"not given in exchange for fair market consideration" -- is this in money or other
consideration such as trade, barter, services, property, equipment, and so forth?

"social settings" -- what is included? Is this to be construed broadly or narrowly?
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Does "gift" include items of small or nominal value?

The prohibitions on "gifts" by lobbyists in Article XIV and as further defined by rules of
the Ethics Commission don't' take effect until January 5, 2021. We already have
statutes and constitutional provisions relating to criminal acts, bribery, and corrupt
practices. For example: ND Const Art. IV, Sec. 9 -- bribery in legislative assembly; ND
Const. Art. IV, Sec. 10, legislator disqualification due to criminal act; ND Const. Art. V,
Sec. 10 -- bribery of the Governor; N.D.C.C. Ch. 16.1-10 -- corrupt practices act; to
name a few. Do the rules to be adopted by the Ethics Commission supersede these
existing laws and constitutional provisions? You may think not, but arguments can be
made that they could because of the "supremacy" clause in Article XIV, Section 4,
subsection 3.

To what extent, if at all, can "rules" adopted by the Ethics Commission supersede
existing laws enacted by the Legislature or laws enacted to implement Article XIV?

The Legislature is to set "appropriate" civil and criminal sanctions for violations of
Section 2 of Article XIV. Are the existing sanctions in the law "appropriate"? Are the
sanctions in HB 1521 or SB 2148 "appropriate"? Should there be different or additional
sanctions? What does "appropriate" mean? wd

How does the delayed effective date of Ethics Commission rules (2 years) affect or
interact with the delayed effective date of Legislative laws enacted under subsection 5
of Section 2 (3 years) with respect to "directors, officers, commissioners, heads, or other
executives of agencies"? What is the definition of "bias" in subsection 5? Can duly
elected public officials legally accept campaign contributions from any person that
potentially may later come before them in a regulatory proceeding? Example: Industrial
Commission member, Public Service Commissioner, Tax Commissioner. How about
appointed commissioners? What is the definition of "executives" of agencies. How far
down the chain of command does it go?

Can the Legislature enact other laws relating to ethics in 2019 or 2021 that take effect
before 20227

Can the Legislature set "appropriate" sanctions for violations by the Commissioners and
staff of the Ethics Commission, including for violations of their own their own ethics
rules?

Section 3. North Dakota Ethics Commission.

Subsection 1 creates the Ethics Commission and subsection 3 states that the Ethics
Commission consists of 5 members. Article XIV does not say anything about the staff,
offices, furnishings, equipment, salaries, benefits, or other matters relating to the Ethics
Commissioners and staff, other than that the Legislature shall provide "adequate" funds
for the Ethics Commission's functions and duties.

What is "adequate" now and during the interim until 2021 without knowing anything
more about the composition of the staff and functioning of the Ethics Commission? Is
this something that can be determined more appropriately through an interim study as
more about the needs of the Ethics Commission becomerknown?
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The Ethics Commission is authorized by subsection 2 to adopt "ethics rules". What isy%? 3/ 7
included within the meaning of "ethics rules"? Do they have authority to adopt any other
rules? What is the rulemaking procedure to be followed by the Ethics Commission? Is
it subject to judicial review?
What is the procedure to be followed by the Ethics Commission for the determination of
violations to ensure compliance with requirements for prceedural due process of law
and other rights of accused persons under the United States Constitution and the North
Dakota Constitution? Hearings, appeals, right to counsel if an accused person can't
afford a lawyer?

Appointment of the commissioners is to be done by "consensus" agreement of the
Governor, Majority Leader of the Senate, and Minority Leader of the Senate. What is
meant by "consensus"? Do they all have to agree or can 2 of 3 make the decision?

How is the Ethics Commission to be organized? Chairman? Vice Chairman?
Staggered terms? When do terms start? Term limits? Meetings? Public, private,
notice, frequency, location? Open meetings and open records except for "confidential"
whistleblowers?

Commissioners are to be appointed to 4-year terms. Can a commissioner be removed
or impeached? What is the procedure? Lo

Section 4. General Provisions.

Subsection 1 provides that laws may be enacted to "facilitate, safeguard, or expand, but
not to hamper, restrict, or impair” Article XIV. How are these terms defined? Who
decides what the terms mean? Who decides if there has been a hampering, restriction,
or impairment? What is the penalty if there is?

Does the definition of "agency" include licensing boards and their employees? Is there
no limit to who is covered as a "public employee"? The definition appears to cover
everyone in state government. Can we give tips or monetary "gifts" to the parking lot
attendants employed by the Legislature?

Subsection 3 contains a "supremacy clause". Does this supremacy clause conflict with
inalienable rights granted under other parts of the North Dakota Constitution? Does
Article X1V violate the United States Constitution, and if so, to what extent? Is the
"supremacy clause" itself unconstitutional?

As you can see, there are many questions about Article XIV. Some of those questions
are answered in HB 1521 (with my proposed amendments), but not all. HB 1521
provides a good starting point. There needs to be procedures in place to address the
rulemaking and adjudicatory conduct of the Ethics Commission during the interim
between the sessions. A study is needed to determine what else is needed to
implement Article XIV in the 2021 Legislative Session and whether the provisions in HB
1521 should be revised.

| urge your support for HCR 3028. Article XIV should be studied in detail.

Rep. Lawrence R. Klemin, Speaker of the House
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